CITY ©F

>

REVISED PROCLAMATION
CALLING A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL
(REVISED TO ADD A TELECONFERENCE LOCATION)

In accordance with the authority in me vested, | do hereby call the Berkeley City Council in special
session as follows:

Monday, September 16, 2024
6:00 PM

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702
TELECONFERENCE LOCATION - 1404 LE ROY AVENUE, BERKELEY, CA 94708
TELECONFERENCE LOCATION — 1528 HENRY STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94709

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — CECILIA LUNAPARRA
DISTRICT 4 — IGOR TREGUB DISTRICT 8 — MARK HUMBERT

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and virtual participation. Live
captioned broadcasts of Council meetings are available on B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet video stream at
http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244. All Council meetings are recorded.

To access the meeting remotely use this URL: https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1610819512. To request
to speak, use the “raise hand” function in Zoom. To join by phone: Dial 1-669-254-5252 or 1-833-568-8864 (Toll
Free) and enter Meeting ID: 161 081 9512. To provide public comment, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the
Chair. To submit a written communication for the public record, email council@berkeleyca.gov.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any member
of the public may attend this meeting, however, if you are feeling sick, please do not attend the meeting in person.
The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda.

Pursuant to the City Council Rules of Procedure and State Law, the presiding officer may remove, or cause the
removal of, an individual for disrupting the meeting. Prior to removing an individual, the presiding officer shall
warn the individual that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that their failure to cease their behavior may
result in their removal. The presiding officer may then remove the individual if they do not promptly cease their
disruptive behavior. “Disrupting” means engaging in behavior during a meeting of a legislative body that actually
disrupts, disturbs, impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting and includes, but is not
limited to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful regulations adopted by a legislative body, or engaging in
behavior that constitutes use of force or a true threat of force.

Government Code Section 84308 (Levine Act) - Parties to a proceeding involving a license, permit, or other
entitlement for use are required to disclose if they made contributions over $250 within the prior 12 months to any
City employee or officer. Parties and participants with a financial interest are prohibited from making more than
$250 in contributions to a decisionmaker for the 12 months after the final decision is rendered on the proceeding.
The above contribution disclosures and restrictions do not apply when the proceeding is competitively bid, or
involves a personnel or labor contract. For more information, see Government Code Section 84308.

Monday, September 16, 2024 REVISED AGENDA Page 1 Rev - 1


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://cityofberkeley-info.zoomgov.com/j/1610819512
mailto:council@berkeleyca.gov

Preliminary Matters

Roll Call:

Action Calendar

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action. For items moved to the Action
Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on the item during the
Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again during one of the Action Calendar public
comment periods on the item. Public comment will occur for each Action item (excluding public hearings,
appeals, and/or quasi-judicial matters) in one of two comment periods, either 1) before the Action Calendar
is discussed; or 2) when the item is taken up by the Council.

A member of the public may only speak at one of the two public comment periods for any single Action
item.

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium, or use the "raise
hand" function in Zoom, to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten
(10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the
Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are
permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four
minutes. The Presiding Officer may, with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue,
allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue.

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council.
Action Calendar

1. Ashby BART Transit Oriented Development (TOD)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager and City
Attorney to draft and advance for adoption contractual agreements with San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) in order to effectuate transit-
oriented development in accordance with the term sheet attached to the report.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

2. Presentation: Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (BECCAP)
From: City Manager

Contact: Jordan Klein, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400

Adjournment

| hereby request that the City Clerk of the City of Berkeley cause personal notice to be given to each
member of the Berkeley City Council on the time and place of said meeting, forthwith.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and caused the official seal of the City of
Berkeley to be affixed on September 13, 2024.

Jesse Arreguin, Mayor

Public Notice — this Proclamation serves as the official agenda for this meeting.

Monday, September 16, 2024 REVISED AGENDA Page 2 Rev - 2



ATTEST:

Mk Mssivid)

Date: September 13, 2024
Mark Numainville, City Clerk

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. 81094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be
barred. 2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Archived indexed video streams are available at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas.
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m.

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names,
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City
Clerk Department for further information.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at
https://berkeleyca.gov/.

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at:
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
and may be read at reference desks at the following locations:

City Clerk Department - 2180 Milvia Street, First Floor
Tel: 510-981-6900, TDD: 510-981-6903, Fax: 510-981-6901
Email: clerk@berkeleyca.gov

Libraries: Main — 2090 Kittredge Street,
Claremont Branch — 2940 Benvenue, West Branch — 1125 University,
North Branch — 1170 The Alameda, Tarea Hall Pittman South Branch — 1901 Russell

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.

To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD)
at least three business days before the meeting date.

Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting.

E

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. In addition, assisted
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to
be returned before the end of the meeting.

Monday, September 16, 2024 REVISED AGENDA Page 3 Rev - 3


https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
https://berkeleyca.gov/
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/city-council/city-council-agendas
mailto:clerk@berkeleyca.gov

Rev -4



Page 1 of 124

01

{ CITY 2F

-

o
m
5
m
—

m

Office of the City Manager
ACTION CALENDAR

September 16, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: LaTanya Bellow, Interim City Manager

Submitted by: Jordan Klein, Director, Planning and Development Department

Subject: Ashby BART Transit Oriented Development (TOD)

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager and City Attorney to draft and advance
for adoption contractual agreements with San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

(BART) in order to effectuate transit-oriented development in accordance with the
attached term sheet.

SUMMARY

The City and BART have been closely collaborating over the past several years to
advance TOD at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART sites. The existing property
ownership interests of the City and BART and various site constraints make
development of the Ashby BART site complex. The attached term sheet (Exhibit A to
Attachment 1) is the culmination of discussions over the past 18 months between the
City and BART negotiating teams led by Mayor Arreguin and BART Board Director
Lateefah Simon. The proposed real estate transaction structure would result in the City
relinquishing its air rights over the western parking lot (West Lot) in return for fee simple
ownership of the eastern parking lot (East Lot) and specified community benefits. The
term sheet also defines how the City and BART will work together on developer
solicitations, project entitlement and other identified milestones.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

There are a variety of potential fiscal impacts to the City related to Ashby BART TOD,
including the allocation of affordable housing funding, capital expenditures related to the
Adeline Street roadway reconfiguration, potential establishment of financing districts,
and operational costs related to on-street parking management adjacent to the station.
This action for Council consideration does not have direct fiscal impacts; the binding
real estate transfer agreement and future funding commitments will return to Council for
action. Staff will provide more detail about potential fiscal impacts in advance of future
proposed actions.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/

Special Meeting Item

Page 5


mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
rthomsen
Text Box
01

rthomsen
Text Box
Special Meeting Item


Page 2 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Over the past 18 months, City and BART negotiating teams, led by Mayor Jesse
Arreguin and BART Board Director Lateefah Simon respectively, have been engaging to
resolve issues in order to advance to developer solicitation(s) for the Ashby BART site.
The City negotiating team believes that the term sheet (Exhibit A to Attachment 1)
advances both the City and BART’s respective objectives, and maximizes community
benefits to the extent possible while ensuring economic feasibility of the project. Factors
that informed the term sheet include the site property ownership interests, site
constraints, the framework for community benefits, and economic feasibility. These
factors and the key elements of the term sheet are summarized below.

A. Ashby BART Station Site

The existing property ownership interests of the City and BART, various site constraints,
and planned redesign of the Adeline Street right-of-way make development of the
Ashby BART site complex.

The Ashby BART station site consists of two parcels: a 4.4 acre parcel bounded by
Adeline Street, Ashby Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way which includes the BART
station building and surface parking lot (“West Lot”), and a 1.9 acre surface parking lot
(located east of Adeline Street) bounded by Woolsey Street, Tremont Street, Adeline
Street and Essex Street (“East Lot”). BART owns the two parcels in fee simple, but as a
result of an agreement between the City and BART in October 1964, and subsequent
agreements and transactions including those related to the construction of the Ed
Roberts Campus, the City of Berkeley retains an option to acquire the air rights over the
West Lot for $55,000.

The Ashby BART station currently has a traction power substation (TPSS) located in the
northern portion of the West Lot, parallel to Adeline Street, which provides electricity to
run the BART trains. As part of a systemwide program, BART plans to upgrade, replace
and expand the TPSS at Ashby BART. The operational and safety requirements
associated with the TPSS and overall access to the Ashby Station constrain future TOD
(see Background section for more information).

B. Framework for Community Benefits

The framework for community benefits, and other project requirements defined in the
term sheet, reflect the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) and the Joint Vision and
Priorities for Transit-Oriented Development at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
Station Areas (JVP) adopted by City Council and the BART Board of Directors in June
2022 (Attachment 2) the Adeline Corridor Specific Plan', and input from “Equitable
Black Berkeley” (EBB). EBB is an initiative spearheaded by the Mayor’s Office, in

" Adeline Corridor Specific Plan (adopted December 2020): https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-
03/Adeline-Corridor-Specific-Plan.pdf

Page 2 Page 6


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Adeline-Corridor-Specific-Plan.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Adeline-Corridor-Specific-Plan.pdf

Page 3 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

partnership with Healthy Black Families, that is exploring innovative funding proposals
and policies for the Ashby BART station and “Adeline Community” area. The effort is
part of a grant-funded, community-driven effort to develop options to support equity,
opportunity and the well-being of Berkeley’s African-American community. The central
premise established by EBB for Ashby BART is that the project must begin to reverse
and repair the inter-generational harm that resulted from the development of the Ashby
BART station and redlining.?

C. Key Elements of the Term Sheet

The term sheet is intended to provide transparency and accountability for the City,
BART, the community and potential developers based on all the information currently
available. There are some unknown elements that will become clearer after
development teams are selected and more information is known about funding sources,
prevailing economic conditions and proposed development concepts for the site and
related public infrastructure. While the term sheet is non-binding, it will form the basis
for enforceable agreement(s) between the City and BART, which City staff anticipate
bringing back to Council in fall 2024. The term sheet addresses:

e How the City and BART will resolve the respective ownership interests in the site
and proceed with the developer solicitation process, the entitlement process and
related negotiations.

e Objectives and minimum project requirements for design, affordability and
infrastructure at the Ashby BART site.

e Anticipated City and BART contributions to the development project(s).

e Other agreements and actions necessary to effectuate and enforce the City and
BART’s agreed upon requirements on future development terms, including City-
adopted Objective Design Standards, master leases with the project developers,
and affordable housing funding regulatory agreements between the City and the
project developers.

During the negotiations, the City and BART each engaged real estate consultants
(Century | Urban and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc., respectively) to jointly
evaluate the financial position and ownership interests of each of the respective
agencies. The resulting real estate transaction structure and community benefits are
based on those analyses. Staff's recommendation is that these terms provide the City
fair consideration in exchange for the relinquishment of its air rights, advance the goals

2 November 29, 2022 City Council Meeting, Item 8: Grant Approval: San Francisco Foundation to support
the Equitable Black Berkeley Initiative, https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-
29%201tem%2008%20Grant%20Approval%20San%20Francisco%20Foundation.pdf

Page 3

Page 7


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-29%20Item%2008%20Grant%20Approval%20San%20Francisco%20Foundation.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-29%20Item%2008%20Grant%20Approval%20San%20Francisco%20Foundation.pdf

Page 4 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

and priorities established in the JVP, and maximize community benefits while ensuring
that the Ashby TOD project remains economically feasible.

Elements of the term sheet are summarized below.

1. Real Estate Transaction Structure/Disposition of City’s Air Rights Option.
As proposed, the City of Berkeley would relinquish its air rights option in return
for the transfer of fee simple ownership of the East Lot to the City, and a
commitment from BART that the West Lot project will provide specified
community benefits outlined below.

2. Project Requirements and Community Benefits.

a. Affordable and Market Rate Housing. A minimum of 35 percent of new
housing units to be developed shall be affordable or Below Market Rate
(BMR) housing, with a goal of 50 percent, in accordance with income targets
identified in the JVP (or other Affordable Housing Framework adopted by the
City Council for the Ashby BART station area). At least 50 percent of the first
602 new housing units developed on the West Lot (or 301 units) must be
affordable units; the total residential component of development on the West
Lot (including any additional units, whether density bonus or otherwise,
beyond the initial 602 units) must include a minimum of 35 percent affordable
units. Development on the East Lot shall include a minimum of 300
bedrooms, provided that a capacity study determines that doing so is feasible
for a project with a maximum height of 85 feet.

The inclusion of market rate housing within the project reflects the expectation
that the City will pursue the formation of an Enhanced Infrastructure District
(EIFD) to help finance infrastructure needs at the site. An EIFD would capture
the City’s share of property tax increment over a period of up to 45 years.
Income restricted lower income housing units would generally be exempt from
property tax so only market rate units would contribute to the tax increment.3
While some community members have advocated for the Ashby TOD project
to be 100% affordable, the funding to finance that amount of affordable
housing does not currently exist. Even with the City’s reservation of affordable
housing funding, the project would need to rely on application to multiple
cycles of future state and federal funding, which would add significant delay
and uncertainty to the TOD project. For those reasons, BART would not likely
agree to requiring 100% affordability at the site. Additionally, there is not a
consensus among stakeholders that the entirety of the Ashby BART site

3 Senate Bill 628 “Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts” (1/2/2015), Assembly Bill 464 “Enhanced
Infrastructure Financing Districts: allowable facilities and projects” (6/29/2021), Assembly Bill 336
“Enhanced infrastructure financing districts: public financing authority: members: joint powers authorities”
(6/29/2021).

Page 4 Page 8



Page 5 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

should be 100% affordable. Some stakeholders have advocated for a mixed-
income community in order to better promote economic mobility and to
provide a source of funding (e.g., property tax increment) that goes towards
infrastructure and services.*

On July 30, 2024 the City Council adopted a referral sponsored by Mayor
Arreguin asking staff to analyze and return with actions to initiate a possible
EIFD for the Ashby BART Station Area.

b. Berkeley Flea Market. The Ashby TOD project will include a permanent home
for the Berkeley Flea Market and other public markets and microenterprise
businesses. The City of Berkeley will allow a portion of adjacent Adeline
Street right-of-way to also be utilized to support the Berkeley Flea Market
(and other public programming). The project will include an installation
celebrating the history of the Flea Market, office space for the Flea Market
administration, and additional amenities to facilitate these uses. The City
Council approved a preferred concept to redesign Adeline Street at Ashby
BART in November 2022. The City has been awarded grant funding, to be
administered by the Public Works Department, to advance engineering
design for Adeline Street at Ashby BART as well as on Adeline Street from
Martin Luther King Jr. Way to the Berkeley-Oakland border.

c. West Lot Civic Commercial Uses and Amenities. The West Lot development
shall include a minimum of 5,000 net rentable square feet of ground-floor
space at below market rate rent for community-based organizations, including
the Berkeley Flea Market. The West Lot development may incorporate the
public artwork by Mildred Howard that was recently commissioned and
installed by the City of Berkeley; the permanent location will be determined in
consultation with the artist when more is known about construction plans for
the Ashby BART TOD project and/or the redesign of Adeline Street.

d. Connection to Adeline Street and Streetscape Improvements. The JVP and
the Adeline Corridor Specific Plan prioritize that future development should
connect directly to the greatest extent possible with Adeline Street. The West
Lot development shall include at-grade improvements that will include public
open space and expanded sidewalks, as shown in the preferred right-of-way
redesign concept for Adeline Street at Ashby BART selected by the City
Council (see Background section below for more details). Connectivity with

4 4/27/21 City Council Item #31: City Affordable Housing Funds: Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station
Areas and Future Housing Funding Notices of Funding Availability (NOFA), Attachment 2, p.36 regarding
estimate of City subsidy needed to exceed 35% affordable housing:
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-

27%201tem%2031%20City%20Affordable %20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20B
erkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20F uture%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%200f%
20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf

Page 5 Page 9


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf

Page 6 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

Adeline Street at Ashby Avenue and the southern portion of the parcel is
required (“Adeline Plaza Extensions”), and connectivity within the middle
portion of the parcel (‘BART Terrace Improvements”) will be included in the
project if feasible (see Attachment 1: Exhibit A, Section I1.C and Appendix C:
Infrastructure Map) .

e. Community Benefits Fund. Beyond construction of the TOD project itself, the
Ashby BART TOD project can play a deeper role in repairing and reversing
the intergenerational harm generated by the displacement of homes and
businesses as a result of construction of the Ashby BART station. Equitable
Black Berkeley has been central in shaping the proposal that a portion of the
revenue generated from the future development project must be dedicated to
a fund to be used for and by the greater South Berkeley community. The City
intends to require that a portion of the net project profit from the East Lot
mixed-income or market rate development parcels shall be allocated to create
a reparative community benefits fund for South Berkeley.

3. Public Infrastructure

Development at the Ashby BART site will require substantial public infrastructure
investments, including station access elements, plazas and sidewalks, other
streetscape improvements, access and circulation, and replacement parking for
BART patrons. Appendix C of the term sheet illustrates and delineates many of
those elements.

a. Funding sources and maintenance responsibility. For each infrastructure
component, the term sheet establishes the relative priority level (i.e.,
essential, high, or medium), anticipated funding sources, which of the parties
has responsibility in the event of a funding shortfall, and which of the parties
has responsibility for maintenance. These elements are summarized in
Appendix E. The term sheet also stipulates processes by which the City,
BART and/or the future developer will resolve cost-overruns and cooperate to
seek grant funding.

b. Special funding mechanisms. The term sheet establishes that the City will
pursue formation of an EIFD over the West Lot to help finance infrastructure
improvements. The term sheet establishes priorities for those funds, with
Adeline Street plazas identified as first priority. The term sheet also stipulates
that the West Lot Developer shall commit a capital contribution of at least $1
million dollars towards the “South Plaza Extension” prior to being able to
access any EIFD funds for that infrastructure component. The City may, in its
discretion, also form an EIFD on the East Lot to improve the economic
feasibility of development on the East Lot. The parties also agree to pursue
formation of a Community Facilities District to fund ongoing maintenance
responsibilities of West Lot and Adeline Street infrastructure.

Page 6 Page 10



Page 7 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

c. Adeline Street reconfiguration. Improvements to Adeline street, including a
road diet, sidewalk expansions, establishment of protected bikeways, and
improved traffic signals and transit operations, are considered essential to the
TOD project. Existing funding for the project is through preliminary
engineering only. The term sheet establishes that the City and BART shall
work collaboratively to identify funding for remaining project phases. It also
establishes that the parties shall endeavor to coordinate the design and
construction of the roadway reconfiguration with other public infrastructure
components. However, development of the West Lot project may proceed
prior to completion of the roadway reconfigurations and associated
streetscape improvements.

d. Traction Power Substation (TPSS). The definition of public infrastructure
explicitly excludes construction and operation of the TPSS; BART and/or the
West Lot Developer will bear responsibility for those costs. The term sheet
also establishes that the BART will construct aesthetic measures to screen
the TPSS from pedestrians, such as a mural, art wall or green wall within the
City’s right of way, or other mutually-agreeable screening treatment. The City
and BART will cooperate in seeking external funding for those improvements,
and the West Lot Developer may satisfy a portion of the City’s public art
requirement by providing those improvements, provided that they meet the
City’s standards for public art.

e. BART rider replacement parking. The term sheet stipulates that parking for
BART rider patrons on the West Lot will be the sole discretion of BART, and
the East Lot (under the City’s ownership) will not be required to include any
BART rider parking. However, the term sheet establishes that the West Lot
project shall maintain at least the current number of parking spaces for
persons with disabilities, to the extent that an occupancy study demonstrates
demand for those spaces.

4. Other Parameters

a. Timeline. The City and BART agree to execute binding legal documentation
that memorializes the terms of agreement in fall 2024. A schedule of
additional project milestones is projected in Attachment 1, Exhibit A, Appendix
B.

b. City Affordable Housing Funding. Fifty percent of the $53 million in affordable
housing funds (Measure O and Housing Trust Fund Program) that the City
has reserved for the North Berkeley and Ashby BART Transit Oriented
Development (TOD) projects, or $26.5 million, will be invested in the Ashby
BART TOD. Of that, $18.5 million shall be allocated for the West Lot and $8
million shall be set aside for the East Lot. The funds have been provisionally
allocated based upon lot size and anticipated affordable housing units at each

Page 7 Page 11



Page 8 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

site. The funds are also subject to affordability requirements, project
milestones, compliance with the applicable (to-be-developed) Objective
Design Standards, the City’s Housing Trust Fund Guidelines and other
requirements outlined in the attached term sheet. The City’s funding may only
be used to finance affordable housing in excess of the 20% requirement of
the City’s inclusionary policy.

c. Developer Solicitation. The City and BART will each pursue separate
solicitations for development for the West Lot and East Lot, respectively. The
City and BART may choose to coordinate concurrent solicitations or, as is
more likely, proceed on different timelines, depending on market conditions,
funding availability, and broader City and BART goals and objectives.

The solicitation process shall consist of Request for Proposals (RFP) or a
Request for Qualifications (RFQ)/RFP. The process shall also include a public
meeting that includes presentations from respondents, who will be asked to
demonstrate how their proposal addresses the negative impacts to African
American residents, businesses and cultural institutions displaced by the
construction of the Ashby station.

For the East Lot, the City will collaborate with BART to provide input and
guidance on the proposals received. However, BART will not participate in the
solicitation process other than to ensure that BART’s access and operations
requirements are satisfied and that the East Lot includes a minimum of 300
bedrooms, provided that a capacity study determines that doing so is feasible.
For the West Lot, BART will collaborate with the City to provide input and
guidance on the proposals received. The West Lot selection committee will be
comprised of seven members: four BART representatives, two City
representatives and a representative from Equitable Black Berkeley approved
by the City.

d. Objective Design Standards. The term sheet outlines the process to develop
Objective Design Standards (ODS) for the East Lot and West Lot. The ODS
process will generally be timed with developer selection. The Berkeley
community, BART and the selected developer(s) will be given the opportunity
to provide input into the ODS to ensure that the resulting document is
consistent with what can feasibly be developed and aligned with the intent of
the JVP. BART shall provide in its real estate agreements with future
developer(s) for the West Lot that compliance with the ODS is required. The
City may also require compliance with ODS in the restrictive covenant on the
West Lot, and as a condition of providing affordable housing subsidy to the
West Lot development.

Appendix D of the term sheet establishes requirements for ODS for the West
Lot. These include that the ODS must allow at least 600,000 gross residential

Page 8 Page 12



Page 9 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

square footage within buildings no taller than 85 feet, and also (alternatively)
shall allow for at least 750,000 gross residential square footage within
buildings that may be taller than 85 feet but within the maximum height
allowed by the ODS.

e. Enforcement of Public Benefits and Project Requirements. To ensure agreed
upon obligations for the East Lot and West Lot, the legal documents (e.g.,
Exclusive Negotiating Agreement, ground lease provisions, easements and
covenants) for each lot will require the developer(s) to comply with all
mutually agreed upon project requirements, community benefits, and access
rights, and to maintain those provisions for the life of the lease, except as the
City may otherwise agree.

Next Steps

As noted in the term sheet, the City and BART agree to execute binding legal
documentation that memorializes the terms of agreement in fall 2024. City staff will
bring such agreements back to Council for approval.

BACKGROUND

Spurred by the passage of Assembly Bill 2923 (AB 2923) in 2018, the City and BART
have been collaborating to facilitate transit-oriented development at the Ashby and
North Berkeley BART sites. The City Council and BART Board of Directors executed a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in March 2020 and a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) in June 2022 that outlined key milestones to advance to a solicitation
for developer teams. Many of these milestones have been completed:

April 2021: Reservation by City Council of $53 million of City affordable housing
funding for the Ashby and North Berkeley BART sites.

e June 2022: Adoption by City Council of new zoning and General Plan
amendments consistent with AB 2923; approval of the City and BART Joint
Vision and Priorities for Transit-Oriented Development at the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART Station Areas (JVP); and approval of the City and BART
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA).

e November 2022: Approval by City Council of a preferred design concept to
redesign the Adeline Street Right-Of-Way; provided information about the City’s
policies for managing parking Around BART Stations.

e July 2022: North Berkeley BART Station Site - Issuance of BART’s Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) for developer teams and the City’s Notice of Funding
Availability.

e November 2022: North Berkeley BART Station Site - Initiation of the City’s
process to develop Objective Design Standards.

Page 9 Page 13



Page 10 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

e December 2022: North Berkeley BART Station Site - Approval by BART Board
of Directors of selected developer team.

e July 2023: North Berkeley BART Station Site - Adoption by City Council of the
Affordable Housing Framework for Development at the North Berkeley BART
Station Area.

e December 2023: North Berkeley BART Station Site - Adoption by City Council of
North Berkeley BART Station Area Objective Design Standards.

e September 2024: Expected City approval of North Berkeley Housing Partners’
project application for streamlined land use entitlements pursuant to AB 2011.

Ashby Station Infrastructure and Operations and Future Development

BART has been planning systemwide traction power substation (TPSS) upgrades
and/or expansion at Ashby and other stations on its Richmond line.® The Adeline
Corridor Specific Plan and the JVP identify a goal to create an at-grade connection
between Adeline Street and the future TOD on the West Lot. BART has held two
community meetings to present information about Ashby BART station operation and
infrastructure needs and how they impact the connection of future TOD to Adeline
Street. At the April 2023 meeting, BART staff presented information about the design
process and constraints that informed their design for the new TPSS planned for Ashby
station. BART staff presented the maintenance, access and clearance requirements for
any development on top or adjacent to the substation; opportunities for at-grade
connections between the future TOD and Adeline Street was the most constrained in
the northern two-thirds of the Adeline Street frontage due to the requirements of the
TPSS and safety requirements due to station egress.®

In response to community members’ public comments and a letter from Mayor Arreguin
expressing concerns about the planned expansion of the TPSS at the Ashby Station,
and the resultant impacts on the proposed development project and the adjacent public
realm, BART has indicated a willingness to consider additional design modifications
related to improving visual impact of TPSS and connectivity to Adeline Street. At a
November 2023 community meeting, BART staff presented design modifications under

5 BART runs trains using electrical power provided by Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E), which in turn
supplies to over one hundred substations throughout the system that convert electricity to the voltage
required to propel BART cars. These substations exist throughout the BART system. A traction power
substation also exists at the North Berkeley BART station at the southeast corner of the intersection of
Virginia and Acton Streets.

6 April 20, 2023 — Ashby BART TOD - BART Operations Requirements and Adeline Street Connection -
Community Meeting presentation: bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/23 0420 Ashby Presentation.pdf;
November 8, 2023 Ashby BART TOD — TPSS Update - Community Meeting presentation:
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/2023-

11/20231108 Ashby%20Community%20Meeting%20Slides.pdf

Page 10 Page 14


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/23_0420_Ashby_Presentation.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/2023-11/20231108_Ashby%20Community%20Meeting%20Slides.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/2023-11/20231108_Ashby%20Community%20Meeting%20Slides.pdf

Page 11 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

consideration that would reduce the footprint of the staging area and visual impacts
from the planned TPSS upgrade on the public realm and the Ashby transit-oriented
development (TOD) project (see Attachments 4 and 5 for more detail on these
concerns and BART’s responses). Since then, BART has been conducting further
analysis of the feasibility of the various potential measures that were presented to the
public in November 2023. As noted in the term sheet, costs related to upgrading TPSS
infrastructure, as well as aesthetic measures (e.g., decorative fencing with artistic
treatments) along Adeline Street, and along the public facing edges at the north and
south ends of the replacement TPSS, to screen the replacement TPSS from
pedestrians shall be the sole responsibility of BART.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Creating equitable, transit-oriented mixed-use development that includes affordable
housing and housing support services for Berkeley’s most vulnerable community
members is a City Strategic Plan goal, which also helps advance the environmental
goals of being a global leader in addressing climate change, advancing environmental
justice and protecting the environment. In March 2022, the City published an
environmental impact report pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act
(“CEQA”) for the Ashby and North Berkeley BART station projects. Because this term
sheet is nonbinding, no further CEQA documentation is required at this time.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The parameters in the attached term sheet have been carefully crafted over the past 18
months by the City and BART negotiating teams. The parties believe that the proposed
package of terms best advance mutual objectives for high-density transit-oriented
development and community benefits that are economically feasible. Extensive
economic and real estate analysis conducted by third-party consultants demonstrate
that these deal terms provide the City fair consideration in exchange for the
relinquishment of its air rights, advance the goals and priorities established in the JVP,
and maximize community benefits while ensuring that the Ashby TOD project remains
economically feasible.

The real estate transaction structure to resolve the property ownership interests of the
City and BART for the Ashby BART site provides multiple advantages, including:

e Streamlined Solicitation and Land Control: The City and BART will each own
their own property (the East Lot and the West Lot, respectively) and therefore
control decision making and benefit from future revenue/community benefits. The
City will have sole ownership and control of the developer solicitation for the East
Lot, including exploring opportunities for rental and home ownership. The East
Lot also has fewer complex infrastructure issues than the West Lot.

e Actionable Financial Execution: If the City were to exercise its option to purchase
the West Lot air rights, the result would be joint ownership of the site. Any

Page 11 Page 15



Page 12 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

development project on the site would therefore require tri-party negotiations and
would generate a great deal of uncertainty for prospective developers. The City’s
real estate advisors have advised that such a project would be unlikely to secure
financing. Therefore, the proposed deal structure produces a clear and
actionable path forward.

e Community Benefits: The proposed real estate transaction leverages the City’s
option to purchase the air rights on the West Lot to ensure that the Ashby TOD
project will provide these tangible community benefits: a requirement of 50%
affordable housing of the first 602 units on the West Lot, below-market-rate
commercial space for the Berkeley Flea Market and other local community-
serving non-profits, establishment of a community benefits fund for South
Berkeley, and requirements that the future development connect to Adeline
Street at Ashby and at the southern portion of the West Lot.

e Enhanced Affordable Housing and Infrastructure Financing Potential: The high
levels of affordable housing included in the TOD should enhance
competitiveness for grant funding for affordable housing and infrastructure (e.g.,
Affordable Housing Sustainable Communities, Infrastructure and Infill Grants).

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

The Council could consider not authorizing the City Manager to advance contractual
agreements with BART in accordance with the attached term sheet. In such a case,
given the respective property rights of the City and BART on the Ashby West Lot,
advancement of transit-oriented development at this site and associated community
benefits identified in the term sheet would not move forward. On the East Lot which
BART owns fee simple, BART would have the option to move a project forward
independently of the City with a developer solicitation, or BART could choose instead to
prioritize working with another City in its Transit-Oriented Development work plan. The
project would be eligible for the State Density Bonus and/or a streamlined approval
process under AB 2923, dependent on the levels of affordable housing proposed as
part of the project. The project would also be subject to the City’s existing affordable
housing requirement (20 percent).

CONTACT PERSON
Alisa Shen, Principal Planner, Planning and Development, 510-981-74009.

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Exhibit A: Term Sheet for Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development (TOD)
2: June 2022 City and BART Memorandum of Agreement for Transit-Oriented
Development at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station Areas

Page 12 Page 16



Page 13 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

3: July 18, 2023 City Council Worksession report: Ashby BART Station Transit-Oriented
Development (TOD)
4: July 28, 2023 Mayor Arreguin Letter to BART General Manager Robert Powers

5: November 3, 2023 BART General Manager Robert Powers Letter to Mayor Arreguin

Page 13 Page 17



Page 14 of 124

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
ASHBY BART TRANSIT-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT (TOD)

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley (“City”) and the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District (“BART”) executed a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) to cooperatively
pursue Transit Oriented Development (“TOD”) at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
station areas in March 2020; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the MOU, the City and BART executed a Memorandum of
Agreement (“MOA”) regarding the projects at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART station
areas in June 2022; and

WHEREAS, the MOA identified additional complex issues that required resolution prior
to issuance of solicitation(s) for developer teams for the Ashby BART site; and

WHEREAS, the City and BART negotiating teams led by Mayor Jesse Arreguin and
BART Board Director Lateefah Simon have been exploring and discussing options to
resolve issues needed to advance to developer solicitation(s) for the Ashby BART site;
and

WHEREAS, during the negotiations, the City and BART each engaged real estate
consultants (Century | Urban and Economic & Planning Systems, Inc., respectively) to
jointly evaluate the financial position and ownership interests of each of the respective
agencies; and

WHEREAS, the resulting real estate transaction structure, community benefits and other
project requirements included in the term sheet (Exhibit A) are based on those analyses;
and

WHEREAS, the term sheet (Exhibit A) provide the City fair consideration in exchange for
the relinquishment of its air rights, advance the goals and priorities established in the City
and BART Joint Vision and Periorities for Ashby and North Berkeley BART Transit-
Oriented Development (“JVP”), and maximize community benefits while ensuring that the
Ashby TOD project remains economically feasible.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Council authorize the City Manager and City Attorney to draft and advance for
adoption contractual agreements with BART in order to effectuate transit-oriented
development in accordance with the attached term sheet.

Exhibit
A: Term Sheet for Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development

Page 18



Page 15 of 124
Exhibit A

TERM SHEET FOR ASHBY BART TRANSIT-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT

This Term Sheet is entered into on this  day of , 2024, by and between the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the City of Berkeley (“City”)
(collectively the “Parties”) in connection with their cooperative pursuit of transit-oriented
development (“TOD") at the Ashby BART Station (“the Ashby Project” or “Project”). This Term
Sheet is made in furtherance of the Memorandum of Agreement signed on June 29, 2022, between
BART and the City (“MOA”), the Memorandum of Understanding between BART and the City,
signed on March 3, 2020 (“MOU”), and the Joint Vision and Priorities Document approved by the
City on June 2, 2022, and by BART on June 9, 2022 (“JVP”), which address TOD projects at the
North Berkeley and Ashby BART Stations. This Term Sheet solely addresses the Ashby Project
and the business terms thereon amongst the Parties.

RECITALS

A. In 2020, the Parties entered into the MOU to identify their shared vision and priorities
for TOD at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART Stations, to provide clarity on the
process and timelines for pursuing development, and to begin to identify the roles and
responsibilities of the City and BART in that process. Among other things, the MOU
called on the City to establish a Community Advisory Group, reserve funding to
support affordable housing development at the sites, and to adopt zoning for the sites
consistent with Assembly Bill 2923 (“AB 2923”).

B. On December 8, 2020, the City adopted the Adeline Corridor Specific Plan and
certified a corresponding environmental impact report, which set forth a
comprehensive plan for development, including new affordable and market rate
housing, in the area of the City including the Ashby BART Station.

C. On April 27,2021, the Berkeley City Council unanimously adopted Resolution 69,833-
N.S. which, in part, provisionally reserves $53 million of City-controlled funds as the
subsidy needed to achieve at least 35% affordable housing at each of the Ashby and
North Berkeley BART sites, and allows for a portion of the funding to be allocated to
predevelopment uses.

D. On June 2, 2022, the Berkeley City Council approved the JVP with Resolution
70,402-N.S. and on June 9, 2022, the BART Board approved the JVP. The JVP
expresses the City and BART’s shared, high-level expectations for future
development of both the Ashby and North Berkeley BART stations. The JVP was

1

Page 19



Page 16 of 124

incorporated into BART’s Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) for development of
the North Berkeley BART Station site.

. On June 28, 2022 the Berkeley City Council adopted Chapter 23.202.150 in its Zoning
Ordinance, as part of the City of Berkeley Municipal Code, adding a “Residential -
BART Mixed Use (R-BMU)” zoning district, as well as additional conforming
amendments to the General Plan and other sections of the Municipal Code in order to
ensure that the provisions are comprehensively and consistently incorporated into its
Zoning Ordinance, to govern development at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART
Stations consistent with AB 2923.

. On November 29, 2022, the Berkeley City Council adopted Resolution No. 70,622-
N.S. approving a conceptual design for a street reconfiguration and new plaza along
Adeline Street between Ashby Avenue and Martin Luther King, Jr., Way, in order to
increase safety for pedestrians and bicyclists and to enhance access to the Ashby BART
Station.

. To the extent that this Term Sheet provides for the negotiation of terms that contradict
or are inconsistent with the MOA, MOU or JVP on matters relating to the Ashby
Project, this Term Sheet, being latest in time, shall supersede the MOA, MOU and JVP
with respect to guiding the negotiation of final agreements. The MOA, MOU and JVP
remain in effect except to the extent superseded by agreements negotiated pursuant to
this Term Sheet with respect to the Ashby Station.

. The purpose of this Term Sheet is to set forth the principal business and legal terms on
which BART and the City will negotiate an Exchange Agreement and related deeds and
easement agreements and other agreements necessary to effectuate the Parties’ intent,
as expressed in this Term Sheet. These definitive agreements, if approved, will provide
for the relinquishment of the City’s option to purchase air rights over the West Lot in
exchange for the City’s fee simple ownership of the East Lot, and for establishing
certain minimum community benefits and project requirements for the West Lot and
East Lot, including a minimum of 50% onsite affordable housing for the first 602 units
on the West Lot and a minimum of 35% onsite affordable housing on the East Lot as
more particularly described in Section II.A, below. The Parties have determined the
exchange of property rights and land value is an equitable exchange with the City
receiving additional community benefits in the form of additional affordable housing
units and community benefits on the West Lot, in addition to fee simple ownership of
the East Lot, as compensation for the release of its option to purchase air rights over the
West Lot.

Page 20



Page 17 of 124

PROPOSED TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Framework for Development at Ashby BART Station

A. Property. The Ashby BART Station site consists of two parcels: (1) a 4.4-acre parcel that
makes up the block surrounded by Adeline Street, Ashby Avenue and Martin Luther King
Jr. Way, which includes surface parking lots and BART’s traction power substation
(Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 053-1597-039-04) (“West Lot”), and (2) a 1.9-acre
surface parking lot located on the east side of Adeline Street on the block surrounded by
Woolsey Street, Tremont Street, Adeline Street and Essex Street (APN 053-1703-009-00)
(“East Lot”) (collectively the West Lot and the East Lot are referred to herein as the
“Property”). Adeline Street and the Ed Roberts Campus are located between the two
parcels. The two parcels are owned in fee simple by BART. In addition, the City retains an
option to purchase air rights over the West Lot pursuant to an agreement dated as of
October 22, 1964, as amended, between BART and the City (“Air Rights Option”). The
Air Rights Option, if exercised by the City, would provide the City with ownership of the
air rights ten feet above the parking lot located on the West Lot shown on the diagram
attached as Appendix A.

B. Background and Scope of Term Sheet.

1. The Parties share a desire to transform the Property from its current primary use as
surface parking to a transit-oriented development that will provide much needed
housing (including affordable housing), enliven Adeline Street, and benefit the
surrounding community, while continuing to ensure access to the Ashby BART
Station. The current property interests of the Parties in the Property and various
site constraints make development of the Property complex, and there are many
unknowns that will become clearer after developer teams are selected and more
information is known about funding sources, prevailing economic conditions and
proposed development concepts for the sites. The Term Sheet serves as a roadmap
for how the City and BART will work together to effectuate an economically
feasible transaction structure among the Parties as well as with the selected
developer(s).

2. The Term Sheet outlines how the Ashby Project negotiation and entitlement
process will proceed; the objectives and minimum requirements for the Ashby
Project in terms of design, affordability, and infrastructure; the anticipated City and
BART contributions to the Ashby Project; and the terms of an exchange that will
rationalize the Parties’ ownership interests in the Property. The Term Sheet is
intended to provide transparency and accountability for the City, BART, the
community, and potential developers based on all the information currently

3

Page 21



Page 18 of 124

available. The Term Sheet is intended to form the basis for negotiating an
enforceable exchange agreement between BART and the City. In addition, the
Term Sheet memorializes certain understandings of the Parties with respect to other
agreements and actions that will be necessary to effectuate and enforce the Parties’
agreed requirements on future Project developers, including City-adopted
Objective Design Standards (“ODS”), master leases with the Project developers,
and affordable housing funding and regulatory agreements between the City and
the Project developers. The following provisions in this Term Sheet are non-
binding but are intended to guide the binding provisions of the enforceable
exchange agreement.

C. Entitlement Streamlining. Public Utilities Code section 29010.7(b) (“Section
29010.7(b)”) establishes that TOD projects at BART stations that meet certain minimum
requirements will be eligible for entitlement streamlining pursuant to Senate Bill 35,
codified by Government Code section 65913.4 (as amended, “SB 35”). To minimize
entitlement risk, reduce project costs and accelerate the entitlement phase of development,
the Parties intend that the developers of the West Lot and East Lot shall have the ability to
utilize applicable state and/or local laws providing for applicable entitlement streamlining
mechanisms including, but not limited to, Section 29010.7(b) and SB 35, to the extent a
project qualifies for streamlined review under those laws, such that project entitlements
will be ministerial and not subject to discretionary review; provided, however, any projects
developed on the West and East Lots must comply with all applicable mitigation measures
adopted in connection with the City’s adoption on June 28, 2022 of the Residential - BART
Mixed Use (R-BMU) zoning district and all applicable standard conditions of approval
relied upon in the associated EIR, as set forth in Appendix F.

D. Real Estate Transaction Structure

1. The City and BART will rationalize their respective interests in the Property
through an exchange that will occur through one or more escrows by which the
City will relinquish its Air Rights Option in the West Lot and vacate any portion
of the existing Adeline Street right of way within the West Lot that is not currently
in use as a public street or sidewalk in exchange for (1) the transfer of fee simple
ownership of the East Lot to the City, subject to existing easements thereon but
free and clear of any reserved rights of BART (including any easement for mid-
block pedestrian passage) except as may be provided in the Exchange Agreement,
(2) the minimum affordability requirements described in this Term Sheet,
including the requirement that at least 50% of the first 602 new housing units to be
developed on the West Lot be affordable (and that at least 35% of the total number
of housing units be affordable in the event that more than 602 units are
constructed), (3) the provision of 5,000 square feet of community/civic commercial

4

Page 22



Page 19 of 124

ground floor interior space on the West Lot at 50% of market rate rent, and (4) the
other terms and conditions of the Exchange Agreement as set forth in this Term
Sheet.

. BART, as owner of the West Lot, and the City, as future owner of the East Lot,
would separately solicit development proposals for their respective properties and
enter into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (“ENA”) with a selected developer
or development team for each of their respective properties. (For the avoidance of
doubt, references in this Term Sheet to ‘a developer’ shall include a development
team in the event that more than one developer is duly selected to develop the East
Lot, or in the event that more than one developer is duly selected to develop the
West Lot.) Each ENA will provide for the negotiation of one or more ground
leases, or, on the East Lot, the negotiation of a ground lease or contract of sale, to
commence following the termination of the Air Rights Option in the West Lot, or
following transfer of title in the East Lot, as applicable.

. It 1s anticipated that the West Lot will be entitled as one project with multiple

parcels by BART’s selected developer on the West Lot (the “West Lot
Developer”). The City shall be obligated to re-convey the Air Rights Option to
BART within 10 days following BART’s execution of an ENA with the West Lot
Developer, and BART shall be obligated to convey fee simple ownership of the
East Lot to the City at the same time that the Air Rights Option is re-conveyed to
BART by the City, or at such later date as may be specified by the City, provided
that in the latter case, BART shall have at least 10 days’ notice prior to conveyance
of fee simple ownership of the East Lot to the City. It shall be a condition precedent
to these transfers that the zoning for the West Lot as of the date of this Term Sheet
has not been modified or changed to be more restrictive or to reduce the
development capacity prior to BART entering into an ENA with the West Lot
Developer.

. Upon (a) the delivery of the Air Rights Option reconveyance to BART and (b)
completion of street vacation proceedings for any portion of the existing Adeline
Street right of way within the West Lot that is not currently in use as a public street
or sidewalk, the West Lot shall be encumbered with covenants imposing and
allowing the City to enforce the requirements for development on the West Lot as
described in this Term Sheet, including, but not limited to, the minimum
affordability requirements, the requirement that the West Lot Developer comply
with the ODS adopted by the City for the site (provided that the ODS comply with
the requirements set forth in Appendix D), applicable mitigation measures adopted
in connection with the City’s adoption on June 28, 2022 of the Residential - BART
Mixed Use (R-BMU) zoning district, and all applicable standard conditions of
approval relied upon by the TOD Zoning EIR. The East Lot shall also be

Page 23



Page 20 of 124

encumbered with covenants imposing and allowing BART to enforce the
requirements for development on the East Lot as described in this Term Sheet,
including but not limited to a requirement that City’s ODS for the East Lot allow
for at least 248 residential units and at least 300 bedrooms. Such covenants shall
run with the land. The West Lot covenant shall be recorded at close of escrow for
the Air Rights Option reconveyance, and the East Lot covenant shall be recorded
at close of escrow on the East Lot conveyance.

No later than the City Council’s approval of the Exchange Agreement, the City
shall direct staff to initiate street vacation proceedings for any portion of the
existing Adeline Street right of way within the West Lot, including but not limited
to any portion of the approximately 900-foot-long strip of the West Lot abutting
the existing Adeline Street sidewalk as shown on San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District Amended Record Map of Right of Way RRW 9, dated December
7, 1971 in book 68 of maps, at page 150 (“Parcel R9-2”) within the right of way,
that is not currently in use as a public street or sidewalk.

E. Surplus Land Act. AB 1486 (Statutes of 2019, Chapter 664) and AB 1255 (Statutes of
2019, Chapter 661) made changes to the Surplus Land Act (“SLA”) found in Government
Code Sections 54220 et seq. Generally, the purpose of the amendments is to promote
affordable housing development on unused or underutilized public land throughout the
state to address the existing affordable housing crisis. The amendments to the SLA adopted
via AB 1486 and AB 1255 clarify and strengthen reporting and enforcement provisions of
the SLA to promote increased compliance with the Act. The parties shall confirm
adherence to the SLA and shall jointly work with the California Department of Housing
and Community Development (“HCD”) to comply with all requirements under the SLA in
connection with conveyance by BART of the East Lot to the City, and with a Request for
Proposals or similar document (“RFP”) for the West Lot or the East Lot.

F. City Funding

l.

The City will make available a total of $53 million in affordable housing funds
(e.g., Measure O Funding and Affordable Housing Trust Fund Revenues),
including up to $4 million in predevelopment funds (collectively the “City Funds”),
for the North Berkeley and Ashby Projects, of which it anticipates 50% of this
funding will be invested at the Ashby Project for permanently affordable housing
units in the amount of $26.5 million. As part of the developer selection processes,
up to $2,000,000 in City pre-development loan funds shall be made available, with
half of the proceeds available to the West Lot and half of the proceeds available to
the East Lot, the award of which shall be subject to City Council approval.

The City may, but shall not be obliged to, condition funding for the West Lot
project and East Lot project, respectively, on each project’s compliance with the

Page 24



Page 21 of 124

applicable ODS adopted pursuant to the process described in Section II.F, provided
the ODS comply with the requirements of Appendix D. The funding shall also be
subject to affordability requirements, project milestones, and other requirements
set forth in the funding agreements between the City and developer(s).

Of the City Funds allocated to the Ashby Project, $18.5 million shall be held aside
for the West Lot and $8.0 million shall be held aside for the East Lot, in all events
subject to the limitations in paragraph 4 below. The funds have been provisionally
allocated based upon lot size and anticipated affordable housing units at each site.
The funds shall be used only to support development of affordable units over and
above 20% of the total units (including density bonus units) in the project.

Any commitment of City funds to the Ashby Project’s West Lot or East Lot shall
comply with the City’s Housing Trust Fund Guidelines, and in no event shall the
City be obligated to provide more than an average of $200,000 per rent-restricted
affordable unit (i.e., units that are in perpetuity affordable to very low income or
lower-income households as defined in California Health and Safety Code sections
50052.5 and 50053), counting only units provided above and beyond 20% of the
total units (including density bonus units) in the project. The City Funds shall be
available to buildings which are 100% affordable housing, or, at the City’s sole
discretion, to affordable units dispersed amongst mixed-income housing buildings
which meet the Housing Trust Fund Guidelines.

G. Developer Solicitation Process

I.

BART shall pursue a separate solicitation for development of the West Lot, and
the City shall pursue a separate solicitation for development of the East Lot, in
accordance with the following:

BART and the City shall each conduct a solicitation whereby an RFP or RFP/RFQ
is issued to solicit qualified developers, and respondents will be asked to submit
their qualifications, as well as proposals demonstrating workable business
frameworks for development that are consistent with the specific goals outlined in
the JVP and the developer solicitation document(s). Because time is of the essence,
both the City and BART shall take every action to ensure that the milestone targets
included in the Schedule (attached as Appendix B) are achieved and sufficient staff
is dedicated by both BART and the City to meet the Schedule.

The RFP or RFP/RFQ for the East Lot shall include, without limitation, a request
to respondents to demonstrate how their proposal addresses (i) the negative impacts
to African American residents, businesses, and cultural institutions displaced by
construction of the Ashby Station, (ii) the JVP priority to “maximize the number
of new homes;” the number of residential units shall be a quantitative factor in the

7

Page 25



Page 22 of 124

City’s evaluation of proposals, and (iii) the requirement that the project include at
least 300 bedrooms. In the event that the East Lot capacity study currently
underway by Raimi & Associates concludes that 300 bedrooms is not feasible for
a project on the site with a maximum height of 85 feet, the City and BART shall
meet and confer to discuss alternative requirements to mitigate the reduced
capacity. BART staff will not participate in the solicitation process for the East Lot
other than to review and approve solicitation materials with respect to matters
relating to BART access and operations in order to ensure that BART’s access and
operational requirements are satisfied. Following the receipt of proposals, the
selection process will include a public meeting of shortlisted RFP respondents that
includes presentations from the respondents. The East Lot selection committee will
make a recommendation to the Berkeley City Council based upon selection criteria
prepared by the City. The Berkeley City Council shall consider and act upon the
East Lot selection committee’s recommendation of a developer for the East Lot.

4. The RFP or RFP/RFQ for the West Lot shall include, without limitation, a request
to proposers to demonstrate (i) how they would incorporate an exhibit honoring the
history of the Berkeley Flea Market, (i) how their proposal addresses the negative
impacts to African American residents, businesses, and cultural institutions
displaced by construction of the Ashby Station; and (iii) how their proposal would
provide a direct connection from the project to Adeline Street, which shall be a
quantitative factor in the evaluation of proposals. The City will have two three-
week periods as specified in the Schedule to provide suggestions and input on the
West Lot RFP or RFP/RFQ for BART’s consideration. The West Lot selection
committee will be composed of four BART representatives, two City
representatives, and a representative from Equitable Black Berkeley (“EBB”)
approved by the City Manager (total of 7). Following the receipt of proposals, the
selection process will include a public meeting of shortlisted RFP respondents that
includes presentations from the respondents. The West Lot selection committee
will make a recommendation to the BART General Manager based upon selection
criteria prepared for the RFP or RFQ/RFP. The BART General Manager shall make
arecommendation of a developer to the BART Board of Directors which the BART
Board of Directors shall consider and act upon.

H. Timeline. The Parties shall use best efforts to complete and execute the Exchange
Agreement by November 26, 2024, as specified in the Schedule in Appendix B.

I. Enforcement of Public Benefits and Project Requirements. BART recognizes the City
needs assurance that the portion of the Ashby Project to be built on the West Lot will

Page 26



Page 23 of 124

provide the agreed public benefits and comply with the agreed project requirements. The
City similarly recognizes that BART needs assurance that the development of the East Lot
will provide its agreed share of public benefits. To this end, the ENA and ground lease
provisions (or, in the case of an eventual sale of the East Lot by the City, the contract of
sale) for each lot will require the developer to comply with all project requirements and
community benefits required by the Exchange Agreement, and to maintain those
requirements for the life of the lease or, in the event that the City elects to sell the East Lot
to a developer, that said requirements and benefits run with the land. These requirements
will also be incorporated into restrictive covenants that will run with the land as a condition
of BART’s acquisition of the City’s Air Rights Option and the City’s acquisition of
BART’s interest in the East Lot. The form of the covenants will be included in the
Exchange Agreement between City and BART and provided to prospective developers in
the RFQs/RFPs.

Public Benefits and Project Requirements

A. Affordable & Market Rate Housing

1. The City and BART each have an interest in having the Ashby Project developed
with high density use, to maximize the amount of new housing and to enhance
transit ridership. To this end, BART and the City shall require that any development
on their respective parcels achieve a minimum of 75 units per acre.

2. On the West Lot, at least 50% of the first 602 units shall be affordable units. In the
event that the total residential component of the West Lot project has more than
602 total housing units (whether through density bonus or otherwise), there shall
be no fewer than 301 affordable units, and overall at least 35% of the units
(including density bonus units) shall be affordable units. BART and the West Lot
Developer shall consult with the City to explore economic potential for additional
affordable units, with an aspirational goal of up to 50% affordability based on
economic feasibility and availability of funding resources if the West Lot includes
more than 602 total housing units, taking into consideration development costs,
values and potential for additional City subsidy or funding from external sources.

3. At least 35% of the new housing units to be developed on the East Lot, inclusive
of units built to satisfy the City’s inclusionary requirement and including any units
that may be added as a result of a density bonus, shall be affordable, with a goal of
achieving 50% affordability. The City and the East Lot Developer shall explore
economic potential for additional affordable units, with the goal of 50%
affordability for the total project, taking into consideration development costs,
values and potential for additional City subsidy.

4. Any affordable units on the East Lot or West Lot that are provided to satisfy the

9

Page 27



Page 24 of 124

City’s inclusionary housing ordinance and are included in a mixed-income building
shall be rent- and income-restricted in perpetuity as required by the City’s
inclusionary housing ordinance. All other affordable units shall be rent- and
income-restricted (i) for the duration of the applicable ground lease (each of which
shall have a minimum duration of 99 years), including any lease term extensions,
or (ii) for 99 years, for any units on the East Lot that the City chooses to sell rather
than ground lease.

. The affordability requirements identified below shall be incorporated into the
ground leases for both the East and West Lots (or in the contract of sale for the East
Lot should the City decide to sell that lot), and will also be enforceable by the City
pursuant to regulatory agreements between the City and the developer(s), in
accordance with the income targets identified in the JVP:

i. At least 35% of new housing, inclusive of density bonus units, must be
affordable to households earning an average of up to 60% of Area Median
Income (“AMI”).

1. At least 20% of the required 35% affordable units referred to in
subparagraph (i) must be affordable to Extremely Low-Income (“ELI”)
households, which are defined as those earning up to 30% of AMI.

iii.  Of the required 35% affordable units referred to in subparagraph (i),
additional affordable units aside from the ELI units should prioritize Very
Low Income (up to 50% of AMI) households and Low Income (up to 80%)
households but may include some housing restricted to households with
moderate incomes (up to 120% of AMI), provided that the moderate-
income units have rents that are still below market and are not funded by
City subsidies.

iv.  While the aforementioned goals are established in the JVP and the City
and BART have policies regarding affordable housing requirements, any
project receiving the City’s Housing Trust Fund (“HTF”) funding must
meet the City’s HTF Guidelines. BART’s TOD Policy provides that
BART will consider a deeper land discount to its determination of ground
lease rent for affordable units that serve very low income (<50% AMI),
low income (51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent populations.

v.  Affordable units shall be constructed prior to or concurrently with any
market-rate housing component on the parcels. No market rate housing
on a Party’s parcel will receive its notice to proceed until an affordable
housing project on another parcel owned by that Party receives its notice
to proceed. In the event there are multiple phases of market rate or
affordable housing, a phasing plan shall be approved by the City to ensure

10

Page 28



Page 25 of 124

consistency with the JVP goal of affordable housing being built along
with market rate housing, with such approval not to be unreasonably
withheld.

vi.  Affordable units may be clustered into one or more 100% affordable
housing buildings (provided the minimum developer equity contribution
described below is satisfied) or dispersed amongst mixed-income housing
buildings, but must be designed in a way that integrates with the larger
project and shares comparable design standards and quality.

6. The RFPs or RFQs/RFPs for the West Lot and East Lot shall state the applicable

minimum onsite affordability requirements for each lot, as set forth in this Term
Sheet. In the event respondents to the RFP or RFQ/RFP for the West Lot propose
a project that includes more than 602 units, said respondents will be requested to
provide a detailed pro forma demonstrating how the respondent could potentially
increase the affordability of the full project, inclusive of any density bonus units,
beyond the required 35% minimum to reach an aspirational goal of up to 50%,
as discussed in Section II.A.2. The respondents to the RFP or RFQ/RFP for the
East Lot shall also be requested to provide in their response to the RFP a detailed
pro forma demonstrating how the development team could potentially achieve a
goal of 50% affordability, as discussed in Section II.A.3.

In order to facilitate the provision of affordable housing, BART will provide the
West Lot Developer with a discount on land costs for the BART-owned parcels
on the West Lot in keeping with BART’s Framework for Financial Return from
Affordable Housing. BART shall require the West Lot Developer to utilize this
land discount solely for the benefit of the affordable components of the West Lot.

B. Developer Contribution for Affordable Housing

1.

For projects on the East or West Lots that will meet all or a portion of the City’s
affordable housing requirements through clustering as described in Section
II.A.5.vi above, the developers of market-rate housing shall be required to
contribute funding to assist in the construction of the clustered affordable units.
A plan for either Lot to provide some or all affordable units in 100% affordable
housing projects shall not eliminate or reduce the obligation of the market-rate
units to contribute to such affordable units.

The amount of this developer contribution shall be calculated by 1) multiplying
$56.25 (as this amount may be adjusted biennially pursuant to City of Berkeley
Resolution No. 70,698-N.S.) by the Total Residential Unit Floor Area of the
project or projects after excluding the floor area in any 100% affordable housing
buildings and any floor area in market rate or mixed income buildings that is
included as a result of the state density bonus; and then 2) multiplying the result

11

Page 29



Page 26 of 124

by the percentage of the City’s 20% affordable housing requirement remaining
after accounting for any on-site Affordable Units provided within mixed income
buildings that comply with all of the requirements of Berkeley’s Inclusionary
Housing Ordinance (codified in Berkeley Municipal Code section 23.328). For
example, buildings that are 10% affordable would contribute $28.12 per foot
(half of $56.25), adjusted for inflation. For the purpose of calculating the Total
Residential Unit Floor Area, the area resulting from the density bonus is the total
Residential Unit Floor Area (for the whole market rate/mixed income project)
times the proportion of total units in the project in excess of those allowed under
base zoning (the “Density Bonus Percentage”). As a result of this formula, a
project that clustered all affordable units in 100% affordable buildings would
contribute $56.25 times (as adjusted) the base residential square footage of any
market rate buildings, excluding any density bonus square footage. A project that
included some affordable units on-site within the market rate buildings would
make a pro-rated contribution.

The City shall require that the West Lot Developer submit an Affordable Housing
Compliance Plan (“AHCP”) to confirm that the requisite amount is shown as a
source in the affordable proforma(s) and as a use in the market rate proformac(s).
If the AHCP is completed before BART’s Board of Directors approves a final
term sheet with West Lot Developer, then BART shall review and approve the
AHCP prior to City review. The City may condition its affordable housing
funding on compliance.

Market rate units built through the density bonus shall not be subject to any
further affordability requirements or in-lieu fee obligations; provided, however,
that the application of the density bonus to the West Lot shall not yield a project
that has less than 35% affordable housing as a proportion of the total units on the
West Lot.

C. Public Infrastructure

1.

Definitions and Summary.

i.  Future transit-oriented development at the Ashby Project will require

substantial investments in public infrastructure, which may include, but is not
limited to, reconfiguration of Adeline Street, Woolsey Street, Ashby Avenue,

and Martin Luther King (“MLK”) Junior Way; plaza improvements along
Adeline Street and extensions of the plaza to connect to the new

development; BART rider parking for vehicles and bicycles; new pedestrian,

bicycle, transit, and passenger loading; lighting; station improvements
necessitated by the West Lot project including but not limited to a new

station entry plaza, stairs, ramping, and Traction Power Substation (“TPSS”)

12

Page 30



1l.

Page 27 of 124

access area and crane area; and vehicular access roads (‘“Public
Infrastructure”). Public Infrastructure does not include infrastructure
necessary to serve a specific development parcel, the cost of which shall be
borne by the developer selected by the City for the East Lot (the “East Lot
Developer”), or by the West Lot Developer, as applicable. Public
Infrastructure also does not include BART’s construction or operation of a
new TPSS, which is anticipated to be on the West Lot.

The location of certain specific Public Infrastructure and TPSS
Improvements anticipated to be needed for the development of the West Lot
are depicted on the diagram attached hereto as Appendix C (“Infrastructure
Map”). The “TPSS Improvements” consist of improvements 7A and 7B as
depicted on the Infrastructure Map. Public Infrastructure shown in Appendix
C consists of the following categories:

» Roadway Reconfigurations. The “Roadway Reconfigurations”

consist of improvements:
* 1A (“Adeline Street Reconfiguration™), and
* 3B (“MLK/Adeline/Woolsey Intersection Redesign”).

» Adeline Plaza Improvements. The “Adeline Plaza Improvements”

consist of improvements:
* 1B (“Adeline Main Plaza”),
* 2A (“Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza”), and
*  3A (“MLK/Adeline/Woolsey Plaza™).

* Adeline Plaza Extensions. The “Adeline Plaza Extensions” consist

of improvements:
* 11 (“South Plaza Extension”), and
* 2B (“Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza Extension™).

* BART Terrace Improvements. The “BART Terrace Improvements”

consist of improvements:
*  9A (“Existing BART Terrace”), and
13

Page 31



1il.

1v.

Page 28 of 124

* 9B (“BART Terrace Extension”)

» Sidewalk Improvements. The “Sidewalk Improvements” consist of
improvements:

* 15 (“Ashby Sidewalk Widening”),
* 16 (“MLK Sidewalk Widening (north)”), and
+ 17 (“MLK Sidewalk/Bikeway Widening (south)”)

* BART Improvements. The “BART Improvements” consist of
improvements:

* 4B (“Required Emergency Access”),

* 5 (“TPSS Access Area”),

* 6 (“Station Entrance Plaza”),

* 8 (“North Plaza Stair (to be rebuilt)”),
* 10 (“South Plaza Stair (to be rebuilt)”),

* 12 (“South Platform Egress Stair and BART Storage
(access to be reconfigured)”),

* 13 (“BART Vents (to be extended above plaza)”), and
* 14 (“ADA/Bike Ramp (new)”).

The funds to construct and maintain Public Infrastructure and the TPSS
Improvements are expected to come from a combination of sources. The
responsibilities of the parties with respect to constructing, maintaining, and
seeking funding for Public Infrastructure and the TPSS Improvements shall
be as set forth in this Term Sheet and in the matrix attached hereto as
Appendix E (“Infrastructure Matrix™). To the extent there is a conflict
between the Term Sheet and the Infrastructure Matrix, the Term Sheet shall
control.

The Parties understand that available funding sources, financing estimates,
and economic conditions could change as this Project proceeds. The Parties

14



Page 29 of 124

shall cooperate to prepare a mutually agreeable financing strategy for Public
Infrastructure that will respect the priorities for external funding identified in
the term sheet, except to the extent the parties agree that flexibility is needed
to maximize the external funding available for Public Infrastructure. BART
shall require the West Lot Developer to collaborate with the Parties in
preparing the financing strategy. Failure of the Parties and the West Lot
Developer to prepare such a financing strategy shall not preclude either party
from applying for external funding nor relieve either party of the obligations
identified in this Term Sheet to cooperate on funding applications. Parties
acknowledge that the financing strategy may need to be updated over time to
reflect availability of financing sources.

2. General Responsibilities of the Parties. Except as otherwise provided in this Term
Sheet and in the Infrastructure Matrix, BART and/or the West Lot Developer shall be
responsible for constructing and maintaining the TPSS Improvements (7A and 7B)
and the Public Infrastructure on the West Lot, the City and/or the East Lot Developer
shall be responsible for constructing and maintaining Public Infrastructure on the East
Lot, and the City shall be responsible for constructing and maintaining the Roadway
Reconfigurations and the Adeline Plaza Improvements. The parties shall take future
maintenance costs into consideration when designing and costing Public

Infrastructure.

3. External Funding. Throughout the development process, BART, the City, the West
Lot Developer, and the East Lot Developer shall collaborate on securing funding for
Public Infrastructure. Such collaboration may include, for example, coordination on
the scope and requests for applications to state funding sources that support transit-
oriented development such as the Affordable Housing & Sustainable Communities
(“AHSC”), Infill Infrastructure Grants (“IIG”), and Transit and Intercity Rail Capital
(“TIRCP”) programs. The anticipated external funding sources for each of the Public
Infrastructure are identified in, but shall not be limited to, those sources listed in the
Infrastructure Matrix. To the extent external funding opportunities are limited, first
priority for use of grant funds shall be given to “essential” improvements, second
priority shall be given to “high priority” improvements, and third priority shall be
given to “medium priority” improvements, as those priorities are identified in the
Infrastructure Matrix (Appendix E). BART and the City shall make good faith efforts
to develop an infrastructure grant funding strategy that seeks to maximize the total
amount of grant funding available for the essential improvements.

4. Eastside Elevator. It is anticipated that BART may (but is not required to) determine
that it is necessary to make upgrades to the elevator on the east side of Adeline Street
that is used by BART riders to access the station (the “Eastside Elevator”™). In the event

15

Page 33



Page 30 of 124

that BART, in its sole discretion, determines that upgrades to the Eastside Elevator
are necessary, BART shall be responsible for securing grants or other funding for such
upgrades. To the extent necessary, and as a showing of good faith, the City or the East
Lot Developer will cooperate with BART in seeking external funding to support
BART-related infrastructure needs necessitated by the East Lot project. However, if
external funding is unavailable, neither the City nor the East Lot developer shall be
responsible for construction or maintenance funding for BART-related infrastructure.

5. Adeline Plaza Improvements (1B, 2A, and 3A). Adjacent to the West Lot, within the
City’s right of way, the City shall be responsible for constructing and maintaining
Adeline Plaza Improvements (Adeline Main Plaza, Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza, and
MLK/Adeline/Woolsey Plaza), including improvements related to the anticipated flea
market space, which may include, but are not limited to, public open plazas, plantings,
and green space. The City, BART, and the West Lot Developer shall collaborate on
securing funding for the Adeline Plaza Improvements with the goal of marshalling
financial resources from external sources (such as from the county, region, or state)
and, for Adeline Main Plaza (1B), through the City’s formation of an Enhanced
Infrastructure Financing District (“EIFD”) for the West Lot, which is more
particularly described in Section II.D.1, below. For purposes of determining priority
in allocating EIFD funds or external funding for the project, the Adeline Main Plaza
(1B) is considered essential to the project, the Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza (2A) is
considered high priority, and MLK/Adeline/Woolsey Plaza (3A) is considered
medium priority.

6. Traction Power Substation (74 and 7B).

1. The TPSS Improvements (7A and 7B) consist of a new Traction Power
Substation (“TPSS”) proposed by BART, together with related improvements,
which are 100% designed and will be constructed in the locations shown in
Appendix C labeled 7A and 7B. All direct, indirect, and ongoing operating
costs associated with the TPSS Improvements shall be the sole responsibility
of BART. BART currently anticipates using the TPSS Access Area (5) to
provide the crane access required for TPSS maintenance. BART shall not use
the existing Adeline Street sidewalk or future Adeline Plaza Improvements for
crane access unless BART provides temporary or permanent supports
sufficient to support the crane, at BART’s sole cost and expense. BART’s
construction of the TPSS shall conform to the location shown as 7A and 7B in
Appendix C. BART shall meet and confer with the City before materially
altering the TPSS location and shall work in good faith to address any concerns
with the revised location that the City may identify. Any increased TPSS
infrastructure construction or operating costs that may result from

16

Page 34



Page 31 of 124

modifications to the TPSS location shall be the sole responsibility of BART;
neither the City nor the East Lot developer shall be responsible for such costs.

ii.  The TPSS Improvements shall include decorative fencing with artistic
treatments or other mutually agreeable screening treatment, along Adeline
Street, and along the public facing edges at the north and south ends of the
replacement TPSS, to screen the replacement TPSS from pedestrians (the
“TPSS Screening Improvements”). BART shall be responsible for the
construction and maintenance of the TPSS Screening Improvements. The City
shall cooperate with BART in seeking external funding for the TPSS
Screening Improvements, but the obligation to construct and maintain the
improvements shall not be contingent on the availability of such funding.

7. West Lot BART Infrastructure. BART is committed to supporting the West Lot
Developer in seeking external funding to pay for the BART Improvements and any
other BART-related infrastructure needs necessitated by new development that may

result in costs above and beyond those a developer would incur on similar privately-
owned property. To the extent these external funding sources are not sufficient to
cover the costs of BART-related infrastructure, such funding shortfall shall be
considered a factor affecting project feasibility for purposes of this Term Sheet. BART
shall also be responsible for, and may seek external funding for, any necessary
upgrades to ventilation, lighting, vertical circulation, utilities, or other BART-related
infrastructure, which responsibility may be delegated to the West Lot Developer. As
indicated on the Infrastructure Matrix, BART has identified certain BART
Improvements as essential to the West Lot project and the sole responsibility of West
Lot Developer. However, the ultimate responsibility for the BART Improvements as
between BART and West Lot Developer shall be determined by BART in its sole
discretion. The City shall have no responsibility for the construction or maintenance
of the BART Improvements or any other BART-related infrastructure on the West
Lot.

8. Adeline Plaza Extensions (11 and 2B). The Adeline Plaza Extensions consist of the
South Plaza Extension (11) and the Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza Extension (2B).
South Plaza Extension is an extension of the southern portion of the Adeline Main
Plaza by providing an expanded plaza area and/or public accessways on the West Lot.
The South Plaza Extension (11) shall comprise at least 4,800 square feet, and shall be
extended as necessary to bridge any gap and connect with the adjacent TOD building.
The Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza Extension (2B) is an extension of Ashby/Adeline
Corner Plaza (2A), at the intersection of Adeline Street and Ashby Avenue, and shall
connect Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza (2A) to the adjacent TOD building through an
expanded plaza area and/or public accessways on the West Lot.

17

Page 35



Page 32 of 124

1. Purpose. The intended purpose of the Adeline Plaza Extensions is to provide
at-grade pedestrian connectivity between the Adeline Plaza Improvements and
one or more new TOD buildings with commercial and/or residential uses
having frontages that support activation of the Adeline Main Plaza (1B), and
that complement market activities there. The Adeline Plaza Extensions shall
be improved with elements such as a wider sidewalk, outdoor seating area,
outdoor dining area, landscaping, or other usable open space.

il.  Use by Berkeley Flea Market. At least 50% of the area of the South Plaza
Extension shall be publicly accessible open space. The publicly accessible

portion of the South Plaza Extension shall be made available for nonexclusive
use by the Berkeley Flea Market.

* In the event that BART retains possession of the applicable portion
of the South Plaza Extension, the Berkeley Flea Market’s use shall
be via a “Concession Permit” (or a similar document permitting the
Berkeley Flea Market use) issued by BART, on financial terms
comparable to the Flea Market’s current arrangement with BART, as
adjusted for inflation, and subject to the Berkeley Flea Market
materially satisfying all requirements thereunder, including but not
limited to review and approval of the proposed use, which permit
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

» In the event that the West Lot Developer has a right to possess the
applicable portion of the South Plaza Extension, BART’s ground
lease shall obligate the West Lot Developer to make at least 50% of
the area open and available to the public, and to, at the Berkeley Flea
Market’s option, enter into an agreement for the use of at least 50%
of the area of the South Plaza Extension by the Berkeley Flea Market
on financial terms comparable to the Flea Market’s current
arrangement with BART, as adjusted for inflation and, subject to the
terms of the ground lease and to the Berkeley Flea Market satisfying
all reasonable requirements of the West Lot Developer.

* The 50% area to be used by the Berkeley Flea Market shall be
configured to avoid interference with required building emergency
egress and BART rider ingress/egress.

iii.  Delivery. The South Plaza Extension (11) is considered essential to the West
Lot development and shall be included in the final project. The Parties
acknowledge that the technical issues involved in providing at-grade

18

Page 36



1v.

Vi.

Page 33 of 124

pedestrian connectivity between a new TOD building and Adeline Street, and
the costs associated therewith, have not been fully evaluated at this time.
BART shall use good-faith efforts to work with the West Lot Developer to
ensure that the final project will deliver at-grade pedestrian connectivity
between a new TOD building and Adeline Main Plaza (1B) using high quality
design and materials; provided that, in the event of a funding shortfall, BART,
City and West Lot Developer shall work in good faith to identify value-
engineering and other cost saving measures as provided in paragraph iii below.
The Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza Extension (2B) is considered a high priority
improvement and shall be included in the final project to the extent consistent
with project feasibility.

Funding. The City, BART, and the West Lot Developer shall collaborate on
securing external funding for the Adeline Plaza Extensions (such as from the
county, region, state, or federal government). In addition, the South Plaza
Extension (11), to the extent eligible for EIFD funding under state law, shall
be given priority among plaza extensions for EIFD funding as more
particularly described in Section I1.D.1.i, below, contingent upon West Lot
Developer committing to a capital contribution of no less than $1 million for
the South Plaza Extension.

Funding Shortfall. If revenues from the EIFD (including related interim
bridge financing) and external funding sources are insufficient (or
unavailable) to fund the South Plaza Extension, the parties will meet and

confer to discuss value engineering measures to ensure the economic
feasibility of the project; provided, however, that in no event shall the South
Plaza Extension be constructed using low-quality materials. The West Lot
Developer shall be responsible for the costs of constructing the Adeline Plaza
Extensions in the event of any funding shortfalls. Neither City nor BART
shall be required to contribute funds towards the Adeline Plaza Extensions.

EIFD Bridge Financing: The Parties acknowledge that EIFD funds may not
be available until after the improvements associated with the Project are
complete and on the tax rolls. The parties will collaborate on a plan to
provide bridge financing through creation of a Community Facilities District
(“CFD”) or other financing mechanism to be offset, reimbursed, or
refinanced when EIFD revenues become available. The City shall be
responsible for the maintenance of the public portions of the Adeline Plaza
Extensions, which shall be funded by the CFD identified in Section I1.D.3.
Any portions of the Adeline Plaza Extensions which are for the exclusive use

19

Page 37



Page 34 of 124

of the West Lot project shall be maintained by Developer and shall not be
eligible for CFD funding.

9. BART Terrace Improvements (9A and 9B). The BART Terrace Improvements consist
of improvements to the Existing BART Terrace (9A) abutting the proposed Adeline
Plaza, and any BART Terrace Extension (9B) necessary to connect the Existing
BART Terrace to the adjacent TOD Building. As with the Adeline Plaza Extensions,
the purpose of any BART Terrace Extension is to provide at-grade pedestrian
connectivity between the Adeline Plaza Improvements and one or more new TOD

buildings with commercial and/or residential uses having frontages that support
activation of the Adeline Main Plaza (1B), and that complement market activities
there.

1.  Use by Berkeley Flea Market. The Existing BART Terrace shall be publicly
accessible open space, and at least 50% of the area shall be made available for
nonexclusive use by the Berkeley Flea Market.

* In the event that BART retains possession of the applicable portion
of the Existing BART Terrace, the Berkeley Flea Market’s use shall
be via a “Concession Permit” (or a similar document permitting the
Berkeley Flea Market Use) issued by BART, on financial terms
comparable to the Flea Market’s current arrangement with BART, as
adjusted for inflation, and subject to the Berkeley Flea Market
materially satisfying all requirements thereunder, including but not
limited to review and approval of the proposed use, which permit
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

* In the event that the West Lot Developer has a right to possess the
applicable portion of the Existing BART Terrace, BART’s ground
lease shall obligate the West Lot Developer to make the area open
and accessible to the public, and, at the Berkeley Flea Market’s
option, to enter into an agreement for the use of at least 50% of the
area of the Existing BART Terrace by the Berkeley Flea Market on
financial terms comparable to the Flea Market’s current arrangement
with BART, as adjusted for inflation and, subject to the terms of the
ground lease and to the Berkeley Flea Market satisfying all
reasonable requirements of the West Lot Developer.

* The 50% area to be used by the Berkeley Flea Market shall be
configured to avoid interference with building emergency egress,
and BART rider ingress/egress.

20

Page 38



Page 35 of 124

ii.  Delivery. BART and/or the West Lot Developer shall be responsible for
constructing any improvements to the Existing BART Terrace and, if it is
included in the final Project design, for constructing the BART Terrace
Extension. EIFD funding may be made available for eligible BART Terrace
Improvements if external funding is insufficient to cover construction costs,
consistent with Section II.D.1.ii below. The BART Terrace Improvements are
considered a high priority and shall be included in the final project to the extent
consistent with project feasibility.

10. Roadway Reconfigurations (1A and 3B).

1.  QOverview. The Adeline Street Transportation Improvements Project is
expected to repurpose two of the existing four traffic lanes to create a new
public pedestrian plaza and protected bikeways, along with upgraded traffic
signal infrastructure and enhanced public transit operations on Adeline Street.
The project scope of work includes redesigning the intersections of
Adeline/Ashby and MLK/Adeline/Woolsey adjacent to Ashby BART. The
component of the project to reconfigure Adeline Street is identified in
Appendix C as 1A (Adeline Street Reconfiguration), and the component to
reconfigure the MLK/Adeline/Woolsey intersection is identified in Appendix
C as 3B (MLK/Adeline/Woolsey Intersection Redesign).

it.  Funding of Roadway Reconfigurations. The Adeline Street Reconfiguration
(1A) is considered essential to the project. Existing funding for the Adeline
Street Reconfiguration is through Preliminary Engineering only, and funding
for subsequent engineering design and construction phases has not yet been
identified. The City and BART shall work collaboratively to identify funding
for remaining project phases. The MLK/Adeline/Woolsey Intersection
Redesign (3B) is considered a high priority improvement. The West Lot
Developer shall collaborate with the City on securing funding for the Roadway

Reconfigurations, including, for example, by coordinating on the scope and
requests for applications to state funding sources. However, the costs of the
Roadway Reconfigurations shall not be borne by BART or the West Lot
Developer, but rather by grants, subsidies, or other publicly available funding
sources.

11. Sidewalk Improvements (15, 16, and 17). The Sidewalk Improvements consist of the
widening of the sidewalks along Ashby Avenue and MLK Way, and the widening of
the sidewalk and construction of a new protected bikeway along MLK Way at the
southern portion of the West Lot. The Sidewalk Improvements have a medium
priority. West Lot Developer is responsible for the construction of the Sidewalk

21

Page 39



Page 36 of 124

Improvements and the costs thereof. The City shall be responsible for maintenance of
the improved sidewalks.

12. BART Rider Parking. BART rider parking on the West Lot shall be the sole
responsibility of BART and shall be within the sole discretion of BART, except that
BART shall commit to providing ADA parking spaces in a quantity sufficient to meet
user demand (up to the current amount at the station [16]), but in no event fewer than
the quantity required by law. BART will monitor ADA space occupancy during the
conceptual design process to determine the appropriate number of ADA spaces prior
to construction. BART shall not require BART rider parking, including ADA parking,
on the East Lot. The City, at its sole discretion and subject to any required public

process and approvals, may elect to accommodate some or all of BART’s ADA
parking obligation within the City’s right of way for the purpose of reducing costs and
allowing external funding to be directed to other Public Infrastructure.

13. Coordination and Construction Process. The City, BART, and the West Lot
Developer shall endeavor to coordinate the design and construction of the Roadway
Reconfigurations, Adeline Plaza Improvements, the Adeline Plaza Extensions, the
BART Improvements, and any other public infrastructure necessary for the project

that may affect those improvements, to promote efficiency, seek compatibility of
design and materials, and minimize conflicts with other City projects. To facilitate
coordination and increase efficiency, the City, BART, and/or the West Lot Developer
may enter into construction and reimbursement agreements providing for a single
party to construct multiple improvements concurrently, with costs allocated as
provided in this Term Sheet. However, development of the West Lot project and
necessary Public Infrastructure may proceed prior to completion of the Roadway
Reconfigurations and the Adeline Plaza Improvements. Additionally, nothing in this
Term Sheet is intended to bar the City from assessing any regular public works fees
on the developer associated with processing development permits and mitigating
development impacts.

14. Specific Maintenance Responsibility for BART-Related Infrastructure. BART shall be
responsible for the costs of maintaining any BART-related infrastructure, such as the
Eastside Elevator, the TPSS, and the BART Improvements, regardless of whether such
infrastructure is on the East Lot, the West Lot, or within the City’s right of way, with
the exception of any on-street ADA parking spaces, which shall be maintained by the
City.

D. Special Funding Mechanisms for Public Infrastructure

22

Page 40



Page 37 of 124

1. West Lot EIFD. The City will make good faith efforts to pursue formation of an EIFD
over the West Lot to improve the economic feasibility of development on the West
Lot and potentially increase the level of affordable housing on the site. The City
commits to making a good faith effort to form the EIFD within 12 months of approval
of the entitlements for the West Lot Project. BART and the developer shall provide
the requisite consents to (and refrain from protesting) formation. Priority of funds

will be as follows:

1. (a) The South Plaza Extension (11) (to the extent eligible under state law, and
contingent upon West Lot Developer committing to a capital contribution of
no less than $1 million for the South Plaza Extension) and (b) Adeline Main
Plaza (1B).

ii. ~ The BART Terrace Improvements (9A and 9B) and Ashby/Adeline Corner
Plaza (2B).

iii.  Public Infrastructure costs with no other available funding source, but
excluding the BART Improvements or any other BART-related infrastructure
(such as BART rider parking).

iv.  Affordable housing funding gap for units in excess of the City’s current
inclusionary housing requirement.

v.  Tax increment “pay as you go” financing to reimburse the developer(s) for
eligible capital and maintenance costs for improvements financed by the EIFD.

2. East Lot EIFD. The City may, in its discretion, form an EIFD on the East Lot to
improve the economic feasibility of development on the East Lot. The City may use
the proceeds from the East Lot EIFD for any eligible costs associated with the East
Lot development, provided that the funds shall not be applied toward any BART-
related infrastructure.

3. Community Facilities District. The City’s costs of maintaining the Adeline Plaza
Improvements and the Adeline Plaza Extensions shall be covered by a CFD consisting

solely of the West Lot, to fund ongoing maintenance responsibilities carried out by
the City. The CFD shall only cover maintenance expenses for the public portions of
the Adeline Plaza Extensions; it shall not cover maintenance of any portion that is for
the exclusive use of the West Lot project. The City will initiate the formation of the
CFD. The Parties will collaborate on developing the local goals and policies and, with
the West Lot Developer, on determining the CFD’s rate and method of apportionment,
which determination shall take into account the impact that such additional tax burden

23

Page 41



Page 38 of 124

will have on the feasibility of the West Lot Project. BART shall give (and shall require
West Lot Developer to give) any consents necessary to form the CFD, and BART or
the West Lot Developer, as applicable, will vote in favor of formation of the CFD.
The Parties acknowledge that a CFD will impact the feasibility of the Project by
increasing the tax burden on the West Lot TOD, and agree to seek external funding
sources if the CFD cannot feasibly generate enough revenue to cover the maintenance
costs of the Adeline Plaza Improvements and Adeline Plaza Extensions.

E. Other Design and Development Considerations

1. West Lot Civic Commercial Uses & Amenities.

i.  The West Lot development shall be required to include a minimum of 5,000
net rentable square feet of ground floor interior space for community-based
organizations, non-profits, and/or small and minority-owned businesses,
including the Berkeley Flea Market, with triple net lease rents less than or
equal to 50% of fair market (triple net) rent during the term of the ground lease.
Tenants for this space, other than the Berkeley Flea Market may be
recommended by the City but are subject to the West Lot Developer’s sole
discretion.

ii.  The West Lot development may incorporate the public artwork by Mildred
Howard that was recently commissioned by the City.

2. The Berkeley Flea Market. Following the completion of the Adeline Plaza
Improvements (1B, 2A, and 3A), the South Plaza Extension (11), and the BART
Terrace Improvements (9A and 9B), those areas shall be made available (consistent
with Sections I1.C.8.ii and II.C.9.1) as vending space for the Berkeley Flea Market on
terms comparable to its current arrangement with BART, as adjusted for inflation, and

potentially for other public markets and microenterprise businesses. The City may
allow some portion of adjacent right-of-way to also be utilized to support the Berkeley
Flea Market (and other public programming), such as for vendor parking at the curb
on weekends. BART will not terminate its current arrangement with the Berkeley Flea
Market nor increase its rent until the West Lot Developer requires possession of the
West Lot for purposes of commencing construction. If, at that time, the Adeline Main
Plaza (1B) is not yet completed, the City will assist the Berkeley Flea Market in
identifying and securing a suitable alternate location.

3. Community Benefits Fund. The City intends to require that a portion of net project

profit from the East Lot mixed income or market rate development parcels shall be
allocated to create a reparative community benefits fund for South Berkeley residents,

24

Page 42



Page 39 of 124

as follows: By the earlier of (i) the beginning of the fourth year after a Temporary
Certificate of Occupancy (“TCQO”) is approved for a market rate or mixed income
parcel on the East Lot, or (ii) stabilization (i.e., 95% occupancy) is achieved for such
parcel, the developer of the parcel shall fund its pro rata share, as calculated pursuant
to the next sentence, of an $150,000 contribution to the Community Benefits Fund, to
be paid annually on the anniversary of the date the first payment was due, with annual
cost of living adjustments of no less than 3.0% per annum. The percentage of the total
to be paid by each qualifying parcel shall be calculated by dividing the parcel’s net
rentable or net sellable square footage by the total net rentable or net sellable square
footage of all market rate or mixed income development approved or proposed on the
East Lot. The final terms of any community benefits fund shall be established by the
City in its sole discretion.

F. Objective Design Standards

1. Overview. The Parties desire to maintain the ability for the City and community to
provide effective input as to the design of development proposed at the Ashby Project.
The Parties agree that the primary vehicles for City and community input are set forth
in section 23.202.150 of the City’s Zoning Code, in the JVP, and in the ODS that will
be developed separately for the West Lot and the East Lot. The Parties agree that the
intent of ODS is to allow the City, the community, BART, and the developer to have
a strong voice in the design quality of the development at the Ashby Station. The
following sections describe the Parties’ mutual understandings regarding the ODS and
ODS process for the West Lot. The process and content of any ODS for the East Lot
shall be determined by the City in its sole discretion provided that the ODS must allow
for at least 248 units and at least 300 bedrooms.

2. Binding Nature of ODS. The Parties understand and agree that pursuant to Section I.C
of this Term Sheet and applicable law, a development application that qualifies for
streamlined review shall be subject to ODS that will be duly adopted by the City prior
to the submittal of the development application, and that such ODS shall be
enforceable as permit conditions by the City. The West Lot Developer shall not submit
any development application (including a preliminary application) before the earlier
of the adoption of the ODS or the expiration of the ODS Approval Period. In addition,
as part of the consideration for the City’s relinquishment of its option rights in the
West Lot air space, the covenant encumbering the West Lot shall require that
development comply with ODS that meet the requirements of Appendix D. BART
shall ensure through its property agreements with the West Lot Developer that
development on the West Lot adheres to ODS meeting the requirements of Appendix
D. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in Appendix D, the West Lot
Developer may invoke waivers, incentives or other exceptions, to the extent permitted

25

Page 43



Page 40 of 124

by law, but only with respect to (a) zoning requirements other than those set forth in
or modified by the ODS, (b) ODS requirements pertaining to minimum square footage
of active or non-residential ground floor uses, but only to the extent such requirements
exceed 15,000 square feet, inclusive of the 5,000 square feet of community/civic
commercial space, and (c) other ODS requirements that do not pertain to height limits,
setbacks/step-backs, open space or massing breaks.

3. Development of West Lot ODS. BART has retained a consultant, Raimi & Associates
(“Raimi”), directed by the City, to work with both Parties, community stakeholders,
and the West Lot Developer to create ODS for the West Lot. Raimi has prepared a
“Capacity Study based on a circulation framework and other development
assumptions mutually agreed upon by the Parties. The Capacity Study shall be
incorporated into the Exchange Agreement and serves to establish the net
developable area of the site for purposes of determining ODS compliance with the
requirements of Appendix D, as more particularly described therein. The process for
adoption of ODS shall occur in two phases: the “Preliminary ODS” and the “Final
ODS.” Raimi and City shall complete the Preliminary ODS for the West Lot by
November 19, 2024 in advance of the release of the RFP or RFQ/RFP so that it may
be included as an exhibit to the RFP or RFQ/RFP. The public and BART shall be
given an opportunity to review and comment on the Preliminary and Final ODS, as
will the West Lot Developer following developer selection. BART and West Lot
Developer shall make good faith efforts to provide the City with information
regarding the proposed project design necessary to develop ODS, and any other
input they may have on draft or proposed ODS, in a timely fashion. During the ODS
Approval Period, the City shall consider the input of the public, BART, and the West
Lot Developer in the preparation of Final ODS to be considered for adoption by the
Planning Commission and City Council, and shall make a good faith effort to
address any objections raised by BART and the West Lot Developer relating to the
impact of ODS on project feasibility or design.

4. Requirements for ODS. The Parties agree that the ODS shall comply with the
requirements set forth in Appendix D. Main topics in the ODS may include but are
not limited to:

* Public realm improvements
* Building form and massing
* Building fagade design

*  Open space and landscape

5. Appendix D Compliance — Process for Objecting. Prior to submitting proposed Final
ODS to the Planning Commission, the City shall provide them to BART and the West

26

Page 44



Page 41 of 124

Lot Developer. If BART or the West Lot Developer object to any of the proposed
Final ODS based on noncompliance with the requirements set forth in Appendix D,
they shall submit such objections to the City, along with an explanation of the basis
for the objections, within fifteen (15) business days of receipt. If objections are timely
submitted, the City, BART and West Lot Developer shall promptly meet and confer
in good faith to resolve the objections and make any revisions before the proposed
Final ODS are submitted to the Planning Commission. If BART or West Lot
Developer believes the Final ODS recommended by the Planning Commission for
approval by Council would not comply with Appendix D, BART or West Lot
Developer shall have fifteen (15) business days following the Planning Commission’s
recommendation to submit their objections to the City, along with an explanation of
the basis for them, and the City, BART, and the West Lot Developer shall promptly
meet and confer in good faith to resolve them prior to submittal to the City Council.
If no objections based on Appendix D requirements are raised within the applicable
fifteen (15) business day period, or if timely raised objections are resolved through
the meet and confer process, the Final ODS approved by Council will be deemed to
satisfy the requirements set forth in Appendix D unless modified by Council in a
manner that affects compliance with the Appendix D requirements. Nothing in this
paragraph is intended to limit the ability of BART or West Lot Developer to provide
comments on the Preliminary or Final ODS at any time prior to final approval, or to
raise concerns or objections to proposed ODS based on considerations other than
compliance with Appendix D.

6. Approval of West Lot ODS. Once a complete draft of Final ODS has been prepared
and the process for resolving any objections described in the preceding paragraphs 3
and 5 has been completed, City staff will submit the draft Final ODS to the Planning
Commission for recommendation. Following the Commission’s recommendation and
completion of the process for resolving objections to that recommendation, the City
shall submit the Final ODS for the West Lot to the City Council for adoption no later
than nine months after the execution of the ENA for the West Lot (“Approval
Period”). Should the City believe that, due to a force majeure event (including but not
limited to war, terrorist attack, pandemic, natural disaster, or other similar occurrence
beyond the City’s control), the City is unable to adopt West Lot ODS within the
Approval Period, the City may request an extension of the Approval Period from
BART not more than 30 days after the commencement of the force majeure event,
which request shall identify the force majeure event and specify how it has affected
the City’s ability to adopt West Lot ODS within the Approval Period. The extension
of the Approval Period requested shall be of a duration equal to the duration of the
impact of the force majeure event on the City’s ability to adopt the West Lot ODS.
BART’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

27

Page 45



Page 42 of 124

7. Funding of ODS. The City shall bear full responsibility for any costs to develop ODS
on the East or West Lot in excess of the available grant funding or those costs incurred
after the grant expenditure deadline.

111 Other

A. Additional Requirements. The Ashby Project must comply with all relevant applicable
BART and City policies and ordinances to the extent allowable by law. BART’s relevant
policies can be found at www.bart.gov/TOD and currently include its Transit-Oriented
Development Policy, Affordable Housing Policy, AB 2923 Development Principles,
Project Stabilization Agreement Policy for Transit-Oriented Development, and Labor
Peace Agreement Policy for Transit-Oriented Development Hotel Operations.

B. Term Sheet Non-Binding. While this Term Sheet summarizes certain terms and
conditions for the Ashby Project, it is not intended to be contractually binding on the City
or BART. No legal obligation will exist regarding the transactions described in this Term
Sheet, unless and until the parties have negotiated, executed and delivered mutually
acceptable agreements approved by each Party’s decision-making body in accordance with
all legal requirements, including, to the extent applicable, the California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA).

(Signatures on following page)

28

Page 46


http://www.bart.gov/TOD

Page 43 of 124

CITY OF BERKELEY
PAUL BUDDENHAGEN JESSE ARREGUIN
CITY MANAGER MAYOR

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

ROBERT M. POWERS
GENERAL MANAGER

LIST OF EXHIBITS

Appendix A Ashby Project Aerial

Appendix B Schedule

Appendix C  Infrastructure Map

Appendix D ODS Requirements

Appendix E  Infrastructure Matrix

Appendix F  City Standard Conditions of Approval Relied on in R-BMU Zoning EIR

Appendix G Capacity Study

29

Page 47



Page 44 of 124

APPENDIX A: ASHBY PROJECT AERIAL

o
e 5 Block 1
W Ed Roberts
Block 2 Campus S
Main BART >
Entrance g
Block 3 §°
Main Lots
ML/I'J,: W
Y Block 4
>
(7}
($)
Q‘\s

30
Page 48



APPENDIX B: SCHEDULE

Page 45 of 124

for City Predevelopment Funding
to developer community

Activity Lead Party Milestone Outside Date
The Parties execute the Term
Term Sheet Execution BART & City |Sheet following approval by 23-Sep-24
City Council
BART to transmit to City
. . combined Request for Proposals
Provide Drz;ﬁ EFSVfor City Ist BART and Notice of Funding 24-Sep-24
evie Availability for City
Predevelopment Funding (RFP)
Provide Draft Exchange City to transmit to BART all
Agreement documents for City proposed documents related to 24-Sep-24
BART's Review property exchange and covenants
City to transmit to BART
Complete 1st Round Comments language on Notice of Funding
on Developer Solicitation City Availability for City 15-Oct-24
Document (RFP) Predevelopment Funding as well
as general comments on RFP
Provide Draft RFP for City 2nd BART BART to transmit revised RFP 29-Oct.24
Review to City
lete 2nd R
Complete 2nd ound. C.orr?ments . City to provide final comments
on Developer Solicitation City on RFP 19-Nov-24
Document (RFQ-P)
- . City finalizes Preliminary ODS
Preliminary ODS Complete City for inclusion in REP 19-Nov-24
City Council authorizes
execution of Exchange
Exchange Agreement Approval Ci Agreement documents aligned 19-Nov-24
£C AL PP v with terms approved by City
Council and presented to BART
Board
The Parties execute binding
documents related to the
Exchange Agreement Execution | BART & City [exchange of property interests 26-Nov-24
that will be effectuated
following ENA execution
BART issues combined RFP and
Developer Solicitation Issuance BART Notice of Funding Availability 3-Dec-24

31

Page 49



Page 46 of 124

Activity Lead Party Milestone Outside Date
Identified development team
(selected by a BART-City-EBB
Developer Selection BART Board panel)" thth dem(lm:tra;: dd bl 26-Jun-25
V - -
P of Directors capa.c1ty © ?omp cea or. e o
housing projects representing at
least 35% of anticipated housing
for the entire site.
Execution of an Exclusive No later than 9 months after
o BART ENA signed with Devel .
Negotiating Agreement (“ENA”) sighed with Levelopet Developer selection
ity Affc le Housi il f
City / ordable Housing ' Council award o ' No later than 60 days after
Funding - Predevelopment City predevelopment funds (if .
. Developer Selection
Funding requested) to Developer
Adoption of Objective Design Gi Objective Design Standards No later than 9 months after
Standards vy adopted by City Council ENA execution
City & BART No later than 9 months after
with Draft strategy prepared by City [ENA execution; failure to
Infrastructure Financing Strategy [collaboration [and BART with collaboration by [complete this shall not constitute
by West Lot  |West Lot Developer default under any binding
Developer agreement.
Devel t t it .
C:V(ﬁ IZfen;en hii?;??::; a No sooner than Adoption of
P PP . ODS (or 9 months from
. L Development |Master Development Permit, or . .
City Application execution of ENA, whichever
team for at least one affordable
housine building’s comes first) and no later than 3
: g g ) years from execution of ENA
entitlements/permit
For each affordable housing
project, development team
secures complete project
. . . Devel t . L .
Project Financing tezvme opriety financing. If this milestone is not 31-Dec-33

met, the City may rescind the
development funding reservation
for that project component.

32

Page 50




Page 47 of 124

APPENDIX C: INFRASTRUCTURE MAP

Note: The number and footprint of structural elements, as well as the spaces between them, have

not been designed and are illustrative. The actual location of various structural elements may

differ from the depictions below.

w4

Public Areas

Adeline Street Reconfiguration*** 1A
Adeline Main Plaza 1B
Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza**, *** 2A
Ashby/Adeline Corner Plaza Extension** 2B
Existing BART Terrace 9A
BART Terrace Extension* 9B
South Plaza Extension** 1
MLK/ Adeline/Woolsey Plaza**, *** 3A
MLK/ Adeline/Woolsey Intersection Redesign**, *** 3B
Ashby Sidewalk Widening 15
MLK Sidewalk Widening (north) 16
MLK Sidewalk/Bikeway Widening(south) 17
TPSS Access Area** 5
Station Entrance Plaza** 6

@

Other Elements

North Platform Egress Stair &

BART Vents and TPSS Equipment 7A
TPSS Replacement Area 7B
North Plaza Stair (to be rebuilt) 8
South Plaza Stair (to be rebuilt) 10

ADA Pedestrian/Bike Connection/Ramp (new)**14
South Platform Egress Stair & BART

Storage (access to be reconfigured) 12
BART Vents (to be extended to/above plaza) 13

Estimated BART Property Line
Estimated Zone of Influence

Development Areas** (A,B,C)
Required Emergency Access **, **** 48
Adeline Main Plaza EVA 4A

*Potential extension, not required, building could be built up to Existing BART Terrace

** Location and geometry flexible if all performance requirements are met

*** Funding for Adeline St Reconfiguration subject to identification of City financial resources to fund improvements; City has

identified these improvements as a top priority for funding.

**** AA refers only to that segment of 4 within the City’s ROW; 4B refers only to that segment of 4 within BART’s parcel.

33

Page 51



Page 48 of 124

APPENDIX D: ODS REQUIREMENTS

Requirements for Objective Design Standards on West Lot

The City’s future ODS for the West Lot shall be binding on BART and the West Lot Developer
without respect to any waivers, incentives or other exceptions that may otherwise be available
under the Density Bonus Law or other provision of law, and BART shall require the West Lot
Developer to comply with the Final ODS utilizing its real estate agreements, provided that:

1. City zoning is consistent with AB 2923 in that it allows a density of at least 75 dwelling
units per acre and a height of at least 7 stories, and does not require parking in excess of
the AB 2923 maximums;

2. The ODS is adopted by the City of Berkeley for the West Lot within the Approval
Period;

3. The City’s Preliminary and Final ODS include standards that are applicable to
development that qualifies for a density bonus under the state Density Bonus Law and
allows for greater heights than existing zoning (“ODS Density Bonus Standards”). The
ODS Density Bonus Standards must (a) allow heights of at least 85 feet without a
maximum number of stories, and (b) allow (but not require) that development occur in
BART’s Zone of Influence (“ZOI”);

4. The ODS Density Bonus Standards, when applied to a hypothetical development that (a)
is within the net developable area (“NDA”) footprint shown in the Capacity Study and (b)
has a height no greater than 8 stories, allow for a gross residential square footage of at
least 600,000 sq ft.; and

5. The ODS Density Bonus Standards, when applied to a hypothetical development within
the NDA that has a height over 85 feet but within the maximum height allowed by the
ODS Density Bonus Standards, allow for a gross residential square footage of at least
750,000 square feet.

The Parties agree that an 8-story development under ODS Density Bonus Standards meeting the
above requirements will allow for at least 600 units, based on an average net floor area of 750
square feet per unit, assuming a 75% efficiency factor.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the West Lot Developer may invoke waivers, incentives or other
exceptions, to the extent permitted by law, but only with respect to (a) zoning requirements other
than those set forth in or modified by the ODS, (b) ODS requirements pertaining to minimum
square footage of active or non-residential ground floor uses , but only to the extent such
requirements exceed 15,000 square feet, inclusive of the 5,000 square feet of community/civic
commercial space, and (c) other ODS requirements that do not pertain to height limits,
setbacks/step-backs, open space or massing breaks.

34

Page 52



Page 49 of 124

Net Developable Area

The NDA is defined as the gross developable area of the West Lot, as shown in Appendix G, the
Capacity Study. The NDA assumes development will occur in the BART ZOI. The NDA shown
in the Capacity Study shall not be altered for purposes of determining compliance of ODS with
the requirements of this Appendix D, regardless of any later alterations made to the location of
BART infrastructure, public site circulation, or building footprints, or any other considerations of
development feasibility that may arise in connection with a proposed development project.

The final NDA shall be used solely for the purposes of calculating ODS Capacity and shall not
otherwise bind BART, the City or the West Lot Developer in any manner, including with respect
to the size, location or configuration of the development footprint for the final project.

ODS Capacity

The amount of gross residential square footage allowed under the applicable Density Bonus
Standards (“ODS Capacity”) shall be calculated by applying R-BMU zoning requirements to a
hypothetical project eligible for density bonus within the NDA at the heights specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 above, as applicable, and accounting for square footage that is lost due to
required setbacks, step-backs, massing breaks, or other required features (e.g. fire and life safety
requirements) required under by the ODS Density Bonus Standards. The determination of ODS
Capacity shall be made by Raimi if mutually agreed by the Parties, or if not, then a design
professional such as a member of the American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP) or licensed
architect, to be selected by mutual agreement of BART and the City. The determination of ODS
Capacity shall use the same extrinsic assumptions used in the agreed-upon Capacity Study (to the
extent not impacted by the ODS), including without limitation the number of stories (with
respect to paragraph 4 above only), space required for emergency access, and the amount of
parking assumed for each building. ODS Capacity will be calculated for the entirety of the West
Lot development and not individual buildings or blocks. For purposes of the ODS Capacity
calculation, residential square footage shall not include square footage for parking.

35

Page 53



Page 50 of 124

APPENDIX E: INFRASTRUCTURE MATRIX

1A Adeline Street Reconfiguration ™ Essentisl  Bond Funds/ Alameda County/OBAG 4/Grante & Subsidies City City
1B 4A  Adeline Main Flaza ™ Essentisl  Grante & Subsidies/ G/ AHSC/EIFD City City (CFD-funded)
1A Ashby/ Adeline Corner Flaza ™, ™ Hesential  Grants & Subsidies/IIG/ AHSC City City (CFD-funded)
2B Ashby/ Adeline Corner Plaza Extension ™ Essential  Developer Contribution/G rants & Subsidies/TIG/ AHSC Developer City (CFD-funded)
9A Existing BART Terrace High Developer Contribution/G rants & BART BART
Subsidies/ TG,/ AHSC/ EIFD
9B BART Terrace Extension * High Developer Contribution/Grants & Developer Developer
Subsidies/IIG/ AHSC/EIFD
11 South Plaza Extension ™ Hesential  Developer Contribution/G rants & Developer City (CFD-funded)
} . . - Spbs;dxe_sﬂlgr/ AHSC/EFD B
3A MLE/ Adeline/ Weolsey Flaza ™, ™ Medium  Grants & Subsidies/IIG/ AHSC City City (CFD-funded)
3B MLE,/ Adeline/ Woolsey Intersection Eedesign ™, High Bond Funds/ Alameda County/OBAG 4/ Grants & City City
Subsidies/IIG/ AHSC/City's General Fund
15 Achby Sidewalk Widening Medium  Developer Contribution Developer City
16 MLE Sidewalk Widening (north) Medium  Developer Contribution Developer City
17 MLE Sidewalk/Bikeway Widening (south) Medium Developer Contribution Developer City
5 TPS3 Access Area ineluding crane area ™ High BART or Developer Contribution/Grants/Subsidies BART/ Developer BART
B Station Entranee Plaza ™ Hssential  BAET or Developer Contribution/Grants/Subsidies BART/ Developer BART
- BART Parking - ADA Rider Parking & Staff Parking Hssential  BAET or Developer Contribution/Grants/Subsidies BART/Developer BART
[station agents, police) - ) ) )
z BART Rider Parking - General Medium  BAET or Developer Contribution/Grants/Subsidies BART/Developer BART
OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENTS
7A Torth Platform Egress Stair, BART Vents & TPSS Hssential  BAET or Developer Contribution/ Grants/Subsidies BART/Developer BART
Equiprment i} ) _ _ 5
7B TES3 Replacement Area Hssential  BAET or Developer Contribution/Grants/Subsidies BART/ Developer BART
8 North Plaza Stair (to be rebuilt) High BART or Developer Contribution/Grants/Subsidies Developer BART
10 South Plaza Stair (to be rebuilt) Hssential  Deweloper Contribution/Grants/ Subsidies Developer BART
14 ADA and Bike Ramps (new) ™ Hssential  Deweloper Contribution/G rants/ Subsidies Developer Developer
12 South Platform Egress Stair + BAET Storage (aceess tobe  High Developer Contribution/G rants/ Subsidies Developer BART
reconfigured)
13 BART Vents (to be extended above plazas) High Developer Contribution /G rants/ Subsidies Developer BART
4B Required Emergency Access + Turn Around **, % Essential BART or Developer Contribution/Grants/Subsidies BART/ Developer Developer
Notes:
" Potential extension, not required if building is built up to Existing BART Terrace.
" Location and geometry flexible if all performance requirements are met.
w Funding for Adeline St Reconfiguration subject to identification of City financial resourees to fund improverents City has identified these improvements as a top priotity for funding.

4A refers only to that segment of 4 within the City’s ROW; 4B refers only to that segment of 4 within BART's parcel.

36

Page 54



Page 51 of 124

APPENDIX F: CITY STANDARD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL RELIED ON IN R-BMU
ZONING EIR

1. Air Quality - Diesel Particulate Matter Controls during Construction. All off-road
construction equipment used for projects with construction lasting more than 2 months
shall comply with one of the following measures:

A. The project applicant shall prepare a health risk assessment that demonstrates the
project’s on-site emissions of diesel particulate matter during construction will not
exceed health risk screening criteria after a screening-level health risk assessment is
conducted in accordance with current guidance from BAAQMD and OEHHA. The
health risk assessment shall be submitted to the Land Use Planning Division for review
and approval prior to the issuance of building permits; or

B. All construction equipment shall be equipped with Tier 2 or higher engines and the
most effective Verified Diesel Emission Control Strategies (VDECS) available for the
engine type (Tier 4 engines automatically meet this requirement) as certified by the
California Air Resources Board (CARB). The equipment shall be properly maintained
and tuned in accordance with manufacturer specifications.

C. In addition, a Construction Emissions Minimization Plan (Emissions Plan) shall be
prepared that includes the following:

i.  Anequipment inventory summarizing the type of off-road equipment
required for each phase of construction, including the equipment
manufacturer, equipment identification number, engine model year,
engine certification (tier rating), horsepower, and engine serial number.
For all VDECS, the equipment inventory shall also include the
technology type, serial number, make, model, manufacturer, CARB
verification number level, and installation date.

ii. A Certification Statement that the Contractor agrees to comply fully
with the Emissions Plan and acknowledges that a significant violation of
the Emissions Plan shall constitute a material breach of contract. The
Emissions Plan shall be submitted to the Public Works Department for
review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits.

2. Archaeological Resources (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction).
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15064.5(f), “provisions for historical or unique

archaeological resources accidentally discovered during construction” should be instituted.
Therefore:

37

Page 55



Page 52 of 124

A. In the event that any prehistoric or historic subsurface cultural resources are discovered
during ground disturbing activities, all work within 50 feet of the resources shall be
halted and the project applicant and/or lead agency shall consult with a qualified
archaeologist, historian or paleontologist to assess the significance of the find.

B. If any find is determined to be significant, representatives of the project proponent
and/or lead agency and the qualified professional would meet to determine the
appropriate avoidance measures or other appropriate measure, with the ultimate
determination to be made by the City of Berkeley. All significant cultural materials
recovered shall be subject to scientific analysis, professional museum curation, and/or
a report prepared by the qualified professional according to current professional
standards.

C. In considering any suggested measure proposed by the qualified professional, the
project applicant shall determine whether avoidance is necessary or feasible in light of
factors such as the uniqueness of the find, project design, costs, and other
considerations.

D. If avoidance is unnecessary or infeasible, other appropriate measures (e.g., data
recovery) shall be instituted. Work may proceed on other parts of the project site while
mitigation measures for cultural resources is carried out.

E. If significant materials are recovered, the qualified professional shall prepare a report
on the findings for submittal to the Northwest Information Center.

3. Human Remains (Ongoing throughout demolition, grading, and/or construction). In the
event that human skeletal remains are uncovered at the project site during ground-
disturbing activities, all work shall immediately halt and the Alameda County Coroner
shall be contacted to evaluate the remains, and following the procedures and protocols
pursuant to Section 15064.5 (e)(1) of the CEQA Guidelines. If the County Coroner
determines that the remains are Native American, the City shall contact the California
Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC), pursuant to subdivision (c¢) of Section
7050.5 of the Health and Safety Code, and all excavation and site preparation activities
shall cease within a 50-foot radius of the find until appropriate arrangements are made. If
the agencies determine that avoidance is not feasible, then an alternative plan shall be
prepared with specific steps and timeframe required to resume construction activities.
Monitoring, data recovery, determination of significance and avoidance measures (if
applicable) shall be completed expeditiously.

38

Page 56



Page 53 of 124

4. Halt Work/Unanticipated Discovery of Tribal Cultural Resources. In the event that cultural
resources of Native American origin are identified during construction, all work within 50
feet of the discovery shall be redirected. The project applicant and project construction
contractor shall notify the City Planning Department within 24 hours. The City will again
contact any tribes who have requested consultation under AB 52, as well as contact a
qualified archaeologist, to evaluate the resources and situation and provide
recommendations. If it is determined that the resource is a tribal cultural resource and thus
significant under CEQA, a mitigation plan shall be prepared and implemented in
accordance with State guidelines and in consultation with Native American groups. If the
resource cannot be avoided, additional measures to avoid or reduce impacts to the resource
and to address tribal concerns may be required.

5. Construction Hours. Construction activity shall be limited to between the hours of 8:00 AM
and 6:00 PM on Monday through Friday, and between 9:00 AM and Noon on Saturday. No
construction-related activity shall occur on Sunday or any Federal Holiday.

6. Construction Noise Reduction Program. The applicant shall develop a site-specific noise
reduction program prepared by a qualified acoustical consultant to reduce construction
noise impacts to the maximum extent feasible, subject to review and approval of the
Zoning Officer. The noise reduction program shall include the time limits for construction
listed above, as measures needed to ensure that construction complies with BMC Section
13.40.070, Prohibited Acts. The noise reduction program should include, but shall not be
limited to, the following available controls to reduce construction noise levels as low as
practical:

A. Construction equipment should be well maintained and used judiciously to be as quiet
as practical.

B. Equip all internal combustion engine-driven equipment with mufflers, which are in
good condition and appropriate for the equipment.

C. Utilize “quiet” models of air compressors and other stationary noise sources where
technology exists. Select hydraulically or electrically powered equipment and avoid
pneumatically powered equipment where feasible.

D. Locate stationary noise-generating equipment as far as possible from sensitive
receptors when adjoining construction sites. Construct temporary noise barriers or
partial enclosures to acoustically shield such equipment where feasible.

E. Prohibit unnecessary idling of internal combustion engines.

F. If impact pile driving is required, pre-drill foundation pile holes to minimize the
number of impacts required to seat the pile.

39

Page 57



Page 54 of 124

G. Construct solid plywood fences around construction sites adjacent to operational
business, residences or other noise-sensitive land uses where the noise control plan
analysis determines that a barrier would be effective at reducing noise.

H. Erect temporary noise control blanket barriers, if necessary, along building facades
facing construction sites. This mitigation would only be necessary if conflicts occurred
which were irresolvable by proper scheduling. Noise control blanket barriers can be
rented and quickly erected.

I. Route construction related traffic along major roadways and away from sensitive
receptors where feasible.

7. Construction Noise Management. Public Notice Required. At least two weeks prior to
initiating any construction activities at the site, the applicant shall provide notice to
businesses and residents within 500 feet of the project site. This notice shall at a minimum
provide the following: (1) project description, (2) description of construction activities
during extended work hours and reason for extended hours, (3) daily construction schedule
(i.e., time of day) and expected duration (number of months), (4) the name and phone number
of the Project Liaison for the project that is responsible for responding to any local
complaints, and (5) that construction work is about to commence. The liaison would
determine the cause of all construction-related complaints (e.g., starting too early, bad
muffler, worker parking, etc.) and institute reasonable measures to correct the problem. A
copy of such notice and methodology for distributing the notice shall be provided in advance
to the City for review and approval.

8. Damage Due to Construction Vibration. The project applicant shall submit screening level
analysis prior to, or concurrent with demolition building permit. If a screening level
analysis shows that the project has the potential to result in damage to structures, a
structural engineer or other appropriate professional shall be retained to prepare a vibration
impact assessment (assessment). The assessment shall consider project specific information
such as the composition of the structures, location of the various types of equipment used
during each phase of the project, as well as the soil characteristics in the project area, in
order to determine whether project construction may cause damage to any of the structures
identified as potentially impacted in the screening level analysis. If the assessment finds
that the project may cause damage to nearby structures, the structural engineer or other
appropriate professional shall recommend design means and methods of construction that
to avoid the potential damage, if feasible. The assessment and its recommendations shall be
reviewed and approved by the Building and Safety Division and the Zoning Officer. If
there are no feasible design means or methods to eliminate the potential for damage, the
structural engineer or other appropriate professional shall undertake study of existing
conditions (study) of any structures (or, in case of large buildings, of the portions of the
structures) that may experience damage.

40

Page 58



Page 55 of 124

This study shall establish the baseline condition of these structures, including, but not limited
to, the location and extent of any visible cracks or spalls; and include written descriptions and
photographs.

The study shall be reviewed and approved by the Building and Safety Division and the
Zoning Officer prior to issuance of a grading permit. Upon completion of the project, the
structures (or, in case of large buildings, of the portions of the structures) previously
inspected will be resurveyed, and any new cracks or other changes shall be compared to
pre-construction conditions and a determination shall be made as to whether the proposed
project caused the damage. The findings shall be submitted to the Building and Safety
Division and the Zoning Officer for review. If it is determined that project construction has
resulted in damage to the structure, the damage shall be repaired to the pre-existing
condition by the project sponsor, provided that the property owner approves of the repair.

. Avoid Disturbance of Nesting Birds. Initial site disturbance activities, including vegetation
and concrete removal, shall be prohibited during the general avian nesting season (February 1
to August 30), if feasible. If nesting season avoidance is not feasible, the applicant shall
retain a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction nesting bird survey to determine the
presence/absence, location, and activity status of any active nests on or adjacent to the project
site. The extent of the survey buffer area surrounding the site shall be established by the
qualified biologist to ensure that direct and indirect effects to nesting birds are avoided. To
avoid the destruction of active nests and to protect the reproductive success of birds protected
by the MBTA and CFGC, nesting bird surveys shall be performed not more than 14 days
prior to scheduled vegetation and concrete removal. In the event that active nests are
discovered, a suitable buffer (typically a minimum buffer of 50 feet for passerines and a
minimum buffer of 250 feet for raptors) shall be established around such active nests and no
construction shall be allowed inside the buffer areas until a qualified biologist has determined
that the nest is no longer active (e.g., the nestlings have fledged and are no longer reliant on
the nest). No ground-disturbing activities shall occur within this buffer until the qualified
biologist has confirmed that breeding/nesting is completed and the young have fledged the
nest. Nesting bird surveys are not required for construction activities occurring between
August 31 and January 31.

41

Page 59



Page 56 of 124

APPENDIX G: CAPACITY STUDY

[To be inserted]

42

Page 60



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
ocuSIgn Enveiop Page 57 of 124

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT RE NORTH BERKELEY AND ASHBY
TRANSIT-ORIENTED DEVELOPMENTS

This Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”) is entered into on this 30" day of June,
2022, by and between the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (“BART”) and the
City of Berkeley (“City”) (collectively the “Parties™) to cooperatively pursue transit-
oriented development (“TOD” or “the Projects”) at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART
stations. This MOA is made in furtherance of the Memorandum of Understanding between
BART and City, signed on March 3, 2020 (“MOU?”, attached hereto as Exhibit A), and the
Joint Vision and Priorities Document approved by the City on June 2, 2022 and by BART
on June 9, 2022 (“JVP,” attached hereto as Exhibit B), which addressed TOD projects at
the North Berkeley and Ashby BART Stations. These projects are individually referred to
respectively as the “North Berkeley Project” and “Ashby Project,” and collectively as the
“Projects.” This MOA primarily addresses the North Berkeley Project. The Parties

anticipate amending this MOA to address additional issues specific to the Ashby BART
Project.

This MOA is not intended to cover all issues that may arise between BART and the City
with respect to the Projects, but is intended to provide the Parties and potential developers a
basic understanding as to how the Project negotiation and entitlement processes will
proceed; the objectives and minimum requirements for the Projects in terms of design,

affordability, and infrastructure; and the anticipated City and BART contributions to the
Projects.

RECITALS

A. In 2020, the Parties entered into the MOU to identify their shared vision and
priorities for development of TODs at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART
stations, to provide clarity on the process and timelines for pursuing
development, and to begin to identify the roles and responsibilities of the City
and BART in that process. Among other things, the MOU called on the City to
establish a Community Advisory Group, reserve funding to support affordable

housing development at the sites, and to adopt zoning for the sites consistent
with AB 2923.

B. On April 27, 2021, the Berkeley City Council unanimously adopted Resolution
69.833-N.S. which, in part, provisionally reserves $53 million of City-controlled
funds as the subsidy needed to achieve 35% affordable housing at the Ashby and
North Berkeley BART sites, allows for a portion of the funding to be considered
for predevelopment, and directs the Berkeley City Manager (" City Manager")

MOA - 1
Page 61




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 58 of 124

to investigate a new bond measure that could fund housing and/or housing
related infrastructure needs at the two BART Stations and in the Adeline
Corridor, or in the City as a whole, and to establish a timeline and community
process for said bond measure, with a goal of maximizing affordable housing (up
to 100%) at either or both sites.

C. On June 28%, 2022 the Berkeley City Council adopted a new Chapter 23.202.150
in its Zoning Ordinance, as part of the City of Berkeley Municipal Code, adding
a “Residential - BART Mixed Use (R-BMU)” zoning district, as well as
additional conforming amendments to the General Plan and other sections of
the Municipal Code in order to ensure that the provisions are comprehensively
and consistently incorporated into its Zoning Ordinance, to govern development
at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART stations.

D. On June 2, 2022, the Berkeley City Council approved the JVP, and on June 9,
2022, the BART Board approved the JVP. The JVP expresses the City and
BART’s shared, high-level expectations for future development of both the
Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations. This document will be incorporated
into BART’s future Requests for Qualifications (“RFQs”) for development of
the Ashby and North Berkeley Station development, and will help guide the
process from developer selection through project construction. Further
negotiations will occur pertaining to the potential solicitation at the Ashby
BART Station. '

E. With the above milestones completed, the purpose of this MOA is to clarify the
processes that BART and/or the City will pursue from this date forward in
seeking to realize construction of the North Berkeley Project, as well as to set out
certain agreements with respect to the Ashby Project.

F. As part of the work funded by a San Francisco Foundation Breakthrough Grant
(“Equitable Black Berkeley”), the City of Berkeley is contracting with Creative
Development Partners to support an innovative reparative approach to financing
with a goal of increasing affordable housing, and supporting BART and the City
to meet the goals of the JVP developed with input from the City’s Community
Advisory Group (CAG).

G. Outstanding issues remain to be addressed prior to advancing development of the
Ashby Project, including, but not limited to, ensuring a new permanent location
for the Berkeley Flea Market can be provided, the City’s option to acquire air
rights for the Western Parking Lot, the potential reconfiguration of Adeline

MOA -2
Page 62



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

II.

Page 59 of 124

Street, the design and funding of station infrastructure, and the role of BART and
the City in the developer solicitation process. It is anticipated that an amendment
to this MOA, as well as completion of related agreements and documentation,

will be needed in order to advance solicitation of a developer for the Ashby
Project.

MUTUAL AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES

Relationship to MOU

. This MOA amends and expands upon the MOU (Exhibit A) between the Parties to reflect

changes in the anticipated project schedule and encompass topics not addressed in the
MOU. The MOU remains in effect and its terms are only changed to the extent
specifically noted in this MOA, or where provisions of this MOA are in direct conflict
with provisions in the MOU, in which case the provisions of this MOA shall prevail.
Terms of the MOU that are not in conflict with this MOA shall remain in effect.

Timeline for the Projects

. The Summary Table below reflects activities for the Projects anticipated to take place

after the date of this MOA. It supersedes the Activities and Timelines Summary Table in
section III of the MOU. BART and the City agree that the milestones and associated
dates may be revised upon mutual written agreement of the City Manager or her designee
and of the BART General Manager (" General Manager') or his designee. If the Parties
do not complete an activity or a milestone by the date provided for said activity or
milestone, and if the parties cannot identify a mutually acceptable later date for
completion of the activity or milestone, then either Party may, upon 30 days’ written
notice to the other Party, terminate this agreement as it applies to the Station to which the
activity or milestone relates.

B. Activities and Timelines Summary Table

Activity Lead Party - Milestone - Outside Date
I. Developer(s) BART REQ Release for North Berkeley | y;1 1 9022
Solicitation — PrOJ?ct ziu?d Notlc§ of Funding
North Berkeley Availability for City .
Project Predevelopment Funding

MOA -3

Page 63




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 60 of 124

2. Developer(s) BART Board ldentified development team June 30, 2023
Selection — North of Directors (selected by a panel with equal City
Berkeley Project and BART representation), with

demonstrated capacity (as outlined
in the RFQ), to complete affordable
housing projects representing at
least 35% of anticipated housing for
the entire site. If the milestone is
not met, the City may rescind the
$500k in predevelopment funding
available through the RFQ.

3. Execution of an BART ENA signed with Developer No later than 9
Exclusive months after
Negotiating Developer
Agreement selection
(“ENA”) — North
Berkeley Project

4. City Affordable City Council award of No later than 60
Housing Funding - predevelopment funds (if days after
Predevelopment requested) to Developer Developer
Funding — Both Selection for
Projects each respective

Station

5. Adoption of City Objective Design Standards No later than 9
Objective Design adopted by City Council months after
Standards — Both ENA execution
Projects for each

respective
Station assuming
both parties meet
the terms
outlined in
Section IV.F
below

6. Affordable City Identify additional funding June 30, 2023
Housing Strategy streams, if any and finalize City
— Both Projects affordable housing funding plan

MOA - 4

Page 64



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,
9 P Page 61 of 124

7. City Application - Development | Development team must submit | No sooner than 9
Both Projects team a complete application for a months and no
Master Development Permit, or later than 3 years
for at least one affordable from execution
housing building’s of ENA for each
entitlements/permit respective
Station
8. Project Financing Development | For each affordable housing December 31, -
team project, development team must | 2031

secure complete project
financing. If this milestone is not
met, the City may rescind the
development funding reservation
for that project.

III.  Phasing and Funding for Affordable Housing for the North Berkeley Project

The Parties will strive to deliver new housing within 10 years to reflect the urgency of the
climate and housing crises, acknowledging that housing, including affordable housing, may be
developed in multiple phases over a number of years.

The Parties have committed to working together proactively to maximize the number of
permanently affordable, deed-restricted housing units at the North Berkeley site, dependent on
timely identification of sufficient funding and balanced with other JVP goals and BART
infrastructure needs. The RFQ, ENA and other transaction documents will reflect the following
agreement as a requirement: At a minimum, the North Berkeley Project shall include regulated
affordable units comprising at least 35% of the new housing units to be developed at the site,
inclusive of any bonus units granted as part of a density bonus application, at the affordability
levels in the JVP, as described below. Affordability restrictions shall run for the duration of the
ground lease(s) for all affordable housing components of the Project, which leases shall have a
minimum duration of 65 years, and for any extensions thereto. In addition to the terms of said
ground leases, the affordability restrictions will be enforceable by the City pursuant to regulatory
agreements between the City and the developer(s).

Affordability Levels in the JVP:

1) At least 35% of new housing must be affordable to households earning an average of up to
60% of Area Median Income (“AMI”).

2) At least 20% of the required 35% affordable units must be affordable to households earning
no more than 30% of AMI (“Extremely Low Income” or “ELI”, and

MOA -5 Page 65




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

3)

Page 62 of 124

Additional affordable units aside from the ELI units should prioritize low income (80% of
AMI) and very low income (50% of AMI) households but may include some housing restricted
to households with moderate incomes (up to 120% of AMI), provided that the moderate-
income units have rents that are still below market and shall not include City subsidy.

While the aforementioned goals are established in the JVP and the City and BART have policies
regarding affordable housing requirements, any project receiving the City’s Housing Trust Fund
(“HTF”) funding must meet the HTF Guidelines, which require that 40% of any City subsidized
units be affordable to households earning up to 60% of AMI, and an additional 20% of City
subsidized units to be affordable to households earning up to 30% of AMI. BART’s TOD policy
also provides a priority for affordable units that serve very low income (<50% AMI), low income
(51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent populations.

A. BART Land Discount

In order to facilitate the provision of deeply affordable housing, BART will provide the
selected developer with a discount on land costs. In keeping with BART’s Framework for
Financial Return from Affordable Housing, higher levels of discount will be available to
projects that provide more units at lower income levels. BART shall require the selected
developer for the North Berkeley Project to utilize this land discount solely for the benefit
of the affordable components of this Project. For the avoidance of doubt, the Parties
acknowledge that this Section IIL.A applies to the North Berkeley Project only. The City
and BART will address the BART discount on land costs for the Ashby Project at a later
time.

. City Funding

The City will make available a total of $53 million in affordable housing funds, including
up to $4 million in predevelopment funds, for the Projects, and allocate funding to the
Projects subject to each project’s compliance with the Objective Design Standards
(consistent with conditions in Section IV below), affordability requirements, project
milestones (including without limitation the milestones noted in Section IL.B above), and
other requirements to be set forth in the funding agreements between the City and
developer.

City will work to ensure an equitable distribution of City subsidy funding. It is
anticipated that up to 50% of the City subsidy funds will be invested at the North
Berkeley Project. However, if differences in timing of the Projects, the availability of
outside subsidy, planned affordability levels or other factors result in a greater need for
funding at one site than the other, the City may, in consultation with BART, choose to
allocate the funding differently. A minimum of $20 million in City subsidy funds will be
available to be invested at the North Berkeley Project, subject to Council approval of an

MOA -6

Page 66



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,
9 P Page 63 of 124

HTF Program application. City acknowledges that the Minimum Requirements for
housing affordability may not be achievable without this allocation.

The anticipated sources of City funding are as follows:

1) Measure O Funding: The City has reserved $40 million in Measure O funding. It is
the City’s intention to invest up to $20 million of these funds in the North Berkeley
Project unless a different funding allocation is determined as noted above.

2) Affordable Housing Mitigation Fees: In addition, the City has reserved $13 million
in additional funding for the North Berkeley and Ashby sites from future Affordable
Housing Mitigation Fee revenue, or from an alternative source of funding to be
identified by the City by June 30, 2023, inclusive of any funds invested in
predevelopment. It is the City’s intention to invest up to 50% of this total ($6.5 million)
at the North Berkeley site.

3) Potential Future Bond Measure: The City Manager is investigating a new bond
measure, as described above in Recital B, which if passed by the voters could provide
additional City funds to increase the provision of affordable housing within the
projects.

C. Predevelopment Funding

As authorized by City Council, the City will reserve up to $2 million in predevelopment
funding for the North Berkeley site from its HTF to enable nonprofit affordable housing
developers to undertake predevelopment expenses. The predevelopment funding
described in this Section III.C will only be available to nonprofit affordable housing
developers, but shall be available whether the nonprofit is the lead developer or a
member of a development team. In the event that there is a joint venture, the City will
review the joint venture operating agreement and organization chart for the sole purpose
of confirming the roles and relationship of the venture partners and the period of time the
Jjoint venture will be in force. The predevelopment funding will be made available in two
phases: '
1. Phase 1 predevelopment funding is available during the RFQ process to support
a non-profit developer to fund early predevelopment costs. The RFQ will jointly
serve as an application for this Phase I predevelopment funding from the City.
Following developer selection by the BART Board of Directors, the City will
consider approval of up to $500,000 total for eligible non-profit developers
requesting this funding. Disbursement of the Phase 1 predevelopment funding
will be conditioned upon execution of an ENA, the terms of which are consistent
with the requirements of this MOA.

2. Phase 2 project-specific predevelopment funding consistent with the HTF
Guidelines and implementing procedures, including site planning, infrastructure

MOA -7 Page 67




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 64 of 124

planning, access planning, engineering, architecture and financing expenses (but
excluding land acquisition costs). Following the submittal of an affordable
housing proposal and financing plan (including a project pro forma), an eligible
developer may then request the remaining predevelopment funds (up to $1.5
million), which the City will recommend the Council approve if it determines the
developer’s proposal and financing plan are feasible and meet funding agreement
conditions. Disbursement of the Phase 2 predevelopment funding will be
conditioned upon execution of an ENA, the terms of which are consistent with the
requirements of this MOA.

City predevelopment funding will, via the mechanism of the Predevelopment Loan
Agreement between the City and the developer, be secured by the work products created
by the developer, which shall become the property of the City if the developer defaults.
As to other shared costs, predevelopment funding may be used to pay for no more than
the pro-rata share attributable to the portion of the project restricted to serving tenants
with incomes up to 120% of AMI plus any associated manager’s units based on net
rentable square footage. For Phase 1, the pro rata share will be determined based on the
percentage of housing up to 120% AMI per the selected developer’s preliminary
development concept. Phase 2 can only fund predevelopment costs that are directly tied
to a standalone 100% affordable development.

The Parties will work together to ensure that the submittal requirements and selection
process provide an opportunity for the City to evaluate potential applications for
eligibility for predevelopment and development subsidy from the City’s HTF and
Measure O bond proceeds prior to selection. The City agrees to accept the executed ENA
as proof of site control for purposes of committing predevelopment funds. The terms and
conditions for disbursement of City predevelopment funds will be established in a
Predevelopment Loan Agreement between the City and the developer/borrower.

The Predevelopment Loan Agreement may require that developer reimburse the City for
disbursed predevelopment loan funds if entitlement milestones are not met per Section II
Table B., or if the proposed project is inconsistent with any Objective Design Standards
then in force, or other terms and conditions of the Predevelopment Loan Agreement.

D. Development Funding for the Projects

The Parties expect funding for affordable housing development to come from City
subsidies (Measure O and HTF), a developer contribution associated with any market rate
development, and other sources. The affordable housing developer will be responsible for

MOA -8
Page 68



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,
9 P Page 65 of 124

identifying and leveraging available funding sources, including state and federal funding
programs.

BART and the City require that development submittals in response to the developer
solicitations include a preliminary development concept. This shall include a preliminary
phased development timeline, the desired dates for receiving and drawing on funding
commitments from the City, and the anticipated completion of affordable housing. The
phased development timeline will include concurrency requirements to ensure that
affordable units are constructed prior to or concurrently with any market-rate housing
component. No market rate housing will receive its notice to proceed until an affordable
housing project receives its notice to proceed. In the event there are multiple phases of
market rate or affordable housing, the phasing plan shall be approved to ensure

consistency with the JVP goal of affordable housing being built along with market rate
housing.

The City will award development subsidy loan funds remaining after the award of any
predevelopment funding based on detailed proposals provided by the selected affordable
housing developer. The final commitment of development funding reserved for the North
Berkeley site will be awarded based on compliance with the Objective Design Standards
— Provided the Objective Design Standards satisfy the requirements in Section [V - and
the City’s HTF Guidelines and the terms and conditions of the funding agreement
described below.

The City’s development funds shall be subject to the terms of a funding agreement with
the affordable housing project developer and shall be contingent on compliance with the
Minimum Requirements, attached hereto as Exhibit C, as well as the requirements set
forth in the funding agreement, including the following:

1) The project must comply with EIR mitigation measures and relevant City of Berkeley
standard conditions of approval.

2) The project must abide by any applicable requirements to give preference for residents
of Berkeley who are facing displacement (or who have been displaced from Berkeley
in the past due to economic or discriminatory reasons).

3) The development team must comply with project-labor provisions required of City of
Berkeley projects.

4) The development team must comply with the City’s local hire policies (Community
Workforce Agreement, First Source), and submit a plan for compliance that is
acceptable to the City, including additional measures the team will include to increase
local hire outcomes.

MOA -9 Page 69




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

IV.

Page 66 of 124

The award of City development funds will be conditioned upon entitlement and
construction milestones established in the reservation resolution and funding agreement
adopted by City Council, consistent with the approved application for funding. The City
Council may grant the City Manager authority to extend timelines within established

- parameters.

The City’s contribution of affordable housing funding cannot be used to fund the units
required by the City’s inclusionary requirements and shall be applied towards any
affordable housing units in excess of the City’s inclusionary requirements at the time of
entitlement. The developer of any market rate component of the project must comply
with the inclusionary requirement without City subsidy and will be expected to
demonstrate how they are satisfying the City’s inclusionary requirements.

. Performance Milestones

The City’s commitment to the use of funds for North Berkeley site is conditioned on the
milestones shown in Section II. Table B. If either BART or the development team fails to
meet the milestones in Table B, as may be extended as provided herein, the City would
then have the option to release the site’s portion of the reserved funds for use in other
affordable housing projects elsewhere in the city.

. Revised Affordable Housing Strategy for the Projects

The City of Berkeley will pursue its best efforts to secure additional local affordable
housing subsidy to increase the proportion of affordable housing provided at the Projects,
whether through the issuance of another voter-approved affordable housing bond and/or
other financing mechanisms.

As referenced above in Table II. B, Activity 6, the City reserves the right to, by June 30,
2023, identify additional funding streams to increase the total affordable housing

proportion for the Projects to be higher than 35% of units.

AB 2923 Streamlining, Objective Design Standards and JVP for the Projects

. Entitlement Streamlining

Public Utilities Code section 29010.7(b), codified by the adoption of AB 2923,
establishes that TOD projects at BART stations that meet certain minimum requirements
will be eligible for streamlining pursuant to Government Code section 65913.4., codified
by the adoption of Senate Bill 35 (“SB 35”). To minimize entitlement risk, reduce project

MOA - 10
Page 70



D ign E I ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
ocuSign Envelope Page 67 of 124

costs and accelerate the entitlement phase of development, the Parties intend that the
developers of the Projects shall have the ability to utilize any state laws providing for
entitlement streamlining mechanisms included but not limited to AB 2923 and SB 35, to
the extent a Project qualifies for streamlined review, such that project entitlements are
ministerial and not subject to discretionary review.

B. Community Input and Objective Design Standards

In recognition of the City’s significant contribution of funding for the Projects’
affordable housing component, the Parties desire to maintain the ability for the City and
community to provide effective input as to the character of development proposed at the
Projects. The Parties agree that the primary vehicles for City and community input have
been the newly adopted section 23.202.150 of the City’s Zoning Code and the newly
adopted JVP, and additional community input will occur in developing the Objective
Design Standards (“ODS”), as addressed in Section V.C, below. The Parties understand
and agree that under AB 2923 and SB 35, a development application that qualifies for
streamlined review is subject to ODS that have been duly adopted by the City prior to
the submittal of the development application consistent with the timeline shown in
section I1.B, and that such ODS are enforceable as permit conditions by the City,
provided the ODS are compliant with conditions in this Section IV.

C. Development of Objective Desion Standards

BART will fund, and has retained, a consultant, to be directed by the City, to work with
both Parties and community stakeholders to create a set of ODS and bring them to the
City Council for adoption. ODS will be created separately for the North Berkeley and
Ashby stations, and the process will be generally timed to coincide with developer
selection of each Station as referenced in Section ILB above. The Berkeley community,
BART, and the selected Developer will be given the opportunity to provide input into the
Objective Design Standards to ensure the resulting document is consistent with what can
feasibly be developed at each station and aligned with the intent of the JVP.

D. Objective Design Standards Review and Approval

Once a complete draft of Objective Design Standards has been prepared for each site,
City staff will bring the draft to the Planning Commission for recommendation and to the
City Council for adoption by ordinance. Prior to Planning Commission review, the City
will provide BART an opportunity for final review and comment on the final draft of the
Objective Design Standards.

-1
MOA Page 71




"DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,
Page 68 of 124

E. Requirements for Objective Design Standards

The Parties agree that the intent of the Objective Design Standards is to allow the City,
the community, BART, and the developer to have a strong voice in the design quality of
the development at both stations. The Parties further agree that the Objective Design
Standards shall be consistent with the Zoning and with state law, including but not
limited to SB 35, and that they shall be consistent with the sections of the JVP addressing
the physical form of the Projects to the extent feasible.

The Objective Design Standards process will include 1) a circulation/access framework,
prepared with input from the City and BART; 2) a preliminary set of objective design
standards, prepared with input from the City and BART; and 3) a final set of objective
design standards completed with additional input from community stakeholders and the
selected developer. Main topics in the Objective Design Standards may include but are
not limited to:

o Station functionality

e  Public realm improvements

e  Building form and massing

¢  Building fagade design

. Building placement (i.e. transitions in height/scale)

e  Open space and landscape

F. Requirement to Comply

BART’s AB 2923 Development Principles, adopted by the BART Board of Directors in
August 2020, states that “if a jurisdiction shares BART's commitment to regional climate,
housing, and equity goals — as evidenced by zoning BART property for the highest
feasible density, use and height — BART commits to encouraging consistency with that
Jurisdiction’s objective design standards in its development agreements.”

Consistent with the Development Principles, BART agrees that a zoning of a2 minimum of
75 units per acre and at least 7 stories in height satisfies the Development Principles of
this policy. BART agrees to enforce the City’s Objective Design Standards through its
ENA and other real estate agreements, provided that the resulting ODS are consistent
with applicable state law, including but not limited to SB 35, and with all other
requirements for the ODS established by this MOA, and so long as they do not diminish
the zoning envelope by more than ten percent (10%) below what AB 2923 heights and
floor-area-ratio would allow, as calculated based on the maximum square footage that
could be built with a reasonable circulation framework and open space provided, utilizing
the methodology attached hereto as Exhibit D.

MOA - 12
Page 72



D ign E I ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
ocuSign Envelope Page 69 of 124

In addition, BART shall, in its ENA, require the developer to make good faith efforts to
cooperate with the City in the development of Objective Design Standards so that they
can be brought forward for review and approval. In the event the City cannot adopt the
ODS within 9 months of execution of the ENA due to occurrences or circumstances
beyond the City's reasonable control, including but not limited to, acts of God, fire,
strikes or other labor disturbances, riots, civil commotion, war, sabotage, pandemic,
failure of the developer to make good faith efforts to cooperate with the City in the
development of the Objective Design Standards, or any other cause similar to those
herein specified which cannot be controlled by the City, then the City Manager and

General Manager may agree to extend the deadline for adoption of the ODS to a mutually
agreeable, later date. '

V.  Developer Selection Process for North Berkeley Project

A. General

To solicit developers or developer teams for the North Berkeley site, BART will issue
an RFQ. BART will work closely with the City to draft the RFQ and to evaluate
respondents (as outlined in the sections below) and make the developer selection. The
City will work with BART to incorporate the eligibility criteria outlined in the HTF
Guidelines into the RFQ, to ensure the selected developer team is qualified to deliver on
the goal of providing at least 35% affordable housing at the site. The RFQ will also
describe the Minimum Project Requirements defined in Exhibit C.

The RFQs will be intended to solicit interested developers or developer teams and to
evaluate their experience, ability to successfully deliver a project, general project
concept and financial wherewithal. Respondents requesting City funding will be
required to provide additional information on the affordable housing projects including a
financing plan and pro forma.

B. Selection Committee

A selection committee will be formed by BART staff, consisting of six or eight

members, divided equally between City and BART representatives as identified by each
respective party.

MOA - 13
Page 73



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 70 of 124

C. Evaluation Process

Initial responses will be evaluated by the selection committee and a shortlist of up to
four teams will be created. Shortlisted teams will be asked to present at a community
townhall and may be asked to submit supplemental materials. After the townhall
(referenced below in section F) has taken place, shortlisted firms will be interviewed by
the selection committee and then the committee will score the teams and present a
recommended selection to the General Manager and City Manager. If the General
Manager and City Manager are not both in agreement with the recommendation of the
selection committee, the Parties agree to meet and confer in good faith to reach
agreement, but the General Manager retains sole discretion to make a recommendation
to the BART Board of Directors. The City Manager retains sole discretion to make a
recommendation to the full Berkeley City Council on the City’s predevelopment and
development funding award.

D. Predevelopment Funding

The submittals received in response to the RFQ will also serve as applications for
affordable housing predevelopment funds from the City, although developer teams
comprised solely of one or more for-profit development companies shall not be eligible
for such funding, in keeping with City policy. Following developer selection by BART
Board of Directors, City staff will bring the selected team’s application for
predevelopment funding of up to $500k to the City Council for approval. The selected
developer team may apply for an additional $1.5 million in City predevelopment funds
for specific affordable housing projects proposed at the North Berkeley BART site.

E. Selection Criteria

The selection criteria have been derived from the JVP, as well as applicable policies of
BART, the City of Berkeley's HTF Guidelines and affordable housing funding policies.
Proposals will be evaluated based on depth and quantity of affordable units, among other
criteria. The selected development team’s responses must demonstrate a commitment to
affordable housing, and feasible plans to produce it at these sites. The selected team
must have a track record in the production of affordable housing and will need to
demonstrate their capacity to deliver on the goal to develop at least 35% affordable
housing at the North Berkeley site. The RFQ will emphasize that the development team
will be held accountable for making affordability the first priority.

MOA - 14
Page 74



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

V1.

VIIL.

Page 71 of 124

F. Public Involvement in Selection Process

Shortlisted firms will be asked to present their qualifications at an online or in-person
townhall hosted jointly by the City and BART, open to the general public. Community
members who attend will be offered the opportunity to give structured feedback on a
number of aspects of the presentations, but will not be asked to rank or score the
respondents overall. This feedback will be assembled by BART and City staff or
consultants and transmitted to the selection committee.

BART/City Cooperation on the Projects

A. Commitment to Cooperate

BART and the City agree that the development of the Projects is both a shared
opportunity and a shared responsibility, and commit to working collaboratively
throughout the development process.

. Project Funding

BART and City will proactively work with developers to secure grants (state, federal)
and financing for the Projects, which is necessary to realize the public benefits described
in this MOA. BART will take priority on use of Infrastructure Infill Grant Program
(“IIG”) funding for station access infrastructure. Any available IIG funding not needed
for station access costs will be made available for affordable housing infrastructure.
BART will source funding for BART ridership replacement parking, and City will

support a joint application for IIG funding for this purpose if no other funding sources are
available.

C. Parking Strategy

The City will take the lead, working with BART, to identify ways to mitigate impacts of
spillover parking, including possible developer requirements. The City will determine its
new on-street parking strategy surrounding the Projects by November 1, 2022, The City
will implement this plan no later than execution of BART’s first ground lease with
developer.

Timeline for Ashby Project and Related Agreements

Development of a TOD project at the Ashby Station will require resolution of a number
of items specific to that site, including, without limitation, the City’s option to acquire air

MOA - 15
Page 75




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 72 of 124

rights for the Western Parking Lot, identification of a new location for Berkeley
Community Flea Market, the potential reconfiguration of Adeline Street, the design and
funding of station infrastructure, affordable housing requirements, and the role of the City
in the RFQ, potential RFP and ENA process. The Parties have been working to resolve
these items and will make a good faith effort to complete the aforementioned items by the
dates provided below. BART and the City agree that the milestones and associated dates
may be revised upon mutual written agreement of the City Manager or her designee and
of the BART General Manager (" General Manager") or his designee.

The Parties will incorporate the dates below as part of an amended MOA to be negotiated
by the Parties. It is understood that if the Parties are unable to reach resolution on the
aforementioned items, and these dates are not met, BART reserves its right to reprioritize
its transit-oriented development work plan and advance a different developer solicitation
elsewhere in its system in early 2023.

Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary contained herein, if the Parties
are unable to reach resolution on the aforementioned items or to agree to an amended
MOA as contemplated in the first paragraph of this Section VII, this MOA shall continue
in full force with respect to those provisions that relate to the North Berkeley Project.

Agreement on nature of solicitation and its September 30, 2022
content for Ashby TOD Project

Agreement on process for issuance of Ashby
solicitation including schedule, City's role in
evaluation, evaluation criteria

Clear milestones for Equitable Black Berkeley

process and agreement on its relationship to RFQ

Amended MOA for Ashby project to be November 1, 2022
Approved by City Council and BART Board
Resolution of City option for air rights at Ashby
BART West lot, and City Council action.
Agreement on new Flea Market location by City
Council which may include some portion of the
Adeline right of way to be used for a Flea Market;
City Council agreement on roadway

| reconfiguration for Adeline Street

Execution of agreements related to air rights November 30, 2022

MOA - 16
Page 76



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 73 of 124

Release of Ashby Solicitation (contingent on March 31, 2023
meeting above milestones)

Finalize City affordable housing funding plan June 30, 2023
including % and level of affordable housing at

Ashby

City Council adoption of Objective Design No later than 9 months after ENA

Standards for Ashby TOD assuming both parties meet the terms
outlined in Section IV.F above

Development Team for Ashby must submit a No later than three years of execution of

complete application for a Master Development the ENA
Permit, or for at least one affordable housing
building's entitlements

Development team for Ashby must secure December 31, 2031
complete project financing for affordable housing
components

VIIL

Continuing Community Participation

After its final meeting on December 6, 2021, the Community Advisory Group (“CAG”)
has completed its intended function. The Parties agree to continue community
participation in the development of the BART stations in a mutually agreed upon
framework.

Miscellaneous

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, nothing in this MOA shall be
construed as limiting the discretionary decision-making authority of the City or BART.
No party shall be liable for, or shall be entitled to, any monetary damages for breach of
this MOA, and each party expressly waives its rights to damages. There are no intended
third-party beneficiaries of this MOA, and no third party shall have any enforcement or
other rights under this MOA against City or BART.

MOA - 17 Page 77




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 74 of 124

CITY OF BE LEY

DEE WILLIAMS-RIDLEY JESSE ARREGUIN
CITY MANAGER MAYOR

APPROVED AS TQ FORM

P

FARIMAH FAIZ BROWN
CITY ATTORNEY

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

DocuSigned by:

Wit B

SROUBERT™. POWERS
GENERAL MANAGER

MOA - 18

Page 78



i : - -4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86 Page 75 of 124

EXHIBIT A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into on this ﬁ day of M”A‘\, 2020, by
and between the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (‘BART”) and the City of Berkeley

(“City”) to cooperatvely pursue transit oriented development (“TOD") and the implementation of
Assembly Bill 2923 (“AB 2923”) at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations.

RECITALS

A. BART and the City both acknowledge that the tegion faces a shortage of affordable homes and 2

climate crisis that requires a significant reduction in vehicle miles traveled; and

B. BART and the City have adopted District- and City-wide policies that prioritize creating
affordable homes and reducing greenhouse gas emissions; and

C. Publicly-owned land at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART stations provides a rate
opportunity to create more homes, including below-market-rate affordable homes, in a manner
that reduces residents’ reliance on driving; and

D. State law AB 2923 (AB 2923, Stats. 2018, Chp. 1000) requires BART to adopt TOD zoning
standards for BART-owned property surrounding its stations and requires that the City’s local
zoning conform with TOD zoning standards by July 1, 2022; and

E. BART and the City are committed to enabling multiple opportunities for community input and
engagement that inform site master planning and zoning; and

E The purpose of this agreement is to:

1. Identify 2 shared vision and priorities for development for BART and the City, and set
forth steps needed 1o pursue this vision and priorities;

2. Clarify the processes that BART and/or the City will pursuc to address the activites and
timelines outlined below in Section I1L; and

(S8

Provide greater clarity for all pardes, including BART, the City, and members of the
public, on the currently-planned steps, timelines, and the Parries’ roles and
responsibilities nceded in seeking to commence construction of TOD on BART-owned
propetty at both the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations.

Exhibit A - 1

Page 79



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 76 of 124

MUTUAL UNDERSTANDING OF THE PARTIES

I.  Framework for Development at Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations

A. Goals and objectives for TOD have been established for Ashby and Notth Berkeley BART
stations by the City through two separate processes. Similarly, BART has adopted policies and
performance targets guiding its TOD program as a whole. These documents will inform the
Parties’ respective goals and objectives with regard to TOD at the Ashby Sration and North
Berkeley Station.

B. The Draft Adeline Corridor Specific Plan (published in May 2019) sets forth a vision, policies
and objectives for the Ashby BART Station area. Specifically, Policy 3.7 of the Plan, shown in
Exhibit 1, includes seven objectives relating to affordable housing, public space, development
parameters, public art, pedestrian and bicycle connections, transportation and demand
management and community engagement. The final adopted plan objectives shall be

incorporated into this exhibit when available.

C. On May 9, 2019, the Berkeley City Council unanimously approved the City’s goals and objectives
for North Berkeley BART development, which ate shown in Exhibit 2. The City’s goals focus on
community input, station access, affordability, livability and environmental sustainability.

D. The City of Berkeley’s General Plan Policy LU-32 — Ashby BART Station states:

Encourage affordable housing or mixed-use development including housing on the ait rights
above the Ashby BART station and parking lot west of Adeline Street.

A. Consider a joint City/BART development plan for the Ashby BART site to
encourage and ensure appropriate development design, density, and parking to
accomnmodate the BART station and transit-oriented development. Development at the
Ashby BART station should include multi-family, transit-oriented housing and
ground-floor commercial space. If feasible, at least 50% of the housing units should be
affordable to low- and very-low-income households. (Alo see Housing Policy T-18.)

B. Consider revising the zoning for the site to reduce the on-site parking requirements

for new housing above the BART station. (Al see Transportation Policy T-16.)

E. In 2016, the BART Board adopted three policies which set overall goals for BART’s

transit-oriented development (TOD) program:

1. A TOD Policy (Exhibit 3), setting the goals of creating complete communities,
advancing sustainable communities, increasing ridership, capturing the value of transit,

Exhibit A - 2

Page 80



i [ ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F 1D741E,
DocuSign Envelope Page 77 of 124

enhancing transportation choice, and increasing affordability with a district-wide
affordability target of 35%.

2. An Affordable Housing Policy, which tequires 2 20% affordable housing minimum for
its projects, and favors projects with the greatest depth and quantity of affordable
housing (Exhibit 4).

3. A Station Access Policy (Exhibit 5) to guide access practices and investments through
2025. The policy is designed to support the broader livability goals of the Bay Area,
reinforce sustainable communities, increase the share of BART passengers walking and
biking to the stations, and enable riders to get to and from stations safely, comfortably,
affordably, and cost-effectively.

E  Together these documents, as well as further engagement of community stakeholders and
additional collaboration and activities as set forth in this MOU, lay the groundwork for future
development at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations.

Exhibit A - 3

Page 81



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,

Page 78 of 124

II.  Scope of Agreement

A. This MOU applies to development of the following properties, henceforth known as the “BART

Properties™

1.

Ashby BART Western Parking Lot: Bounded by Ashby Ave, Adeline St, and Martin
Luther King Jr Way. Site is owned by BART, with an option to the City to retain the air
rights above 10 feet;

Ashby BART Eastern Parking Lot: Located on the east side of the station, behind the
Ed Roberts campus, which is owned by BART; and

Notth Betkeley BART Main Parking Lot: Bounded by Sacramento, Delaware, Acton and
Virginia Streets. Site is owned by BART.

B. In otdet to ensure that development of the BART Properties is, to the extent possible, consistent

with the vision and priorities established by the City and BART, duting the TOD planning

process outlined in this MOU there will be an opportunity to consider infrastructure

enhancements to other areas that are owned by BART or the City. These may include the

following (henceforth known as “Surrounding Areas™):

1.

North Berkeley BART: auxiliary patking lots owned by BART, and areas owned by the
City that abut the Ohlone Greenway;

Other public infrastructure (e.g, streets, crosswalks, bicycle paths, on-street parking,
stormwater and sewer infrastructure) within a onc-mile radius of the BART Properties;

and

Proposed changes to access and circulation at each Station would be identified through
the Station Access Study described in Sectuon IILF of this MOU, as well as through the
development master plan or entitlement process. Any such changes would therefore be

subject to public review and comment, and to approval by the Parties.

Exhibit A - 4

Page 82



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 79 of 124

111. Activities and Timelines

Activities and Timelines — Summary Table

Activity Lead Milestone Date
Party ‘
1. Community Advisory | City Establish a Community Inidate December
Process and other Advisory Group to inform site | 2019
community engagement zoning and to facilitate
activities community input on site master
planning 20d zoning
2. Zoning for Ashby and | City a. Zoning alternatives Complete by June
North Berkeley BART proposed 2021
Stations b. Draft CEQA document
released
¢. Planning Commission and
community review
d. Planning Commission
apptoval '
e. Council zoning approval
3. BART AB 2923 BART a. Draft Guidance a. February 2020
Gudance Document b, Final Guidance b, July 2020
4, City Affordable Ciry Decision on set-aside of City December 2020
Housing Funding funding for affordable housing | (pending further
to Ashby and North Berkeley | definition of zoning
Stations and site capacity)
5. Developer BART Decision on timeline to initiate | July 1, 2020
Solicitation(s) solicitation of developer(s) (as
part of BART’s 10-Year TOD
Work Plan)
6. Station Access Studies | BART Station Access Studies Timeline dependent
Completed upon Developer
solicitation(s) for
each station

Exhibit A - 5

Page 83




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 80 of 124

A. Community Advisory Process and other Community Engagement Activities

1.

Pursuant to the Draft Adeline Corridor Specific Plan (Policy 3.7) and the Notth Berkeley
BART Development Goals and Objectives adopted by the City Council on May 9, 2019,
an advisory group consisting of members of the community will be created for the

purposes of providing input:

a. To the City Planning Commission as it considers zoning standards that will be
consistent with the City’s obligations under AB 2923 for the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART station areas; and

b. To the City and BART as the Parties establish a joint vision and priorities
document (“Joint Vision and Priotities”) that will be incorporated in eventual
Requests for Proposal/Requests for Qualifications for potental developers of
the BART Propetties.

The City will be responsible for the selection and all logistics and funding for the

Community Advisory Process.

Contingent on availability of funding, the City will also organize public participation
design charrettes that inform predictable form-based design standards that BART will
incorporate into guidelines for future development of the BART properties.

BART will support the City’s efforts by participating in meetings, presenting
information, as necessary, and considering input arising from the Community Advisory
Process as part of its larger community engagement for AB 2923, TOD and station

access studies in the City.

B. Zoning Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations. As required by AB 2923, the City will
pursue rezoning of developable, BART-owned property within Y2-mile of the Ashby and North

Berkeley Stations. The City will be responsible for all logistics and funding tequired for these

rezoning efforts. As the agency responsible for local zoning tegulations, the City will work in
good faith with BART to coordinate the City’s rezoning efforts with BART’s development of AB
2923 guidance.

C. BART AB 2923 Guidance. BART and the City undetstand that AB 2923 requires further
clarification related to height, floor-area-ratio, density, bicycle parking minimums, automobile

parking minimums and maximums. To addtess these points of clatification, BART will publish 2

guidance document offering all affected local jurisdictions information on AB 2923. As the

Exhibit A - 6

Page 84



i : FF-OEA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,
DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683 Page 81 of 124

agency responsible for determining whether local zoning conforms to state law, BART will be
responsible for all logistics and funding required for the AB 2923 guidance document. The
guidance document will provide guidance on TOD zoning standards for all local jurisdictions as
those jurisdictions seek to comply with their obligations under AB 2923,

D. City Affordable Housing Funding Decision

L. The voters of Betkeley recently established three important new sources of funding to
support the creation and preservation of affordable housing, keep vulnerable people
housed, and rehouse the homeless:

a. Measure O provides for issuance of $135 million in bonds to fund capital
expenditures for a variety of types of affordable housing;

b. Measure P established a real estate transfer tax on the most expensive one-third
of real estate sales with a stated intent to rehouse the homeless and fund the

services they nced to remain housed; and

¢ Measure Ul increased the gross receipts tax on most residential rental properties
with a stated intent to fund affordable housing and protect Berkeley residents
from homelessness.

2. The above measures establish advisory panels which advise the City Council as it makes
determinations regarding the allocation of these and other affordable housing monies
(such as City Housing Trust Fund resources) and related resources such as public land
and inclusionary units.

(O3]

The City will set-aside appropriate funding, including development fees and other
above-mentioned sources, to support deed-restricted affordable housing at a range of
income levels to meet BART and the City’s affordable housing goals at the Ashby and
North Berkeley BART Stations (as referenced in Section ).

E. Developer Solicitation(s)

1. Consistent with its standard practice, BART will issue Requests for Qualifications
(‘RFQ”), Requests for Proposals (“RFP”) or both to initiate the process of identifying
and recommending potential developers of the BART Properties to the BART Board of
Directors. The committee(s) established to evaluate RFQ/RFP submissions will include

City Representatives and BART staff as well as an independent financial consultant, who

Exhibit A -7

Page 85




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 82 of 124

will evaluate the capabilities of each proposer to deliver the project. The criteria used to
sefect the developer(s) with whom to negotiate will be based on the BART Station
Development Joint Vision and Priorities that will take into account community input as
outlined in Section IILA.

For the Ashby BART Western Parking Lot, which is owned by BART with an option to
the City to retain the air rights above 10 feet, and assuming that the City exercises said
option, the City and BART will enter into a separate agreement detailing how they will

share decision-making authotity in the developer solicitation processes.

The evaluation committee’s role is to make a recommendation to the BART Board of
Directors regarding the developer(s) with whom BART will negotiate for the
development of TOD. The BART Board of Directors has the sole discretion and
authotity to determine whether, and with whom, BART will enter into an exclusive
negotiating agreement (“ENA”) relating to potential TOD development on the BART
Properties. It is anticipated that, among other things, the ENA will require the developer
to advance the proposed project through the City’s entitlement process, lead or
participate in a community engagement process, fund a Station Access Study for BART
(see below), pay BART an option fee in exchange for exclusive negotiating rights, and
reimburse BART for its expenses, including engineering review, outside legal fees, and

outside consultant expenses.

F  Station Access Study

2.

Per the draft policies in the Adeline Corridor Plan, Council-adopted goals and objectives
for development of the North Betkeley BART property, BART’s TOD Policy, and the
requitements of AB 2923, a Station Access Study must be prepared prior to
development of the BART Propetties that identifies sustainable access options for both
the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations in light of potential changes to the BART
Properties and surrounding areas resulting from TOD. AB 2923 added Section
29010.6(h) to the California Public Utility Code, which requires BART—with respect to
any station where BART commuter parking is reduced as a result of 2 TOD project on
land where TOD zoning standards apply—to develop and fund an access plan that
maintains station access for at least the number of customers affected by the reduced
number of commuter parking spaces, with specific consideration for customers who live

further than one-half mile from the station.
The Station Access Studies will evaluate a range of access options that support BARTs

goals to increase the shate of BART patrons who access the stations via modes other
than the ptivate automobile, and that maximize the potentil number of homes

Exhibit A - 8

Page 86



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Iv.

Page 83 of 124

(including homes restricted to low, very low, and extremely low-income households) on
site. In exploring alternatives to parking, the Studies will evaluate whether and how to
offer viable, multimodal access to BART for the starion catchment areas, and how to
ensure that TOD and associated improvements result in an overall increase in the
number of people who use the BART Stations. The Studies will identify infrastructure
needs on and near BART’ property to improve access for riders using all modes,
including pedestrians, bicyclists, community members with access and functional needs,
shared mobility users, and patrons using public and private transpostation.

3. BART will be responsible for all logistics required for the Station Access Studies. BART
will fund these Studies in advance, but may require reimbursement for the Studies from
a developer or ae\relopcrs pursuant to an ENA with said developer(s). Findings from the
Ashby and North Berkeley BART station access studies will be presented to the
community.

Zoning and Solicitation Process; Retention of Decision-making Authority by City and
BART

A. To demonstrate its commitment to advancing development at BART property, and in

consideration for its inclusion as 2 high priority in BART’s 10-year wotk plan for development,
the City will: 1) complete rezoning of the properties by June 2021, and 2) make 2 decision by the
end of December 2020 to set-aside funding sufficient to assure BART, in its sole discretion, that
at least 35% of the housing units proposed to be constructed at the BART Properties would be
deed-restricted to low, very low and/or extremely low affordable housing, The City recognizes
that meeting this level of affordability will require significant local, state, and federal subsidy. The
Planning Commission has a target date of December 2020 to review zoning alternatives as a
show of progress towards completion of zoning by June 2021.

To support the City’s zoning process, BART agrees to provide guidance that will be applicable to
North Berkeley Station and all other stations in the BART system to which AB 2923 applies.
BART will work with the City of Berkeley to explore possible approaches to conformance with
AB 2923 zoning standards in the context of the built form characteristics of a surrounding lower
density ncighborhood. The City will consult with BART regarding zoning alternatives for the
North Berkeley Station that conform with AB 2923 zoning standards.

It is understood that both BART and the City desire for more work to be completed in support
of zoning, such as site master planning or objective design guidelines. At the time of this MOU,
the City and BART are actively working to identify additional resources to accelerate this work.

Exhibit A - 9

Page 87



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 84 of 124

D. The City and BART will meet in December 2020 to review the City’s efforts undertaken
putsuant to Section IIL.B and IILD, in order to:

1. Determine whethet the City has approved a set-aside of sufficient funding to meet the
35% affordable housing minimum for each station as described in Section IV.A;

2. Negotiate possible additional City participation in the solicitation processes; and

3. Agree upon the timing of the developer solicitations for the BART Propetties in
December 2020.

E. If the zoning for the Ashby and North Betkeley Stations and the set-aside of City affordable
housing funds occuts after the dates indicated for those actions in the timeline in Section IV.A
above, BART may re-evaluate the inclusion of these stations in its 10-year work plan. Likewise, if
BART does not ptoceed with developer solicitations for the BART Properties as determined in
Section I11.D, the City may reallocate affordable housing funding to other projects.

F. Notwithstanding any other provision in this MOU, nothing herein shall be construed to limit or
testrict the discretionary decision-making authority of the Citv or of BART. The Parties
acknowledge that any reference to a project or proposed project in this MOU or in any
document that may be created in connection with this MOU does not constitute a Project or
Project approval by cither Party as those terms are defined in CEQA and discussed in Sare Tara
n City of West Hollywood, 45 Cal. 4th 116 (2008).

CITY OF BERKELEY

DEE \‘(’ILLIAMS—R.HSL Y ) JESSE ARREGUIN
CITY MANAGER MAYOR

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

VLt o, 2,

ROBERT POWERS
GENERAL MANAGER

Exhibit A - 10

Page 88



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,
9 P Page 85 of 124

Exhibit B: Joint Vision & Priorities for Transit-Oriented Development for Ashby and
North Berkeley BART Stations

Background

The December 10, 2019 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between BART and the
City of Berkeley calls for the City and BART, with input from the City’s Community
Advisory Group (CAGQG) to establish a “joint vision and priorities” document. The goal of this
document is to provide a concise statement of the City and BART’s shared, high-level

expectations for future development of both the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
properties.

Per the MOU, this “joint vision and priorities” document will be incorporated into future
Request(s) for Qualifications (RFQs) for development of both the Ashby and North Berkeley
Station development, and will help guide the process from developer selection through
project construction. This City-BART Joint Vision and Priorities document was one of three
key outcomes of the CAG process for both North Berkeley and Ashby BART development
(along with updated zoning consistent with AB 2923, and the RFQs for developers).

This once-in-a-generation opportunity to create vibrant new neighborhoods for Berkeley

merits elevated, world-class design for built and landscaped elements, including affordable
housing.

Affordable Housing

VISION

New housing at a variety of income levels at both the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
Stations will address the City’s housing crisis, stem the displacement of residents—
especially of the African American community in Berkeley—and support more equitable
access to housing for lower-income families and individuals. New housing must also be
created quickly to reflect the urgency of the climate and affordability crises, capturing the
inherent environmental and equity benefits of walkable, affordable transit-oriented housing
in Berkeley’s most transit-rich areas. North Berkeley and Ashby will provide a new model
for delivering affordable housing in neighborhoods that are rich in infrastructure and
strategically located to make regional transit, economic opportunity, and community
amenities more broadly and equitably accessible.

Shared Priorities

A. Housing Priorities. Maximize the number of new homes, and especially permanently
affordable, deed-restricted homes. We anticipate a range of 500-1200 units at each station
with a variety of unit sizes, including units appropriate for multi-generational
families/households.

B. Urgency. Deliver new housing, including affordable units, within 10 years, by 2031, to
reflect the urgency of the climate, affordability, and housing crises.

Exhibit 8- 1

Page 89



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 86 of 124

C. Affordable Housing Goal. The City and BART will strive to maximize the number of
permanently affordable, deed-restricted housing units within the funding that can be
identified.

1. Affordable housing may be developed in multiple phases over a number of years.

2. The amount of affordable housing which can be provided at each site within the
10-year time frame will depend on many outside factors including the availability
of state and federal housing resources.

3. Ataminimum, at least 35% of the new units at each site will be restricted
affordable housing. It is anticipated that each site could achieve at least 50%
affordable housing, subject to the timely availability of financing.

4. The City and BART will work together to support selected developers in
proactively assembling affordable housing subsidies in order to exceed the 35%
minimum.

5. If both sites are able to provide at least 50% affordable housing in a way that is
financially feasible, and if additional funding becomes available, the priority for
that additional funding would be to maximize the number of affordable units at
Ashby station in recognition of the ongoing threat of displacement to the historic
community of South Berkeley.

D. Income Targets: At least 35% of new housing at each site must be affordable to
households earning an average of up to 60% of Area Median Income (AMI). Of that, at
least 20% (or 7% of total units at each site) must be affordable to Extremely Low-income
households, those earning up to 30% of AMI. Additional affordable units should
prioritize Very Low Income (up to 50% of AMI) households and Low Income (up to
80%) households but may include some housing restricted with households with incomes
up to 120% of AMI, consistent with the more specific direction provided in the City-
BART Memorandum of Agreement.

E. Sequencing. Affordable housing should be built prior to, or along with, any market rate
housing.

F. Displacement Prevention. Affordable housing should provide a preference for residents
of Berkeley who are facing displacement, or who have been displaced from Berkeley in
the past due to economic or discriminatory reasons.

G. Developer Selection. In the developer selection process, prioritize a nonprofit master
developer or a partnership between a private developer and one or more community-
based organizations who have experience showing accountability towards equity goals in
the City of Berkeley.

H. Developer Accountability. The selected developers must have a demonstrated
commitment and feasible plans to produce affordable housing and be willing to be held
accountable for making affordability the first priority. Selecting a developer who merely
pledges a best effort to provide affordable units would not be sufficient.

Exhibit B - 2



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 87 of 124

[. Funding. BART and the City of Berkeley should proactively seek new, innovative
funding solutions to help achieve two truly visionary, equitable, and sustainable projects.

J. Clustering and Integration. Affordable units may be clustered into one or more 100%
affordable housing buildings on the BART sites but must be designed in a way that
integrates with the larger project and shares comparable design standards and quality.

K. Inclusive Housing Design. The selected developer will prioritize affordable housing for
renters with various needs, including but not limited to families, people with physical or

mental disabilities, and formerly homeless people.

Priorities for Ashby

A. Adeline Corridor Affordable Housing Goal. Consistent with the Adeline Corridor
Specific Plan, the City and BART should strive for a goal of 100% deed-restricted

affordable housing, prioritizing extremely low, very-low and low-income affordable
housing.

B. Residents with Disabilities. Ashby BART should be developed in a way that prioritizes
the inclusion of residents with disabilities, who are likely to benefit from proximity to
the Ed Roberts Campus, specifically as part of the development of the East Parking Lot
at Ashby Station.

C. South Berkeley Preference. To address past and current displacement, the development
should provide a preference to applicants who either currently live in South Berkeley or
have been displaced from the community. This preference must be implemented in a
way which is consistent with the City’s Fair Housing goals and federal law.

Public and .Civic,Space
VISION

New public and civic space at both Ashby and North Berkeley BART will provide a
community anchor, open space amenity, and memorable neighborhood gathering space that
is accessible to all. It will be available for programmed community uses and activities, as
well as for informal, unprogrammed public use by residents, visitors, and transit riders alike.
New public space will maximize greenery (to the extent feasible) and enhance the ability of
all community members to walk, roll, and take transit, supporting better station access and
healthy, climate-friendly active transportation. North Berkeley will be a nexus of active
transportation centered along a major new connection of the Ohlone Greenway. Ashby will
be anchored by a market and oriented along a street built for people and multiple modes of
transportation.

Exhibit B -3

Page 91




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 88 of 124

Shared Priorities

A.

Maintenance Costs. New civic space should be maintained by the developer and/or
lessee to minimizes the ongoing cost of operations and maintenance to BART and the

City.

New Public Space. Pursue new public space design in a way that delivers on the vision
while maximizing the number of on-site affordable housing units.

Station Access. Design the public realm to support priorities in the Access section of this
document.

Priorities for Ashby

A.

E.

Hub for African American Life. Reinforce South Berkeley’s historic role as a hub for
African American culture and life in the Bay Area.

Flea Market. Provide a permanent, viable home for the Berkeley Community Flea
Market — offering supportive amenities such as public restrooms, limited office/storage
space, electrical and water access and weather protection - in a prominent location.

Stakeholder Input. Public space will be designed with input from the Flea Market,
Lorin Business Association, neighborhood residents, representatives from the disability
community, and other neighborhood stakeholders. Facilities for the Flea Market will be
designed in collaboration with the vendors and Community Services United.

. Adeline Design. Reconfigure Adeline Street to transform a four-lane arterial into a safer

space for all modes of transportation, creating a more walkable, vibrant place. Flea
Market and/or other public activities may occur on some or all of this portion of Adeline
Street.

Green Space. Expand the availability of green space for the neighborhood.

Priorities for North Berkeley

A.

Ohlone Greenway Connection. The development should include a landscaped (as
feasible given BART operational needs) protected bikeway that connects the disjointed
ends of the Ohlone Greenway to each other and to BART, providing a primary access
route and orientation of the development that enables a prioritized pedestrian and bicycle
connection from approximately the southeast corner of the site to the northwest corner of
the site and across the streets.

Public Space Use. Public space should provide opportunities for both active and passive
public use, with strong connections to the station entrance, the Ohlone Greenway, or
other public spaces and pedestrian facilities.

Exhibit B -4

Page 92



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 89 of 124

C. Street Design. The design of surrounding streets should be considered as a strategy to
accommodate public space needs, increase the tree canopy, and improve safety for
pedestrians and bicycles. Explore the feasibility of reducing the width and number of
traffic lanes in adjacent streets to their original (pre-BART) condition, aligning curbs
with adjacent blocks in a manner that builds upon and is consistent with the City and
BART’s recent Complete Streets and roadway improvement projects in the area. Streets
may retain their current width where there is some functional use for the extra space,
such as bike lanes and cycle tracks that previously did not exist, and there may be bulb-
outs at intersections. Perimeter sidewalks should consider generous pedestrian space and
tree canopy.

Land Use

VISION

Land uses at Ashby and North Berkeley Stations will serve community needs; provide
significant amounts of new housing; complement neighborhood businesses, services, and
institutions; create a welcoming environment for all; support BART ridership; and improve
quality of life for current and future residents. Ground-floor residential and non-residential
uses should be pedestrian-oriented and contribute positively to public space and the
pedestrian experience.

Shared Priorities

A. Overall Mix of Uses. At both stations, the predominant use will be transit-oriented
housing and transit uses, complemented by fully accessible public, green, and
recreational space (including for all ages and abilities) and appropriate non-residential
uses. Additional priorities for these uses are found in the Affordable Housing, Public and
Civic Space, and Station Access and Parking Management sections of this document.

B. Non-residential Spaces. Curate and program any non-residential spaces to provide
interest and character, encourage community gathering, support social interactions, and
provide unique neighborhood activities and services. Any non-residential uses should be
customized to meet the unique needs of each station and neighborhood.

Priorities for Ashby

A. Role of Non-residential Uses. Non-residential uses at Ashby should reinforce the area’s
historic role as a center of neighborhood commerce, cultural expression, social
connection, and economic empowerment.

B. Non-Residential Active Frontages. Non-residential uses should have active frontages
oriented towards Adeline Street, Ashby Avenue, and the future Flea Market public space.
Ground-floor uses should activate public space and complement the Flea Market, while
promoting everyday activities when the Flea Market isn’t occurring.

ExhibitB-5




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 90 of 124

C. Prioritized Non-residential Uses. The following types of potential non-residential uses
should be prioritized, though not all are anticipated to be present in any one development

project!:

1. The Berkeley Flea Market, and indoor or outdoor spaces related to the Flea
Market

2. Businesses and organizations that reinforce the neighborhood’s historic role as a
center of Black culture and identity

3. Businesses, organizations, or services that are oriented towards, or provide
economic opportunity for people in the neighborhood or their descendants who
were involuntarily displaced, interned, or historically disenfranchised on the basis
of race

4. New uses that expand and complement the role and mission of the Ed Roberts
Campus and empower those living with disabilities

5. Spaces for cultural activities, performance, display, community activities, or other

uses and amenities that support the area’s role as an arts and culture district.

Priorities for North Berkeley

A. Role of Non-residential Uses. Non-residential uses such as retail, services, or indoor
community spaces are anticipated to have a limited role at North Berkeley.

B. Non-residential Active Frontages. Non-residential uses that do occur should be oriented
with active frontages towards the station entry or other interior areas and/or Sacramento

Street.

C. Respect Neighborhood Needs. Non-residential uses that do occur should be focused
towards meeting neighborhood needs and complementing the existing range of
businesses and services already available nearby.

D. Potential Non-Residential Uses. Non-residential uses may include the following?:

1.

Uses that help reduce the need for driving in North Berkeley, such as commuter-
focused amenities, childcare, community services, or satellite locations for
existing community businesses or organizations

Small-scale walkable retail or café type uses

Space for activities, gatherings, or events.

! Specific permitted and prohibited uses for Ashby Station will be identified in the zoning code.

2 Specific permitted and prohibited uses for North Berkeley Station will be identified in the zoning code.

Exhibit B - 6

Page 94



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 91 of 124

Building Form

VISION

New buildings at Ashby and North Berkeley Stations will be beautiful, creatively designed,
well-proportioned, create visual and physical connections with the neighborhood through its
architectural design and contribute positively to the physical fabric and long-term quality of
life of the neighborhood. They will provide elements that neighborhood residents currently
enjoy — such as natural light, air, direct outdoor access, variety, quirkiness, walkability, and
sociability — in a denser, transit-oriented format that supports BART ridership. Buildings
should exhibit a level of architectural diversity that expresses the social, racial, economic,
and design diversity that is desired at both stations. Ground-floor spaces and building

frontages should activate public space, while providing a sense of place and character to the
stations and the surrounding neighborhood.

Shared Priorities

A. Height Variation. AB 2923 does not permit the City’s zoning controls to restrict
building height below seven stories on the station sites. The City and BART will support
variations in building height and form at both stations. It is anticipated that some
buildings and some portions of buildings will be shorter than the maximum height in
keeping with good urban design practice.

B. Context. Building design should consider the scale and character of the surrounding built
environment.

C. Location and Orientation. Locate and design new buildings to enhance public spaces
while mitigating impacts on existing neighbors through site orientation, setbacks, lines of
sight between buildings, landscape and topography.

D. Equitable Design Quality. Design affordable housing units in a way that integrates with
the larger project and shares comparable design standards and quality.

E. Small Blocks. Prioritize site designs with smaller blocks and building footprints instead
of larger blocks.

F. Architectural Variety. Design buildings to provide visual interest with variation in
height, scale, massing, rooflines, materials, and architectural elements.

G. Building Scale. Provide regular breaks in building forms, as well as both horizontal and
vertical detail to respond to the existing neighborhood context and character, particularly

at the edges of the site. Provide adequate perimeter space for pedestrian volume and tree
canopy/vegetation

H. Unit Diversity. Encourage building forms that allow a diversity of unit sizes, types, and
configurations.

Exhibit B -7

Page 95




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

N.

Page 92 of 124

Sunlight. Seek to configure buildings and include design strategies that allow sunlight to
reach public spaces, and design outdoor spaces, outdoor seating and active retail
frontages, if provided, to maximize southern, western, and/or eastern exposure.

Outward-facing Entrances. For ground-floor housing units, encourage outward-facing
entrances with a range of design treatments and access strategies. These could include
stoops, front doors, courtyard and forecourt entrances, ramped or at-grade universally
accessible entries, outward-facing and visually permeable lobby entrances, and transition
spaces from private frontages to public spaces.

Ground-floor Non-residential Frontages. For ground-floor non-residential uses,
provide frequent windows and doors, visual connection between indoors and outdoors,
frontage onto public space, direct access to the pedestrian circulation network, and
activation strategies such as outdoor seating, dining, display spaces, public art, and
architectural detailing.

Universal Accessibility. Preference for building designs with universally accessible units
and elevator redundancy to promote accessibility for seniors and those with disabilities.

. BART Entrances. Ensure that BART entrances are featured prominently and integrated

into the overall site plan.

Integrated Green Space. Integrate gardens, courtyards, roof terraces, trees, native
landscaping, and other green spaces into building architecture and site design.

Priorities for Ashby

A.

Massing and Height Focus. Focus density, larger building forms and height towards
Adeline Street and Ashby Avenue on the west parking lot parcel, and towards the rear of
the Ed Roberts Campus on the east parking lot parcel.

. Active Frontages. Connect new buildings to Adeline Street and Ashby Avenue with

direct pedestrian access, minimal setbacks, and active frontages to complement the
existing active uses across the street.

Site Design. Ensure that building form, scale, and the overall site plan provide sufficient
space for the Flea Market and other civic and community uses.

Priorities for North Berkeley

A. Massing and Height Focus. Focus density, larger building forms and height towards the

Ohlone Greenway and the center of the site, as well as towards Sacramento Street.

ExhibitB - 8

Page 96



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 93 of 124

B. Massing Breaks and Step-downs. Provide massing breaks, step-downs in height, and
frequent pedestrian building entrances along Delaware Street, Acton Street, and Virginia
Street, with building forms and frontages that create a residential character and scale.

C. Active Frontages. Prioritize active frontages, public space programming, and car-free
activities along the Ohlone Greenway.

Station Access
Vision

Station access investments in and around the stations will enhance community vibrancy,
safety, equity, and health while improving the quality of the public space and pedestrian
experience, both within and beyond the station areas. Priority access investments are those
that encourage people to walk, bike, roll, ride transit, and use shared micro-mobility options,
while still providing flexibility for changing technologies and trends. Access investments
will be distributed equitably to improve the experience for people of all ages, all abilities,
and all income levels getting to and moving through the stations.

Shared Priorities

A. Housing and Community Benefits. Favor affordable housing and other community
benefits over BART rider parking and TOD resident parking in any physical or financial
decision-making.

B. Non-Automobile Access. Increase the share of BART riders who access the stations via
modes other than driving alone and parking. Prioritize access improvements in the
surrounding neighborhoods and within the station areas that offer safe, comfortable,
affordable, cost-effective alternatives for all BART customers, particularly those with
mobility challenges. Future access planning should consider the rapid evolution for
mobility trends and technologies and consider the adaptability of the station access plans
to future foreseeable and unforeseeable mobility patterns and their ability to handle
ridership growth without running into capacity constraints.

C. Equitable Access. Provide safe and secure station access options for people of all ages,
abilities, races and ethnicities, genders, and income levels.

D. Parking Options. Minimize the need for new structured on-site BART customer parking
by maximizing the use of available parking capacity along the corridor (such as Center
Street parking garage, shared parking with the TOD or with other sites, and on-street
parking management around site perimeters).

E. Transportation Demand Management. Any future development must include

aggressive and innovative Transportation Demand Management strategies to reduce the
vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and greenhouse gas (GHG)

Exhibit B -9

Page 97



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 94 of 124

emissions by residents, visitors, and employees by 20% by complying with BART’s
Transportation Demand Management program.

F. Parking and Traffic Impacts. Limit the impacts of parking and driving on residents of
the developments and surrounding neighborhoods (such as noise, air quality, GHG, and
collisions) through transportation demand management, multi-modal circulation and
access planning, infrastructure improvements, parking management, and other best
practices.

G. Market Rate Pricing for Parking. Explore parking pricing that is better aligned with
market demand as a possible strategy to promote BART rider and on-street parking
availability, with consideration of the impacts of parking pricing on low-income residents
and BART riders.

H. Prioritize Curb Space. Buses and shuttles will be located to prioritize people with
disabilities, active loading of passengers (over waiting vehicles), services available to the
public, and the number of people transferring to BART. Different types of passenger
loading zones will be incorporated for quick pick-ups and drop-offs, those that need to
wait for their passenger, accessible loading areas, ride apps and taxis.

I. Wayfinding and Signage. Provide clear, accessible, adaptable station access signage and
wayfinding to facilitate how people get to/from and through the station area consistent

with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s standards.

J. BART-related drop-off zones. Strive to locate BART-related drop-off zones on-site
and connections to transit on-site or on 4-lane corridors.

Priorities for Ashby

A. Pedestrian & Bicycle Connections. Provide high-quality, safe pedestrian and bicycle
connections to and through the site, including an off-street protected bicycle
facility extending along Adeline Street, at least between Ashby Avenue and the
intersection with MLK Way, with the potential to extend further through related Adeline
improvement efforts.

B. Adeline Design. Reconfigure Adeline Street to transform a four-lane arterial into a safer
space for all modes of transportation, creating a more walkable, vibrant place.

Exhibit B - 10

Page 98



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E,
9 P Page 95 of 124

Priorities for North Berkeley

A. Adjacent Streets. Consider the role and design of adjacent streets — including
Sacramento Street, Delaware Street, Virginia Street, and Acton Street — in multi-modal
access planning for the North Berkeley Station.

B. Commuter Parking Priority. Where parking would be provided, maximize parking for
commuters over parking for residential and/or potential community, non-profit, or retail
uses.

Exhibit B - 11

Page 99



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 96 of 124

Exhibit C: Minimum Project Requirements for the North Berkeley Project

Housing

The residential program for the Project should include at least 1,000 bedrooms with a
variety of unit sizes.

At least 35% of the new housing units to be developed at the North Berkeley Project,
inclusive of units built to satisfy the City’s inclusionary requirement and any units that
may be added as a result of a density bonus, shall be affordable or Below Market Rate
(BMR) for the duration of BART’s ground lease(s) for all affordable housing components
of the Project, which leases shall have a minimum duration of 65 years, and for any
extensions thereto. In addition to the terms of said ground leases, the affordability
restrictions will be enforceable by the City pursuant to regulatory agreements between the
City and the developer(s), in accordance with the income targets identified in the JVP as
follows:

o At least 35% of new housing must be affordable to households earning an average
of up to 60% of Area Median Income (“AMI”).

o At least 20% of the required 35% affordable units must be affordable to
Extremely Low-Income (“ELI”) households, those earning up to 30% of AMI.

o Of the required 35% affordable units, additional affordable units aside from the
ELI units should prioritize Very Low Income (up to 50% of AMI) households and
Low Income (up to 80%) households but may include some housing restricted to
households with moderate incomes (up to 120% of AMI), provided that the
moderate-income units have rents that are still below market and shall not include
City subsidy. '

o While the aforementioned goals are established in the JVP and the City and
BART have policies regarding affordable housing requirements, any project
receiving the City’s Housing Trust Fund (“HTF”) funding must meet the HTF
Guidelines, which require that 40% of any City subsidized units be affordable to
households earning up to 60% of AMI, and an additional 20% of City subsidized
units to be affordable to households earning up to 30% of AML. BART’s TOD
policy also provides a priority for affordable units that serve very low income
(<50% AMI), low income (51-80% AMI) and/or transit-dependent populations.

Affordable units shall be constructed prior to or concurrently with any market-rate
housing component. No market rate housing will receive its notice to proceed until an
affordable housing project gets its notice to proceed. In the event there are multiple
phases of market rate or affordable housing, the phasing plan shall be approved to ensure
consistency with the JVP goal of affordable housing being built along with market rate
housing.

Affordable units may be clustered into one or more 100% affordable housing buildings
on the Property but must be designed in a way that integrates with the larger project and
shares the comparable design standards and quality.

Exhibit C-1

Page 100




DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 97 of 124

Public & Civic Space

e The cost, if any, to BART and the City of operating and maintaining the new civic space
must be minimized.

¢ The project must provide a connection to the Ohlone Greenway.

e Station access improvements must provide options for people of all ages, abilities, races
and ethnicities, genders and income levels.

e Neither the City nor BART will be responsible for maintenance of roads and pathways
created on the parcels to facilitate the project.

Station Access & Parking

e Affordable housing and other community benefits will be prioritized over on-site BART
rider parking and TOD resident parking. The BART Board will establish a maximum
amount of on-site BART rider parking for each station.

e Consistent with current Berkeley Municipal Code, project residents will not be able to
secure residential parking permits (“RPP”) for City streets, to prioritize new residents
utilizing more sustainable transportation options and address concerns from nearby
residents about parking spillover.

Additional Minimum Requirements

e The project must comply with all relevant applicable BART and City policies and
ordinances to the extent allowable by law. BART’s relevant policies can be found at
wiww.bart.oov, 10D and currently include its Transit-Oriented Development Policy,
Affordable Housing Policy, AB 2923 Development Principles, Project Stabilization
Agreement Policy for Transit-Oriented Development, and Labor Peace Agreement Policy
for Transit-Oriented Development Hotel Operations.

o Developers must show a feasible path to obtaining entitlements by January 1,2025, and
to completion of construction by 2031, and must make best efforts to meet those
deadlines.

Exhibit C -2

Page 101



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E

Page 98 of 124

Exhibit D: Methodology for Establishing Developer Requirement to Comply with
Objective Design Standards

BART will require the developer to comply with City’s future Objective Design Standards
(“ODS”) for the North Berkeley BART site utilizing its real estate agreements, provided:

1. The City’s adopted zoning for the Project, as it relates to AB 2923, allows a minimum of
75 units per acre, at least 80 feet, and at least 7 stories in height;

2. The ODS will be adopted by the City of Berkeley for the BART property within 9
months of ENA execution as provided for in the MOA

3. The ODS are consistent with the City’s Zoning Ordinance;

4. The ODS are consistent with state law including but not limited to SB 35 and, as it relates
to parking standards, AB 2923; and

5. The gross square footage allowable under the ODS (“ODS Capacity”) is not less than
90% of the baseline square footage allowable under AB 2923 floor to area ratio (FAR)
(“AB 2923 Baseline Capacity”), as specified below.

Net Developable Area

Both the ODS Capacity and AB 2923 Baseline Capacity will utilize the same net developable
area in their calculations. This is defined as the gross site area of the North Berkeley BART
Project, exclusive of the auxiliary lots, and exclusive of surface areas utilized for public site
circulation, public civic space, and BART infrastructure. The Net Developable Area will be
determined based on the following methodology:

The Selected Developer’s preliminary development concept shall establish the initial
concept for the net developable area.

Within 30 calendar days of ENA execution, both BART and City staff shall provide
comments to one another on changes required to ensure the net developable area is
compatible with BART and City operational and fire/life safety needs.

Within 45 calendar days of ENA execution, BART and City staff shall meet to combine
their respective comments into a single set of changes to be submitted to the developer. If
BART and City staff cannot resolve any conflicts between their comments within this
time, the City’s Planning Director and BART's Chief Planning & Development Officer
shall confer to address any disputes.

The Selected Developer shall have 30 additional calendar days after receipt of the
combined BART and City comments to incorporate them into the final net developable
area. Both BART and the City must mutually agree that the Selected Developer has
addressed all comments. If the Selected Developer believes that comments would result
in an inability to deliver a feasible development, the Selected Developer must notify
BART and the City within 15 calendar days of receiving the combined BART and City
comments so that the City and BART can confer to resolve any issues.

The final Net Developable Area shall be used solely for the purposes of calculating AB
2923 Baseline Capacity and ODS Capacity, and shall not bind BART, the City or the
Selected Developer in any way to this concept for their final project.

Exhibit D -1

Page 102



DocuSign Envelope ID: COC683FF-0EA3-4F86-87F2-BFC22F1D741E
Page 99 of 124

AB 2923 Baseline Capacity

The AB 2923 Baseline Capacity shall be calculated by multiplying the net developable area by
4.2, which is the minimum floor area ratio for Urban Neighborhood/City Center projects
required by AB 2923.

ODS Capacity

The ODS Capacity shall be determined by calculating the gross square footage that is allowable
on the Net Developable Area under the R-BMU zoning and under the ODS, accounting for
square footage that is lost due to required setbacks, stepbacks, massing breaks, or other required
features (e.g. fire and life safety requirements). This determination shall be made by a design
professional such as a member of the American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP) or licensed
architect, to be selected by mutual agreement of BART and the City.

Timing for Determining ODS Capacity

The ODS Capacity must be calculated prior to public release of the final draft ODS, to ensure
that there will be transparency to the community about whether BART will require the developer
to comply with the ODS.

Other Conditions

BART will not require developer compliance with any increase in parking requirements above
the 0.5 spaces per unit required in AB 2923, but will require compliance related to height and
massing provided above conditions are met. Square footage for parking will not count towards
the ODS Capacity or Baseline Capacity Calculations.

Both Baseline and ODS Capacity will be calculated for the entirety of the Project, and not
individual buildings or blocks.

Exhibit D - 2

Page 103



P Rpy ¢ 00 off 124
ATTACHMENT 3

01

Worksession Item

Office of the City Manager
WORKSESSION

July 18, 2023

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Jordan Klein, Director, Planning and Development
Subject: Ashby BART Station Transit-Oriented Development (TOD)
SUMMARY

This report provides an update on activities to facilitate transit-oriented development
(TOD) at the Ashby BART station area, including:

e The City’s Option to Acquire Air Rights to the Western Parking Lot

e Draft Framework for Community Benefits

e Ashby BART Station Infrastructure and Operations and Future Development
e Additional Funding Sources for Affordable Housing and/or Infrastructure.

The purpose of this worksession is to update the City Council on efforts related to the
Ashby BART TOD project and to obtain input about the draft framework for community
benefits and other aspects of the project.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

For the past several years, the City and BART have been collaborating to facilitate
transit-oriented development at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART sites. The City
Council and BART Board of Directors executed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) in March 2020 and a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) in June 2022 that
outlined key milestones to advance to a solicitation for developer teams. Several of the
milestones outlined in these agreements have been completed already, including:

e Reservation of $53 million of City Affordable Housing Funding for the North
Berkeley and Ashby BART Sites in April 2021.

e New zoning and General Plan amendments consistent with Assembly Bill 2923
adopted in June 2022.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Pa@eg‘é)&
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.infos
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Worksession Item


PRypg @ aff 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

e City and BART adoption of Joint Vision and Priorities for Transit-Oriented
Development at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station (“JVP”) in June
2022.

e Council approval of preferred option for redesign of Adeline Street at Ashby
BART that includes new plaza as a permanent location for the Berkeley Flea
Market (November 2022).

e Issuance of a Request for Developer Qualifications and Notice of Funding
Availability for the North Berkeley BART station area in July 2022 and selection
of a developer team in December 2022.

Due to the additional complex issues that must be resolved prior to issuance of
solicitation(s) for developer teams for the Ashby BART station area, the efforts to
advance TOD at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART stations are on different
timelines. These outstanding issues were identified in the June 2022 MOA. The status
of efforts to resolve them are described in more detail below.

A. City’s Option to Acquire Air Rights for the Western Parking Lot

As a result of an agreement between the City and BART in October 1964 (prior to
the construction of BART), and subsequent agreements and transactions including
those related to construction of the Ed Roberts Campus, the City of Berkeley retains
an option to acquire the air rights over the western parking lot for $55,000. This
arrangement requires cooperation between the City and BART in devising the
ultimate terms of a transaction to develop this site.

City staff from the City Manager’s Office, Planning and Development, City Attorney’s
Office, Health Housing and Community Services, and Public Works have conducted
extensive research to inform options under discussion by the City (led by Major
Jesse Arreguin) and BART (led by BART Board Director Lateefah Simon). The
negotiating teams are exploring options that would protect and advance both the
City’s and BART’s respective objectives, while establishing processes and
parameters that do not dissuade the most qualified developer teams from
participating in future developer solicitations. Staff anticipates returning to Council in
the fall to discuss property negotiations and disposition.

B. Draft Framework for Community Benefits

The June 2022 MOA outlines a set of minimum requirements for the North Berkeley
BART station area transit-oriented development, many of which are derived from the
JVP and other City and BART Board-adopted requirements (e.g., project labor
requirements). Since the JVP establishes both minimum expectations for
development as well as aspirational goals, the intent in the MOA is to clearly convey
a minimum level of requirements any potential developer team would be required to

Page 2 Pa@eg@B



PRpg e Raff 1124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

meet for the North Berkeley BART site. The MOA also establishes mechanisms by
which BART, the City, or both will reinforce these requirements. Requirements for
the North Berkeley BART station area include a project with a residential program
with a minimum of 1,000 bedrooms in a variety of sizes, minimum affordability
requirements, and a connection to the Ohlone Greenway, among other elements.

The draft framework for community benefits and other project requirements for the
Ashby BART site being negotiated by the City and BART reflect: the June 2022
MOA, the JVP, the Adeline Corridor Specific Plan, and key input from a parallel
effort, “Equitable Black Berkeley”. Equitable Black Berkeley (EBB) is an initiative
spearheaded by the Mayor’s Office, in partnership with Healthy Black Families, that
is exploring innovative funding proposals and policies for the Ashby BART station
and “Adeline Community” area. This effort is part of a grant-funded, community-
driven effort to develop options to support equity, opportunity and the well-being of
Berkeley’s African American community.! The central premise established by EBB
for Ashby TOD is that the project must begin to reverse and repair the inter-
generational harm that resulted from the development of the Ashby BART station
and redlining.

As noted above, the City has a property interest (the option to acquire air rights) in
the western parking lot at Ashby BART, which makes the City a necessary partner in
determining the use of the site. The City Council and the BART Board of Directors
must ultimately approve the community benefits for Ashby BART, as well as any
related agreements and real estate transaction documents. Many of the details,
including funding sources and enforcement mechanisms, are still being negotiated,
and will be affected by the disposition of the City’s air rights option. The City and
BART negotiation teams have been discussing elements of the draft community
benefits framework. To date, the BART Board of Directors has not had the
opportunity to review or discuss this draft community benefits framework.

The draft framework for community benefits for the Ashby BART station area
includes the following elements:

1. Affordable housing: Minimum of 35% of new housing units to be developed
shall be affordable or Below Market Rate (BMR) housing, with a goal of 50%, in
accordance with income targets identified in the JVP (or other Affordable
Housing Framework adopted by the City Council for the Ashby BART station
area). The draft framework for community benefits reflects proposals being
explored to finance the anticipated infrastructure/right-of-way improvements and
affordable housing at the Ashby BART site. These proposals include the potential
of forming an Enhanced Infrastructure District (EIFD). An EIFD encompassing
Ashby (or both Ashby and North Berkeley stations) could capture the City’s share

1 https://healthyblackfam.org/e4bb

Page 3 Pa@eg‘é)ES


https://healthyblackfam.org/e4bb

PRpyd0Baff 1124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

of any property tax increment over a 45-year period. Income restricted lower
income housing units would generally be exempt from property tax so only
market rate units would contribute to the tax increment.?2 While some community
members have advocated for the Ashby TOD project to be 100% affordable, the
funding to finance that amount of affordable housing does not currently exist.
Even with the City’s reservation of its affordable housing funding, the project
would need to rely on application to multiple cycles of future state and federal
funding which would add significant delay and uncertainty to the TOD project; for
those reasons, BART would not likely agree to this as a minimum requirement.
Additionally, there is not a consensus among stakeholders that the entirety of the
Ashby BART site should be 100% affordable. Some stakeholders have
advocated for a mixed-income community (with 100% affordable projects,
including at moderate income levels and market rate projects that could have
below market rate inclusionary units) in order to better promote economic
mobility and to provide a source of funding (e.g. property tax increment) that
goes towards affordable housing and infrastructure needs.?

2. Permanent home for the Berkeley Flea Market. The Ashby TOD project will
include a permanent home for the Berkeley Flea Market and other public markets
and microenterprise businesses (e.g., with a plaza, market stalls, and/or other
relevant amenities). The City of Berkeley will allow some portion of adjacent
Adeline Street right-of-way to also be utilized to support the Berkeley Flea Market
(and other public programming). The project will include an installation
celebrating the history of the Flea Market, office space for the Flea Market
administration, and additional amenities to facilitate the Flea Market and other
public markets and microenterprise businesses.

3. Ground floor space for civic uses at below market rate rent. Consistent with
the vision to have the Ashby BART station area be a vibrant neighborhood center
that includes affordable space for community non-profits, the draft framework for
community benefits includes a requirement that space at below market rate rent
be provided to civic and community uses. The location and amount of space is
still being negotiated.

2 Senate Bill 628 “Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts” (1/2/2015), Assembly Bill 464 “Enhanced
Infrastructure Financing Districts: allowable facilities and projects” (6/29/2021), Assembly Bill 336
“Enhanced infrastructure financing districts: public financing authority: members: joint powers authorities”
(6/29/2021).

34/27/21 City Council ltem #31: City Affordable Housing Funds: Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station
Areas and Future Housing Funding Notices of Funding Availability (NOFA), Attachment 2, p.36 regarding
estimate of City subsidy needed to exceed 35% affordable housing:
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-
27%201tem%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20B
erkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20F uture%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%200f%
20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf

Page 4 Pagagd?


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-04-27%20Item%2031%20City%20Affordable%20Housing%20Funds%20%20Ashby%20and%20North%20Berkeley%20BART%20Station%20Areas%20and%20Future%20Housing%20Funding%20Notices%20of%20Funding%20Availabilit....pdf

PRpy e Glaff 1124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

4. A plaza and/or development that is adjacent and connected to Adeline
Street at southern portion of the west parking lot. The JVP and the Adeline
Corridor Specific Plan prioritize that future development should connect directly
to the greatest extent possible with Adeline Street. The Ashby TOD project shall
be directly connected to Adeline Street at the southern end of the western
parking lot (which could be possible through construction of a podium), as shown
in the preferred right-of-way redesign concept for Adeline Street at Ashby BART
selected by the City Council (see section C below for more details). The
connection could become part of the future plaza and/or development. The
source of funding for this aspect of the future TOD is still under negotiation and
includes identifying grant funding.

5. A reparative community benefits fund for South Berkeley. Beyond
construction of the TOD project itself, the Ashby BART TOD project can play a
deeper role in repairing and reversing the intergenerational harm generated by
the displacement of homes and businesses as a result of construction of the
Ashby BART station. Equitable Black Berkeley has been central in shaping the
proposal that a portion of the revenue generated from the future development
project must be dedicated to a fund to be used for and by the greater South
Berkeley community. A community advisory committee or similar body would
direct the expenditure of the funds. The source of funding for this benefit is still
subject to negotiation.

There are also other project elements under discussion which would be included in
the future solicitation(s) for developer teams where prospective teams would be
encouraged to use their creativity and expertise to include in their project proposals,
such as:

e An accessible gymnasium on the east parking lot (to the west of Adeline
Street and the Ed Roberts Campus), complementary to existing service
providers for persons with disabilities;

e Development that interfaces directly with Adeline Street to the greatest extent
possible in additional locations other than the southern portion of the west
parking lot (in a manner that meets BART’s station operations and BART and
the City’s life safety requirements);

e Additional publicly accessible civic space, green space or other amenities.

The City and BART have also been discussing other aspects of the project and have
reached agreement or are nearing agreement on:

e A two-part developer solicitation process. Due in part to the additional

complexity to develop the Ashby BART station site, the solicitation process
must consist of a two-part process that includes a request for developer

Page 5 Pa@eg@e



PRpy e (G aff 1124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

qualifications, followed by a request for proposals from a short-list of
respondents.

e Incorporation of the public artwork by Mildred Howard that was recently
commissioned by the City of Berkeley (with the specific location subject to
consultation with the artist).

e An interpretive display that satisfies Cultural Resources Mitigation Measure
CR-1 in the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations Transit-Oriented
Development (TOD) Zoning Project EIR.#

C. Ashby BART Station Infrastructure and Operations and Future Development

The Adeline Corridor Specific Plan and the JVP identify a goal to create an at-grade
connection between Adeline Street and the planned development on the west
parking lot. On April 20, 2023 BART held a community meeting to present
information about Ashby BART station operation and infrastructure needs and how
that impacts the connection of the future TOD to Adeline Street.5 BART staff
presented information about the design process and constraints that led to the
current configuration of the new Traction Power Substation (TPSS) planned for the
Ashby Station.® BART staff presented the maintenance, access, and clearance
requirements for any development on top of or adjacent to the substation
(Attachment 1).

BART staff also presented conceptual studies for opportunities for TOD to connect
directly to Adeline Street, given safety and operational constraints. Based on
information available at this time, the opportunities to connect to future development
on the west parking lot to connect to Adeline Street appear to be most constrained in
the northern two-thirds of the Adeline Street frontage due to the requirements of the
TPSS and safety requirements related to station egress. As noted above, the
preferred right-of-way redesign concept for Adeline Street at Ashby BART selected
by the City Council included the potential for an expanded plaza at the southern end
of the western parking lot. It is anticipated that the future solicitation(s) for developer
teams will invite teams to propose creative solutions to maximize opportunities to
connect to Adeline Street while still maintaining BART’s safety and operational
requirements for the Ashby station.

4 https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-07-06%20MMRP. pdf

5 Presentation from BART’s 4/20/23 community meeting is available at:
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/23 0420 Ashby Presentation.pdf

6 BART runs trains using electrical power provided by Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), which in-turn
supplies to over one hundred substations throughout the system that convert electricity to the voltage
required to propel BART cars. These substations exist in all kinds of communities throughout the BART
system. A traction power substation also exists at the North Berkeley BART station at the southeast
corner of the intersection of Acton and Virginia Streets.

Page 6 PBggel 00


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-07-06%20MMRP.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/23_0420_Ashby_Presentation.pdf

PRpy ¢ (G aff 1124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

D. Additional Funding Sources for Affordable Housing and/or Infrastructure

The City and BART recognize that to achieve mutual goals for TOD at the Ashby
BART station area, additional funding will need to be identified and secured beyond
what the development project can provide to support desired levels of affordable
housing, the redesign of Adeline Street, support for the Berkeley Flea Market and
other community benefits. City and BART staff are seeking grant and other funding
opportunities on an on-going basis. At this juncture, City and BART staff have
submitted and/or been awarded the following:

e In 2020 BART secured major grants from Caltrans and the Federal Transit
Administration to support planning for TOD, providing approximately
$1,700,000 for work specifically targeting Berkeley BART station area TOD
projects, including affordable housing finance and economic analysis, station
access planning, and community engagement.

e In June 2023, the City was awarded a $600,000 grant from the Alameda
County Transportation Commission to further refine the preferred concept for
redesign of Adeline Street at Ashby BART station.

e In May 2023, BART and the City submitted an application to the State of
California’s 2021 Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP) 2.0 for the
Affordable Housing Predevelopment Loan Fund and City of Berkeley
Community Benefits Fund.”

e In June 2023, the City nominated the Ashby and the North Berkeley BART
Station Areas for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission/Association of
Bay Area Governments’ Priority Site Pilot Program (which provides regional
predevelopment funding).

Advancing TOD at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART stations is a Strategic Plan
Priority, advancing our goals to:

e Create affordable housing and housing support service for our most
vulnerable community members.

7 As part of the required application process, the City Council adopted Resolution 70,687-N.S. on January
31, 2023 to authorize the City Manager to execute a grant agreement with the California Housing and
Community Development Department should BART and the City be awarded the grant. The application
includes $10 million for BART to create a predevelopment loan fund to help BART partner with local
community development organizations who work in Disadvantaged Communities and often lack the
working capital to finance predevelopment work themselves. The application also includes $1 million to
the City of Berkeley to set up its first Enhanced Infrastructure Financing District (EIFD) in the Ashby BART
station area in order to increase the number of affordable residential homes in the Ashby TOD project and
provide a revenue stream to provide investment in the community that surrounds the Ashby BART
station.

Page 7 PBggel 10



PRpy ¢ (F aff 1124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

e Champion and demonstrate social and racial equity.

e Be a global leader in addressing climate change, advancing environmental
justice, and protecting the environment.

BACKGROUND

Spurred by the passage of Assembly Bill 2923, the City and BART have been closely
collaborating for the past few years to advance TOD at the Ashby and North Berkeley
BART station areas. A first set of key milestones outlined in the March 2020 MOU
between BART and the City of Berkeley were completed in June 2022. These
milestones included:

e Reservation of $53 million of City Affordable Housing Funding for the North
Berkeley and Ashby BART Sites. The City Council approved a reservation of
$53 million in City affordable housing funds to support at least 35% of the
housing units proposed at each of the stations being deed-restricted low, very
low and/or extremely low-income affordable housing.

e New zoning and General Plan amendments consistent with Assembly Bill
2923. Zoning for the Ashby and North Berkeley BART station areas was
amended to be consistent with AB 2923. The zoning amendments established a
new Residential - BART Mixed Use (R-BMU) zoning district and amended the
Zoning Map to apply the new R-BMU zoning district to the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART sites. General Plan amendments added a new land use
classification (the Ashby/North Berkeley BART Transit-Oriented Development)
and the General Plan was updated for the Ashby and North Berkeley BART sites.

e City and BART Joint Vision and Priorities for Transit-Oriented Development
at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station (“JVP”). The JVP was
informed by an 18-month community process that included public meetings with
a Council-appointed Community Advisory Group and the community at-large.
The JVP builds on the framework provided by the City and BART’s adopted
plans, policies and regulations, and the additional land use, site planning and
financial feasibility studies undertaken as part of this planning process. The JVP
is organized around five key topics: Affordable Housing, Public and Civic Space,
Land Use, Building Form, and Station Access, and is incorporated into the City
and BART Memorandum of Agreement (See Referenced Links: June 2022 MOA,
Exhibit C). The JVP was adopted by both the City Council and the BART Board
of Directors in June 2022.

Page 8 PBggel 12



PRpyéBaff 1124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

e City and BART Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”). The June 2022 MOA
clarifies the processes that BART and/or the City will pursue to develop BART-
owned property at North Berkeley BART Station and includes a timeline for
pending actions related to the Ashby BART site.

Completion of these milestones enabled BART to issue a Request for Qualifications for
developer teams and the City to issue a Notice of Funding Availability for the North
Berkeley BART Station Area in July 2022. On December 1, 2022, the BART Board of
Directors approved the selection of a development team to build housing at the North
Berkeley BART station site. The team comprises lead nonprofit developer BRIDGE,
nonprofit development partners East Bay Asian Local Development Corporation
(EBALDC) and Insight Housing (formerly Berkeley Food and Housing Project), and
market-rate developer Avalon Bay Communities. As outlined in the June 2022 MOA, the
City initiated a process to develop Objective Design Standards (ODS) for the North
Berkeley BART site in November 2022. Staff is anticipating bringing draft ODS to the
Council in November/December 2023.

In addition, in November 2022, the City Council completed a milestone in the June 2022
MOA related to the Ashby BART station area.8 On November 29, 2022, the City Council
selected a preferred concept to redesign the Adeline Street right-of-way at Ashby BART
(between Ashby Avenue and Martin Luther King Jr. Way) in order to improve safety and
access, and to create a new public plaza that would serve as the new permanent home
for the Berkeley Flea Market.® The Council adopted a resolution to authorize the City
Manager to direct staff to proceed with the preliminary engineering and detailed
engineering design based on the recommended conceptual design with Two-Lane
Adeline option as the conceptual, pending identification of funding. Redesigning Adeline
Street at Ashby BART supports future housing development plans for the Ashby BART
station by designing future plaza space that could accommodate the needs of the
Berkeley Flea Market that currently utilizes the parking lot (west of Adeline Street).

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Creating equitable, transit-oriented mixed-use development that includes affordable
housing and housing support services for Berkeley’s most vulnerable community
members is a City Strategic Plan goal, which also helps advance the environmental
goals of being a global leader in addressing climate change, advancing environmental
justice, and protecting the environment.

8 In addition to the June 2022 MOA, a Council Budget Referral (Feb. 2020) and a recommendation from
the Adeline Corridor Specific Plan (Dec. 2020) also identified studying potential reconfigurations of
Adeline Street to increase safety and opportunities for public space as a priority.

9 11/29/22 City Council Meeting, Item 15: Adeline Street at Ashby BART Conceptual Design:
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-
29%201tem%2015%20Adeline%20Street%20at%20Ashby%20BART.pdf

Page 9 PBggel 12


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-29%20Item%2015%20Adeline%20Street%20at%20Ashby%20BART.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-29%20Item%2015%20Adeline%20Street%20at%20Ashby%20BART.pdf

PRggel 00 of 124

Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

Following further negotiation meetings between the City and BART, it is anticipated that
staff will return to Council in Fall 2023 with proposed amendments to the City and
BART’s June 2022 Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), as well as related agreements
and documentation in order to advance solicitation of developer(s) for the Ashby BART
station area.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

There are a variety of potential fiscal impacts to the City related to Ashby BART TOD,
including the allocation of affordable housing funding, capital expenditures related to
Adeline Street roadway reconfiguration, and operational costs related to on-street
parking management adjacent to the stations. The actions for possible future
consideration by the City Council do not result in direct fiscal impacts, since future
funding commitments will return to Council for action. Staff will provide more detail
about these potential fiscal impacts in advance of possible future actions.

CONTACT PERSON
Alisa Shen, Principal Planner, Planning Department, (510) 981-74009.

Links to Referenced Documents:

1: June 2022 City and BART Memorandum of Agreement for Transit-Oriented
Development at the Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station Areas:
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/UpdatedMOA%20North%20Berkele
y-Ashby%20TOD%2005.16.23.pdf

Attachment:
1: Ashby Substation Access and Clearance Requirements, BART Memorandum, March
15, 2023.

Page 10 PBggel 13


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/UpdatedMOA%20North%20Berkeley-Ashby%20TOD%2005.16.23.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/UpdatedMOA%20North%20Berkeley-Ashby%20TOD%2005.16.23.pdf

PRggei10 of 124
ATTACHMENT 1

Ashby Substation Access and Clearance Requirements

Summary: This document summarizes the design process and constraints that led to the current
configuration of the new Traction Power Substation (TPSS) planned for the Ashby
Station. BART understands a desire exists to create an at grade-connection between
Adeline Street and the planned development on the western surface parking lot, so this
document also aims to outline the maintenance, access, and clearance requirements for
any development on top of or adjacent to the substation.

Background:  BART runs trains using electrical power provided by Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E),
which in-turn supplies to over one hundred substations throughout the system that
convert electricity to the voltage required to propel BART cars. These substations exist
in all kinds of communities throughout the BART system and are not unique to South
Berkeley.

Substation improvements are part of a systemwide effort allowing BART to provide
more frequent and timely service and to upgrade and replace aging infrastructure.
Measure RR was an approved 2016 bond measure that includes funds to rebuild
substations. New substations are included in the Core Capacity program which is
partially funded by the Federal government. The construction schedule of the
substations has been impacted by the pandemic and ensuing price escalation.

Current Design: BART street level facilities allows for more efficient maintenance and emergency access
to the traction power equipment, and makes replacing the equipment much less
complicated and expensive. The at-grade preference is being pursued at Ashby
Passenger Station (Alternative #3), but it is worth noting that BART considered three
alternatives at the location:

1. Installing the substation within the footprint of the existing underground
facility.

2. Building the Alternating Current (AC) and Direct Current (DC) houses in one
large facility adjacent to the existing TPSS

3. Separating the AC and DC houses in a narrower facility adjacent to the
existing TPSS.

The first alternative was eliminated because the space couldn’t accommodate the new
equipment needed for a modern power system. The second alternative eliminated the
accessible path to the station at the corner of Adeline St. and Ashby Ave.

The third alternative was ultimately selected because it was most cost effective, and
most efficient to maintain.

The following sections detail the access needs that were incorporated into the current
design and must be merged into any buildings adjacent to or over the planned
substation at the Ashby Passenger Station.

Page 10of4
March 15, 2023

PBggel 18



PRggei12 of 124

Ashby Substation Access and Clearance Requirements

Access Requirements

1. Vehicular Access:

a. A minimum of 6 unobstructed parking spaces directly adjacent the facility must be
provided for BART service trucks and vans.

b. Access to the substation must be provided by specified entrance and exit points, as well
as turnarounds for cranes and emergency vehicles must be provided. As required by the
California Building Code requirement for Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) lanes.

c. These access points will need to be exclusive to BART and first responders, and that they
are separated by bollards.

2. Crane Access: Cranes with a rating axis between 80 and 800-tons must be able to access the
facility and manipulate these transformers. This requires the following:

a. A clear width of 30 feet for a crane, with an additional 5 feet-clear on both sides to
accommodate outriggers.

b. Aclear length of 175-feet to accommodate a 60-foot crane, the equipment trailer, and
working clearances around and between vehicles.

c. Any cover over the Ashby TPSS must allow a crane to be staged next to the facility to
extend a lifting boom and attached hoisting into the substation, lift it above the wall
surrounding the facility, and place it onto a flatbed or carrier vehicle. Figure 1 shows the
working range of a crane BART has identified as capable of lifting all substation
equipment. Any development over the substation must accommodate the vertical space
necessary to support the operating radius of a capable crane.

d. The clearance between the Ashby TPSS and any development must also provide
adequate space for replacing electrical equipment. Airspace must be provided to
accommodate the hoist and swing of equipment capable of lifting a minimum of 60,000
pounds as refer in Figures 1 & 2. Figures 1 & 2 illustrate the dimensions of equipment
known to be capable of meeting BART’s maintenance needs.

3. Staging Requirements:

a. Asecure laydown area of at least 43’ x 36’ must be included adjacent to the substation
to store equipment.

b. An additional area must be reserved to accommodate three trailers housing a
temporary substation. The average trailer measures 38’ Lx 9" W x 14’ H, so 1,200 square
feet (trailers situated end-end-end) or 1,350 sq ft (trailers situated side-side-by side)
adjacent to the substation will be required in the event the substation fails. All areas
would be off-limits to the public, would need to comply with all applicable building code
requirements, and must always be accessible by BART maintenance staff and first
responders.

Page 2 of 4
March 15, 2023

PBggel 16



PRggei12 of 124

Ashby Substation Access and Clearance Requirements

Fire and Life Safety Requirements

This document does not preclude those requirements mandated by the California Building Code,
California Occupational Safety and Health Administration, National Electrical Code, Title 24, or any other
applicable local, state, and Federal building or safety codes.

working range - MEGALIFT

142'-19T7' MEGAWING lift

100 —

.--""f!
-
,""_F--- &
150 T
140 - o
J"(-'f-
130 -
/"f
120
10
100
!
/ 4
/
/ / )
£
7 ! 7
/ / /

Haight fram the ground in Tesi

aa

a0
!

70 /

a0 .- f’ | / ,. /’ ,f:

40
a0

20

20 180 1BD 170 180 150 140 130 120 110 400 20 B0 7TD 80 S0 £0 30 20 10 0

Cyperating radius in feat from axs of rotation

Figure 1: Typical Crane Operating Radius
Page 3 of 4

March 15, 2023

PBggel 18



PRggei18 of 124

Ashby Substation Access and Clearance Requirements

4 e
i::}n;l (5;’ us/ml?”:m Crane, Trailer/Flat-bed,
) . E=Ssgnea Maintenance Access, &
£ ) ANDSCARE LARCSEAPE BEG CMU WALL
KEﬁm)' MEDIAN MEDILAN :'ﬂ:ﬁ:ﬁ Work Clearance
i BEG CMU WALL 175-feet ) _‘_:j:]u!ml;.-e \
N = 2138157, -fee | _HAIN Al
Y | E= 60s0735 % - ™ ﬁ:‘m .
F - Staging Area
- 4T -
Crane w® I-—*IL P {min.)
. Syl : H
ol Trailer / Flat-bed I T
] . 1z (N) BART
L J ¢ Facility
I
b " 1 = = - o
T RRPETE O ELDN OREIEMIRTEN R A u'-iﬁ = | | |
AL e e e "/,’ e ’/_ :
/’- I, - L .l' ,’
o o & ¥ ‘“'H-,‘ ""
# F - # 7 EE 5( AT
y s /7{ Xy ) # £ / -
e S S S LA

Figure 2: Typical layout of Crane and Trailer at High Voltage (HV) Substation
N.T.S

Page 4 of 4
March 15, 2023

PBggel 18



PaBagl4 of 424

arer 02

- Worksession Item

Office of the City Manager
WORKSESSION

July 18, 2023
(Continued from November 29, 2022)

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Liam Garland, Director, Public Works

Subject: City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations

SUMMARY

This report provides an overview of the parking management programs and policies the
City of Berkeley will use to manage parking demand around the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART stations as new housing is built. In residential areas, the City will
evaluate new resident and/or Council initiated requests to join the Residential
Preferential Parking (RPP) Program. In commercial areas, the City will consider the use
of demand-responsive pricing to generate parking availability for local customers and/or
accommodate some BART parking demand under the goBerkeley program.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

BART’s planned housing at the Ashby and North Berkeley stations is expected to
significantly affect parking conditions around the stations. While BART has been
conducting a planning process for station access needs—the Berkeley-El Cerrito
Corridor Access Plan (BECCAP)! with anticipated completion in Winter 2022/23 —the
City seeks to mitigate future parking demand using existing parking programs, including
the Residential Preferential Parking (RPP) Program in residential areas and goBerkeley
demand-responsive pricing in commercial areas.

Planned Changes to Parking Supply and Demand

As part of the new housing developments, BART will not provide 100% replacement of
existing BART rider parking spaces. After BART presented recommended BART rider
parking maximums for the two stations to the BECCAP Advisory Committee and
Community in March 2022, 2 in June 2022, the BART Board approved a maximum of
85 rider parking spaces (16% of the current 535 spaces) for Ashby and 200 rider
parking spaces (29% of the current 700 spaces, including 80 spaces in the two auxiliary
lots) for North Berkeley).2 Based on the analysis and outreach from the BECCAP, BART
expects that those who historically parked at the two stations will: 1) walk, bike, bus or

' BECCAP Project website: http://bit.ly/3ANSm6C1
2 BECCAP Advisory Committee/Community Meeting, March 9, 2022, p. 22: https://bit.ly/3BTdR2W
3 BART Board Meeting, June 9, 2022: https://bit.ly/3DTT8gK

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Pnge1 18
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.infos
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
http://bit.ly/3NSm6C1
https://bit.ly/3BTdR2W
https://bit.ly/3DTT8gK
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
Worksession Item


PaBagi8 of 424

City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

rideshare to access BART, 2) work from home, or 3) park at Downtown Berkeley
parking garages or other off-street options.* Yet, there may still be spillover parking into
surrounding neighborhoods. Note: BART has not determined the final amount of on-site
rider parking at the two stations. The final parking number will be determined after the
future development teams advance design together with the community, and BART, the
City and the Developer teams have a better understanding of funding opportunities for
access/parking improvements, design considerations, and community benefit tradeoffs.

The amount of on-site parking for residents at the new housing developments is still
under consideration. Regardless, per City policy, residents of the new developments will
not be eligible for RPP permits and could seek parking on nearby residential streets.

Managing Parking in Residential Areas

Residential parking in the immediate vicinity of the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
stations is within the boundaries of the RPP Program, though the number of streets that
have “opted-in” to the Program, i.e., streets that are signed and enforced for RPP time
limit restrictions, vary between the two stations.® The City expects resident-initiated opt-
in requests around Ashby BART and North Berkeley BART to grow over the next
several years, particularly after new housing is built. Residents may choose to petition
for RPP to mitigate demand from residents of the new housing developments as well as
partially displaced BART patrons.

To accommodate these requests, the City will follow existing guidelines for RPP Opt-
Ins, summarized in Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 14.72.050.6 The BMC also
allows for Council to initiate opt-in requests if so desired. Streets that are outside of the
RPP Program boundary are not eligible to opt-in; Council action would be required to
allocate additional funding for Parking Enforcement staff and equipment to expand the
Program.

Managing Parking in Commercial Areas

Parking on Adeline Street across from the Ashby BART station and along University
Avenue south of the North Berkeley BART station is managed under the goBerkeley
parking program. Parking on Ashby Avenue and MLK Jr Way fronting Ashby BART is
either controlled by RPP, time limits, or unregulated. Adeline Street south of Woolsey
Street is time limited, though the City is evaluating whether to install metered parking in
this area as part of a parking benefit district. There is no parking on the periphery of the
North Berkeley BART site, but this could change with future housing development.

Based on outreach with merchants and/or other stakeholders, the City could convert
existing time limited or unregulated parking in commercial areas or on the periphery of

4+ BECCAP Advisory Committee/Community Meeting, March 9, 2022, p. 23-24: https:/bit.ly/3BTdR2W
5 City of Berkeley RPP Web Map: https://bit.ly/3LLDpDY

6 Berkeley Municipal Code 14.72.050: “Designation of a residential permit parking area”
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/14.72.050

Page 2 PBggel 20


https://bit.ly/3BTdR2W
https://bit.ly/3LLDpDY
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/14.72.050

PaBag18 of 424

City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

station areas to goBerkeley metered parking. Consistent with on-street parking
elsewhere in the City, the goals will be to ensure customer parking availability and
turnover by periodically observing parking behavior and adjusting prices for optimum
availability — 65-85% occupied, or 1-2 open spaces. goBerkeley features “Premium”
zones with prices driven by customer demand and shorter time limits that encourage
turnover, and in the vicinity of Ashby and North Berkeley, could exclude BART patrons.
If there is surplus capacity, some areas may be designated as Value zones with longer
time limits that could be used by BART patrons, but priced to maintain adequate
turnover.

goBerkeley allows the City to be flexible in the face of changing conditions. Pending
further discussion, the City could implement an escalating price scale that starts at low
prices for short stays, but scales up to higher prices for all-day parking, potentially
providing parking for local customers while accommodating some BART patrons. In the
vicinity of Ashby BART, this could provide a new source of revenue supporting a Lorin
parking benefit district.

BACKGROUND

In September 2018, Governor Jerry Brown signed Assembly Bill (AB) 2923,7 state
legislation that affects zoning requirements on existing BART-owned property within
one-half mile of stations in Alameda, Contra Costa and San Francisco Counties.

The City of Berkeley has been working closely with BART to develop the zoning and
site planning parameters that meet the requirements of AB 2923, the goals of the City
and the community, and the goals of BART as the property owner. The City and BART
executed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in March 2020 that established a
framework for development of the Ashby and North Berkeley BART stations, including a
community advisory process and other community engagement; milestones and a
timeline to develop zoning that complies with AB 2923; solicitation of developer(s); and
further studies/planning for the two station areas.?

In June 2022, the City Council adopted zoning at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART
stations that complies with AB 2923. As outlined in the original City-BART Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) and the new Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), the planning
effort moving forward will build upon separate community engagement efforts that have
been underway for several years relating to the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
stations, and other adopted plans and policies of the City and of BART. The MOA
establishes a timeline for milestones regarding the addressing of potential spillover
impacts to parking around the North Berkeley and Ashby BART stations that includes
this City Council update regarding use of existing tools for on-street parking strategy in
November 2022.

7 AB 2923: https://bit.ly/3DYji3m
8 Current City of Berkeley/BART Memorandum of Understanding (MOU): https://bit.ly/3CfJFR8

Page 3 PBggel 20


https://bit.ly/3DYji3m
https://bit.ly/3CfJFR8

PaBagiZ of 424

City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations WORKSESSION
July 18, 2023

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Incremental expansion of the RPP Program to include additional blocks may have a
minor beneficial environmental effect, and may make alternative transportation options
more attractive. A modal shift by commuters to walking, bicycling, public transportation,
or carpooling may also lead to a decrease in greenhouse gasses. However, based on
expansion of RPP to other areas, the “two-hour shuffle” (i.e., moving a vehicle every two
hours to avoid a ticket) may also begin to occur in new RPP areas among commuters
who continue to drive. This behavior would have an adverse impact on traffic
congestion, air quality, and excess fuel consumption.

Parking management in commercial areas using demand-responsive pricing under the
goBerkeley parking program should improve parking management and lessen traffic
congestion and vehicle emissions, as drivers are anticipated to spend less time
searching for available parking spaces. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions produced
by vehicular traffic is one of the City’s 2009 Climate Action Plan goals.

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

The City will continue to monitor parking demand in the vicinity of the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART stations, processing RPP opt-in requests and/or discussing parking
options in commercial areas with merchants and business groups as warranted.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
There are no immediate fiscal impacts. The parking management policies discussed in
this report are baseline programs and the housing projects are still being planned.

Moving forward, each incremental expansion of RPP within the Program’s current
boundaries will incur costs for the procurement and installation of new signage.
Depending on the geographic scope of new opt-in petitions, discussions with the Police
Department’s Parking Enforcement may be needed to verify that existing staffing and
equipment levels are sufficient to absorb the new areas. Expansion beyond the existing
boundaries of the RPP Program will require new staff and equipment.

Fiscal impacts of potential new goBerkeley parking meters in commercial areas near or
fronting the BART stations are difficult to forecast as parking behaviors resulting from
demand-responsive price adjustments may vary. However, as in other areas of the City,
incremental parking revenue should be sufficient to cover expected expenditures of the
program, including the purchase of new meter equipment.

CONTACT PERSON

Liam Garland, Director of Public Works, (510) 981-6300
Danette Perry, Parking Services Manager, (510) 981-7057
Gordon Hansen, Senior Planner, (510) 981-7064

Page 4 PBggel 22



Page 118 of 124

ATTACHMENT 4 arT oF o9
o m
Office of the Mayor Jesse Arreguin
Mayor
July 28, 2023

Dear General Manager Powers,

The City of Berkeley appreciates and values our partnership with San Francisco Bay Area Rapid
Transit District (BART) to pursue transit-oriented development (TOD) at the North Berkeley and
Ashby station areas. The City is unwavering in our pursuit of equitable, sustainable, and
financially feasible projects at these sites that will provide essential housing and amenities for
Berkeley and the region.

While significant progress has been made to advance the North Berkeley TOD, we have not yet
completed negotiations over the Ashby TOD including the city’s option to purchase the air rights
above the Ashby BART West Parking Lot. Nevertheless, | am personally committed to completing
these negotiations promptly, and have scheduled weekly meetings with BART Director Lateefah
Simon to discuss and work through the remaining issues. | fully expect that our agencies will be
prepared to bring a revised agreement before our respective governing bodies in fall 2023 for
review and approval, and to release a solicitation in early 2024 to recruit development partners.

Although | and the rest of the Berkeley City Council are strongly committed to advancing a project
at Ashby station area, there is significant concern recently expressed by community members
regarding BART’s plan to expand the traction power sub-station (TPSS) at the site. At a special
meeting of the Berkeley City Council on July 18th regarding the Ashby TOD project, dozens of
community members—who are otherwise overwhelmingly supportive of the project —
expressed dismay regarding the expansion of this infrastructure in the heart of the South
Berkeley community that will significantly impede our efforts to re-weave the community fabric
that was disrupted by BART construction decades ago. At the hearing, Council members and
community members posed many questions, including the following questions to which we still
are seeking responses:

e When will BART provide more information regarding the TPSS expansion project,
including visual renderings that clearly demonstrate the full impacts of the project?

e Has BART seriously considered the feasibility of moving the TPSS underground or to
another location that is less directly impactful on the South Berkeley community and the
future TOD and associated amenities? What are the estimated costs of or other barriers
to relocating the facility?

e Will BART commit to partnering with the City of Berkeley and community members to
pursue grant funding to relocate the facility underground or to a less impactful location,
such as the US Department of Transportation’s Reconnecting Communities and
Neighborhoods Grant Program?

e If the TPSS cannot be moved underground or relocated, are there other ways that its
footprint and staging area can be reduced in order to minimize the constraints on
development and other negative impacts that it generates?

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 = Tel: 510.981.7100 = Fax: 510.981.7199 s TDD: 510.981.6903

E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info » Web: www.cityofberkeley.info/mayor Page 122



Page 119 of 124

We recognize that BART’s core mission is to operate a public transportation system that is vital
to the health and wellbeing of our region, and understand that the purpose of the TPSS is to
improve the performance, reliability, and safety of the Richmond BART line. Nevertheless, |
implore BART’s engineering and planning teams to use creative thinking to revise plans for the
Ashby TPSS to enable us to improve placemaking, connectivity, and civic life at the future
development project. We cannot repeat the historic patterns of infrastructure investments that
disproportionately divide and impact low-income communities and people of color. Additionally,
given the City of Berkeley’s option to purchase the air rights for the Ashby station west parking
lot, the City has a fiduciary interest in the disposition of this issue.

| know that BART and the City of Berkeley have a shared vision to promptly deliver an outstanding
project at Ashby station. The City of Berkeley is steadfast in our commitment to work
collaboratively through these issues with you and your team to achieve that outcome. | will follow
up on this letter with a phone call to you to discuss these issues. Thank you again for your
partnership.

Sincerely,

Jesse Arreguin 6

Mayor, City of Berkeley

Page 123



BART

2023

Janice Li
PRESIDENT

Mark Foley
VICE PRESIDENT

Robert Powers
GENERAL MANAGER

DIRECTORS

Debora Allen
1ST DISTRICT

Mark Foley
2ND DISTRICT

Rebecca Saltzman
3RD DISTRICT

Robert Raburn, Ph.D.

4TH DISTRICT

John McPartland
5TH DISTRICT

Elizabeth Ames
B6TH DISTRICT

Lateefah Simon
7THDISTRICT

Janice Li
8TH DISTRICT

Bevan Dufty
9TH DISTRICT

www.bart.gov

Page 120 of 124

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
2150 Webster Street, P.O. Box 12688

Oakland, CA 94604-2688

(510) 464-6000

ATTACHMENT 5

November 3, 2023

Mayor Jesse Arreguin
2180 Milvia St.
Berkeley, CA 94704

Dear Mayor Arreguin,

BART and the City of Berkeley have worked through many challenging issues as we move
forward with planning that will facilitate development of transit-oriented development
(TOD) at the North Berkeley and Ashby stations. We can see the positive outcome of our
partnership in North Berkeley as North Berkeley Housing Partners, the development team
selected by the City and BART, moves forward with its entitlements for a project of
approximately 750 housing units, of which 50% will be affordable. Under the leadership
of you and Director Simon, significant progress has been made to identify project
requirements and community benefits for future TOD at Ashby Station as well as a method
to resolve the City’s air rights option over a portion of the West Lot.

As your July 2023 letter noted, one of the outstanding issues that impacts TOD
development at Ashby relates to BART’s plans for a replacement traction power substation
(TPSS) at the Ashby Station. The City has requested additional information about the
location, design, and potential for underground placement of the TPSS. At the City of
Berkeley’s request, BART has undertaken additional analysis of the following key points:

1. Additional Information Regarding TPSS

As BART moves beyond its 50" year of operations and faces the demands of the coming
decades, the aging system must be brought up to date. Electricity powers BART’s trains.
Without sufficient electricity we cannot operate our system to reliably serve the traveling
public. BART has a systemwide program to upgrade and replace our traction power
substations on most every line, including the substation at Ashby Station. The traction
power substation that is currently in place at Ashby will be replaced as part of this effort to
replace aging and failing infrastructure, upgrade for increased demand, and provide system
redundancy that is critical to enabling BART to provide more frequent and reliable service.
Other traction power system upgrades or replacement locations on the Richmond line
include Downtown Berkeley Station, North Berkeley Station, El Cerrito Plaza Station, El
Cerrito del Norte Station, Richmond Station, and Richmond Yard.

Traction power substations are required throughout the BART system to provide the
needed electricity to power the system. The TPSS location at Ashby Station is critical due
to its important location within the BART system. It serves the Richmond line and also
provides balanced power distribution and voltage levels with the Concord and San
Francisco/Millbrae lines that come through MacArthur Station.

Page 124



Page 121 of 124

November 3, 2023
Page 2 of 5

The planning and design evaluations for the TPSS at Ashby Station started in 2016 considering design
standards, constructability, maintainability, accessibility for emergency response, and minimizing BART
rider impacts. BART considered three options for the layout of the TPSS as shown on Figure 1, below:

1. Option 1: Installing the substation within the existing facility (shown in yellow in Figure 1)
Option 2: Installing all equipment of the substation in one large facility adjacent to the existing
substation (shown in green in Figure 1)

3. Option 3: Separating the equipment in multiple houses in a narrower facility adjacent to the
existing TPSS (shown in red and overlapping part of green in Figure 1)

Figure 1.

=
.
E

e [ e — -—-u-—'—m

e — " e

I

i
uliEl

gl ||J||l_mﬂ

..-.’

f.rf‘
g

113

Option 1 (yellow) was eliminated because the existing underground space could not accommodate the
new equipment needed for system redundancy and BART electrical loads. Option 2 (green) was eliminated
due to pedestrian safety and station access concerns.

Option 3 (red) was ultimately selected because it is near existing infrastructure with access routes to the
system that minimize energy losses and support train motor voltage level requirements. It provides energy
efficiency, access for BART personnel 24/7, adequate space and clearances for maintenance, equipment
access, and it provides the space to build a double-ended TPSS, which is needed to improve system
capacity and reliability. In addition, this location avoids the flooding issues that are experienced at the
existing underground substation location. There are no other locations in proximity to Ashby that can
provide the same level of service.

Construction of the TPSS is expected to last approximately 2 years and to cost approximately $30 to $35
million. To date, roughly $3 million in engineering design costs have been expended to complete the
engineering design for the TPSS. BART is now working to advance to the next phases of the project.

The existing underground traction power substation will be removed after the Ashby TPSS is installed and

commissioned. The existing utility house and pad-mounted switching equipment within the house will
remain in place. We do not have renderings that demonstrate the future TPSS at this time.

Page 125



Page 122 of 124

November 3, 2023
Page 3 of 5

2. Feasibility of Moving the TPSS to another location

During the investigation of the “Here/There” site (see Figure 2) BART determined that the “Here/There”
site is not feasible because its location would result in voltage drop conditions which would jeopardize
the service capacity and reliability to the trains serving Ashby Station as well as other locations along the
Richmond, Concord and San Francisco/Millbrae lines.

Figure 2. Here/There Site

o

U ZP'EEQ Hejelllied | & &
¥ 0¥ #L0Q) ‘eely

3. Feasibility of Undergrounding the TPSS

Placing a substation underground creates an increased safety risk to first responders, maintenance staff,
and others. Underground options would only be considered when there is absolutely no alternative. Only
a small number (less than 15%) of BART Traction Power Substations are underground. A pre-existing
vault space would not only pose the same risks, it would also cost 40% to 50% more than an above ground
option. Also, there is no space in the existing underground vault at Ashby to accommodate the double-
ended design of the replacement TPSS. Additional examination of undergrounding the TPSS would
include design change costs as well as costs to investigate the site for potential utilities and other conflicts.
This additional investigation would be additive to the “expected” 40% to 50% additional cost incurred
when undergrounding a substation.

4. Feasibility of Reducing Footprint and/or Laydown Area

BART has examined several opportunities to reduce the TPSS footprint and laydown area and to address
specific questions we have heard from the City and residents:

a. Can the substation be covered so that there is no gap or wall between the back of sidewalk and
the staging area? Yes, see below.

A cover for the TPSS could be designed and installed, provided design constraints include the
required vertical clearance and air circulation for the area as well as designated and un-obstructed
maintenance and fire access. The definition of “covering” that we are using here refers to a podium
or roof and not a building. The covering would need to meet current building codes and fire separation
requirements. To minimize impact to power restoration, maintenance cost, and replacement cost, non-
BART facilities would not be permitted on the cover. Maintenance and fire access requirements
include the access to the hatches and/or to any access point that would allow the removal and
replacement of transformers and other large heavy equipment.
Page 126



Page 123 of 124

November 3, 2023
Page 4 of 5

The costs associated with providing a cover to the TPSS, including engineering and design, is not
included in BART’s TPSS infrastructure budget and would need to be funded through other sources.

b. Can the laydown area be decreased in size? Yes, see Figure 3.

The laydown area could be reduced by the size of the access roadway (approximately 40’ by 150°),
as shown in Alt H in Figure 3, provided the City of Berkeley would approve a long-term right for
location of the crane on the Adeline sidewalk that is supported by an engineering assessment. This
would create a significant opportunity to locate the TOD closer to the intersection of Ashby and
Adeline.

The laydown area would still be required for the initial construction of the TPSS. It would also be
used for the on-going maintenance of the TPSS. For example, the laydown area may be needed for
future repair/refurbishment work or replacement of heavy equipment (transformers, equipment
houses). A temporary traction power substation may be required to be operational for months or years
while repairs or replacement of existing equipment is underway.

As shown in Figure 3, moving the crane to the Adeline sidewalk would create a significant
opportunity to locate the TOD closer to the intersection of Ashby and Adeline, creating a stronger
connection between the TOD and existing commercial buildings. In addition, shrinking the staging
area in such a significant manner would minimize the “gap” between Adeline and the TOD and would
open up the potential for buildings to front Adeline south of the TPSS area, pending study of station
access. It should be noted that this alternative must be vetted with Berkeley Fire.

Figure 3. TPSS Access Analysis

Alt 1 | Plaza Loop | Alt H | Crane Area On Adeline

. AT < e 1 g
No building . ¥23 LT __...»$. E __“ - Internal EVA
i o e—— e _SS— " - =

<P A TN <) Crane Access
LAl ————————————————————— | — Loap - :

From Adeline DS

Plaza

| Y Building |
= T fa — located at

corner

i »
ke " [ %
] T | 3
| 1\\ V.,
A A
! . A ' Nl
-~ B % A .
P i ‘?. S 5,
A More sreawiil 3 g L.
\ e Staging and L i
be needed for a L \\ \ e Temparary TPSS \\\ A\
" pedconnec tion % - A= S Separated from e
"8 and planting ) \ i : o PR | Crane acea \ \ e
5 - " 4 - 3 = Y R ==
> " kil ” AT | ,)sf/':_'. o
it g > f 2 \ S -
T gl = <l A o\ " EVA and
1 / - e , // X Maintenance
| - - s \ = - Maint J
- PEN -5 \: ':': - L 5 F Y e \ == = Access
- ’ _ (8 5% DRAFT CONCEPTUAL DESIGN STUDY FOR ANALYSIS

c. Can the existing equipment be replaced into the proposed TPSS footprint? No, not in its current
configuration.

The existing sub-transmission line equipment (circuit breakers and switches) would not fit in the
proposed TPSS footprint. They could be relocated next to the proposed TPSS footprint; however, this
would extend the proposed TPSS footprint by approximately 64’ in length. The estimated cost would
be about $7 million in addition to the cost of relocating the existing stairs.

Page 127



Page 124 of 124

November 3, 2023
Page 5 of 5

BART does not favor this proposal as the greater distance between the tunnel and switches’ new
location would necessitate longer cable connections, greater cost, and additional complexity to the
project.

Even if this alternative could be funded there would be no gain for developable area as this area is
within the zone of influence.

5. Will BART partner with the City of Berkeley in a DOT Reconnecting Communities and Grant
Program?

BART believes that it has responded to the City’s questions regarding the TPSS and provided a pathway
to reducing the footprint and staging area to minimize the constraints on development of the Ashby TOD.
BART would like to move forward with next steps towards a TOD at Ashby Station and not further delay
the project with a future grant application for a potential study from the US Department of Transportation
Reconnecting Communities and Neighborhoods. In our experience, the timeline for these types of grants
is approximately three years following grant award. We cannot proceed with development of the
Circulation Framework, which will be the precursor to the Objective Design Standards and the developer
solicitation, until the footprint of the TPSS is established. Postponing the developer selection process for
three years would delay TOD development and is not advisable given the City and BART’s shared goals
of delivering housing at Ashby Station.

I hope that this information is useful. BART appreciates the City of Berkeley’s partnership and looks

forward to upcoming milestones that will bring us closer to realizing our shared vision for TOD at Ashby
Station.

Sincerely,

Yokt B

Robert M. Powers
BART General Manager

cc: Jordan Klein, City of Berkeley Planning Director
Lateefah Simon, BART Board Director (District 7)

Page 128



Page 1 of 171

/ CITY oF 02

-

Special Meeting Item

Office of the City Manager
ACTION CALENDAR

September 16, 2024

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: LaTanya Bellow, Interim City Manager
Submitted by: Jordan Klein, Director, Planning and Development Department

Subject: Presentation: Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (BECCAP)

INTRODUCTION
This report accompanies a presentation from San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit
District (BART) staff about the Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (BECCAP).

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

At a previous meeting related to conceptual designs to reconfigure Adeline Street
around the Ashby BART station (November 2022), the City Council requested staff to
return with a presentation about the BECCAP (Attachment 1).

The BECCAP, which published in February 2023, includes:

e A proposed set of access and parking management strategies for BART, cities,
and other agencies along the corridor that can be put in place at the time of
construction of future transit-oriented development (TOD) projects.

¢ An understanding of access options that grow BART ridership in such a way that
minimizes subsidies from BART’s operating budget to improve transit riders’
experience while meeting equity and sustainability goals.

e Parameters for determining BART rider parking maximums.

BACKGROUND

In anticipation of TODs on the surface parking lots at BART stations along its Richmond
line, BART initiated a community process to prepare the BECCAP (February 2021 —
February 2023). The BECCAP, funded by the California’s Department of Transportation
(Caltrans) and Federal Transit Administration (FTA), comprehensively analyzed how
residents in Berkeley, El Cerrito, Richmond, Albany, Kensington, Emeryville, and
Oakland, who have historically driven and parked at the stations, could access BART
along the corridor once the TODs are built on the station parking lots. The BECCAP
was prepared in collaboration with the cities of Berkeley and EI Cerrito and with
community input. In addition, a Technical Advisory Committee, comprised of the cities of
Berkeley, El Cerrito, Richmond, and Albany, Contra Costa County, the West Contra

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 Page 129
E-Mail: manager@berkeleyca.gov Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/



mailto:manager@berkeleyca.gov
https://berkeleyca.gov/
rthomsen
Text Box
02

rthomsen
Text Box
Special Meeting Item


Page 2 of 171

Presentation: Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (BECCAP) ACTION CALENDAR
September 16, 2024

Costa Transportation Advisory Committee, AC Transit, the Metropolitan Transportation
Commission, the Alameda County Transportation Commission and Caltrans District 4,
was consulted during the process.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

Although the action has no direct impacts on environmental sustainability, the BECCAP
studies strategies to facilitate TOD and improve access to public transportation, and is
therefore aligned with the City’s climate action goals.

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

BECCAP has been published, and no possible future action is contemplated in this
report. Steps related to future TOD actions at Berkeley BART stations are being
discussed by Council separately.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
Any future actions with fiscal impacts would return for separate Council consideration.

CONTACT PERSON
Alisa Shen, Principal Planner, Planning and Development Department, (510) 981-7409

Attachments:
1: Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (BECCAP)

Page 130



7,

yr ///
w///
/4

“od
N
Ly
AN

W I,
4

i/
77/

Berkeléy

‘, f! 7 ]

Berkeley-El Cerrito

Corridor Access Plan
February 2023

ATTACHMENT 1 Page 131




Page 4 of 171

Acknowledgements

BART Staff

Rachel Factor

Kamala Parks

Tim Chan

Shannon Dodge

Abigail Thorne-Lyman
Aisha Brown

BART Board Members
Rebecca Saltzman, District 3
Lateefah Simon, District 7
Caltrans

Melissa Hernandez
Stephen Conteh

Study funded by Caltrans
Sustainable Communities Grant

Technical Advisory Committee

City of Berkeley: Gordon Hansen, Justin
Horner, Farid Javandel, Alisa Shen, Beth
Thomas, and Dianne Yee

City of El Cerrito: Yvetteh Ortiz

City of Richmond: Denée Evans and
Roberto Feliciano

City of Albany: Jeff Bond and Anne
Hersch (former staff)

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | i

Contra Costa County: Jamar Stamps

West Contra Costa Transportation

Advisory Committee: Leah Greenblat

AC Transit: Nathan Landau and
Carissa Lee

Metropolitan Transportation Commission:
James Choe and Kara Vuicich

Alameda County Transportation
Commission: Colin Dentel-Post

Caltrans District 4: Melissa Hernandez

Consultant Staff

Fehr & Peers: Andy Kosinski, Karina

Schneider, Bob Grandy, Amy Deng, Grasi
Diaz, Susie Hufstader, Gaby Picado-
Aguilar, and Jennifer Ziebarth

Bonnie Nelson

Primus Consulting: Jay Primus

Envirolssues: Layne Ahlstrom (former

staff), Katie DeLeuw (former staff), and
Brenda Martin

Nancy Whelan Consulting: Tina Spencer

and Mary Pryor

BART

132



Page 5 of 171

Contents

Executive Summary

Plan Purpose
Context

What We Heard

Improving Access to the Stations

Implementing the Strategies

1. Introduction

ES-1
ES-3
ES-4
ES-5
ES-7
ES-8

11 Policy Background

1.2 Plan Organization

2. Context

10

21 Shifting Trends

10

2.2 Study Area and Station Characteristics
2.3 Vehicle Parking

12
19

25

Developing the Strategies

4. Recommended Strategies

32

4.1 Strategies Underway

32

33

4.2 Corridor-Wide Strategies
4.3 Station Specific Strategies

38

4.4 Analysis of Strategy Benefits

56

5. Implementation

58

5.1 Local Infrastructure

59

5.2 BART Projects and Programs

61

5.3 Micromobility Programs

63

5.4 Bus Transit Service

65

66

5.5 Regional Programs

Appendices

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ii

69

BART

133



Page 6 of 171

Figures
Figure ES-1: Project Study Area

Figure ES-2: Project or Program Development Phases
Figure 1: Project Study Area

ES-2
ES-3

Figure 2: Project or Program Development Phases
Figure 3: Existing Access to El Cerrito Plaza Station

14

16

Figure 4: Existing Accessto North Berkeley Station
Figure 5: Existing Access to Ashby Station

18

27

Figure 6: Access Strategies by Location
Figure 7: Population Density

31

37

Figure 8: Corridor-Wide Strategies
Figure 9: El Cerrito Plaza Strategies

4

Figure 10: El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Existing Parking Regulations
Figure 11: El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Parking Management Proposal

Figure 12: North Berkeley Strategies

44
45

48

Figure 13: Ashby Strategies

52

Figure 14: Downtown Berkeley Strategies

55

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | iii

BART

134



Page 7 of 171

Tables

Table ES-1: Recommended Strategies

ES-9
26

Table 1: Strategy Categories
Table 2: Evaluation Framework

28

34

Table 3: Recommended Corridor-Wide Strategies
Table 4: Recommended El Cerrito Plaza Strategies

39

47

Table 5: Recommended North Berkeley Strategies
Table 6: Recommended Ashby Strategies

50

54

Table 7: Recommended Downtown Berkeley Strategies
Table 8: Local Infrastructure Strategy Categories

59

Table 9: Local Infrastructure Strategy Implementation Actions

60

Table 10: BART Projects and Programs Strategy Categories

61

Table 11: BART Projects and Programs Strategy Implementation Actions
Table 12: Micromobility Program Strategy Categories

63

63

Table 13: Micromobility Program Strategy Implementation Actions

65

Table 14: Bus Transit Strategy Categories

65

Table 15: Bus Transit Strategy Implementation Actions

66

Table 16: Regional Program Strategy Categories

67

Table 17: Regional Strategy Implementation Actions

68

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | iv

BART

135



Page 8 of 171

Glossary

Agencies

AC Transit: Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District

Alameda CTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission
BART: Bay Area Rapid Transit

Caltrans: California Department of Transportation

CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority

EBCE: East Bay Community Energy

MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission

WCCTAC: West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee
Terms

BRM: BART Ridership Model

CAG: Community Advisory Group

COVID-19: Coronavirus disease 2019

GHG: Greenhouse gas

[IG: Infrastructure Infill Grant

PMC: Parking Management Concept

RPP: Residential Parking Permit

SB 375: Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection Act of 2008
SR-123: State Route 123

TAC: Technical Advisory Committee

TIRCP: Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program

TOD: Transit-oriented development

UC Berkeley: University of California, Berkeley

VMT: Vehicle miles traveled

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | v

BART

136



Page 9 of 171

Executive Summary

BART and the cities of Berkeley and El Cerrito are planning to build 2,000+ mixed-income
homes, retail, and community-serving facilities at the El Cerrito Plaza, North Berkeley, and
Ashby BART stations over the next several years. These developments will ease the region’s
severe housing shortage, make it easier for incoming residents to take transit to their
destinations, and respond to local, state, and regional goals around sustainability

and equity.

Because the planned developments will not replace all existing rider parking spaces, fewer
riders will be able to park at the stations in the future. To prepare for this significant
transformation along the Study Area (Figure ES-1), the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans) awarded BART a Sustainable Communities grant to plan for how
riders will get to/from BART in the future. The Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (the
Plan) focuses on strategies to get BART riders to and from BART stations along the
Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor. The Plan is the outcome of collaboration between staff at
BART, Berkeley, and El Cerrito together with input by community members, transportation
providers, adjacent cities, and regional and state partners throughout 2021 and 2022. The
Plan utilizes analysis based on the best information available at the time given ongoing
changes due to the COVID-19 pandemic (the pandemic). Partner jurisdiction planning
efforts can change over the course of the next few years and the Plan will serve as a
dynamic resource to take future changes and developments into consideration.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-1 137



Page 10 of 171

Figure ES-1: Project Study Area

El Cerrito
LEGEND del Norte

Project Boundary

O BART Station
to be developed

o BART Station
[] Half Mile Radius
- One Mile Radius

-~ Elevation Contour

Sourcos: BART. 2021

Btang e

arkal
TRGIEY
k]
]
o
|
|
= |
5
=1 n {
o |
4 |
“hanning A {
Chan ing Way I'
=
2ol
=
i @
= &
% Wam
i o
L
o8
P
o
o
&

1 Mile

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-2 138



Page 11 of 171

Plan Purpose

While the coming housing developments spurred the creation of this Plan, the Plan process
occurred separately and in parallel with the housing development process. Decisions
regarding the number of housing units and stories, retail uses, and urban design are part of
the station-specific development plans. To contribute to those efforts, which are still
ongoing as of the adoption of this Plan, interested parties may visit BART’s webpages on
the El Cerrito Plaza, North Berkeley, and Ashby Transit-Oriented Development processes.'

The Plan contains a set of 48 access strategy recommendations (strategies) designed to
help riders, particularly those inconvenienced by parking reductions, get to and from BART.
The Plan does not look at access improvements inside BART Stations but focuses
specifically on strategies to get people to and from BART Stations. These strategies are
part of the “planning” phase that projects, programs, and services go through in the
journey from vision to reality; while not a guarantee that they will be implemented, their
inclusion in this Plan increases the chances that they will be prioritized and funded. As
shown in Figure ES-2, the strategies recommended in the Plan represent projects and
programs that BART, local jurisdictions, and partner agencies can further study, design,
fund, then implement in the future.

Figure ES-2: Project or Program Development Phases

*Adopt policies *Conceptualize <Create detailed *Secure money

to support a a project, drawings for
community's service, or
vision program with  or program

*Name and goals and

prioritize objectives
specific *Determine taxes, impact
projects or feasibility, fees, etc.
programs performance

metrics, and

potential

funding sources

TEl Cerrito Plaza:

, Ashby:

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-3

sIdentify service implementing
and operating

components  *Sources are
grants, bonds,

*Build a project *Maintain the
«Start a service  infrastructure;
run a service or

or program

program
*Collect data
and input to
evaluate
project or
service
o

MR Community Input

, North Berkeley:

BART

139


https://www.bart.gov/about/business/tod/el-cerrito-plaza
https://www.bart.gov/about/business/tod/north-berkeley
https://www.bart.gov/about/business/tod/ashby

Page 12 of 171

The strategies recommended in the Plan include options that may result in riders accessing
a different station than they currently use to get to and from BART. For example, the
Downtown Berkeley Station is not one of the stations being developed but it is included in
the Plan because some of the proposed strategies will make this station more convenient
to some riders. The El Cerrito del Norte station is not included in the Plan as a study station
because of its location. However, its rich transit service, bike and vehicle parking, and
planned complete street improvements may make it more convenient for some riders who
live closer to the El Cerrito del Norte station than to the El Cerrito Plaza station.

Context

Data on pre- and post-pandemic ridership and station access were used to design access
strategies and to inform parking replacement maximums at the stations. The pandemic has
shifted commuting patterns with more employees working from home, resulting in a
decline in ridership particularly among park-and-ride riders who tend to be higher income
riders. Recent ridership surveys showed that a higher proportion of BART riders currently
tend to be lower-income, often essential workers, and use transit and active transportation
modes to access the stations at a higher level than was the case pre-pandemic. This
underscores the importance of providing homes and enhancing access to the stations both
to support riders who have fewer transportation and housing options and to build a
sustainable rider base.

Pre-pandemic access data revealed how many riders would likely be impacted by a
reduction in parking at the stations, as well as opportunities to serve existing and potential

riders with a comprehensive package of station-specific and corridor-wide access
improvements. Less than 35% of pre-pandemic riders drove and parked to access the
stations and well over 50% of those riders are within a 15-minute walk, bicycle, or bus trip.
A detailed overview of each station is provided in Chapter 2.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-4 140



Page 13 of 171

Determination of BART rider parking replacement occurred in parallel with the
development of the Plan. In deciding how much rider parking to build, BART considered
three main constraints to building parking: Cost/Funding, Space, and Design. Building and
maintaining parking is very expensive, especially parking garages. Building parking also
takes up space that could be used for other purposes like homes, community amenities, or
other flexible street-level uses.

The maximum number of BART parking stalls for BART riders (not Transit-Oriented
Development residents) for each station were determined based on analysis informed by
community input and station access surveys, resulting in the following rider parking
maximums:

e El Cerrito Plaza Station: Up to 150 stalls?

e North Berkeley Station: 120 stalls, in addition to the existing 80 parking stalls in
auxiliary lots that will not be developed

e Ashby Station: 85 stalls

What We Heard

Our study accommodated three phases of public feedback, at the following stages: (1)
Define access needs; (2) Explore access options and analyze on-site BART rider parking; and
(3) Refine strategies and develop implementation plan. The project team received input
from hundreds of community members, partner jurisdictions and agencies, and elected
officials through multiple engagement forums as summarized below.

2 Although 250 stalls were originally adopted by the BART Board, more information regarding funding certainty and
updated analysis on design tradeoffs has since become available for El Cerrito Plaza given that planning for this station
development is further advanced than the Berkeley stations.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-5 141



Page 14 of 171

‘ 6,042 Unique Users Over three
OOHs

31 Virtual Public Meetings
(Community, Council, Board)

e 3,149 Completed Surveys Over
— three OOHs

~300 Interactions at
16 Virtual Office Hours
and 5 In-Person Events

1,398 Comments and Upvotes
on Interactive Map from first
OOH

~1,300 Email Recipients

22 Social Media posts with about
1,200 retweets, reactions, likes,
shares, and comments over
three OOHs

~200 Website Comments
Received

Participants provided input on ways to get to and from BART through transit, bicycle, and
walking improvements, among others, and relayed concerns and ideas around rider
parking. Comments received related to strategies being implemented by partner
jurisdictions and other agencies are being shared and discussed simultaneously. Key

community engagement takeaways can be found in Appendix D. Strategies Underway can

be found in Appendix E and proposed Parking Management Concepts for the Cities of El

Cerrito and Berkeley can be found in Appendix F and Appendix G. Input provided through

the Plan’s engagement events informed the development of the strategies and helped to

refine the recommended list of strategies.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-6

BART

142



Page 15 of 171

Improving Access to the Stations

Hundreds of strategy ideas were collected through public input, stakeholder interviews,
existing plan review, and discussions with partner cities and agencies. The strategy ideas
were then evaluated to determine consistency with the project evaluation framework
presented in Chapter 3. Strategies that were deemed feasible and consistent with the
goals of the Plan are presented as recommendations in Table ES-1.

The strategies cover all modes of travel and increase station access for people of all ages
and abilities. Station-specific strategies largely contain walking and biking improvements,
some targeted bus improvements near the stations, and neighborhood parking
management concepts. Corridor-wide strategies include more regionally serving
improvements, like transbay bus improvements and transportation education programs, as
well as strategies that apply to all the stations like lighting upgrades. Chapter 4 includes
detailed descriptions and maps of recommended strategies by station.

Many projects and programs currently exist or are already under development to help
riders get to and from the stations. These Strategies Underway are listed in Appendix E.
Highlights include walking and biking improvements along the Ohlone Greenway near the
North Berkeley and El Cerrito Plaza Stations, scooter and bike sharing programs, GIG car
share services, and improved integration between BART and AC Transit services. While
Strategies Underway are briefly described in Appendix E, visiting the project webpage on
the lead agency’s website will provide a more thorough overview of the project or
program.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-7

143



Page 16 of 171

Implementing the Strategies

BART or Developers will be responsible for advancing access investments on BART
property. BART will also coordinate with agencies who are implementing the
recommended strategies to identify funding and financing opportunities and support
efforts to address other hurdles, such as staff resource constraints. In some cases, BART or
a partner agency have already identified funding to implement a strategy. For example, in
2022 BART was successfully awarded over $24 million to support access improvements for
the El Cerrito Plaza Station through the California State Transportation Agency’s Transit
and Intercity Rail Capital Program. A detailed implementation approach is described in
Chapter 5.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-8 144



Table ES-1: Recommended Strategies

ID

Strategy

Strategies Underway

Page 17 of 171

Extents

See Appendix E for a list of Strategies Underway, including lighting plans in El Cerrito and Berkeley.

Corridor Wide Strategies

C-01

C-02

C-03

C-04

C-05

C-06

C-07

C-08

C-09

C-10

c-n
C-12

C-13

C-14

Bus Stop Infrastructure Improvements?

On-Street Improvements for Bus
Reliability
Arlington Late Evening Bus Service?

Carlson / Pierce New Transbay Service?

Reinstate Transbay Bus Service and
Increase Service Frequency?

Education on Existing and Future Station
Access Options

Shared Parking Education

Encourage Carpooling

Financial Incentives for Shared / Active
Mode Use
Electric Bike Lending Library

Expand Bike Parking
Micromobility: Regional Coordination

Context-sensitive Lighting
Improvements
Clipper Cash Promotion

El Cerrito Plaza Station Strategies

E-01

Frequent Bus Service on Carlson Line 712

Bus stops on high ridership routes to the stations
within 1.5 miles, or at locations with high proportion
of vulnerable users

High ridership routes to stations within 1.5 miles

Arlington Ave from El Cerrito del Norte and the
Berkeley Hills to the Downtown Berkeley BART
Station

Richmond Annex to 1-80/Buchanan St on Carlson Blvd
and Pierce St

Gilman St, Hopkins St, Monterey Ave from Marin Ave
to 1-80, and Arlington Ave

Study Area

Parking lots and garages within half-mile of the
stations, Pivot Point Commuter Hub Park & Ride
secure lot adjacent to I-80 at Buchanan St in Albany
Study Area

Study Area

Selection of Valet Bike Stations near BART

BART Stations

El Cerrito, Albany, Richmond, Kensington
(unincorporated Contra Costa County)

On main pedestrian corridors within a 15 min walk
(0.75 miles) from the BART stations

Study Area

Carlson Blvd from Northwest Study Area boundary to
El Cerrito Plaza

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-9

Lead Agency(s)’

AC Transit, Cities of Berkeley and El
Cerrito

AC Transit

AC Transit

AC Transit
AC Transit

Alameda CTC, BART, CCTA, Cities of
Berkeley and El Cerrito, MTC
BART, Cities of Berkeley and El Cerrito

Alameda CTC, BART, CCTA, Cities of
Berkeley and El Cerrito, MTC, WCCTAC
EBCE, CCTA, 51 Contra Costa, WCCTAC,
Alameda CTC, MTC

Nonprofit Partner

BART
Cities of Albany, El Cerrito, Richmond;

BART, Cities of Berkeley and El Cerrito

MTC, Alameda CTC, CCTA

AC Transit

age 145



ID
E-02

E-03
E-04

E-05

E-06

E-07

E-08

E-09

E-10
E-1

E-12

E-13

E-14
E-15

E-16

Strategy

Restore Bus Service on Pierce through
University Village?
Richmond St Bus Service?

Richmond St Biking and Walking
Improvements
Ohlone Greenway Improvements

Fairmount Biking and Walking
Improvements

East Side Bicycle Boulevard
Implementation

Carlson Biking and Walking
Improvements

Pierce / Cerrito Creek Trail Biking and
Walking Improvements
Lincoln Bicycle Boulevard
Central Biking and Walking
Improvements Part 1

Central Biking and Walking
Improvements Part 2
Richmond Annex Bikeways

Expand Docked Bike Share System
On-Street Parking Management

Parking Garage with Electric Vehicle
Parking

North Berkeley Station Strategies

N-01

N-02

N-03

N-04
N-05

Acton Bicycle Boulevard and
Intersection Improvements

Virginia Biking and Walking
Improvements

California Biking and Walking
Improvements

Milvia Biking and Walking Improvements
Sacramento Intersection Improvements?

Page 18 of 171

Extents

Pierce St from Marin Ave / San Pablo Ave to
Buchanan St / Pierce St to El Cerrito Plaza
Richmond St north of El Cerrito Plaza

Richmond St from Lincoln Ave to Fairmount Ave

Ohlone Greenway from northern edge of Study Area
to the border between Albany / Berkeley
Fairmount Ave from Carlson Blvd to Colusa Ave

Norwell St, Lincoln St, Aloemarle St, Behrens St from
Moeser Ln to the end of Behrens St

Carlson Blvd from Columbia Ave to San Pablo Ave / El
Cerrito Plaza

Central Ave to Cerrito Creek Trail along Pierce St,
Pierce St to Carlson Blvd

Lincoln Ave from San Pablo Ave to Ashbury Ave
Central Ave from Ashbury Ave to Carlson Blvd

Central Ave from Carlson Blvd to the Bay Trail
San Mateo St from Carlson Blvd to Central Ave,
Columbia Ave from San Mateo St to Carlson Blvd

Cities in Study Area
Streets surrounding El Cerrito Plaza

On-Site BART rider parking

Acton St from Rose St to Addison St
Virginia St from San Pablo Ave to Oxford St
California St from Hopkins St to Russell St

Milvia St from Virginia St to Hearst St
Sacramento St from Cedar St to Virginia St

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-10

Lead Agency(s)’
AC Transit

AC Transit
City of El Cerrito

Cities of Albany and El Cerrito

City of El Cerrito
City of El Cerrito
City of El Cerrito
City of El Cerrito

City of El Cerrito
City of El Cerrito

City of El Cerrito
City of Richmond

MTC
City of El Cerrito

BART

City of Berkeley
City of Berkeley
City of Berkeley

City of Berkeley
City of Berkeley

mage 146



Page 19 of 171

ID Strategy Extents Lead Agency(s)’

N-06 Parking Garage with Electric Vehicle On-Site BART rider parking BART
Charging

Downtown Berkeley Station Strategies

D-01  Grizzly Peak, Euclid, Spruce, and Oxford  Grizzly Peak Blvd, Euclid Ave, Spruce St, and Oxford St AC Transit
Frequent Bus Service (Lines 65 and 67)? from the Berkeley Hills to Downtown Berkeley BART

Station
D-02  Oxford Biking and Walking Oxford St from Bancroft Way to Virginia St City of Berkeley
Improvements
Ashby Station Strategies
A-01  Ashby Bus Service? Ashby Ave from College Ave to Emeryville Amtrak AC Transit
A-02 Ashby Intersection Improvements Ashby Ave from Ellis St to Adeline St Caltrans
A-03  Shattuck Crossing Improvements Shattuck Ave from Prince St to Emerson St City of Berkeley
A-04 MLK Jr. Biking and Walking MLK Jr. Way from Adeline St to Ashby Ave City of Berkeley
Improvements
A-05 Russell Biking and Walking Russell St from San Pablo Ave to Fulton St City of Berkeley
Improvements
A-06 King Biking and Walking Improvements King St from Russell St to Stanford Ave City of Berkeley
A-07 Milvia Biking and Walking Improvements Milvia St from Blake St to Russell St City of Berkeley
A-08 Woolsey Biking and Walking Woolsey St from King St to Wheeler St City of Berkeley
Improvements
A-09 Regional Wayfinding Within 1 mile of Ashby BART Stations BART, City of Berkeley
A-10  Parking Garage with Electric Vehicle On-Site BART rider parking BART
Parking

Notes:

1. This table only lists Lead Agencies. There may be supporting agencies that are not listed here. Where multiple agencies are listed, ultimate designation of lead agency/supporting agencies
can depend on project type, location, or funding agency.

2. Suggested service and infrastructure improvements are not final. Additional outreach and coordination will be done on these routes during AC Transit’s Network Redesign Process and will
be subject to funding availability.

3. A section of the Sacramento St project, including Virginia St to Addison St, was previously improved as part of the City of Berkeley’s Complete Streets Project.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ES-11 mage 147



Page 20 of 171

1. Introduction

BART and the cities of Berkeley and El Cerrito are planning to build over 2,000 mixed-
income homes plus commercial space and community-serving amenities at the El Cerrito
Plaza, North Berkeley, and Ashby BART stations over the next ten years. New homes will
ease the region’s severe housing shortage, and some of the homes will be set aside for
people with lower incomes (also known as “affordable housing”). These developments will
also increase local economic activity and revenue that BART can use to improve service. To
prepare for this significant transformation, the Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (the
Plan) focuses on strategies to help riders get to and from BART stations. The Plan does not
look at access improvements inside the stations.

The planned housing developments will be built on what are now BART rider parking lots.
Fully replacing all existing BART parking would not align with the goals of BART and the
cities as it would:

e Reduce space and funding available for homes, sustainable access infrastructure,
and other community amenities

e Discourage sustainable ways of traveling in neighborhoods where walking, biking,
and riding the bus are options

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 1 mge 148



Page 21 of 171

e Favor wealthier riders who have more choices in how to get to/from BART stations?

Therefore, fewer riders will be able to park at the stations in the future as fewer parking
spaces would be built than exist today.

Because new Transit-Oriented
Development (TOD) residents at the three
stations will be able to get to BART in a few
minutes, they will be much more likely to
use BART for a variety of trips than people
living further away.* As shown later in the
Plan, building these homes will increase the
number of BART riders overall, even after
accounting for those riders who would stop
using BART because they can no longer
park at these stations.

During the COVID-19 pandemic (the
pandemic), many riders stopped riding BART because they switched to remote work. Those
riders tended to be higher income and be more likely to park at stations prior to the
pandemic. Additionally, most higher income riders are expected to work remotely on a
permanent basis at least a few days per week.> As such, BART’s rider base has become
more transit-dependent, meaning they have lower incomes and less access to cars.® These
new homes are especially timely as losses from remote work will be backfilled with new
riders who have the greatest need for transit and least need to drive, increasing equity and
sustainability.

When redeveloping a BART station with homes and other land uses, BART typically only
identifies future circulation and station access’ needs (such as space needed for pick
up/drop off, details on bus transfer infrastructure, number of bike parking spaces) in the
immediate station area along with the adjacent streets considering the future TOD (as part

3 Riders who drive have higher incomes than those that do not. Source: BART, “BART Station Profile Survey”, 2015,

4 Barajas, Jesus, Karen Frick, and Robert Cervero, “Travel of TOD Residents in the San Francisco Bay Area: Examining the
Impact of Affordable Housing”, 2020,

5> Bay Area Economic Council, “Remote Work in the Bay Area”, 2020,

6 BART, “Presentation to Board of Directors: Customer Satisfaction Survey 20207, 2021,

7 The term “station access” means how people get to and from BART. This means both the act of travel between BART and

home, work, school, or other activities, and the infrastructure that allows all ages and abilities to travel by walking, rolling,
biking, riding transit, carpooling, driving & parking, and so on.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 2 m

ge 149


https://www.bart.gov/about/reports/profile
https://escholarship.org/content/qt1r20w0tv/qt1r20w0tv.pdf?t=qgc879
http://www.bayareaeconomy.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/BACEI_RemoteWork_12.21.20.pdf
http://www.bayareaeconomy.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/BACEI_RemoteWork_12.21.20.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/CustSat2020_Board_fnl_PrintVersion.pdf

Page 22 of 171

of a “Station Access Plan”). However, given that BART is planning to transform multiple
parking lots along the Richmond Line?, this presents a rare opportunity to propose and
collaborate on larger scale improvements to access across multiple stations. Therefore, the
Plan recommends a set of transportation investments (known as “access strategies”, or
“strategies”) for the entire Study Area and further out from individual stations. The Study
Area encompassing all study stations is shown in Figure 1.

While the Plan considers strategies to enhance transportation throughout the Study Area,
a Station Access Plan will still be prepared for each station. The process to create the Plan
occurred separately and in parallel with the planning of the developments. Decisions
regarding the number of housing units and stories, retail uses, and urban design are part of
the station-specific development plans. To contribute to those efforts, which are still
ongoing as of the adoption of this Plan, interested parties may visit BART’s webpages on
the El Cerrito Plaza, North Berkeley, and Ashby Transit-Oriented Development processes.’

The Plan does not look at access improvements inside BART Stations but focuses
specifically on strategies to get people to and from BART Stations. These strategies are
part of the “planning” phase that projects, programs, and services go through in the
journey from vision to reality. As shown in Figure 2, the strategies recommended in the
Plan represent projects and programs that BART, local jurisdictions, and partner agencies
can further study, design, fund, then implement in the future.

8 The Richmond Line informally refers to the portion of the BART system between Richmond and Ashby stations.
° El Cerrito Plaza: , North Berkeley:
, Ashby:

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 3

ge 150


https://www.bart.gov/about/business/tod/el-cerrito-plaza
https://www.bart.gov/about/business/tod/north-berkeley
https://www.bart.gov/about/business/tod/ashby

Page 23 of 171

Figure 1: Project Study Area

El Cerrito

LEGEND del Norte S
Project Boundary
(o) BART Station
to be developed X
©  BART Station N 3
[ Half Mile Radius
_____ : One Mile Radius
Elevation Contour \..\
Sources: BART, 2021 WA
ito Kensin
£
=
o ’
§ >
= SO‘?”O-A‘ve

Derkeley

1S YIUIN

Chann‘{ng Way asene T

0.,
b
>
;uﬂ b
B {
{s -?—5‘3 !
z S |
@ |
kg
L V= y
< B /
£ H
= {
@
@ X
E X
S &
5 &
D &
0Q c}“b

1 Mile @

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 4 mge 151



Page 24 of 171

Figure 2: Project or Program Development Phases

*Adopt policies *Conceptualize

*Create detailed *Secure money

*Build a project *Maintain the

to support a a project, drawings for Start a service  infrastructure;
community's service, or sIdentify service implementing  or program run a service or
vision program with  or program and operating program
*Name and goals and components  *Sources are *Collect data

prioritize objectives grants, bonds, and input to
specific *Determine taxes, impact evaluate
projects or feasibility, fees, etc. project or
programs performance service

metrics, and

potential ‘ P a

funding sources ) Community Input

The access strategies contained within the Plan are projects, programs, or services that will
help riders get to and from not just El Cerrito Plaza, North Berkeley, and Ashby, but also
Downtown Berkeley Station. While Downtown Berkeley Station is not being developed, it
is included in the Plan because some of the proposed access strategies will make this
station the most convenient to access for people who currently access one of the other
three stations. El Cerrito del Norte is also a nearby station that is not included in the Plan as
a study station. El Cerrito del Norte Station serves as a nearby regional transit hub with
existing rich transit service and planned complete street improvements.” Due to El Cerrito
del Norte’s existing transit service and safe street improvements, the station may be more
convenient for some riders to access BART than El Cerrito Plaza.

The strategies cover all modes of travel and increase station access for people of all ages
and abilities. Some strategies will provide places to park outside of the BART station area
while others will improve ways that people—including those who currently park—can get
to and from the stations without needing to drive (such as by walking, rolling, bicycling, or
bus).

Many projects and programs currently exist or are already under development to help
riders get to and from the stations. These Strategies Underway are listed in Appendix E.
Highlights include walking and biking improvements along the Ohlone Greenway near the

0 City of El Cerrito, “El Cerrito del Norte TOD Complete Streets Improvement Project”, 2021,

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 5

ge 152


https://www.wcctac.org/files/managed/Document/996/El%20Cerrito%20Del%20Norte%20Complete%20Streets.pdf

Page 25 of 171

North Berkeley and El Cerrito Plaza Stations, scooter and bike sharing programs, GIG car
share services, and improved integration between BART and AC Transit services. While
Strategies Underway are briefly described in Appendix E, visiting the project webpage on
the lead agency’s website will provide a more thorough overview of the project or
program.

Many of the strategies are not under BART’s control, such as improvements to city streets,
bicycle and/or scooter sharing programs, or changes to local bus service. Funding for the
strategies may come from federal, state, regional and county agencies as well as possible
sales tax or bond measures. Therefore, in crafting these strategies, BART collaborated
closely with partner cities and government agencies through a Technical Advisory
Committee (TAQ).

11 Policy Background

The state, region, Cities of Berkeley and El Cerrito, and BART have shared goals and policies
for building new developments. In 2008, the state adopted the Sustainable Communities
and Climate Protection Act (SB 375) to increase coordination of transportation and homes
with the objective of reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.

Local efforts capture the communities’ vision for improving options for people to get
around while reducing the negative impacts of driving. These include General Plans and
Climate Action Plans from both cities in addition to Berkeley’s Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans,
Adeline Corridor Specific Plan, Vision Zero Action Plan, and El Cerrito’s Active
Transportation Plan, Economic Development Action Plan, and San Pablo Avenue Specific
Plan. Regionally, Alameda CTC, CCTA, and WCCTAC have participated in the multiple
phases of the San Pablo Avenue Corridor Project as well as MTC’s Plan Bay Area 2050
which envisions a wide array of choices for Bay Area residents to enable travel without

a vehicle.

city of berkeley

CITY OF BERKELEY

BICYCLE

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 6 mge 153



Page 26 of 171

BART has several relevant policies that inform this planning effort.” Most notably, the BART
Board of Directors adopted policies and performance targets in 2016 for transit-oriented
development (TOD) and station access.” They support developing land next to BART
stations for the crucial role it will play in reducing GHG emissions and providing

more homes.

Building TODs near high-quality public transportation produces the following benefits:

e Homes - providing mixed-income homes near key activities while addressing the
regional housing crisis®

e Environment - helping address the climate crisis because TOD residents will have
more sustainable ways of getting around, reducing the average vehicle miles
traveled per resident

e Equity - providing homes in places with jobs and other desirable amenities reduces
household transportation costs

e Community - adding vibrancy to existing neighborhoods

e Ridership - increasing BART use by TOD residents who use transit more frequently
and for various trip purposes than those who live further away

Studies confirm that people who live close to transit are more likely to use it for work,
school, errands, and recreational trips than those who live further away." Building high-
density homes on BART’s land will:

e Create more BART riders in the long term
e Strengthen BART's financial outlook
e Locate the region’s expected population growth more sustainably

See Appendix A for a detailed overview of these policies.

" BART, “Berkeley - El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan Outreach and Materials,” 2022,

2 BART, “Board of Directors: Transit-Oriented Development Policy Performance Measures and Targets”, 2016,

B MTC, “Choosing Where We Live: Attracting Residents to Transit-Oriented Neighborhoods in the San Francisco Bay
Area”, 2010,

14 Barajas, Jesus, Karen Frick, and Robert Cervero, “Travel of TOD Residents in the San Francisco Bay Area: Examining the
Impact of Affordable Housing”, 2020,

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 7 m

ge 154


https://www.bart.gov/about/planning/station-access/berkeley-elcerrito-corridor-plan/outreach
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/B-%20TOD%20Performance%20Targets%202040%20Adopted%2012-1-16_0.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/B-%20TOD%20Performance%20Targets%202040%20Adopted%2012-1-16_0.pdf
https://mtc.ca.gov/sites/default/files/Briefing_Book-Choosing_Where_We_Live.pdf
https://escholarship.org/content/qt1r20w0tv/qt1r20w0tv.pdf?t=qgc879

Page 27 of 171

Fruitvale BART Paseo Before Development

e
=
BE
==
===

Fruitvale BART Paseo After Development

T
e

= ==




Page 28 of 171

1.2  Plan Organization

The Plan is organized into the following chapters:

Chapter 1: Chapter 2: Chapter 3: Developing the
Introduction Context Strategies

Purpose and policy Existing station access Summary of how the
background supporting patterns and parking recommended list of
development of the Plan replacement decisions strategies was developed

at the stations

Chapter 5: Appendices:
Implementation A-H

Chapter 4: Recommended

Strategies

Description of Funding and financing Additional content on

recommended strategies strategies and policy background, existing

and potential impacts on implementation conditions, public

ridership considerations engagement summaries,
and parking management
concepts

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 9 ge 156



Page 29 of 171

=

2. Context

Locating mixed-income homes near stations and investing in rider access to stations are
both critical to help BART meet its adopted goals and to boost ridership. Recent shifts in
ridership patterns that have accelerated since the COVID-19 pandemic reinforce these
objectives. Data on pre- and post-pandemic ridership and station access were used in the
Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (the Plan) to design access strategies and to
inform parking replacement maximums at the stations.

21 Shifting Trends

The pandemic has changed traditional commute patterns and transit systems will need to
get ahead of emerging work and travel patterns to promote sustainable ridership trends.
Remote work and hybrid work schedules are here to stay. The Bay Area Council has
collected bi-monthly survey data from roughly 200 employers throughout the region in
partnership with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission and EMC Research since
April 2021 in order to gather reopening plans and inform transit agencies and
policymakers.™ According to the January 2023 Bay Area Council Survey, only 21% of the

> Each survey was sent through the Bay Area Council Employer Network; a group of over 100 employers who signed up to
participate in the survey. Employers were recruited to participate through outreach to Bay Area Council members,
Chambers of Commerce and Ethnic Chambers throughout the Bay Area, education institutions, industry associations,

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 10 mge 157



Page 30 of 171

employers surveyed estimate that their workforce will return to work at a frequency of five
days per week by July 2023." Employers estimated that nearly 24% of their workforce
would be fully remote post-pandemic. Per the survey, over a third of employers have
already reduced or plan to reduce their total office space in the Bay Area.

By July 2022, overall BART ridership had % of Pre-Pandemic BART

rebounded to around 37% of pre-pandemic Ridership and Parking,
levels.” The amount of rider parking has Summer 2022
rebounded to a slightly lower degree, at 40%

25% of pre-pandemic levels across the three

study stations.” Similarly, parking garages 20%
near BART stations are showing high
vacancies (e.g. Center Street garage has 58%
total average weekday peak occupancy as of
September 2022).® Ridership has been
steadily rebounding through 2022 and BART
forecasts that ridership will increase to 52% Source: BART, 2022
of pre-pandemic levels by June 2023.%°

0%
| Overall BART Ridership

W Parking at the Study Stations

BART is seeing ridership rebound more successfully on the weekend and on weekday early
mornings (before 6AM). As of July 2022, about 32% of weekday riders have returned
compared to over 53% of weekend riders, and 40% of early morning weekday riders have
returned compared to 30% of AM or PM peak period weekday riders..* These changing
time of day and day of week ridership patterns signal a change in demand for car parking
at the stations, which may be more spread out during the day and week (although not
necessarily changing peak commute period parking occupancy).

Finally, rider demographics are changing. At the height of the pandemic in 2020, 51% of
BART riders reported household incomes less than $50,000 a year, while riders at the same

partner organizations and peer-to-peer referrals by organizations already participating in the Employer Network. The
surveys were also sent to a Bay Area Council email list as well as to partner organizations. Each survey had employers
from all nine counties and across sectors; however, the data is not intended to be representative of all employers in the
Bay Area.

6 Bay Area Council, “Return to Work and Transit Employer Survey Results”, January 2023,
https://www.bayareacouncil.org/employer-survey-results/.

7 BART, Monthly Ridership Report July 2022 and trailing 12-months, 2022,

'8 BART, Quarterly Parking Inventory and Spring 2022 Occupancy (updated June 7, 2022).
® City of Berkeley Parking Services (September 2022), “Total” is inclusive of hourly and monthly parking.
20 BART, Monthly Ridership Report September 2022 and trailing 12-months, 2022,

2 Ibid.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 11 m

ge 158


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/202209%20MRR.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/202209%20MRR.pdf

Page 31 of 171

income level only represented 26% of riders in 2018.22 This shift in rider profile underscores
the role that BART must play in supporting lower-income riders who have fewer
transportation options and are more likely to continue work in person. It is now more
important than ever to locate homes, especially affordable housing, near transit for
essential workers who do not have remote work options.

2.2 Study Area and Station Characteristics

The Study Area, nearby residents, and existing riders were assessed to understand how
access to and from BART might be impacted by the planned station developments. Given
volatile ridership and access patterns with the onset of the pandemic, existing is defined as
pre-pandemic conditions.

Figure 3 through Figure 5 provide an overview of pre-pandemic station accessibility and
demographic profiles of BART riders and residents living near the stations, which show that
less than 26% of pre-pandemic riders along the corridor drove and parked to access BART.
Well over 50% of those drive-and-park riders are within a 15-minute walk, bicycle, or bus
trip. A full set of Study Area existing conditions maps and an access assessment of
Downtown Berkeley Station can be found in Appendix B and Appendix C.

22 BART, “Presentation to Board of Directors: Customer Satisfaction Survey 2020, 2021,

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 12 ge 159


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/CustSat2020_Board_fnl_PrintVersion.pdf

Page 32 of 171

[E=] BART Entrance

e your ™8
qutto P&y
g

Area within a mile of the station is a combination of land uses with a mix of
single-family homes and apartments, and regional commercial shopping centers
Equity priority areas, or areas with a concentration of low-income people and
people of color, are located less than a quarter mile to the west and northwest of
the station®
A station of choice for residents in nearby hills of Kensington (unincorporated
Contra Costa County) and the El Cerrito hills
59% of riders have a household income lower than $75,000%
66% of riders do not park at the station, including 38% who walk, 5% who bike,
4% who take the bus, and 19% who arrive to the station by other means?*
34% of BART riders drive to and park to get to the station?

0 Of those, 58% live within a 15-minute walk, bike, or bus trip as seen in

Figure 3.

3 MTC, “Equity Priority Communities”, 2020,

24 U.S. Census, “American Community Survey”, 2013-2017.
25 BART, “BART Station Profile Survey 2015”, 2015,

% [bid.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 13

ge 160


https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://www.bart.gov/about/reports/profile

Page 33 of 171

Figure 3: Existing Access to

20% of parkers come from Richmond or beyond Demographic Profile
L] L] ) O
El Cerrito Plaza Station m Residents m Riders
, ] .
Richmond
' o households
o () O 41% 59%8| making less
Source (unless noted): BART Station Profile Survey, 2008 & 2015 O than $75,000
) . |
. @ A low-income rider is 25% more likely
Station Access 2008 m2015 o © O to walk than a high-income rider.
. O D .
’ 4 y households
40% : O° E{ Cerrit & a 7% 6% that do not
o aza .
30% g have a vehicle
20% olit® o O 1 y /
¢ o ¥ :
. 0 *® @ ® & = 4,  People with
10% ’ Atany Sl a disability
0% o = ’
Walk  Bike Transit Dropped Parked O3
i as%l) 51%0 Peorle
. Berkeley of color
Average Weekday Exits Source: BART
6,000 O Drive-and-Parkers: O] 4 Source: BART, 2015; ACS 2013-17; Residents are defined
5000 — . L . g i as those within a 15-min bike ride (2.2 miles) of El Cerrito
' = 58% live within a 15-min walk , bike , or bus trip Plaza station and not closer to another BART station.
4,000 [
3.000 COVID-19
2,000 Auto Parking Bike Parking
1,000 740 8:30AM 1.4 miles 94 136
0 spaces' lot fill time? median drive/park distance? rack spaces? secured spaces*

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
1. BART, Feb 2020 (Note: As of November 2022, lots are not filling up) 2. BART, 2015 3. BART, Oct 2019 4. BART, 2021

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 14 mage 161



Page 34 of 171

North Berkeley BART Key Findings

e Area within a mile of the station is largely single-family homes with commercial
uses along San Pablo Avenue and University Avenue; overlaps with the denser
Downtown Berkeley Station area to the southeast

e A station of choice for many residents living in the Berkeley hills

e There are no equity priority areas near this station?

e 58% of riders have a household income lower than $75,000%

e 75% of riders do not park at the station, including 45% of riders who walk, 12%
who bike, 1% of riders who take the bus, and 17% who arrive to the station by
other means®

e 25% of BART riders drive and park to get to the station*°

0 Of those, 64% live within a 15-minute walk, bike, or bus trip as seen in
Figure 4.

2 MTC, “Equity Priority Communities”, 2020,

28 U.S. Census, “American Community Survey”, 2013-2017.
2 BART, “BART Station Profile Survey 2015”, 2015,
30 /bid.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 15 ge 162


https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://www.bart.gov/about/reports/profile

Figure 4: Existing Access to
North Berkeley Station

Source (unless noted): BART Station Profile Survey, 2008 & 2015

Station Access 2008 m2015

50%

40%

30%

20%

10% I I
0% —

Walk  Bike Transit Dropped Parked
Off

Average Weekday Exits Source: BART
5,000
4,000
3,000 . COVID-19 —
2,000
1,000

0

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page 35 of 171

10% of parkers come from El Cerrito or Richmond

o ® .

O ] O
O Albany O o ‘ > O O
@ OO O O ’

O o
Q ) ® @ @&
.. + North ol
’ Berkeley e
. (o)
)

7 ] Berkeley
UC Berkeley

e e @® @

e O

Oakland

O Drive-and-Parkers: ° o
64% live within a 15-min walk , bike , or bus trip

Auto Parking
701 9:30AM

spaces’ ot fill time”

1.4 miles

median drive/park distance?

Demographic Profile
m Residents mRiders

households
50% 58% making less
than $75,000

A low-income rider is half as likely to
drive and park as a high-income rider.

] B households
20% 10%  that do not

have a vehicle

&1 ]

! A people with
TR TR 4 disability
0g®
12%) a0%f) PooPe
of color

Source: BART, 2015; ACS 2013-17; Residents are defined
as those within a 15-min bike ride (2.2 miles) of North
Berkeley station and not closer to another BART station.

Bike Parking
230

rack spaces®

218

secured spaces’s3

1. BART, Feb 2020; parking space counts include BART's North Berkeley Active Access Project
(Note: As of November 2022, lots are not filling up) 2. BART, 2015 3. BART, Oct 2019

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 16

mage 163



Page 36 of 171

4 E] Al Trains Tickets
All Trains &IEJE >

Ashby BART Key Findings

e Area within a mile of the station is a mix of single-family homes and
apartments with commercial uses along Adeline Street and Shattuck Avenue

e Equity priority areas, or areas with a concentration of low-income people and
people of color, are adjacent to the station to the west and northwest*

e 59% of riders have a household income lower than $75,000*

e 82% of riders do not park at the station, including 59% who walk, 10% who bike,
2% who take the bus, and 11% who get to the station by other means®

e 18% of riders drive and park to get to the station®*
0 Of those, 81% live within a 15-minute walk, bike, or bus trip as seen in

Figure 5.

3 MTC, “Equity Priority Communities”, 2020,

32U.S. Census, “American Community Survey”, 2013-2017.
3 BART, “BART Station Profile Survey 2015”, 2015,
34 Ibid.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 17 ge 164


https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://www.bart.gov/about/reports/profile

Figure 5: Existing Access to
Ashby Station

to Ashby Station

Source (unless noted): BART Station Profile Survey, 2008 & 2015

Station Access

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Average Weekday Exits

6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000

0

Walk

2008 w2015

Bike Transit Dropped Parked

Off

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 18

COVID-19

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Source: BART

Page 37 of 171

5% of parkers come from El Cerrito or Albany Demographic Profile

® Residents mRiders

(]

5 households
. 50% 59% making less
o 1 ° than $75,000
‘ b WS Seey A low-income rider is 6x more likely to
® X access on the bus than a high-income rider.
®  Berkeley & ~
= . B households
® 19% 16% that do not
- ® have a vehicle
Emeryville L]
° ! : C“;\ ' ' people with
@ : 10% 4% E el
° a disability
0g® :
, 52% 41%f Peore
! 5% of of color

parkers come

© Drive-and-Parkers: from Oakland

81% live within a 15-min walk , bike , or bus trip

Source: BART, 2015; ACS 2013-17; Residents are defined
as those within a 15-min bike ride (2.2 miles) of Ashby
station and not closer to another BART station.

Auto Parking
535 9:00AM

spaces’ lot fill time

Bike Parking
188

rack spaces?®

168

secured spaces*®

1.0 miles

median drive/park distance?
1. BART, Feb 2020 (Note: As of November 2022, lots are hot filling up) 2. BART, 2015. 3. BART, Oct 2019 4. BART, 2021 5. BikeHub, 2021.

mage 165




Page 38 of 171

2.3 Vehicle Parking

Prior to the pandemic, about 25% of BART riders drove to and parked at or on streets near
the three stations where homes will be built. Although some current BART customers may
decide not use BART if they can no longer park at the station, the majority of BART
commuters use transit to access dense job centers because travel times for driving directly
to work are unreliable and transit is more affordable than paying tolls, gas, and/or for
parking in city centers. Therefore, many will find another option to getting to our stations
that do not involve parking or they will drive to another station that has parking capacity
or find another way to get to work that doesn’t involve single occupancy driving that
generates more emissions.

Survey data from the Online Open House in summer 2021 indicated that a minority of
people who drive to the study stations rely solely on driving and parking.® Similarly, a
survey conducted in 2019 for the El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Access Survey Results found
that less than 6% of respondents would choose to drive directly to their destination if
there were no parking at the station.*® Those who relied on parking in the El Cerrito Plaza
survey listed various reasons why, such as running errands, transporting children to school
and activities, living in the hills, and mobility impairment.*” Most BART riders who parked,
however, indicated that they could access the El Cerrito Plaza station or other stations
along the Study Area without parking.*® Some of these respondents may now have the
option to work remotely at least part of the time in the post-pandemic future. These
station-specific findings are assumed to be relevant to all study stations given their
similarities.

BART is committed to building mixed-income homes on existing surface parking lots,
reducing the amount of commuter parking at stations, and encouraging station access by
alternative modes. Reduced parking space numbers should not affect vehicle parking
during evening/night hours as spaces will be less occupied by BART riders when BART
demand is lower. BART will continue to provide some vehicle parking at the stations for
riders who may not have other options for getting to BART but will not continue to
maintain the current number of surface parking spaces to the same extent as pre-

35 BART, “Berkeley - El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan: Summary of Online Open House Survey and Interactive Map
Comments”, 2022,

36 BART, “El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Access Survey Results”, 2019,

37 Ibid.
38 [bid.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 19 m

ge 166


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/2022Mar09_BECCAP_Jul-Aug2021Survey_SummaryV2_0.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/2022Mar09_BECCAP_Jul-Aug2021Survey_SummaryV2_0.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/2.2%202019-05-07%20Survey%20Analysis%20appendix%20summary-possted%20to%20web.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/2.2%202019-05-07%20Survey%20Analysis%20appendix%20summary-possted%20to%20web.pdf

Page 39 of 171

pandemic levels. This priority is reinforced in community planning efforts not only by each
individual agency but through collaborative efforts, such as the Berkeley Community
Advisory Group (CAG) and community workshops in El Cerrito. These BART-city
collaborations resulted in Berkeley’s Joint Vision & Priorities®® for the North Berkeley and
Ashby BART stations and El Cerrito's Goals & Objectives* for the El Cerrito Plaza BART
station.

In deciding how much rider parking to build, BART has considered three main challenges to
building parking, which are cost, space, and design, as described below:

Cost/Funding: Building and maintaining parking is very expensive, especially parking
garages which is the form in which parking at these developments would take. The cost to
build each parking stall is roughly $80,000 in an above-ground garage and $125,000 in an
underground garage (2022 dollars). The cost to operate and maintain each parking stall is
about $1,000 annually (2022 dollars).

Historically BART’s replacement parking for its developments was funded by three
different sources. These are presented below with detail on challenges to applying these
sources in the future:

e City-directed redevelopment funds, which are no longer available because the state
dissolved this function in 2011.

e State and county grants, which are more limited than before and extremely
competitive. With the exception of the Infrastructure Infill Grant (1IG) and Transit
and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP), state and regional programs supporting
transit-oriented development prohibit use of funds for parking. BART may weigh
priorities away from parking for the limited grants that could support the
development. For example, grant funding available for parking could support other
community amenities such as transforming Adeline Street into a safer, more vibrant
space, an enhanced Ohlone Greenway, safer crossings on San Pablo Avenue or more
affordable housing.

e Ground lease revenue from the development. BART's preference is that revenue
received from its developments is invested directly back into the BART’s operating

3 BART Board of Directors and Berkeley City Council, “Joint Vision & Priorities for Transit-Oriented Development for
Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations”, 2021,

40 BART Board of Directors and El Cerrito City Council, “El Cerrito Plaza Transit-Oriented Development BART Goals &
Objectives”, 2021, .

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 20 m

ge 167


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Ashby%20%26%20North%20Berkeley%20-%20JVP%20for%20TOD.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/ECP_TOD_Goals_Objectives.pdf

Page 40 of 171

budget as guided by BART’s policies and priorities to keep the system safe, clean,

and reliable.

Space: Building parking takes up space that
could be used for other purposes, like homes
and community amenities. Building more
parking requires trade-offs, such as reducing
the number of homes built, building larger or
taller buildings, reducing community amenities,
etc. Each stall requires about 350 square feet to
account for the parking area, driving areas, and
equipment in the lot or structure. This means
two parking stalls is about the same size as a
one-bedroom home.

-
>

2 parking stalls = roughly the same
amount of space needed for 1 home*

Parking spaces require around 350 square
feet for the parking stall, driving areas, and
equipment

*|llustrative example: The size of the units for the
development have not yet been determined.

Upper 4 floors are

double-loaded (more
units)

Eﬁﬁ':; v |

[ T
=

},

s — Top of 2-level parking
podium can be a

+-f= & private open space

Podium building with ~620 parking spaces

Building gets taller and
bigger

l4.. . Upper 6 floors are
1‘*""““-:\ w2 single-loaded (fewer
Yl units per floor)

- I'I te

Source: Opticos, “Guiding Design Principles + Massing Scenarios”, Berkeley City Council meeting May 9, 2019

Design: Other design tradeoffs with more parking may include more driveways and less
flexibility for street-level uses (such as retail and residential units with stoops). The more
parking provided, the larger the building size will need to be which means less opportunity
for places for people to gather and kids to play, for example. Less parking also means more

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 21

ge 168



Page 41 of 171

opportunity to shape the building to better integrate into the neighborhood. This may
ultimately affect the desired community-centered feel and vibrancy of the development.

Ultimately, BART’s decision on how much rider
parking to build considers the above challenges
alongside forecasts that indicate that investment in
homes and community amenities at the stations

- would add more ridership than maintaining the
current parking spaces.

BART Rider Parking Decision-Making Process
The process to determine the amount of parking to provide at the stations consists of two
steps, the first of which is complete, and the second of which is a future action.

1. Identify the maximum number of BART rider parking stalls to be on-site at each
station.

BART’s objective in determining the maximum number of BART rider parking stalls
available for BART riders (not TOD residents) was to provide enough parking to
accommodate riders who may not have other options to get to BART.

The data used to determine the maximum number of BART rider parking stalls included
community input and survey data from various station access surveys conducted in
2015, 2019, and 2021. Particular attention was paid to people with limited choices who
would need parking close to the station. The analysis considered pre-pandemic
commute patterns; forecasted remote-work trends; feasible options to get to and from
BART by walking, biking, taking transit, and getting dropped off; and other off-site
parking strategies.

El Cerrito Plaza Station

On October 28, 2021, the BART Board of Directors approved the El Cerrito-BART Goals &
Objectives that included a parking maximum of up to 250 stalls with at least as many
accessible stalls as currently provided. Based on an updated analysis nearly a year after
the Board vote, BART staff defined a narrower range of BART rider parking of 100-150
with the goal of providing as close to 150 parking spaces as possible. This information
was shared with the Community at public meetings that took place in July and

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 22 ge 169



Page 42 of 171

September of 20224, The range provides flexibility for changes during design of the
project. This updated analysis considered the following factors:

e BART Ridership Recovery Trends: Since the October 2021 Board approval of the
BART rider parking maximum#?, more data from the Bay Area Council has become
available showing that surveyed Bay Area companies anticipate that 70% of
employees will return three days a week or less with only 30% returning four or five
days a week.”® BART ridership projections have been revised downward accordingly
and now assume that ridership will reach only 70% of pre-pandemic levels over the
next ten years.*

e City Management of On-Street Parking: Since the BART Board approval of the
parking maximumes, the City of El Cerrito has confirmed support to advance plans
and worked with BART to secure grant funding to better manage on-street parking
within about a ten-minute walk of the station.

e Funding: In July 2022, BART secured a significant portion of the funding for 150
garage spaces as part of a package of other multimodal access improvements from
the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP).

e Design: The Developer advanced site design alternatives which indicated that
providing 100-150 spaces would allow for more open space, optimize the residential
neighborhood, provide more active uses at the street level, allow for more secure
and direct pedestrian access, and provide better wayfinding.

North Berkeley and Ashby Stations

On June 9, 2022, the BART Board approved the City of Berkeley-BART Joint Vision &
Priorities for Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) for Ashby and North Berkeley BART
stations* which includes guidance to prioritize investment in non-auto modes of travel.
During this meeting,*® the Board also approved the BART rider parking maximums:

4 BART, “Berkeley - El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan Outreach and Materials”, 2022,

42 BART, “October 28, 2021, Board of Directors Regular Meeting,” 2021,

43 Bay Area Council, “Return to Transit Track Poll", 2022, .The
survey respondents are across sectors and across all nine Bay Area counties, although not intended to be representative
of all employers in the Bay Area.

44 BART, “February 10, 2022, Board of Directors Regular Meeting”, 2022,

4 BART Board of Directors and Berkeley City Council, “Joint Vision & Priorities for Transit-Oriented Development for
Ashby and North Berkeley BART Stations”, 2021,

46 BART June 9 2022 Board of Directors Regular Meeting, 2022,

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 23 m

ge 170


https://www.bart.gov/about/planning/station-access/berkeley-elcerrito-corridor-plan/outreach
https://bart.legistar.com/MeetingDetail.aspx?ID=900827&GUID=22E5A5C2-66E1-42F8-863B-E169D1F4CAFF&Options=info|&Search=
https://bart.legistar.com/MeetingDetail.aspx?ID=900827&GUID=22E5A5C2-66E1-42F8-863B-E169D1F4CAFF&Options=info|&Search=
https://www.bayareacouncil.org/employer-survey-results/
https://bart.granicus.com/GeneratedAgendaViewer.php?view_id=17&clip_id=1301
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/Ashby%20%26%20North%20Berkeley%20-%20JVP%20for%20TOD.pdf
https://bart.legistar.com/MeetingDetail.aspx?ID=980551&GUID=C21558D3-066E-46FD-B9EA-625A5EA0EDE3&Options=info|&Search=
https://bart.legistar.com/MeetingDetail.aspx?ID=980551&GUID=C21558D3-066E-46FD-B9EA-625A5EA0EDE3&Options=info|&Search=

Page 43 of 171

e Ashby station: 85 stalls maximum.

e North Berkeley station: 120 stalls maximum. The roughly 80 parking stalls in the
existing auxiliary lots will not be developed and will still be dedicated to BART
rider parking, resulting in a total maximum of 200 parking stalls.

Accessible parking will be provided consistent with American Disabilities Act
requirements

2. BART Board will approve the final number of parking stalls up to the Board-
approved maximum number.

The final parking number will be
determined along with the complete
package of on-and off-site access

improvements once the development ltjrpe‘r’]adtseg
team for each station meets with the opportunities
community as they advance design. It | ;
will be based on updated ridership
trends and new information on
station access opportunities, a better
understanding of funding
opportunities for access
improvements, design considerations, *
and community benefit tradeoffs at
each station.

Funding
opportunities

Final number of BART parking
spaces on-site

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 24 ge 171



Page 44 of 171

orkeley-El Cerrito
ior Access Plan

ind El Cerrito are collaborating on
Access Plan and we want to hear about
/1 accessing BART once housing is built
1. North Berkeley, and El Cerrito Plaza
ing lots.

3. Developing the Strategies

Hundreds of strategy ideas were initially
collected for the Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor
Access Plan (the Plan) through public input,
stakeholder interviews, existing plan review, and
discussions with partner cities and agencies.
These strategy ideas were then consolidated and
refined to respond to corridor-wide needs and
the unique characteristics, challenges, and access
patterns at each station. Table 1 contains a list of

the categories under which each strategy falls. Online Open House #1

Interactive Map Input
The context assessment presented in Chapter 2 1.398
’

informed which types of strategies would be comments and upvotes received

most effective in different parts of the Study &% Bike 578 bRl
Area, shown in Figure 6. The station-specific i@ Car/Dropoff 40 ;
trateqi ded in the Pl dt === Parking 66 ) ST
strategies recommended in the Plan respond to @ Transit 230 ;
the characteristics and travel patterns at each #  Walking 357
station. The Plan also includes strategies Other 127 22
spanning the entire Study Area. -

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 25 ge 172



Page 45 of 171

Table 1: Strategy Categories

“Complete Streets” on Provide improvements for all modes of travel on major local streets, including
Local Roads street crossing improvements for biking and walking

“Complete Streets” on

San Pablo Avenue Install improvements for walking, biking, and transit on SR-123

(State Route 123)

Crossing Install traffic safety measures at intersections and mid-block crossings
Improvements

Bikeways Build new bikeways or enhance safety of existing bikeways

Increase secure bike parking options at the stations to accommodate larger

Large Bike Parking bikes

Docked Bike Share Expand number and locations of docked bike sharing stations (i.e. Bay Wheels)

Stations
Dockless Bike and/or  Establish a program for shared bikes and electric devices that do not need to
Scooter Share parked at a dock, including seated scooters and adaptive devices

Establish a lending library that allows people to borrow electric bikes for set

El ic Bike L i . . .
ectric Bike Lending period of time (e.g. days, weeks) to try them out as part of their day-to-day

Librar
y travels
. Encourage, facilitate, or coach riders to understand apps and programs that
Education . . .
can assist them getting to and from the station
Bus Stop Upgrades Install bus bulb-outs and upgrade stops with passenger amenities

Provide free or discounted transfers, monthly transit pass options, incentive
for bus transfer, Clipper cash, or AC Transit’s EasyPass for group discounts
Enhance local bus service to BART, potentially with increased frequency
and/or lengthened service hours

Discounted Fares
Local Bus Service

Transbay Service Expand and increase transbay services for neighborhoods further from BART

Coordinated Transit

Work with other transit providers to coordinate transfers to and from BART
Transfers

Parking Options Places to park a car near transit

Install signage consistent with regional standards to help pedestrians,
Wayfinding Signage  bicyclists, and transit riders connect to major transportation hubs and

roadways

Provide financial incentives to cover upfront or ongoing costs for using more
Financial Incentives environmentally friendly travel options for accessing BART, such as electric
bicycles and buses
Provide context-sensitive lighting' for pedestrians walking to and from

Lightin . . .
ghting stations, at bus stops, near bike racks, and along sidewalks and crosswalks

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 26 mge 173



Page 46 of 171

Figure 6: Access Strategies by Location

O BART Station » Bus service improvements to and from BART
to be developed El Cerrito to serve riders who take the bus (4%). About
. Q 9% of those who drive and park could get to
©  BART Station del Norte J El Cerrito del Norte or Downtown Berkeley
:] Central Core 3 by bus in the same amount of travel time.

* Taking other transit to destinations,
3 such as transbay bus service.
| | * Parking at or near other BART
@ E stations, like Downtown Berkeley.

[T Inner Ring
[ ] Quter Ring

- Elevation Contour
Sources: BART, 2021

C &

iﬁ.“

* Managed on-street parking around El

| Cerrito Plaza Station.
B e

El Cerrito |
Plaza

* Bus service improve-
ments to and from BART
D | to serve riders who take
N | the bus (1% to North
| Berkeley; 10% to
Downtown Berkeley).
¢ Biking or taking the bus

—+* ) |
I
| toanother BART station
|
S

 Biking and walking improvements, particular-
ly on east-west streets, to serve riders who
walk and bike to this station (43%).
2z for those who live closer
to Downtown Berkeley

e

Ohlone Greenway

Solang A e

(& l
—_J\,\’ ] . |
i1 Betkeley g

* Parking near this station by paying for b
on-street parking. |

2 Nl e
= North SN
[ Berkeley \
* Biking and walking improvements to serve = =
riders who walk and bike to this station (57%). £ University Ave )
' & Downtown

I Berkeley

7] 7]

= Channing Way =

= =

* Biking and walking improvements in the
station area and along connecting streets to
serve riders who walk and bike to this station
(70%).

Sacramento Ave

Ashby Ave

* Biking or taking the bus to another BART
station for those who live closer to Downtown
Berkeley, MacArthur, or Rockridge.

* Taking other transit to destinations, such as
transbay bus service.

 Parking at or near other BART stations, like
Downtown Berkeley.

1 Mile @ /

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 27 mge 174



Page 47 of 171

Some access strategies that received public support will be fulfilled, in part, by projects,

programs, and services that are already operating or are being planned, studied, designed,

funded, or implemented. See Appendix E for a full description of Strategies Underway.¥

The final list of strategies was determined through an evaluation process. Strategies that
were not already underway were evaluated against the framework in Table 2.

Table 2: Evaluation Framework

Goals

15

Objectives

1. Respond to Prioritize strategies with

public input buy-in from the public
Increase sustainable

2. Shift to access share

environmentally Improve air quality

sustainable Reduce residents’ vehicle

access options miles traveled looking for

parking

Expand affordable

3. Support a transportation options

transportation
network for
people of all
abilities, ages,
races, and
income levels

Improve universal access

Improve traffic safety

Improve personal safety

Maximize transit
ridership on BART and AC

4. Strengthen
regional transit

ridership Transit
5.Engage in
financially Develop cost-effective
responsible transportation solutions
decision-making
6. Support .

. Advance feasible access
feasible .

. solutions

strategies

Performance Measure
Strong level of public support

Increases in number of people shifted
from driving and parking

Tailpipe and GHG reductions

Maintains access to parking for local
residents

Expands viability of access modes that are
low cost to the user

Increases number or quality of options for
people living in Equity Priority
Communities*®

Increases actual or perceived traffic
comfort and safety (i.e., from collisions)
Increases actual or perceived personal
comfort and safety (i.e., from crime)

Increases transit ridership

Minimizes public capital cost

Minimizes public operating and
maintenance cost and labor
High support for implementation in the

near-to-medium term (10-year horizon)
from identified implementation partners

47 Although some strategies may be “underway” in terms of planning, many may still need support for design and
implementation funding.
48 Equity Priority Communities are census tracts that have a significant concentration of underserved populations, such as
households with low incomes and people of color. A combination of additional factors helps define these areas. Source:

MTC, “Equity Priority Communities”, 2020,

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 28

ge 175


https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities
https://mtc.ca.gov/planning/transportation/access-equity-mobility/equity-priority-communities

Page 48 of 171

Strategies that did not adequately meet the goals and objectives of the Plan were
screened out. Strategies that were determined to be likely infeasible included:

New on-demand service for areas not
currently served by AC Transit: This would
provide more frequent and convenient transit
for residents in the hills and Richmond Annex,
attracting between 20 to 100 BART riders per of residential and commercial land uses
day. However, implementation challenges generating higher ridership demand

include high costs for users, limited funding throughout the day. One-hour bus
sources, and lack of management operators. frequencies are typically recommended for
areas with residential densities lower than

7,700 people per square mile, which is the

case for the El Cerrito, Berkeley, and
demand-responsive solo or shared trips for lower Kensington hills, as shown in Figure 7.4°

L3 |
w : \ h )

Bus and Shuttle Strategies

Bus or shuttle services tend to perform
well in population-dense areas with a mix

Subsidized vouchers for existing on-demand
services like Uber or Lyft: This would subsidize

density areas such as the El Cerrito and Berkeley | 3
hills. However, low numbers of pooled trips can ~‘ ""'

result in increased emissions and the low-cost ill
associated with using these services would be bk |

b
- 8
[P %

v

due to the use of non-union labor, for which

employees are afforded fewer protections.

More frequent AC Transit Line 79 service in El Cerrito hills: This would result in a low
shift from driving and parking riders (estimated as two to ten daily round-trip riders) and

received limited public support.

Safety escort program at the stations: While such a program would improve personal
safety walking to and from the stations, it is unrealistic for cities and BART to permanently
assign police or community service officers given competing priorities and funding

constraints.

“Complete Streets” on Ashby Avenue, State Route 13: Ashby Avenue is owned and
operated by Caltrans, which views this roadway as a crucial vehicle route with no parallel
alternative. Given parallel walking and biking options, the narrow width of Ashby Avenue,
and Caltrans’ priority for vehicle travel on this roadway, it is unlikely that Ashby Avenue
could be reconfigured as a Complete Street. However, intersection improvements near the

4 |nstitute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), “A Toolbox for Alleviating Traffic Congestion”, 1989.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 29 mge 176



Page 49 of 171

Ashby BART station are included as a recommended strategy and the City of Berkeley has
applied for grant funds to study and design intersection improvements.>°

%0 The to fund safety improvement concept designs along
Ashby Ave from Telegraph Ave to San Pablo Ave. Awards are anticipated to be announced early in 2023.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 30 mge 177


https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2022-11-29%20Item%2015%20Adeline%20Street%20at%20Ashby%20BART.pdf

Figure 7: Population Density

LEGEND
|| Project Boundary

O BART TOD Station
O BART Station

[ Half Mile Radius

Population Density
People per Sq. Mile
1,100 - 7,500
[ 7.600-15,000
[ 16,000 - 25,000
I 26,000 - 58,000

Source: 2018 ACS 5-Year

El Cerrito hills, Berkeley
hills, and Kensington hills
have residential densities
of less than 7,500 people
per square mile.

1 Mile (D

Cutting g, q

Page 50 of 171

El Cerrito
del Norte

o K2
K

El Cerrito

Berkeley

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 31

BART

ge 178



Page 51 of 171

4. Recommended Strategies

Strategies that adequately met the goals of the evaluation framework in Chapter 3 based
on analysis, adopted jurisdiction plans, and community and agency input received by
November 2022 are recommended as part of the Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan
(the Plan). The recommended strategies cover all modes of travel and increase station
access for people of all ages and abilities. The Plan includes recommendations that may
come from parallel planning efforts currently in progress or other future plans along the
corridor. While the Plan does not prioritize among recommended strategies, strategies that
are lower cost and already cited in a local jurisdiction or agency plan have fewer barriers to
implementation and may be more likely to be implemented swiftly. The following sections
present strategies that provide access benefits across the Study Area and at each specific
station.

41 Strategies Underway

Many projects and programs currently exist or are already under development to help
riders get to and from BART stations. These Strategies Underway represent both corridor-
wide strategies and strategies specific to each of the stations and encompass walking,
biking, transit, and parking options. Key highlights of Strategies Underway are shown
throughout this chapter and mapped in Figure 8 through Figure 14, including
improvements along the Ohlone Greenway, Gig car sharing, and scooter and bike sharing
programs. To learn more about Strategies Underway, see Appendix E.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 32 m

ge 179



Page 52 of 171

4.2 Corridor-Wide Strategies

Some of the recommended strategies improve
access and mobility across the entire Study Area
or to more than one station, while other
strategies are specific to one of the stations in the PULEKEBAUREICIEAENEEERT
Study Area. This section details the recommended S aieSEel=IEElIsNolgele[ Iyl

Strategies Underway Highlight:

Scooter Sharing Programs

strategies that respond to corridor-wide needs. May 2022 and the City of Albany
Table 3 describes the recommended corridor- launched a similar program in October
wide strategies and Figure 8 shows the locations [FPAPZAZIC Ryl LRI (e LIS ETle 1yl

of the corridor-wide strategies. and seated scooters, as well as e-
bikes, and provides discount programs

for low-income riders, in-app
promotions, and daily passes.
Residents and visitors can download
an app to locate, unlock, and use
scooters throughout the city, making
connections to BART stations easier.
See Appendix E to learn more.

d i i I ¢
=) ; =

Some of the corridor-wide strategies provide
better transit access, while some provide better
east-west bicycle and pedestrian connectivity.
Recommended transit strategies will support
transit connections to the BART stations within
the Study Area or provide enhanced transbay
service. Additionally, some strategies provide
BART riders with educational resources and
transportation coaching to find various
transportation options whether through
carpooling, parking options, or bike share/scooter
share services.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 33 ge 180



Page 53 of 171

Table 3: Recommended Corridor-Wide Strategies

Estimated Estimated 1-
Capital Year Operating
Cost? Cost?

Supporting

Implementation

S Timeframe

ID Strategy Category Lead Agency’

Agency
Strategies Underway: See Appendix E for a list of Corridor-Wide Strategies Underway (C-15 to C-21).

C-01  Bus Stop Bus stops on high Bus Stop AC Transit, Cities BART Unknown $750,000 $100,000
Infrastructure ridership routes to Upgrades of Berkeley and El
Improvements®  the stations within 1.5 Cerrito
miles, or at locations
with high proportion
of vulnerable users
C-02 On-Street High ridership routes  “Complete AC Transit MTC and 4 - 6 years $2,223,000 $10,000
Improvements to stations within 1.5  Streets” on Cities of
for Bus miles Local Roads Berkeley, El
Reliability Cerrito, and
Albany
C-03  Arlington Late Arlington Ave from El  Local Bus AC Transit N/A Unknown $10,000 $485,000
Evening Bus Cerrito del Norte and  Service
Service? the Berkeley Hills to
Downtown Berkeley
BART Station
C-04 Carlson /Pierce  Richmond Annexto |- Transbay AC Transit N/A Unknown $2,000,000 $245,000
New Transbay 80/ Buchanan St on Service
Service® Carlson Blvd and
Pierce St
C-05 Reinstate Gilman St, Hopkins Transbay AC Transit N/A Unknown $10,000 $485,000
Transbay Bus St, Monterey Ave. Service
Service and from Marin Ave to I-
Increase Service 80, and Arlington
Frequency? Ave
C-06 Education on Study Area Education Alameda CTC, N/A Unknown $100,000 $125,000
Existing and BART, CCTA, Cities

Future Station
Access Options

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 34

of Berkeley and El
Cerrito, MTC

Page 181



Page 54 of 171

Estimated Estimated 1-
Capital Year Operating

Supporting

Implementation

[ SUES .
Timeframe

ID Strategy Lead Agency’

Agency
N/A

Shared Parking Parking lots and Parking BART, Cities of

4 - 6 years , 3

Education garages within half- Options Berkeley and El
mile of the stations, Cerrito
Caltrans Park & Ride
lots under I-80
C-08 Encourage Study Area Education Alameda CTC, N/A 1-3years $100,000 $35,000
Carpooling BART, CCTA, Cities
of Berkeley and El
Cerrito, MTC,
WCCTAC
C-09 Financial Study Area Financial EBCE, CCTA, 511 CalBike, 511 1-3years $100,000 $668,750
Incentives for Incentives Contra Costa, SF Bay,
Shared / Active WCCTAC, BART, other
Mode Use Alameda CTC, transit
MTC agencies
C-10  Electric Bike Selection of Valet Bike Nonprofit Partner ~ BART, 1-3years $75,000 $162,500
Lending Library  Bike Stations near Lending Cities, Bike
BART Library Hub, Bike
East Bay
c-1 Expand Bike BART Stations Large Bike BART, WCCTAC Developers 1-3years $500,000 $93,600
Parking Parking
C-12 Micromobility: El Cerrito, Albany, Dockless Cities of Albany, Micromobili 1- 3 years $125,000 $280,000
Regional Richmond, Bike and/or  El Cerrito, and ty
Coordination Kensington Scooter Richmond Companies
(unincorporated Share*
Contra Costa County)
C-13  Context- On main pedestrian Lighting BART, Cities of City of 1-3years $3,000,000 $10,000
sensitive corridors within a15 Berkeley and El Oakland
Lighting min walk (0.75 miles) Cerrito
Improvements from the BART
stations
C-14  Clipper Cash Study Area Financial MTC, Alameda BART 1-3years $100,000 $5,500,000
Promotion Incentives CTC, CCTA,
WCCTAC
Notes:

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 35 Page 182



Page 55 of 171

1. Where multiple agencies are listed, ultimate designation of lead agency/supporting agencies can depend on project type, location, or funding agency.

2. Costs are in 2022 dollars.
3. Suggested service and infrastructure improvements are not final. Additional outreach and coordination will be done on these routes during AC Transit’s Network Redesign Process and will

be subject to funding availability.
4. New developments could potentially include electric charging infrastructure for shared micromobility devices depending on demand and arrangements with private operators.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 36 Page 183



Page 56 of 171

Figure 8: Corridor-Wide Strategies

[ %’
C-03 =y
‘ﬁ
e .
B El Cerrito
* del Norte

Corridor Access

Strategies
Mapped

+ C-03: Arlington late evening bus
service*

C-04: New AC Transit Transbay line
on Carlson and Pierce St*

C-05: Reinstate Transbay

bus service and increase service
frequency*

C-15: Construct bicycle boulevard
C-16: Construct bicycle boulevard
C-17: Addison Street Bicycle
Boulevard Project

C-18: PivotPoint Commuter Hub at
1-80/Buchanan

C-19: Alameda County San Pablo
Ave Corrider Project

.

Unmapped**

+ C-01: Bus step infrastructure
improvements

C-02: On-street improvements for
bus reliability

C-06: Education on existing and
future station access options
C-07: Shared parking education
C-08: Encourage and/or facilitate
carpooling through BART parking
app, 511, and other apps

C-09: Provide financial incentives
for shared and active mode use
C-10: Electric bike lending library
C-11: Expand bike infrastructure and
parking options at BART stations
C-12: Implement and regionally
coordinate micromobility

C-13: Context-sensitive lighting near
stations and bus stops

C-14: Clipper Cash promotion
C-20: Berkeley Street Light
Cemprehensive Plan

C-2%: Transit Fare Coordination and
Integration

.

J Project Boundary

B3 BART TOD Station

¢ City Boundary i BART Station

Access Strategies

Pedestrian/Bike

esese Underway in
Planning/Study
Stage
Underway or
Complete

Transit

mmm= Recommended*
Underway or
Complete

Ped/Bike and Transit

Underway or
Complete

A

1eryville

1 Mile

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 37

- -
dl

sz El Cerrito

.-.0.0-..-...1 c-15 LI TT YT

*The routes shown are not final.
Additional outreach and
coordination will be done on these
routes during AC Transit’s Network
Redesign Process.

**(C22-C33 are a set of private

mobility apps/services that are
unmapped.

L)
+

.
h
£y
1
"
El Cerrito C-0§
C-05

-

-’-¢

Kensington
Plaza

a-mm®

-
v 7
____«¢§~'

L Y J
o Eagd

£
o'
w

Berkeley

buBerkeIey

@]

-
[+)]

H

L Y

S A —

Downtown
Berkeley

af
]

53 Ashby

Oakland

k3 Rockridge

ge 184



Page 57 of 171

4.3 Station Specific Strategies

Station-specific strategies provide solutions that address the unique characteristics,
challenges, and access patterns of each BART station within the Study Area. This section
details the strategies relevant to each station.

El Cerrito Plaza

Access strategies to El Cerrito Plaza encompass
walking, biking, and transit improvements.
Table 4 lists details about the recommended

Strategies Underway Highlight:
El Cerrito San Pablo Avenue Corridor

strategies, their extents, categories, and costs. The San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan
Figure 9 shows both the recommended identifies bicycle, pedestrian, and
strategies and those currently underway.” More  [ACUSISUCEEEIEReTe oLl NI ERRCIE]Y
information on strategies underway can be Pablo Avenue in El Cerrito. The San
found in Appendix E. Pablo Avenue Complete Streets

Improvements Project near El Cerrito
Pedestrian and bicyclist access will be improved del Norte station is currently included

to the El Cerrito BART Station through walking in the City of El Cerrito Capital

and biking improvements. Most of the pedestrian B N I AT EoTe = a1 ale KR 1A AL
and biking strategies are within a half-mile of the BRI HICRS Ie VAl E -0 Xe o 1516 o]
BART Station. Additional crossing improvements  BEY I TTORS i 10]aeg (o] delo)ga) o] (-IA N A AIIEs

at key intersections, like Carlson Boulevard and improvements along the rest of the
San Diego Street, will help create safer crossings — ISETNeE S| lON@lo)grls (o] a= =1 IRt 1816 (= L2
for pedestrians. From the north-south direction, as part of the Alameda CTC’s San Pablo
the Ohlone Greenway strategy will connect Avenue Multimodal Corridor Project.
pedestrians and bicyclists through the pathway. See Appendix E to learn more.

Transit access to the BART station will also be
improved by providing more frequent service
and/or restoring bus lines that run north and
west of El Cerrito Plaza.

The City of El Cerrito, in collaboration with BART,
has also developed an initial Parking f K
Management Concept (PMC) for this station which is presented in Appendix F.

5T Although some strategies may be “underway” in terms of planning, many may still need support for design and
implementation funding.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 38 ge 185



Page 58 of 171

Table 4: Recommended El Cerrito Plaza Strategies

ID Strategy

Extents

Lead Implementation Estimated Estimated 1-Year

Supporting

E-01 Frequent Bus
Service on Carlson
Blvd Line 71

E-02 Restore Bus
Service on Pierce
St through
University Village®
E-03 Richmond St Bus
Service?

Richmond St
Walking and Biking
Improvements

E-04

E-05 Ohlone Greenway

Improvements

E-06 Fairmount Biking
and Walking
Improvements
E-07 East Side Bicycle
Boulevard
Implementation
E-08 Carlson Biking and
Walking
Improvements

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 39

Strategies Underway: See Appendix E for a list of Strategies Underway in El Cerrito (E-17 to E-22).

Carlson Blvd from
Northwest Study Area
boundary to El Cerrito
Plaza

Pierce St from Marin
Ave / San Pablo Ave
to Buchanan St /
Pierce St to El Cerrito
Plaza

Richmond St north of
El Cerrito Plaza
Richmond St from
Lincoln St to
Fairmount Ave

Ohlone Greenway
from El Cerrito del
Norte to the border
between Albany /
Berkeley

Fairmount Ave from
Carlson Blvd to Colusa
Ave

Norwell St, Lincoln St,
Albemarle St, Behrens
St from Moeser Ln to
the end of Behrens St
Carlson Blvd from
Columbia Ave to San
Pablo Ave / El Cerrito
Plaza

L Agency’ Agency Timeframe Capital Cost? Operating Cost?

Local Bus ACTransit N/A Unknown $4,000,000 $965,000

Service

Local Bus  ACTransit N/A Unknown $10,000 $1,705,000

Service

Local Bus AC Transit  N/A Unknown $1,000,000 $810,000

Service

“Complete  City of El N/A 4 - 6 years $10,000,000 $10,000

Streets” on Cerrito

Local

Roads

“Complete City of Developers 1-3years $6,000,000 $125,000

Streets”on Albany

Local and City of

Roads El Cerrito

“Complete  City of El N/A 1-3years $1,200,000 $10,000

Streets”on Cerrito

Local

Roads

Bikeways City of El N/A 1-3years $2,400,000 $10,000
Cerrito

“Complete  City of El N/A 4 - 6 years $500,000 $10,000

Streets” on Cerrito

Local

Roads

Page 186



ID
E-09

E-10

E-N

E-12

E-13

E-14

E-15

E-16

Notes:

Strategy

Pierce / Cerrito
Creek Trail Biking
and Walking
Improvements
Lincoln Bicycle
Boulevard

Central Biking and
Walking
Improvements Part
1

Central Biking and
Walking
Improvements Part
2

Richmond Annex
Bikeways

Expand Docked
Bike Share System

On-Street Parking
Management

Parking Garage
with electric
vehicle charging

Central Ave to Cerrito
Creek Trail along
Pierce St, Pierce St to
Carlson Blvd

Lincoln Ave from San
Pablo Ave to Ashbury
Ave

Central Ave from
Ashbury Ave to
Carlson Blvd

Central Ave from
Carlson Blvd to Bay
Trail

San Mateo St from
Carlson Blvd to
Central Ave, Columbia
Ave from San Mateo
St to Carlson Blvd
Cities in Study Area

Streets surrounding El
Cerrito Plaza, All BART
Stations

On-Site BART Rider
Parking

Page 59 of 171

Lead

Category Agency'

City of El
Cerrito

“Complete
Streets” on
Local
Roads
Bikeways

Bikeways

“Complete
Streets” on
Local
Roads
City of
Richmond

Docked
Bike Share
Stations

Parking
Options

Parking
Options

City of El
Cerrito

City of El

Cerrito

City of El
Cerrito

City of
Richmond

MTC

City of El
Cerrito

BART

Supporting
Agency

N/A

N/A

Caltrans,
Developers,
City of
Richmond
Caltrans,
Developers

N/A

Cities of
Richmond,
El Cerrito,
Albany, and
Berkeley
BART

Developers

Implementation Estimated

Timeframe
4 - 6 years

1-3years

1-3years

4 - 6 years

Unknown

4 - 6 years

1-3years

N/A

Capital Cost?

6,000,000

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$2,000,000

$280,000

$740,000

$490,000

$12,000,000

1. Where multiple agencies are listed, ultimate designation of lead agency/supporting agencies can depend on project type, location, or funding agency.
2. Costs are in 2022 dollars.
3. Suggested service and infrastructure improvements are not final. Additional outreach and coordination will be done on these routes during AC Transit’s Network Redesign Process and will
be subject to funding availability.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 40

Estimated 1-Year
Operating Cost?
10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$400,000

$538,000

$250,000

Page 187



Page 60 of 171

Figure 9: El Cerrito Plaza Strategies

';o 1
¢ E-18 El Cerrito Plaza Access Strategies
¢ %
04 ‘. ' Mapped
& [ . .
¢ [ 1} + E-O1: More frequent line 71 bus service*
L Y % L ) . + E-02: Restore bus service on Pierce Street and through
L B w‘ % H L E! EI Ce rrlto University Village, connecting to El Cerrito Plaza station*
' 'o. L &Y + E-03: Richmond St Bus Service*
oy % * E-04, E-06, E-08, E-09, E-10, E-11, E-12: Biking and walking
- ] improvements
* %
y [ . + E-05: Ohlone Greenway Improvements
# .-. E-03 ¥ « E-07: Implement the East Side Bicycle Boulevard
“ : ] ) + E-13: Implement Richmond Annex Bikeways
LN E-17 ' « E-16: On-site parking garage
“ ". “ + E-17: Contra Costa County San Pablo Corridor Project
. g ¢
« . + E-18: San Pablo Ave Midtown Complete Streets
o * E-19: El Cerrito Plaza BART Access Plan (at station
3 E-21—@ “ | Cerrito PI [ i
" 'l. 'y + E-20: Carlson Blvd and San Diego Street Pedestrian
LY % y Crossing Improvements
“ '.. 'Y + E-21: 2021 Sidewalk Repair Project on San Pablo Avenue
RIChmOI‘Id - s ) Unmapped
b []
e MY -E_01 '.. . + E-14: Expand docked bike share system
" - [] v « E-15: On-street parking management near station
= e E \21 “ + E-22: El Cerrito Lighting Study
v SE-
: [ |
|} L} J
1
| -
[_] |}
. ®
1
YO |
sl @ |
2 % 3 Kensington
2 % |
s 2
% 3 .
s s B oY sl
‘--------*‘E-E &‘;
L] = [} &
[} vl e
:I Project Boundary % E-20-® T [l .
- E'02.r i /| El Cetrito
i __ i CityBoundary i : [
L]
K53 BART TOD Station : ’ : E-19
] o
Bi  BART Station ||
5 Mile Station '
Buffer 1
Access Strategies l‘
Pedestrian/Bike [}
Recommended E'l02 o Berk9|ey
Underway or 1 :
S Complete 1 7,
Transit 1 AI bany
mmm Recommended* :
Underway or 1 L
Complete - .-- o
Ped/Bike and Transit | §
Underway in | I
ssses Planning/Study Lk
Stage
— Underway or
Complete
Parking
= » Underway or
Complete

1 Mile

*The routes shown are not final.
Additional outreach and
A

coordination will be done on these

routes during AC Transit's Network
Redesign Process.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 41

bage 188



Page 61 of 171

Parking Management Concept

The City of El Cerrito, in collaboration with BART, has developed an initial Parking
Management Concept®? (PMC) for the El Cerrito Plaza BART Station to inform the City’s
forthcoming engagement and implementation of a comprehensive on-street parking
management program for city streets around the station. Although BART will require the
developers at El Cerrito Plaza Station (and North Berkeley and Ashby Stations) to
implement transportation demand management (TDM) strategies for new residents to
reduce car ownership (such as maximum residential parking at V2 space/unit, discounted or
free transit passes, and car share spaces), the PMC maintains access to the BART station for
riders if and when they must drive and park. It also maximizes how many homes can be
built at the existing El Cerrito Plaza BART Station parking lot and supports parking
availability for existing residents around the station.

Figure 10 and Figure 11 show existing and an initial concept for on-street parking
regulations around the El Cerrito Plaza BART Station.>* The PMC describes how to make on-
street parking around the station more useful for everyone, including residents and BART
customers. Some key recommended strategies of the initial concept include:

e Maintain residential parking permit (RPP) program for residents not living in the
future BART development

e Prohibit in perpetuity residents and any other tenants of the El Cerrito Plaza TOD
from getting RPP permits (as is, for example, current policy in Berkeley)

e Expand the existing RPP area to the boundaries of the BART station area

e Change the RPP time limit from four hours to two hours

e Extend the hours of enforcement of RPPs until 11pm

e Lower the RPP household cap from four to two permits for homes within the
station area

e Use demand-responsive parking pricing to allow non-residents to pay to park on
non-RPP blocks near the station

e Generate revenue to cover program costs and allocate any surplus to support
community objectives

52 BART, “El Cerrito Plaza Station: On-Street Parking Management Strategies Being Considered”, April 2022,

53 The City of El Cerrito will be refining the parking management concept surrounding the El Cerrito Plaza BART Station.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 42 m

ge 189


https://wppo.blob.core.windows.net/bartberkeleyelcerrito/2022/04/BART_BECCAP_ElCerritoParkingManagement.pdf

Page 62 of 171

The City of El Cerrito will use the PMC to inform, develop, and implement the city’s parking
management program. These phases will include public engagement>* and input on the

proposed parking pricing and regulation changes and will require City Council review and
approval.

54 City of El Cerrito, "Parking Permits”, 2023,

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 43 ge 190


https://el-cerrito.org/235/Parking-Permits
https://el-cerrito.org/235/Parking-Permits

Page 63 of 171

Figure 10: El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Existing Parking Regulations

=

—

B\

Parking Regulations

=== No Parking 30-min
School Block === 1-hour
=== Unregulated s 90-min
me 4-hour/RPP — 2-hOUr

o

BART TOD Station

10 Min Walk From BART

(Walk Speed of 3 mph)

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 44

Page 191



Page 64 of 171

Management Proposal

Park

ion

El Cerrito Plaza BART Stati

Figure 1

el

BART TOD Station

(@)

Parking Regulations
m— No Parking

10 Min Walk From BART

7777 (Walk Speed of 3 mph)

s 15-min
— 120-min

School Block
mes Unregulated

e RPP

= Paid Parking

Page 192

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 45



Page 65 of 171

North Berkeley

Recommended access strategies to the North
Berkeley BART Station include walking and
biking improvements. Table 5 lists the
recommended strategies for the North
Berkeley station. Figure 12 shows both the
recommended strategies and those currently
underway. More information on strategies
underway can be found in Appendix E.

Recommended strategies will complement
projects, programs, and services that are
currently underway. The recommended
strategies provide bicycle and pedestrian
safety enhancements, such as new bikeways
and crossing improvements, and support
north-south access, as well as east-west
access along Virginia Street.

As part of this Plan effort, initial parking
management concepts (PMC) for the areas
around North Berkeley and Ashby stations

Strategies Underway Highlight:

Ohlone Greenway Improvements

The City of Berkeley is studying
improvements for the Ohlone Greenway
between Santa Fe Avenue and Virginia
Gardens that meet up with BART’s North
Berkeley Bicycle and Pedestrian Access
Improvements Project. The city’s project
includes widening and repaving the
greenway path, enhancing street
crossings, wayfinding, and adding
lighting. The project is currently in the
design phase and is expected to be
implemented in 2023. See Appendix E to
learn more.

were developed together with City of Berkeley
staff to meet the goals of the City of Berkeley-
BART JVP and address concerns from local
residents and businesses (see Appendix G). As
of the publication of this Plan, the City of
Berkeley had decided to not move forward
with the PMCs. Appendix H includes a
November 2022 Berkeley City Council staff report on the planned parking strategy for the
two Berkeley stations.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 46 ge 193



Page 66 of 171

Table 5: Recommended North Berkeley Strategies

ID

Strategy

Category

Lead
Agency’
Strategies Underway: See Appendix E for a list of Strategies Underway in Berkeley (N-07 to N-11).

Supporting
Agency

Implementation Estimated
Timeframe

Estimated 1-Year
Capital Cost? Operating Cost?

N-01 Acton Bicycle Acton St from Rose  Bikeways City of N/A 4 - 6 years $30,000 $10,000
Boulevard and St to Addison St Berkeley
Intersection
Improvements

N-02 Virginia Biking Virginia St from San  “Complete City of N/A 1-3years $1,300,000 $10,000
and Walking Pablo Ave to Oxford Streets” on Berkeley
Improvements St Local Roads

N-03 California Biking  California St from “Complete City of N/A 4 - 6 years $450,000 $10,000
and Walking Hopkins St to Streets” on Berkeley
Improvements Russell St Local Roads

N-04 Milvia Biking and  Milvia St from “Complete City of N/A 4 - 6 years $451,000 $10,000
Walking Virginia St to Hearst ~ Streets” on Berkeley
Improvements St Local Roads

N-05 Sacramento Sacramento St from  Crossing City of N/A 4 - 6 years $340,000 $10,000
Intersection Cedar St to Virginia  Improvements Berkeley
Improvements? St

N-06 Parking Garage On-Site BART Rider ~ Parking Options  BART Developers  N/A $9,600,000 $120,000
with Electric Parking
Vehicle Charging

Notes:

1. Where multiple agencies are listed, ultimate designation of lead agency/supporting agencies can depend on project type, location, or funding agency.

2. Costs are in 2022 dollars.
3.A section of the Sacramento Street project, including Virginia Street to Addison Street, was previously improved as part of the City of Berkeley’s Complete Streets Project.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 47 Page 194



Page 67 of 171

Figure 12: North Berkeley Strategies

T—] Project Boundary Alba ny

i __ City Boundary
K BART TOD Station

K& BART Station

5 Mile Station
Buffer

Access Strategies 3 . : Bel‘keley
Pedestrian/Bike : £
Recommended
T - N-10 N-11
Ped/Bike and Transit :
Underway or

Complete

Parking
» Underway or
Complete

wi Downtown
Berkeley

North Berkeley

Access Strategies

Mapped

+ N-01, N-02, N-03, N-04: Biking and
walking improvements

* N-05: Intersection safety improvements

+ N-06: Parking garage

+ N-07: North Berkeley BART Access Plan
(at station)

+ N-08: North Berkeley BART Active
Access Improvements

« N-09: Sacramento Complete Streets

+ N-10: Chlone Greenway Improvements
(Berkeley)

« N-11: Hopkins Corridor Traffic and
Placemaking

ki Ashby

1 Mile

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 48 ge 195



Page 68 of 171

Ashby

Recommended access strategies for the
Ashby BART Station include walking and
biking improvements. Table 6 lists the
recommended strategies and Figure 13
shows both the recommended strategies
and those currently underway at the Ashby
Station. More information on strategies
underway can be found in Appendix E.

Recommended strategies to the station
include Complete Streets improvements,
high-visibility crosswalks, intersection
realignments, traffic calming, and bus
service connections. The access strategies
will help connect BART riders from
Emeryville, North Oakland, and West

Strategies Underway Highlight:
Adeline Corridor Specific Plan and Road
Diet Study

The Adeline Street Road Diet Study aims to
achieve the vision of providing greater
economic opportunity, safer streets, and a
greener, healthier environment for all
residents. The Study looks at reducing the
width of Adeline Street adjacent to the
Ashby BART Station from four vehicle lanes
to two and at pedestrian and bicycle safety
improvements on Adeline Street between
Martin Luther King Jr. Way and Stanford
Avenue. See Appendix E to learn more.

Berkeley to the Ashby Station using east-west transit or by walking and biking.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 49

BART

ge 196



Table 6: Recommended Ashby Strategies

ID

A-01

A-02

A-03

A-04

A-05

A-06

A-07

A-08

A-09

A-10

Notes:

Strategy

Ashby Bus Service®

Ashby Intersection
Improvements
Shattuck Crossing
Improvements

MLK Jr. Way Biking
and Walking
Improvements*
Russell Biking and
Walking
Improvements
King Biking and
Walking
Improvements
Milvia Biking and
Walking
Improvements
Woolsey Biking
and Walking
Improvements
Regional
Wayfinding

Parking Garage
with electric
vehicle charging

Extents

Ashby Ave from
College Ave to
Emeryville Amtrak
Ashby Ave from Ellis
St to Adeline St
Shattuck Ave from
Prince St to
Emerson St

MLK Jr. Way from
Adeline St to Ashby
Ave

Russell St from San
Pablo Ave to Fulton
St

King St from Russell
St to Stanford Ave

Milvia St from Blake
St to Russell St

Woolsey St from
King St to Wheeler
St®

Within 1 mile of
Ashby BART Station

On-Site BART Rider
Parking

Page 69 of 171

Category

Local Bus
Service

Crossing

Improvements

Crossing

Improvements

“Complete

Streets” on

Local Roads
“Complete

Streets” on

Local Roads
“Complete

Streets” on

Local Roads
“Complete

Streets” on
Local Roads
“Complete

Streets” on
Local Roads
Wayfinding
Signage

Parking
Options

Lead
Agency’

AC
Transit

Caltrans

City of
Berkeley

City of
Berkeley

City of
Berkeley

City of
Berkeley

City of
Berkeley

City of
Berkeley

BART,
City of
Berkeley
BART

Supporting

Agency

Strategies Underway: See Appendix E for a list of Strategies Underway in Berkeley (A-11to A-16).

N/A

City of
Berkeley
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

MTC

Developers

Implementation Estimated
Capital Cost? Operating Cost?

Timeframe

Unknown

4 - 6 years

4 - 6 years

1-3years

1-3years

4 - 6 years

4 - 6 years

4 - 6 years

4 - 6 years

N/A

$1,000,000

$60,000

$725,000

$875,000

$1,250,000

$250,000

$450,400

$83,600

$550,000

$6,800,000

1. Where multijple agencies are listed, ultimate designation of lead agency/supporting agencies can depend on project type, location, or funding agency.
2. Costs are in 2022 dollars.
3. Suggested service and infrastructure improvements are not final. Additional outreach and coordination will be done on these routes during AC Transit’s Network Redesign Process and will
be subject to funding availability.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 50

Estimated 1-Year

$473,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$10,000

$85,000

Page 197



Page 70 of 171

4. The City of Oakland is simultaneously working on paving improvements along Martin Luther King Jr. Way between 47" Street and 6F" Street, about half a mile away from the Ashby BART
Station. Please see Appendix E for more information.
5. The extent between King St and Martin Luther King Jr. Way is pending the City’s adoption of the next Bicycle Plan Update.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 51 Page 198



Page 71 of 171

Figure 13: Ashby Strategies

Ashby Access Strategies
Mapped

A-07: Bus service along Ashby Avenue between College Ave and

7th Street and connect to the Emeryville Amtrak station*

A-02, A-03: Intersection safety improvements

A-04, A-05, A-06, A-07, A-08: Biking and walking improvements vs Downtown
A-10: On-site parking garage BerkEIey
A-1: Ashby BART Access Plan (at station)

A-12: Ashby BART Access Improvements

A-13: Ashby Bike Station

A-14: Martin Luther King Jr. Way Paving Project

A-15: Adeline Corridor Roadway Configuration Be rke I ey
A-16: Adeleine South Bikeway (Fairview to Stanford)

Unmapped

= A-09: Regional wayfinding sighage

e
S
i
s A-15
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
&
[ ]
l . - d
'_vAO'I-----I- .-.--.._. e .'---"“------A_O‘h__---
] =A-1M
el ()
1 sG™ A3
[ | .:1.
1
: Ashby
- /
- A-16
| | /
1
-l ¢ :
1
| S
[ ]
1
Emeryville =
| Project Boundary  I5c1 BART TOD Station Rockridge
, ? City Boundary ki BART Station A4 oak]and
.5 Mile Station
Buffer
Access Strategies
Pedestrian/Bike Transit
Recommended mmm Recommended*
seses Underway in Ped/Bike and Transit
Planning/Study — gggﬂer“gfg or *The routes shown are not final.
Stage SN ke Additional outreach and
e Underway or @~ Underway or coordination will be done on these
Complete Complete . v
routes during AC Transit’s Network
1 Mile A Redesign Process.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 52 mge 199



Page 72 of 171

Downtown Berkeley

BART does not own or operate a parking area for riders near the Downtown Berkeley
Station nor does it have developable land there. However, the station-specific strategies
addressed in this section acknowledge how to increase access to the Downtown Berkeley
Station for residents who may find it more convenient due to its location as a bus hub and
the availability of parking in public and private garages.

The Downtown Berkeley Plaza was recently modernized at the end of 2018 to enhance
bus-BART connectivity and improve the pedestrian experience. Some of the Downtown
Berkeley BART Station enhancements include walking, biking, and transit improvement
strategies. Walking and biking improvements are recommended on Milvia and Center
Streets while transit access will be improved from the Berkeley Hills to the Downtown
Station. Table 7 lists the recommended strategies and Figure 14 shows both the
recommended strategies and those currently underway in Downtown Berkeley. More
information on Strategies Underway can be found in Appendix E.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 53

ge 200



Page 73 of 171

Table 7: Recommended Downtown Berkeley Strategies

Estimated 1-
Year Operating
Cost?

Lead Supporting Implementation Estimated

D Strategy Extents Category Agency' Agency Timeframe Capital Cost?

Strategies Underway: See Appendix E for a list of Strategies Underway in Berkeley (D-03 to D-07).

D-01  Grizzly Peak, Grizzly Peak Blvd, Euclid  Local Bus AC N/A Unknown $1,000,000 $1,500,000
Euclid, Spruce, Ave, Spruce St, and Service Transit
and Oxford Oxford St from the
Frequent Bus Berkeley Hills to
Service? Downtown Berkeley

BART Station

D-02 Oxford Bikingand Oxford St from Bancroft “Complete City of N/A 1-3years $728,000 $10,000
Walking Way to Virginia St Streets” on Berkeley
Improvements Local Roads

Notes:

1. Where multiple agencies are listed, ultimate designation of lead agency/supporting agencies can depend on project type, location, or funding agency.

2. Costs are in 2022 dollars.

3. Suggested service and infrastructure improvements are not final. Additional outreach and coordination will be done on these routes during AC Transit’s Network Redesign Process and will
be subject to funding availability.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 54 Page 201



Page 74 of 171

Figure 14: Downtown Berkeley Strategies

=~

.

»
LT
v
Yo%
- “":‘.-‘,.
’ L7
' '
' 1
® 'S
¥ 4
r '
| -
(s h
: D-01
* 1
et '
’ '
) .
.
. Berkeley s,
[} “
i -
' o
5 %
o
<y Al
] '
n

*The routes shown are not final.
Additional outreach and
coordination will be done on these
routes during AC Transit's Network
Redesign Process.

AFFi “envon,
Downtown Berkeley 2rrito Kensindten 1Em
. P | PO &
Access Strategies El Cerrito g E W,
- -
+ D-01: More frequent and later into the Plaza o
evening for lines 65 and 67 bus service* ol
+ D-02: Biking and walking improvements -l
+ D-03: Biking and walking improvements ¥
+ D-04: Milvia Street Bikeway Improvements :
+ D-05: Downtown Berkeley Bike Station "
« D-06: Allston Way Parking Garage »
+ D-07: Center Street Parking Garage ‘.
1 3
]
D 01
Albany .
+
]
¥
|
pl
=
ol
<t |
2y |
|
[
.
b
o
o
4 |
5 |
s North = A
Berkeley p.os 1
|:] Project Boundary B8 BART TOD Station 5 Mile Station
— Buffer
. | City Boundary Bi  BART Station
Access Strategies xi Ash by
Pedestrian/Bike Transit Parking
Recommended mmm Recommended* » Underway or
Complete
Underway or
Complete
1 Mile A Oakland

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 55

BART

ge 202



Page 75 of 171

4.4 Analysis of Strategy Benefits

Ridership, access choices, and emissions impacts of developing homes on BART parking
lots together with on-site BART rider parking reductions and recommended access
strategies were analyzed. The analysis was conducted for the year 2035 when the planned
developments and strategies are expected to be implemented. The analysis takes into
consideration the impact COVID has had on BART and assumes a 30% reduction of
projected riders. Additionally, due to technical limitations, not all recommended and
underway strategies were included, and thus the benefits are considered to be
conservative.

Two models were used for this analysis: a mode of access model (Transit-Oriented
Development [TOD] Access Model) and a transit ridership model (BART Ridership Model or
BRM). The TOD Access Model estimates the change in ridership based on the mode of
travel that riders use to enter the station and is sensitive to changes in available BART
parking. The BRM estimates ridership at each station based on variables such as
surrounding land uses and BART service levels. The TOD Access Model was used to
estimate new riders from the TOD and how many people would stop riding BART due to
the planned parking reduction, while the BRM and case studies were used to estimate how
many people the recommended strategies would attract to the BART stations.

The parking reductions, implementation of the recommended strategies, and TOD
combined are expected to increase BART ridership at the study stations by 14% by 2035.
Additionally, the combined effect of the parking reductions, strategies, and TOD would be
a 12% increase in people walking and biking to BART coupled with a 9% decrease in people
parking at BART .>* The implementation of the planned developments and strategies would
also reduce vehicle miles traveled and GHG emissions by over 60,000 miles per day and
over 2,000 annual tons of CO2 equivalent.*®

%5 These numbers include impacts on Downtown Berkeley, which would benefit from some strategy investments and
increased ridership from the TODs.

%6 Research has found cold-start emissions can represent up to 80% of pollutant species producing harmful gases before
one begins driving. Source: Reiter, Matthew S. and Kara M. Kockelman, “The Problem of Cold Starts: A Closer Look at
Mobile Source Emission Levels", 2016,

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 56 ge 203



Page 76 of 171

Impacts on 2035 Ridership

Across El Cerrito Plaza, North Berkeley,
Downtown Berkeley, and Ashby Stations

ﬁ%& Underway and recommended +7% boardings
do strategies

@ Parking reductions -2% boardings
/ﬁ\ TOD residents +9% boardings
./il Net ridership +14% boardings

In 2035, the combined effect of the three TODs with over 2000 homes, the access
strategies, and reduced parking is an increase in 12% in the share of people
walking and biking to BART, and a decrease of 9% in the share of people parking

at BART.
Net Impacts on 2035 Emissions
\g _ : : :
¢my Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) -60,000 miles daily
4 g
ﬁ Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions o%"%%zagggiilaEths
Notes:

« TOD accounts for 16% net new riders at El Cerrito Plaza, 13% at North Berkeley,
and 17% at Ashby. The overall ridership effect across the corridor is only 9%
since the ridership includes Downtown Berkeley.

« We have scaled down 2035 ridership projections by 30% to account for
post-COVID conditions and have scaled down net ridership growth from TODs
and strategy investments by the same proportion.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 57 ge 204



Page 77 of 171

5. Implementation

Across the 18 strategy categories, the scale of Strategies Underway Highlight:

implementation needs varies widely in the Transit and Intercity Rail Capital
Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (the Plan). BJGTTET

While some strategies are part of ongoing BART

ST BART has recently partnered with the
and partner jurisdictions” workplans, others

City of El Cerrito and the El Cerrito
Plaza Developer to successfully win
funding to support a range of Plan
strategies including an east-west
bikeway, a bike station for bikes of all
sizes, Ohlone Greenway enhancements,
a BART parking garage, and an on-
street parking management program.
With this funding, all of these strategies
will require ongoing coordination
between BART, City staff, and the
Developer for implementation. See

require more complex coordination and regional
strategy for successful implementation, and most
will need to be led by agencies other than BART
since they are outside of BART’s property. Each
strategy has been reviewed to identify the lead
agency, timeframe, and costs as shown in Chapter
4. During this review, the strategy categories were
further narrowed into five broader groups with
shared implementation characteristics. These are:
infrastructure, BART programs and
communications, mobility programs, bus transit
service, and regional programs.

Appendix E to learn more.

This chapter describes the implementation
approach, status, and action items for BART and key agency partners within each of these
broader groups of strategy categories. Partner action items for each category are intended

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 58 ge 205



Page 78 of 171

for lead agencies listed by individual strategy in Chapters 4 and 5. For each
implementation type, potential funding sources are listed in the callouts.

5.1 Local Infrastructure

Active transportation and safety infrastructure programs on local streets constitute a

significant portion of the recommended strategies. These include pedestrian crossing and

intersection safety improvements, expansion and updates to the low-stress bikeway

network, and complete streets projects on major corridors. Local infrastructure projects
also include signage, lighting, and streetscape amenities like bus stop furniture.

Table 8: Local Infrastructure Strategy Categories

Category
“Complete Streets” on Local Roads

Lead Agency
Cities

“Complete Streets” on San Pablo Avenue, State
Route 123

Alameda CTC, CCTA, Caltrans, WCCTAC, Cities
of Berkeley, Albany, and El Cerrito

Crossing Improvements Cities
Bikeways Cities
Bus Stop Upgrades Cities
Wayfinding Signage Cities
Lighting Cities

All the recommended infrastructure projects are consistent with local plans. Within the
cities of Berkeley, Albany, El Cerrito and Richmond, staff time and local investments on
active transportation infrastructure are guided by pedestrian and bicycle master plans or

active transportation plans, which lay out vision networks and priority areas for
infrastructure supportive of walking and rolling for transportation.

Cities generally plan and prioritize
implementation of local infrastructure and
safety projects based on scoring in master
plans, safety priority, roadway paving and
grant funding cycles, and in response to
community engagement and direction from
city leadership. Many of the projects in the
recommended strategies list already have
implementation efforts underway. Others are
recommended in multiple local and regional

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 59

ge 206



Page 79 of 171

plans but do not yet have identified timelines or funding for construction.”’

Access to transit is a high priority
regionally and locally, making BART

Potential Infrastructure Funding Sources

access projects highly competitive for a Measures BB (Alameda County Sales Tax) and J
variety of funding sources. As the cities (Contra Costa County Sales Tax)

of Albany, Berkeley, El Cerrito, and Safe Routes to BART (BART Measure RR)
Richmond plan updates to their active Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (State

Cap-and-Trade)

Infill Infrastructure Grant Program (State Housing
and Community Development)

One Bay Area Grant Program (Federal
Transportation Funding via Congestion
Management Agencies)

Safe Streets and Roads for All (Federal Highway
Administration)

California Active Transportation Program
(California Transportation Commission)
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities
Grant (California Strategic Growth Council)

transportation plans and continue to
pursue funding for project
implementation, BART will be a critical
partner in supporting prioritization and
implementation of city projects that
access the stations.

Table 9: Local Infrastructure Strategy Implementation Actions

BART Actions Partner Actions

Communicate recommended strategy scoring  Review the Plan’s prioritization, analysis and

and priority to local jurisdictions for strategy list when developing local work plans,

consideration in local project prioritization project priority, and supporting funding
pursuits

Participate in local advisory committee, Coordinate with BART on presentations and

commission, board, and council meetings on agenda items for local advisory committee,

BART access projects commission, board, and council meetings

Participate in technical advisory committees Host technical advisory committees to ensure

during local planning processes for bicycle and  cross-agency collaboration on local plans and

pedestrian plans, corridor plans, and area projects

specific plans

7 Potential funding sources for infrastructure are listed at the right side of the strategy tables. Transportation
Management Associations (TMAs) are not included. TMAs are typically authorities that manage Business Improvement
District (BID) funds. Not all BIDs are dedicated to transportation; some are for landscaping, lighting, or security. There are
twofold reasons why a BID was not pursued as a strategy: (1) there does not appear to be the critical mass of businesses
at or next to any of the TOD locations to support its formation, and (2) nearby businesses do not have a compelling
reason to self-assess for transit access as they are already adjacent to high-quality transit service via the BART station.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 60 ge 207



Page 80 of 171

BART Actions

Provide comments during project
development to ensure alignment with city-led
projects adjacent to BART property

Provide letters of support for BART access
projects pursuing competitive funding

Coordinate BART project planning and
construction timelines with adjacent local
projects to ensure efficiency and minimal
neighborhood impact

5.2 BART Projects and Programs

Partner Actions

Implement high-priority BART access projects,
consistent with local planning and
engagement processes

Use the data, evaluation, and community
engagement from the Plan to support
successful funding applications
Coordinate local project planning and
construction timelines with adjacent BART
projects to ensure efficiency and minimal
neighborhood impact

Some of the recommended strategies include projects and programs led by BART or
constructed on BART property with the TOD Developer (Developer) support in most cases.
These include strategies on new or expanded bicycle parking, wayfinding, bikeways, bus
transit connections and passenger drop off improvements, and lighting on BART property.
BART-led strategies also include on-site parking management and communications efforts
to provide information on city-led parking programs. BART communications additionally
support encouragement and education programs led by partners.

Table 10: BART Projects and Programs Strategy Categories

Category

Lead Agency

Large Bike Parking for BART riders

Education

BART, with Developer support
BART, program partners, Cities, and

Developer

Parking Options for BART riders
Bus Stop Upgrades

Wayfinding Signage

Lighting

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 61

BART, with Developer support, and Cities
BART, with Developer support
BART, with Developer support
BART, with Developer support

ge 208



Page 81 of 171

As each station moves toward TOD
planning, design, and construction,
BART will work closely with the
Developer and cities to identify
needed space allocation and
investments station access
improvements such as those shown
in Table 10 above. These efforts are
aligned with the existing work of
the BART customer access and
station planning teams and will be
fleshed out in detail in the station-
specific access plans, as described in
Chapter 2. For example, through the
station-specific access plan process,
BART, the City of El Cerrito and the
Developer for El Cerrito Plaza have secured grant funding and are working together to
develop specific siting and square footage recommendations for a potential bike station
along the Ohlone Greenway in the station area.

For strategies that require communication or

promotion of existing programs like carpool Potential BART Projects and Programs Funding
apps, bicycle education, and regional financial Sources

incentives, BART will rely on close partnership « Transportation Fund for Clean Air (Bay Area
from organizations and companies managing Air Quality Management District)

those programs to identify timing and « Affordable Housing and Sustainable
opportunities for cross-promotion, in-person Communities Grant (California Strategic
engagement, and messaging to push out on Growth Council)

BART communications platforms. For example, « Vehicle Trip Reduction Grant Program (Bay
BART could do a targeted promotion of Bike East Area Air Quality Management District)

Bay events that support bicycling for « Developer-led investments and
already funded with BART grant partnerships and

are already hosted at BART stations.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 62 ge 209



Page 82 of 171

Table 11: BART Projects and Programs Strategy Implementation Actions

BART Actions
Confirm specific BART access features like on-
site bicycle parking and wayfinding to be
included in station-specific Access Plans and
Developer site plan concepts

Engage managers of existing education and
encouragement programs to align schedules
for engagement and communications efforts

Share and promote strategy-aligned programs
led by partners as requested and in alignment
with BART communications strategy

5.3 Micromobility Programs

Partner Actions

City and Developer to coordinate non-BART
property wayfinding and bike parking
programs with BART Access Plans

Consider BART TOD construction and
completion timelines when developing
engagement programs and communications
timelines

Review the Plan’s strategies and share
focused communications for BART promotion
that are strategy aligned.

Micromobility programs like dockless bike/scooter share, docked bike share, and electric
bike lending libraries hold high potential for providing flexible options for BART riders to
access stations without needing a private bicycle or scooter.

Table 12: Micromobility Program Strategy Categories

Category
Docked Bike Share Stations
Dockless Bike and/or Scooter Share

Electric Bike Lending Library

Lead Agency

MTC and Cities

Cities

Multiple, including non-profit partners and
East Bay Community Energy

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 63

ge 210



Page 83 of 171

Some of these programs already exist, like
the Bay Wheels docked bike share system Potential Micromobility Program Funding

and an existing micromobility permit Sources

program in the Cities of Berkeley and ¢ Bike Share Capital Program (Metropolitan
Albany. The City of Richmond has its own Transportation Commission)

docked bike share system using funding Climate Initiatives Program (Metropolitan
support from the MTC Bike Share Capital Transportation Commission)

Program. Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program

(California State Transportation Agency)
Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities Grant (California Strategic Growth

For dockless shared micromobility
programs, consistency across jurisdictional
boundaries is critical for customer access
and service viability. The cities of Oakland,
Berkeley, Emeryville, and Albany already
coordinate their programs. Ongoing

Council)

Active Transportation Program,
Infrastructure/Non-Infrastructure (California
Transportation Commission)

coordination as dockless mobility programs
Measure BB and Measure J

expand will ensure program consistency
across city borders.

Docked bike share is currently called Bay
Wheels and operated by Lyft under a
contract with the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission (MTC). The
program may change with the expiration of = S— _ Wil
the contract in 2027.% As stakeholders in e — e —————e et
the potential restructuring of the bike share program, BART and Cities will continue to
coordinate with MTC on opportunities for system funding and expansion.

Programs like electric bike lending libraries, test ride programs, and rentals are growing in
the Bay Area, with many potential opportunities for BART riders to try out using e-bikes for
station access. As programs like the future East Bay Community Energy electric bike
Adoption Program kick off over the next few years, BART bike stations (operated by
BikeHub) could be a potential partner to implement and host engagement for these
programs.

%8 The initial term of the Bay Wheels bikeshare contract was from 2015 - 2025. Due to the relaunch of the program as Ford
GoBike (with Ford as the title sponsor), the contract reset in 2017 and will now expire in 2027. Source: MTC, Operations
Committee Meeting on Bikeshare Updates, November 4, 2022,
https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5902405&GUID=96667B4E-CA7B-4B2A-B69B-
023319807FB2&0Options=&Search=.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 64 ge 211


https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5902405&GUID=96667B4E-CA7B-4B2A-B69B-023319807FB2&Options=&Search=
https://mtc.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=5902405&GUID=96667B4E-CA7B-4B2A-B69B-023319807FB2&Options=&Search=

Page 84 of 171

Table 13: Micromobility Program Strategy Implementation Actions

BART Actions
Confirm with local jurisdictions that new
micromobility permit programs meet BART
multi-modal access design guidance
Provide input and support for siting or re-
locating Bay Wheels stations

Work with Developers on including electric
charging infrastructure for micromobility
devices

Collaborate with potential e-bike vendors
to identify best opportunities for lending,
test rides, and encouragement programs at
BART stations and/or bike stations

Support grant applications led by cities and
non-profit mobility partners like Bike East
Bay, GRID Alternatives, and others
Continue to license dockless mobility
providers to use BART property to deploy
and collect dockless devices

5.4 Bus Transit Service

Partner Actions
Coordinate micromobility programs across
jurisdictions to ensure consistency for operators
and customers traveling between bordering cities
Confirm and meet agreements with BART on dock
placement, rack needs, and maintenance policies
for mobility products on BART property
Coordinate with BART and private companies on
use of electric charging infrastructure

Reach out and collaborate with BART on electric
bike lending programs, test rides, and promotions.
Always consider BART TOD stations as high
priorities for e-bike programming and marketing
Incorporate mobility programs into grant
applications associated with development, TDM,
and projects with non-infrastructure components
Coordinate and comply with BART requirements
for licensing, deployment, and rebalancing of
dockless mobility devices

Many recommended strategies focus on increased frequency on existing transit lines or
potential new transit lines serving BART stations or transbay as a substitute for BART.

Table 14: Bus Transit Strategy Categories

Category
Local Bus Service
Transbay Service

Lead Agency |
AC Transit
AC Transit

Because the COVID-19 pandemic (the pandemic) was highly disruptive to bus transit
service, AC Transit’s current focus is restoring service back to pre-pandemic levels. While

the Plan’s recommended bus-related strategies related are responsive to community
feedback, AC Transit will develop its own bus network redesign based on post-pandemic
demand for bus transit, AC Transit policies, priorities, and funding. Building on the
engagement from the Plan, AC Transit will initiate an extensive engagement process in
2023 and expects to implement service changes in 2024.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 65



Page 85 of 171

AC Transit’s service planning efforts involve
complex analysis of equity considerations, transit
demand, and overall system coverage. Future
increases beyond pre-pandemic service levels are
more highly justified along routes that serve the
highest amount of people and prioritize those who
are transit dependent. As such, specific routing and
frequencies that result from the planning process
may differ from those presented in the Plan. The
highest priority (shared by BART and AC Transit) is
to support service restoration that promotes robust
recovery of transit ridership overall. As AC Transit
works toward a full plan for service recovery, it will
take into consideration the significant land use changes from the future developments,
including over 2,000 new homes on BART property and development along San Pablo
Avenue and Adeline Street, and the reduction in BART rider parking. BART will be a key
partner in identifying and supporting decisions that are mutually beneficial for both
agencies.

Table 15: Bus Transit Strategy Implementation Actions

BART Actions AC Transit Actions |
Share engagement survey data and the Consider engagement, prioritization, and

Plan’s recommendations on transit evaluation of the Plan’s recommendations in

service for AC Transit consideration service planning efforts

Participate in technical advisory Engage BART to discuss impacts of service
committees and regional coordination changes for BART riders and TOD site planning

meetings to advocate for maximizing
access for BART riders in service planning

Communicate with riders about AC Consider the potential impact of parking
Transit engagement efforts so they may  reductions and densification at TOD stations and
participate and share feedback along corridors (Adeline Street and San Pablo

Avenue in particular) on bus rider demand when
planning schedules and routes

5.5 Regional Programs

Multiple recommended strategies involve significant regional coordination and leadership
from agencies like BART and MTC. These include regional fare integration, schedule
coordination, regional discounts for transfers, and strategies related to updates to Clipper
in progress. These strategies are all reflective of existing regional initiatives and efforts.

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 66 mge 213



Page 86 of 171

Table 16: Regional Program Strategy Categories

Category Lead Agency ‘
Discounted Fares MTC and Transit Agencies
Coordinated Transit Transfers MTC and Transit Agencies
Financial Incentives for shared and active .
Multiple
modes

The Bay Area Transit Transformation Action Plan is a regional plan developed by the MTC
Blue Ribbon Transit Recovery Task Force (Task Force), convened in April 2020 to guide Bay
Area transit recovery from the impacts of the pandemic. The key outcomes of the plan are
focused on fares and payment, transfer coordination, customer information (including
wayfinding and signage), the transit network, accessibility, and funding.

An example of a regional program that
implements these focus areas is the
Transit Fare Coordination & Integration
Study, which assessed business cases
for a regional fare system. BART staff
already play a central role in the study
and will continue to be a leader on
recovery efforts as recommended by
the Task Force. The first pilot program to
come out of this effort is now
underway: the Clipper BayPass. BayPass

Potential Regional Program Funding Sources

is a two-year pilot program that will * Regional Measure 2 (Bay Area Toll Authority)
study a single transit pass that provides * Regional Measure 3 (Bay Area Toll Authority)
free access to all bus, rail, and ferry * Metropolitan Transportation Commission
services in the Bay Area. The initial * Federal Transit Administration Grants

implementation is now underway with
UC Berkeley students participating in the first round of passes.

BART is already a key stakeholder and leader on regional fare integration, Clipper 2.0,
BayPass, and Clipper START for low-income riders. As these programs continue to develop,
BART will continue to take a leading role in communicating changes and opportunities for
customers to participate.

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 67 ge 214



Page 87 of 171

Table 17: Regional Strategy Implementation Actions

BART Actions Regional Partner Actions

Continue participation in and leadership on Continue communication on rider opportunities

regional strategies like fare integration, to participate in new regional programs (e.g.,
schedule coordination, and low-income MTC/UC Berkeley communications on Bay Pass)
benefits
As changes and opportunities become available Continue coordinating with BART on
to BART riders, advertise, and promote them opportunities to leverage connections between
directly in connection with TOD construction regional initiatives and TOD planning processes
timelines

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 68 ge 215



Page 88 of 171

GO
": \ }‘/

sl

’J':'

Appendices

Appendix A - Policy Factsheet

Appendix B - Existing Conditions Maps

Appendix C - Downtown Berkeley Infographic

Appendix D - Engagement Summary

Appendix E - Strategies Underway

Appendix F - El Cerrito Plaza Station Preliminary Parking Management Concept

Appendix G — North Berkeley and Ashby Station Preliminary Parking Management Concept

Appendix H - City of Berkeley City Council Staff Report re: Parking Strategy for the two
Berkeley stations

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | 69 ge 216



Page 89 of 171

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ge 217



Intersection of Future Visions
BART Policies Supported by Community Plans of
Berkeley and El Cerrito

This booklet summarizes key community plans that the Berkeley-El
Cerrito Corridor Access Plan used for guidance to advance policies
adopted by the BART Board of Directors. These plans were crafted
with extensive community input before being adopted by elected
representatives on the city councils of El Cerrito and Berkeley. These
plans capture each community's vision for prioritizing future
development and public investments while balancing state and
regional directives and incentives, shown below:

State of California

“When households of any income level live near transit and job centers, they
drive less.” California’s Housing Future: Challenges and Opportunities, pg. 50

“Transit hubs record highest levels of ridership within a quarter to half mile

radius.” Housing and Climate Change policy initiative, pg. 1

State incentives and directives

» Assembly Bill 2923

» TOD Housing Program

« Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities Program

Regional

The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Plan Bay Area 2050 is a
roadmap for the region. It identifies, in part, where housing for the additional
2.5 million residents expected by 2050 should be located to make efficient
use of the existing transportation system in an environmentally sustainable
way. Transit-oriented development (TOD) is a critical component to help
address the housing and climate crises.

Pg 34: “Public lands are key opportunity sites for increasing the Bay Area’s
supply of affordable housing,... accelerate the efforts of transit agencies such
as Bay Area Rapid Transit and the Santa Clara Valley Transportation
Authority to reuse parking lots and other agency-owned land.”

BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

While BART's policies and these community plans may differ, they all
prioritize addressing the climate and housing crises in an equitable
way by articulating future vision statements to:

* Build high-density housing for all income levels near transit,
particularly around BART stations

* Reduce driving and parking demand

* Prioritize public investments in pedestrian, bicycle, and
transit facilities

* Ensure a transportation network for people of all abilities,
ages, and income levels

This booklet is organized as follows:
* The first two pages identify the specific number or location in

Berkeley's adopted plans, El Cerrito's adopted plans, and BART'’s
adopted policies that support each future vision statement listed
above. When viewed electronically, you may click on the plan or
policy name to connect to the document posted on each agency’s
website.

The final three pages are citations from the adopted plans and
policies referenced in the summary, organized by each agency:
Berkeley, El Cerrito, and BART.

Prepared Novlznqge?zgézs



Vision Statement

Build high-density
housing for all
income levels near
BART stations

Reduce driving and

parking demand

Berkeley Adopted Plans

El Cerrito Adopted Plans

General Plan

Climate Action Plan

Housing Policy H-1

Housing Policy H-12

Land Use Policy LU-25

Sustainability Community Goal 1

BART Adopted Policies  Ibci
TOD Policy
Strategy B

Economic Development Action Plan

TOD Policy Performance Measures

Climate Action Plan

Goal 1, Strategy B

Goal 1, Strategy G

Sustainable Transportation &
Land Use Goal 1

Sustainable Transportation &
Land Use Goal 1, Policy A

and Targets

Performance Measure F1

San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan (2014)

Performance Measure F2

Goal B, Strategy 1

Goal E, Strategy 7

Adeline Corridor Specific Plan

Policy 3.7

General Plan

General Plan

Transportation Objective 2

Transportation Goal 17

TOD Policy

Climate Action Plan

Climate Action Plan

Sustainable Transportation &
Land Use Goal 3

Sustainable Transportation &
Land Use Goal 4 Policy A

Sustainable Community
Objective SC-1.3

Strategy C

Strategy C-2

BART's Station Access
Typology map

Economic Development Action Plan

Station Access Policy

Adeline Corridor Specific Plan

Goal 1, Strategy B,
Implementation Task 1

Policy 6.9

San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan (2014)

Goal E Strategy 2

Goal A-4

Page 219



https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/general-plan
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-01/Berkeley-Climate-Action-Plan.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Adeline-Corridor-Specific-Plan.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/general-plan
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Adeline-Corridor-Specific-Plan.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-01/Berkeley-Climate-Action-Plan.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/BART%20Transit-Oriented%20Development%20Policy_Amended2020-04-23.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/B-%20TOD%20Performance%20Targets%202040%20Adopted%2012-1-16_0.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/BART%20Transit-Oriented%20Development%20Policy_Amended2020-04-23.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/about/planning/policies
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/E-%20BART%20Access%20Policy%20-%20Adopted%206-9-16_0.pdf
https://el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/5681/ElCerittoEconDevActionPlan_Final_Adopted?bidId=
https://el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/2684/Final-Draft-Chapter-3-Community-Climate-Action-Strategies?bidId=
http://www.el-cerrito.org/396/San-Pablo-Avenue-Specific-Plan
https://el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/1368/GPCHAPTER_5_no_graphics?bidId=
https://el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/5681/ElCerittoEconDevActionPlan_Final_Adopted?bidId=
https://el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/2684/Final-Draft-Chapter-3-Community-Climate-Action-Strategies?bidId=
http://www.el-cerrito.org/396/San-Pablo-Avenue-Specific-Plan

Vision Statement

Prioritize
investments in
Complete Streets

Ensure a mobility
network for people of

all abilities, ages, and
income levels

Berkeley Adopted Plans

El Cerrito Adopted Plans

BART Adopted Policies  Ibci

General Plan

Active Transportation Plan

Station Access Policy

Transportation Policy T-4

Policy 5-1

Pedestrian Plan

Appendix H

Goal A-3

Goal B

Table 7

Climate Action Plan

Bicycle Plan

Sustainable Community Goal 3

Appendix E, Table 8

San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan (2014)

Adeline Corridor Specific Plan

Complete Streets Goal CS.5

Palicy 6.7

General Plan

Active Transportation Plan

Station Access Policy

Transportation Policy T-49

Goal 2

Goal A-1

Pedestrian Plan

San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan (2014)

Goal E

Second Goal

Strateqic Transportation Plan

Complete Streets Chapter,
Vision and Overarching
Framework, Section 3.02

Goal 4

Adeline Corridor Specific Plan

Transportation Strategic Goal

Page 220



https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/E-%20BART%20Access%20Policy%20-%20Adopted%206-9-16_0.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/general-plan
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-01/2020-Pedestrian-Plan.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/berkeley-bicycle-plan
https://el-cerrito.org/638/Circulation-Plan-for-Bicyclists-Pedestri
https://el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/2684/Final-Draft-Chapter-3-Community-Climate-Action-Strategies?bidId=
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Adeline-Corridor-Specific-Plan.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/general-plan
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-01/2020-Pedestrian-Plan.pdf
https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/E-%20BART%20Access%20Policy%20-%20Adopted%206-9-16_0.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/our-work/adopted-plans/berkeley-strategic-transportation-best-plan
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Adeline-Corridor-Specific-Plan.pdf
https://el-cerrito.org/638/Circulation-Plan-for-Bicyclists-Pedestri
http://www.el-cerrito.org/396/San-Pablo-Avenue-Specific-Plan
http://www.el-cerrito.org/396/San-Pablo-Avenue-Specific-Plan

Intersection of Future Visions - Citations from the City of Berkeley’s Adopted Plans

CITY BF

Adeline Corridor Specific Plan

Policy 3.7

“Future development within the Ashby BART subarea
shall provide public space, community-oriented
facilities, and affordable housing, consistent with
objectives, parameters, and process outlined in the
Adeline Corridor Specific Plan.”

Transportation Strategic Goal

“The City of Berkeley will provide safe, equitable
transportation options that meet the mobility needs
of all residents, regardless of age, means, and
abilities, and that further the attainment of the City’s
greenhouse gas emission reduction goals.”

Policy 6.7

“Bus and shuttle transit: Work closely with AC Transit
to support continued and improved bus transit and
shuttle service along the Adeline corridor.”

Policy 6.9

“Parking and Transportation Demand Management:
Implement innovative strategies that make efficient
use of existing parking resources while reducing
demand for additional parking.”

Bicycle Plan

Appendix E, Table 8

Identifies Tier 1 projects to upgrade or install
bikeways and improve intersections near North
Berkeley BART on California St, Hopkins St, the
Ohlone Greenway, and San Pablo Ave; and near
Ashby BART on Adeline St, Prince St, Russell St, and
Shattuck Ave.

General Plan

Housing Policy H-1

“Extremely low, very low, and moderate-income
housing: Increase the number of housing units
affordable to Berkeley residents with lower income
levels.”

Housing Policy H-12

“Transit-oriented new construction: Encourage
construction of new medium and high-density housing
on major transit corridors and in proximity to transit
stations...”

Land Use Policy LU-25

“Affordable housing development: Encourage
development of affordable housing in the Downtown
Plan area, the Southside Plan area, and other transit-
oriented locations.”

Transportation Objective 2

“Reduce automobile use and vehicle miles traveled in
Berkeley, and the related impacts, by providing and
advocating for transportation alternatives and
subsidies that facilitate voluntary decisions to drive
less.”

Transportation Policy T-4

“Transit-First Policy: Give priority to alternative
transportation and transit over single-occupant
vehicles on Transit Routes identified on the Transit
Network Map.”

Transportation Policy T-49

“Disabled Access: Improve pedestrian access for the
entire disabled community.”

Climate Action Plan

Sustainable Transportation & Land Use Goal 1
“Increase density along transit corridors.”

Sustainable Transportation & Land Use Goal 1,
Policy A

“Encourage the development of housing (including
affordable housing), retail services, and employment
centers in areas of Berkeley best served by transit.”

Sustainable Transportation & Land Use Goal 3
“Manage parking more effectively to minimize driving
demand and to encourage and support alternatives to
driving.”

Sustainable Transportation & Land Use Goal 4
Policy A

“Create additional strategic fees/taxes to build
revenue for transportation demand management
(TDM) efforts and to further discourage driving
alone.”

Pedestrian Plan

Second Goal
“Increase equity and transportation choices for all.”

Table 7

Identifies high-priority projects to improve walkways
and intersections near Ashby BART on Adeline St,
Ashby Ave, Martin Luther King Jr Wy, Shattuck Ave,
and Alcatraz Ave; and near North Berkeley BART on
University Ave.

Strategic Transportation Plan

Goal4
“Increase transportation choices for disadvantaged

communities.”
Page 221 |




Intersection of Future Visions - Citations from the City

of El Cerrito’s Adopted Plans

A~

THE CITY OF —
EL CERRITO

Active Transportation Plan

Goal 2

“Implement a well-connected active transportation
system to attract users of all ages and abilities.”

Policy 5-1

“Ensure that the bicycle system serves transit stops
and stations; ensure that pedestrian crossing desire
lines are met at transit stops; and ensure that
continuous, accessible pedestrian routes are
provided.”

Appendix H

High-priority projects to improve walkways, bikeways,
and intersections near El Cerrito Plaza BART on
Central Ave, Cerrito Creek Trail, Fairmont Ave, the
Ohlone Greenway, and San Pablo Avenue.

Climate Action Plan

Sustainability Community Goal 1

“Encourage more compact, higher density infill
development along transportation corridors to reduce
vehicle miles traveled in El Cerrito and beyond.”

Sustainable Community Objective SC-1.3
“Develop a parking demand management strategy to
encourage high density development and alternatives
to driving.”

Sustainable Community Goal 3

“Continue to invest in infrastructure that invites
people to walk, bike, and take transit more in El
Cerrito.”

Economic Development Action Plan

Goal 1, Strategy B

“Maximize transit-oriented development (TOD)
including higher density residential in-fill development
close to existing infrastructure (BART, AC Transit, and
Ohlone Greenway) to improve air and water quality
and protect natural resources, through increased
walkability and reduced auto use.”

Goal 1, Strategy B, Implementation Task 1
“Support reduced parking in new development by
creating parking programs, expanding bike- and car-
share programs, and providing data on current
parking ratios.”

Goal 1, Strategy G

“Determine goals for inclusion of affordable/
workforce housing, and resources available to create
affordability in mixed-income projects.”

General Plan

Transportation Goal 17

“... Reduce the percentage of trips made by
automobile and provide the opportunity and facilities
to divert trips from automobiles to other modes...”

San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan (2014)*

Goal B, Strategy 1
“Maximize TOD potential (BART and AC Transit).”

Goal E, Strategy 2
“Reduce parking requirements to encourage transit
use and reduce reliance on the private automobile.”

Goal E Strategy 7

“Increase the supply, diversity, and affordability of
housing in proximity to existing or planned
transportation investments.”

Complete Streets Chapter, Vision and

Overarching Framework, Section 3.02

“The Complete Streets Plan aims to develop a
consistent set of objectives, policies, and
implementation measures to provide a well-
connected, safe, and convenient multimodal network
for users of all ages and abilities and support the
goals of this Specific Plan.”

Complete Streets Goal CS.5

“Optimize upcoming investments by encouraging
sidewalk widening in concert with new project
enhancements, increased transit efficiency, bike
facility installations, and/or enhanced landscaping
that improves the overall streetscape environment.”

* As of November 2022, the San Pablo Avenue Specific Plan
was being updated and city council adoption was expected
in early 2023.

Page 222




Intersection of Future Visions - Citations from BART’s Adopted Policies

Transit-Oriented Development
Policy

Strategy B
“Support Transit-Oriented Districts.”

Strategy C

“Increase sustainable transportation choices
using best practices in land use and urban
design.”

Strategy C-2

“Ensure that combined TOD/parking/access
improvements on and around each BART station
encourage net new BART ridership, utilizing
corridor-level, shared, and off-site approaches
to parking replacement as appropriate... strive
for no or limited parking replacement at “Urban
with Parking” Stations...” (as defined in BART’s
Station Access Typology map, found at
https://www.bart.gov/about/planning/policies)

Transit-Oriented Development
Policy Performance Measures and

Targets

Targets for Performance Measures F1
and F2

By 2040, BART will have built 7,000 affordable
homes on its land, representing 35% of its entire
housing portfolio.

Station Access Policy

Goal A-1

“Ensure safe access for all users of
the BART system, including those
with disabilities.”

Goal A-3

“Prioritize the most sustainable
access modes, with a focus on the
lowest greenhouse gas and
pollutant emissions per trip.”

Goal A-4

“Reduce the access mode share of
the automobile by enhancing
multi-modal access to and from
BART stations in partnership with
communities and access
providers.”

Goal B

“More Riders: Invest in station
access to connect more riders cost-
effectively, especially where and
when BART has available
capacity.”

Goal E

“Equitable Services: Invest in access
choices for all riders, particularly
those with the fewest choices.”

BART Station Access Typology

[ STATIONTYPE

LESS
AUTO SHARE
@ uban
@ Urban with Parking
@' Balanced Intermodal
Intermodal - Auto Reliant

@ AutoDependent

MORE
AUTO SHARE

Station Under Construction

@ Airport

Current
type
\

' — Aspirational
type

Note: To be updated every five years,in coordination
with Station Profie Survey data

EMBARCADERO
-3
MONTGOMERY ST. &
POWELL ST. .4?

CIVIC CENTER 4
Y i
T6THST.MISSION ' ()
I
24TH ST. MISSION .
GLEN PARK o
BALBOA PARK .4?“
&
DALY CITY
|

COLMA & SAN BRUNO

[SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO & __ V.' SFO
- ®

7\‘.‘
4§
MILLBRAE

pese——— '

NORTH CONCORD /

PITTSBURG
CENTER

PITTSBURG /

BAY POINT ANTIOCH

j\e.‘ - L L

MARTINEZ € \d

RICHMOND

) N
% EL CERRITO DEL NORTE
g
EL CERRITO PLAZA ,
':i NORTH
. BERKELEY

- ORINDA_ ®
DOWNTOWN BERKELEY | () ®
P

| P
AsHeY (@ *.‘{‘*
3{5 ROCKRIDGE
MACARTHUR /(@)

]
@ 19TH STREET/ OAKLAND
¥

LAFAYETTE

WEST

¥ |
onkianp @ OAKLAND CITY CENTER /

12TH STREET
~

N
e FRUITVALE
MERRITT &
W, COLISEUM/

f
|

% - CONCORD

4
-

¥ PLEASANT HILL

J WALNUT CREEK
Py

3 | OAKLAND AIRPORT

1N,

O0AK @‘ (3%

SAN LEANDRO

WEST DUBLIN /
PLEASANTON
et

CASTRO
VALLEY

BAYFAR N gy we—
‘%;;;b—‘ gy or ‘DUBUN/

HAYWARD

> PLEASANTON
4 %

.

@ SOUTH HAYWARD

®_. union aTy

% - FREMONT

WARM SPRINGS/
SOUTH FREMONT

) | MILPITAS
/
X4
¥ BERRYESSA

Updated: 01/06/2021

Page 223


https://www.bart.gov/about/planning/policies

Page 96 of 171

Appendix B — Existing Conditions Maps

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ge 224



Page 97 of 171

BART
m BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

& B o A |4 G305

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

Appendix B:
Existing Conditions Maps

The following existing conditions maps are included in this Appendix B:

Basemap
Population Density
Employment Density
Activity Density
Equity Priority Communities
Population with a Disability
Poverty Level
Race/Ethnicity
Zero Vehicle Households
Employment Centers
Land Use
Bikeways
Transit

©CoNoOOR~LON =

—_— ) )
@ =o

Page 225



Page 98 of 171 %

El Cerrito = \
del Norte e/

LEGEND
~ Project Boundary 3
(@) BART Station \\
to be developed “ElCarrito \
O BART Station N \
i / e M
[ ] Half Mile Radius ‘s.,\{
. One Mile Radius 3
------ Elevation Contour \\
Sources: BART, 2021 '\\v <
ito “Kensington — "\
=W
S \
5 \
= Albany |5 b
2 :‘B \_/_.‘
) z )
= SO_’*?‘_HO—.C(L'!Q |:/_
________ - I;-]
[ Berkeley e
{
)
<
I NESREERE PRE R R R S - s |
| {
. R
| )
f|
— lll
!.
A |
’ |
f

1S UIUIN

any Oled ,\{9,8"

Sacramento Ave

Emeryville

1 Mile @



Cutting Blvy Page 99 of 171 )

LEGEND
, ' Project Boundary

O BART TOD Station
O  BART Station

[ ] Half Mile Radius

| Attty (]
1

! One Mile Radius

Population Density
Peaple per Sq. Mile

1,100 - 7,500
. 7.600- 15,000
I 16,000 - 25,000
I 26,000 - 58,000

Source: 2018 ACS 5-Year

El Cerrito
del Norte

El Cerrito hills, Berkeley
hills, and Kensington hills
have residential densities
of less than 7,500 people
per square mile.

— —— -

Page 227-&




Page 100 of 171

Cufﬁng Blrlfd L
El Cerrito 2 ™\
LEGEND _ del Norte - 4
Project Boundary iy - ogeroRiE ‘ )
[ = H?"‘- _I : b s > N
i b |
(O BART TOD Station / ' "‘ q

© BART Station

El Cerrito \
[ Half Mile Radius SRS e b
....... e ST

| CRERIING | ." f -‘. 1
» AR @

Employment Density \
Jobs per Sq. Mile = \«/\.;
175 - 4,000 !

Kensington \\-\

" 4,010-8,000 g >
.‘\I‘.’/f l'.‘ { i g II_

I 8,010 - 12,000 LN % ~

B 12,100 - 42,800 ‘\ \

Source: LODES, 2018

Page 228&,



. A\
Page 101 of 171 e '-,\
- / El Cerrito / X
LEGEND i del Norte {3
Project Boundary L R ;

(O BART TOD Station
o BART Station

[ ] Half Mile Radius

El Cerrito

Activity Density

P >
o +

Employment
o
IS

(1,000s / sq. mi.)

0- 7.5 15+ L0 N_

Population
(1000s / sq. mi.)

Sources: 2018 ACS 5-Year; LODES, 2018




Page 102 of 171

Cum‘”ﬁ Blvg :
\, El Cerrito /
LEGEND del Norte
Project Boundary oorelo s 5
(O BART TOD Station
El Cerrito
O BART Station
[ ] Half Mile Radius X qoser 2™ %\
A fi= 1
....... . " = F: (=} S
________ : One Mile Radius - AR
mw
e}
= — %
Equity Pr_lquty %
Communities ;
! = \
I Higher / = :
g ; > El Ceryito i Kensington
High . e :
9 Source: MTG 2018 |\ 1 n‘ Plaza -
L f 3 |
\ Albany
& Solano Ave b
Lt = rj Berkeley S
'.‘ = “fﬂ |
\ - E <
\ o iy |
\ ,l e | N Bt o, s |
; (=3 -
_ =3 |
\ i\ 3 |
\ \ ¥ (
1 A ¢ :.
\am. i '
\ t \ [
A | » ‘n
\ | \ |
l[ -_— . » |
N — i %
‘ ll LL : |
Equity Priority Communities are determinéd by the J |
Metropolitan Transportation Commission and consider t /
the following variables by Census tract (visit et |
opendata.mtc.ca.gov to learn more): I _-""'-‘--.‘:,_\ s |
- Minarity Population ' | |
- Low Income (<200% Federal Poverty Level) Population VAT |
- Limited English Proficient Population | f
- Zero-Vehicle Households } |
- Seniors 75 Years and Over / i
- People with Disability :
- Single-Parent Households ;
- Severely Rent-Burdened Households :
Y
&
\'2*63'@
¥/
Emeryui”e = Oakland /’f
' = 7 B
53rd St < = »ﬁ
R ™ Page 230" |

O

1 Mile



LEGEND
| Project Boundary

O BART TOD Station
© BART Station

[ ] Half Mile Radius

Percent of Residents with
Disabilities

3% - 8%
L 8% -12%
B 13% - 17%

Source: 2018 ACS 5-Year

Cutting g,y 'f
El Cerrito
del Norte

Page 103 of 171

NE
ooreo

Page 231/5’




Cutting gy, Page 104 of 171
.\, ElCerrito \
LEGEND del Norte
Project Boundary - e ;

(O BART TOD Station
O BART Station

[ ] Half Mile Radius

El Cermrito

Percent of Households
Below 200% of Federal
Poverty Level

0% - 15%
. 16% - 25%
I 26% - 35%

B 41% - 80%

Source: 2018 ACS 5-Year .

Kensington

LT =t Lo

In 2018, 200% of the Federal Poverty Level \
was $24,280 for a household of one, and <<l N Il BB 2T
$50,200 for a household of four.

e T
.....

s Berkeley




LEGEND
Project Boundary

(O BART TOD Station
O BART Station

[_] Half Mile Radius

pemmeena

i ! One Mile Radius

Resident Race/Ethnicity
1 Dot = 1 Person
Black
©  Hispanic/Latinx
@ Asian/Pacific Islander
@ White
@ Other

Source: 2018 ACS 5-Year

1 Mile @

Page 105 of 171

\, El Cerrito
del Norte

— ¥

Oakland Page 233



Cutting g4 Page 106 of 171 - . I\.

‘ .\, ElCerrito
del Norte

LEGEND
.| Study Area

O BART TOD Station
O BART Station

[ ] Half Mile Radius

Percent of Households
with Zero Vehicles

0% - 5%
. 6%-15%
N 11% - 30%
B 21% - 65%

Source: 2018 ACS 5-Year -

\
..f I

ek am e
y o % "
" =' - & \

|
s -
e

s, )

Page 2346’




Page 107 of 171

N
\, ElCerrito N
LEGEND del Norte 5
— _~
Project Bounda L o e —
. . ' I,-’f H“"‘ A\~ Midtown =
BART TOD Station L El Cerrito _ \
0 i I}; \‘ Commercia{EI Cerrito \
O  BART Station b % )\ \
|| = %
[ ] Half Mile Radius o e \
' One Mile Radius AT }
Y \ 1 \
Primary Employment A Doint Isabel 7 \
Land Use LL:;/;;% Costco \V’\
| Mixed Use /< " ; \
. J i El Ce’ ito : Kensington \\
I commercial $ Plazi: ! 3
B Industrial O .\ | ) 4 e
W Public/Institutional EfCenita A ‘
Sources: MTC, 2018 | P'“ﬂ‘f“"uu \ \?
— r—:'::_’__f -y Y ==
o \ : L% .~ Solano Ave \/"3
) % =| -§.“;‘,{a;?_9.Av¢_. 375 Commercial f
3 TERRSREL . -
¢ I/m Bl )
\ Berkeley =
GilmanSt | ¥ \\
Commercial —. | (f
- | | T &
i \-\ l H University Ave UC Berkeley
‘"-.\ \ ‘ il Commercial-_. Main Campus ff
\ \ ! Il - |
\,g L l
I Il‘n j
W Y
O
|/ 4thSt | A

| 178\
L/ Commerclall. \

West Berkeley
Industrial Area
J
N. Emeryville

Mixed Uses.

1 Mile

Downtown"
", Berkeley
. Commercial ™

UC Berkeley
Clark Kerr

Campus
Southside{f
: Telegraph Ave
[/ : Commercial
r H
Lorin District
59 Commercial
Oakland /
O
Page 235" FS




Page 108 of 171

El Cerrito
del Norte

LEGEND
Project Boundary

O BART TOD Station
O BART Station

[ ] Half Mile Radius

Residential Low
Density

I Mixed Use

I commercial

I Industrial

10 Public/Institutional < J1ES SN Berkeley

- Parks/Open Space

Low, Medium, and High Residential
densities as defined by MTC

Source: MTC, 2018




LEGEND

Project Boundary

(O BART TOD Station
0 BART Station ,
Half Mile Radius

One Mile Radius
- Elevation Contour

Bikeways

— Bike-Ped Path

(Class I)

——— Separated Bikeway
(Class IV)
Bike Lane (Class Il)
- Bike Route (Class Ill)

Bike Boulevard

Sources: Fehr & Peers, 2021; City of
Berkeley, 2021; City of El Cerrito, 2016;
City of Albany, 2019; MTC Open Data
Regional Bike Facilities, 2019

Page 109 of 171 e

El Cerrito y i
Fd l')

o
del Norte i ,
o, PO“_QEQ_NE 213

-
Ty

e P %A
[
8" 3
;AR |
(] \
\\
\
‘\.-./‘
El Cernto Kensington
"Plaza
'_,_\\_.
\‘|I
N
L
SRR Berkeley
/ j ";-.‘.“
North
i vena s\ Berkeley  ©
i | i Delaware St ::O----:!-.......____? y i e
' o s

o DGwntown

Berkeley

L - Channrngway |

1 Mile

ST S S

§
¢
: e H [ i
: A :
; St i [
: ‘o ! g $
s e AEE O Russell St 1 / :
| sedgrnsemernraduress Sontenmsnsddlusisnesinsn, / :
. i . smesrgermrmiatasian
: n 'l :
2 ‘ -
: 7] :
; | i QAshby :
: IS T T —
----- i< 2y
3| # . L i
(- | ' : f = R
) s\ [ S 3 / i i 7
Oakland &\ Y i Jo i !
s s - ) '} gl =3
(Vi e g | = [ a5 * >
: = F 2
i Y S A A
S: s F=— & fo)
il ) A
/] i P S [E
(4| W A0 IO O T 7 g
x = fea-

f’



Page 110 of 171 N

El Cerrito a8
LEGEND © del Norte / \/

Project Boundary ' S

O BART TOD Station / R
o BART Station / \

: . = El Cerrito \
AC Transit Local Service / A N\
(Pre-COVID Average 4 \
Weekday Frequency) @

/
Less than 10 min \) =\ \

) : Kensingtor
—— 11-20 min = \ ' \p
L= .
—— 21-30 min r _ El Cerrito X\

More than 30 min ,
AC Transit Transbay |
——— All Day Service

Peak Hour Only TZ”QFJH\
Shuttle )
—— Bear Transit 4
—— West Berkeley Shuttle e\
Sources: AC Transit, 2019; West Berkeley \

Shuttle, 2020; Bear Transit, 2019

\\ \\ I
\\f “'\ R
A

r. -
=3

Page 238" |

Oakland 3

1 Mile @




Page 111 of 171

= e ———
T e ——— e
= ——— e

Appendix C - Downtown Berkeley
Infographic

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ge 239



Appendix C:
Downtown
Berkeley

Source (unless noted): BART Station Profile Survey, 2008 & 2015

Station Access 2008 m2015

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Walk  Bike Transit Dropped Parked
Off

Average Weekday Entries source: BART

12,000
10,000
8,000
6,000
4,000
2,000
0

COVID-19

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Page 112 of 171
Less than 30 riders reported driving and parking Demographic Profile

® Residents mRiders

— households
et 65% 68%] making less
than $75,000

A low-income rider is half as likely to
drive and park as a high-income rider.

0 = ‘ households
UC Berkeley 37% 30% that dO nOt

, Downtown .
Berkeley have a vehicle
Berk Oakland
[ 3
&;\ 7(! 4!A) people with
a disability
O
0e®
53%0) 48%8 People
of color
53% of Drive-and-Parkers Source: BART, 2015; ACS 2013-17; Residents are defined
) ] as those within a 15-min bike ride (2.2 miles) of Downtown
live within a 15-min walk , bike , Or bus trlp Berkeley station and not closer to another BART station.
Auto Parking at Center Street Garage Bike Parking
720 : 1.6 miles 100 326
spaces'’ does not fill up' median drive/park distance? rack spaces?® secured spaces*

1. City of Berkeley Center Street Garage, February 2020. 2. BART, 2015 3. BART, Oct 2019 4. gl%gi%bzg(%1


https://www.bart.gov/about/reports/profile
https://bikehub.com/bart/
https://www.bart.gov/about/reports/profile

Access
Infographic Description

Downtown
Berkeley

The Station Access Graphic compares how people
accessed the Downtown Berkeley BART station in
2008 and 2015. Between 2008 and 2015, the share
of riders who walked to the station increased from
71% to 74%. To get to the station in 2008, 10% of
riders biked, 9% took transit, 6% were dropped off,
and 4% drove and parked. In 2015, 7% of riders
biked, 10% used transit, 9% were dropped off, and
1% of riders parked.

The Average Weekday Entries graphic displays the
number of average weekday entries at the
Downtown Berkeley BART station from 2015 to
2020. There is a slight decline from 2015-2019, from
11,600 average weekday entries in 2015, to just
under 9,700 weekday entries in 2019. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, there is a sharp decline from
about 9,700 weekday entries in 2019 to about 1,000
in 2020.

Page 113 of 171
The map displays a
range in which people
can access the
Downtown Berkeley
BART station within a
15-min walk trip, a
15-min bike trip, and
a 15-min transit trip.
The area in which
riders can access the
station within a 15-
min bike ride is the
largest, followed by
bus, and the smallest
is walking. About 53%
of drive-and park
riders live within a 15-
min walk, bike, or bus
trip from the station.

The Demographic Profile section compares riders at the
station with residents living near the station. Residents are
defined as those within a 15-min bike ride (or about 2.2
miles) and not closer to another BART station.

65% of residents within a 15-min bike ride of Downtown
Berkeley live in households that make less than $75,000.
68% of Downtown Berkeley BART riders live in
households making less than $75,000. A low-income rider
is half as likely to drive and park as a high-income rider.
37% of residents within a 15-min bike ride of Downtown
Berkeley live in households that do not have a vehicle.
30% of Downtown Berkeley BART riders live in
households that do not have a vehicle.

7% of residents within a 15-min bike ride of Downtown
Berkeley have a disability, while 4% of Downtown
Berkeley BART riders have a disability.

53% of residents within a 15-min bike ride of Downtown
Berkeley are people of color. 48% of Downtown Berkeley
BART riders are people of color.

The Auto and Bike Parking sections detail available vehicle and bicycle parking at the
station. There are 720 available parking spaces at the City of Berkeley's Center St.
garage near the Downtown Berkeley BART station. The garage generally does not fill up,
but pre-COVID peak use time at the garage is 12:00PM. For rider that drive and park at
the station, the median driving time from the station is 1.6 miles. There are 100 bike rack
parking spaces and 326 secured bike parking spaces at Downtown Berkeley BART.

Page 241



Page 114 of 171

bart govibartable

Appendix D - Engagement Summary

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ge 242



Page 115 of 171

S e M0y
Meggiy 0885, Cerp
7} %“byda for 5 p’?n fr,,o s

Stay .N‘ g, . Mg arec
tion .~ oy S e, O
ooy, '58@, 5"'?99 ewan bﬂra ;

Appendix D. Engagement Summary

This appendix provides a general overview of the public engagement process and
feedback received through the Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (the Plan).
Milestone reports for each round of public engagement are attached.

11 Engagement Timeline & Methods

Public engagement was divided into three rounds, as shown in Figure 1, to align with the
project’s phases: (1) Define access needs; (2) Explore access options and analyze on-site
BART rider parking; and 3) Refine strategies and develop implementation plan.

Figure 1: Rounds of Public Engagement

Spring 2021 — Summer 2021

Fall 2021 — Spring 2022

Summer 2022 — Winter 2022/23

Focus of Engagement

1. Define access needs
v Develop vision and review goals
v Define needs
v Understand access opportunities

2. Explore access options and analyze on-site BART rider parking
v Identify menu of access strategies
v Share the maximum number of on-site BART rider parking spaces

3. Refine strategies and develop implementation plan
v Evaluate access strategies
v Determine funding and financing options

D-1 Page 243



Page 116 of 171

Engagement was conducted in many formats and forums, such as:

e Meetings with and presentations to community-based organizations; community
residents and BART riders; City councils, commissions, and committees; and BART’s
Board of Directors

e Online open houses and surveys

e Office hours for attendee-driven questions and comments

¢ In-person tabling at community events, such as farmers and flea markets

e Free-form comments submitted through the project’s website

Public events were promoted through BART’s social media channels (Twitter, Facebook,
Instagram, etc.), eBlasts to email lists (project and city lists), and press releases. Figure 2
summarizes the engagement and quantity of public response for the three online open
houses on the left and for the other engagement on the right.

Figure 2: Summary of Engagement and Public Response

Online Open Houses (OOH) Other Outreach

6,042 Unique Users Over three -l ® 31 Virtual Public Meetings
OOHs = | - (Community, Council, Board)

=

—

~300 Interactions at
16 Virtual Office Hours
and 5 In-Person Events

— 3,149 Completed Surveys Over
- three OOHs

1,398 Comments and Upvotes
on Interactive Map from first
OOH

~1,300 Email Recipients

22 Social Media posts with about
1,200 retweets, reactions, likes,
shares, and comments over
three OOHs

~200 Website Comments
Received

Summary as of February 9, 2023

D-2 Page 244



Page 117 of 171

1.2 Key Themes

The majority of input came from BART riders and community members living in close
proximity to the station through the online open house surveys. Riders shared many
suggestions for and concerns about changes to the way they get to and from BART.
Residents near BART stations provided a range of opinions about how reducing the
number of BART rider parking spaces will affect their neighborhoods. In general, many
support the developments to help the Bay Area’s housing crisis in an environmentally
sustainable way, but some expressed concern that building on BART’s parking lots and
reducing the number of parking spaces on-site will lead to more commuters driving
directly to their destinations.

Corridor-Wide Strategies
Riders in the Study Area were highly supportive of the following access strategies to and
from BART.

Transit

e Improved transfers between AC Transit and BART with scheduling, signage, and
real-time information.

e More affordable transfers between AC Transit and BART.

e Better amenities at bus stops within 1.5 miles of BART stations, including benches,
shelters, and real-time information.

Biking
e Having secure parking for large bicycles, such as electric bikes, cargo bikes, trikes,
and adaptive bikes.
Driving
e Car parking options for BART riders near a station (e.g., on-street, in a lot nearby,
day-by-day rental of privately owned driveways, etc.)

Other

e Personalized information about trip planning for all modes (511.org, Google maps,
Citymapper, BART app, etc.).

e Financial incentives for shared or active travel options, such as Clipper Cash or
discounts for purchasing an electric bike.

D-3 Page 245



Page 118 of 171

partgovibartable

Strategies Near the Stations
Riders were also highly supportive of specific access strategies serving each station area,
such as:

Transit
e Enhancing, expanding, and adding transit service.
Biking & Walking

e Redesigning key intersections to prioritize safety and ease of access for those who
walk, roll, or bike to and from BART.

e Installing low-stress bikeway networks on streets and paths that lead to and from
each station.

e Providing cycling amenities, such as bike repair kiosks and charging stations for
individual and shared mobility, like electric bikes, wheelchairs, and scooters.

e Instituting an electric bike lending library that enables BART riders to evaluate a
variety of cycles, such as trikes, electric, cargo, tandem, recumbent, and adaptive
bikes.

e Conducting education about safe bike riding habits.

e Installing pedestrian-scaled lighting around the station areas and on neighborhood
walkways and bikeways, though some residents were concerned about light
pollution.

e Reducing and calming vehicle traffic around the station areas and in surrounding
neighborhoods.

Other

e Improving pavement conditions for pedestrians, cyclists, and wheelchair users.
e Prioritizing access needs of BART riders with mobility issues (due to disability and/or

age).

D-4 Page 246



Page 119 of 171

¢ Implementing, expanding, and/or subsidizing on-demand transit, bike share, and
ride-hailing options.

e Ensuring connections between each station and its surrounding community are
intuitive through station area design and signage/wayfinding.

Rider Parking
Riders and residents had differing opinions about car parking
for BART riders.

At the Stations

There was mixed reaction to providing BART rider parking
spaces on-site as part of the development:

e Most riders living further away expressed concern
about distance, terrain, mobility challenges, errands,
and lack of transit options and wanted some parking
on-site.

e Some riders living nearby expressed the desire to have
no on-site parking to minimize traffic in the
neighborhood, thus improving the overall public realm,
particularly for walking and biking.

e Other riders and residents living nearby expressed
concerns that BART rider parking space reductions on-
site would lead to more traffic and less parking
availability for neighborhood residents and businesses.

e Some said BART should not build parking on-site due to
equity concerns and to maximize homes.

Most agreed, however, that BART rider parking at the stations
should:

e Prioritize riders who have the fewest choices, such as
seniors, people with disabilities, and those who have
multiple stops, such as dropping off children at school.

e Be managed to ensure availability even if it means
charging a higher rate.

e Provide electric vehicle charging spaces.

D-5 Page 247



Page 120 of 171

Outside of the Stations

On the topic of parking outside the station area, a corridor-wide analysis of riders and
residents revealed the following:

e Many riders who live further than a half-mile from a station want the option to park
on-street to access BART and are willing to pay to do so.

e Riders living within a half-mile of a station expressed the most support for
prohibiting BART riders from parking on-street but were also supportive overall of
allowing BART riders to pay for parking on-street.

e Many of those who do not ride BART and live or work within a half-mile of a station
want to prohibit on-street parking by BART riders.

e Riders and residents agree that, if BART riders park on-street, they should pay and
that surplus parking fees should be spent on community benefits.

D-6 Page 248



Page 121 of 171

BART
m BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

& B o A |4 G305

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

OUTREACH MILESTONE REPORT #1

April through August 2021

The Berkeley — El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (The Corridor Access Plan) is focused on existing riders
whose access to BART may be affected by the roughly 2,500 mixed-income homes planned on station
parking lots at Ashby, North Berkeley, and El Cerrito Plaza. Using input from the public, elected officials,
boards and commissions, local agencies, and service providers, the Corridor Access Plan will provide a set

of area-wide options for station access and parking management to be implemented in alighnment with
each station’s development.

This milestone report summarizes the first of three public outreach phases for the Corridor Access Plan.

Online Open House Other Outreach

14 Virtual Public Meetings
(Community, Council, Board)

3,552 Unique Users

170+ Interactions at

1,968 Completed Surveys Four In-Person Events and
12 Virtual Office Hours

1,308 Comments and Upvotes

. Email Recipient
from Interactive Map 1,067 cipients

17 Social Media Posts

. 122 Website Comments Received
232 Likes/Tweets

Survey and key materials translated into Spanish and Chinese.

Published pdarch 14, 2022 Page 249



CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES
CORRIDOR-WIDE

During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and
concerns about changes to the way they get to and from BART. Residents
near BART stations provided their opinions about how reducing the
number of BART rider parking spaces will affect their neighborhoods. In
general, many support transit-oriented development (TOD)! to help the
Bay Area’s housing crisis in an environmentally sustainable way, but some
expressed concern that building on BART’s parking lots will lead to more
commuters driving directly to their destinations.

Walking, Rolling, and Biking: Nearly all who provided input on these

modes indicated the importance of creating low-stress access to and
from BART by people of all ages and abilities.

Implement bikeway and walkway improvements on select streets
that lead to BART.

Redesign key intersections to prioritize safety and ease of access
for those who walk, roll, or bike to and from BART.

Separate cyclist and pedestrian traffic where possible.

Install secure bike parking in the station areas that can
accommodate a variety of types, such as trikes, electric, cargo,
tandem, recumbent, and adaptive bikes.

Provide cycling amenities, such as bike repair kiosks and charging
stations for individual and shared mobility, like electric bikes,
wheelchairs, and scooters.

Institute a bike lending library that enables BART riders to test out a
variety of types, such as trikes, electric, cargo, tandem, recumbent,
and adaptive bikes.

Car Parking: Suggestions for accommodating those who drive and park
to access BART included:

Provide parking to riders who have the fewest choices, such as
seniors, people with disabilities, and those who have multiple
stops, such as dropping off children at school.

Manage parking at BART to ensure availability even if it means
charging a higher rate.

Minimize on-street parking by BART riders and new TOD residents
to protect parking for current neighborhood residents and
businesses.

OUTREACH
SUMMARY

Online Open House

The online open house
communicated details about
the Corridor Access Plan and
could be translated into
multiple languages. The survey
(available in English, Spanish,
and Chinese) and interactive
map solicited feedback from
the public from July 2 through
August 20, 2021. There were
four virtual office hours for
each of the three stations
where development is planned.

Project Website

Free-form comments were
submitted through the
Corridor Access Plan website at
www.bart.gov/beccap.

In-Person Events

BART staff tabled at three
Farmers Markets and one Flea
Market during the online open
house.

Virtual Meetings

14 meetings were held with
elected officials, boards,
commissions, and community

groups.

! Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning

and development process for each station. D-8
MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021

Page 250



BERKELEY—EL CERRITO

CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN .

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

e Provide electric vehicle charging spaces.

Safety and Security: Concerns about the safety of walking in the neighborhoods and station areas were

common, especially in low-light conditions. Some suggestions included:

e Install pedestrian-scaled lighting around the station areas and on neighborhood walkways and bikeways,
though some residents are concerned about light pollution.

e Provide interactive amenities, such as art or historical points of interest, to encourage more “eyes on the
street”.

e |Implement strategies that reduce and calm vehicle traffic around the station areas and in surrounding
neighborhoods.

Universal Access: Most who provided
comments about BART riders with mobility
i Cerrito issues (due to disability and/or age) want to
s ensure that their access needs are
prioritized.

Transit: Many want existing transit service
enhanced or expanded in addition to new
service.

Shared and on-demand mobility: Some want
to see services like on-demand transit, bike
share, and ride-hailing options implemented,
expanded, and/or subsidized.

Station Area Design: Input included
increased connectivity between the stations
and the surrounding neighborhoods for
those who walk, bike, roll, and take public

] transportation to access BART, implement

¥ it intuitive wayfinding and signage, and

i maintain station areas as transit centers.

The following pages summarize more

O BART Station to be specific public input for each station area in

developed ]
©  BART Station the following order:
[ Half Mile ° Ashby
Ona Mile
Study Area L /f,f-'" ° North Berkeley
= ° El Cerrito Plaza

D-9 Page 251
MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021 3



BART
m CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES FOR

During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and

concerns about changes to the way they get to and from the Ashby BART SUMMARY
Station. Residents near the Ashby BART Station provided their opinions
about how reducing the number of BART rider parking spaces will affect

their neighborhood. In general, there is a high level of local support for I;:i:ie:y the City of
TOD, particularly affordable housing, at this station, but there is concern
about displacement of the existing Flea Market due to the development. Ashbyand_ﬂorthB-e_rkeley
Walking, Rolling, and Biking EARTSHUOH_PIMI“_HE
e Implement and/or upgrade bikeways on Prince Street, Woolsey * Com“th_Ad“er ;
Street, Adeline Street, Ashby Avenue, and Shattuck Avenue. fgm:(:’mmmg#ﬁonm

e Improve pedestrian, cyclist, and wheelchair user crossings of

Adeline Street, MLK Jr. Way, and Ashby Avenue around the station * Community Advisory
area. Group Meeting #7 on June

21,2021

+ Community Meeting #3 on
June 26, 2011

Online Open House and

Survey Activities

Safety and Security

e Calm traffic on the streets surrounding the station (Adeline Street,
MLK Jr. Way, and Ashby Avenue).

e Implement more lighting on neighborhood streets that lead
directly to the station, like Prince Street and Woolsey Street.

Car Parking

+ Four virtual office hours,

e Concern about the availability of parking on Sundays due to the on:llllou:teacﬁm:tugéuiﬂ
heavy concentration of churches in the area. 9, ANBUSTIL, AMEUSTID,
o - Lo August18
e Those living nearby indicated concerns that reductions in BART .
rider parking spaces will lead to less parking availability for * ?’PEES]]HFEH t::
residents and businesses in the neighborhood. ou €Y Farmers
_ Market on August 1o
'ﬁa_m _ _ + In-person tabling at the
e Reinstate bus transit service on Ashby Avenue to connect West Ashby Flea Market on
Berkeley and EImwood to BART. August 14

Station Area Design?

e |ncrease station connectivity to commercial areas to create a more
vibrant and accessible destination.

e Better wayfinding to the station through Ed Roberts Campus.

e Add asecond elevator.

% Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning
and development process for each station.

D-10 Page 252

MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021 4



BERKELEY-EL CERRITO

CORRIDOR ACCESS F‘LA['-J. o
& W > 20 |4

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

bart.gov/bartable

D-11 Page 253

MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021 5



BART
m BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

& W > 25 |4 8868

Funded by the Califorma Department of Transportation and the Federal Tranait Admimistration

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES FOR

NORTH BERKELEY STATION

During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and
concerns about changes to the way they get to and from the North
Berkeley BART Station. Residents near the North Berkeley BART Station
provided their opinions about how reducing the number of BART rider
parking spaces will affect their neighborhood. In general, there is a
moderate level of local support for TOD, particularly affordable housing, at
this station, but there is concern about the loss of BART rider parking.

Walking, Rolling, and Biking

Improve the Ohlone Greenway near the station area: Widen, fix
poor pavement conditions, upgrade lighting, and improve street
crossings.

Implement and/or upgrade bikeways on Acton Street, California
Street, Virginia Street, and Delaware Street.

Improve pedestrian, cyclist, and wheelchair user crossings of
Sacramento Street, Cedar Street, Rose Street, University Avenue,
and San Pablo Avenue around the station area.

Safety and Security

Implement more lighting on neighborhood streets that lead directly
to the station, like Acton Street and Virginia Street.

Some expressed concern that the TOD will lead to more traffic on
neighborhood streets.

Car Parking

Explore demand-based pricing for parking at BART and on-street.
Identify opportunities for shared parking, such as on-site with TOD
residents or near-by at publicly- or privately owned facilities.

There were mixed reactions to providing BART rider parking spaces

as part of the TOD development:

0 Most riders living further away expressed concern that distance,
terrain, mobility challenges, errands, and lack of transit options
would make it too challenging to access BART without a car and
want some parking on-site.

0 Some riders living nearby expressed the desire to have no on-
site parking to minimize traffic in the neighborhood, thus
improving the overall public realm, particularly for walking and
biking.

0 Other riders living nearby indicated concerns that reductions in

NORTHBERKELEY
OUTREACH
SUMMARY

Hosted by the City of
Berkeley

Ashby and North Berkeley

BART Station Planning

* Community Advisory
Group Meeting #6 on April
29, 2021
Community Advisory
Group Meeting #7 on June
21, 2021
Community Meeting #3 on
June 26, 20m

Online Open House and

Survey Activities

¢+ Fourvirtual office hours,
one hour each on July 26,
July 28, August 2, and
August 4

In-person tabling at the
Downtown Berkeley
Farmer's Market on July 31

BART rider parking spaces will lead to more traffic and less parking availability for residents and

D-12

MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021

Page 254

6



BART

businesses in the neighborhood.

0 Some questioned why BART would build rider parking, which is expensive, land-intensive, provides
the most benefit to the highest-income riders, and is contrary to its adopted policies to prioritize
sustainable station access investments.

Universal Access
e Prioritize access improvements for residents in lower-income areas, like west Berkeley.

Transit

e Enhance public transit access to BART for residents who live in west Berkeley by increasing frequency
and service times of AC Transit’s Route 52.

e Enhance public transit access to BART for residents who live in the hills, such as increased frequency and
service times of AC Transit’s Routes 7, 65 and 67, which connects to the Downtown Berkeley BART
station.

e Reinstate AC Transit’s Route H Transbay Service.

e Provide new transit and/or shuttle service that connects residents in the hills and west Berkeley to the
North Berkeley BART station.

e Implement on-demand transit or shuttles.

Station Area Design*®

e Include public charging stations for wheelchairs, e-bikes, and electric vehicles.
e Add asecond elevator.

The City's BART Community
Advisory Group {CAG) has been
established for the purposes of
drawing broad community
participation and providing
valuable input to the Planning
Commission as it considers

zoning standards that will be

consistent with the City's
obligations under AB 2923 for the
Ashby and North Berkeley BART station areas.

3 Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning
and development process for each station.

D-13 Page 255
MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021 7



BEART
m BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES FOR
EL CERRITO PLAZA STATION

During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and
concerns about changes to the way they get to and from the El Cerrito
Plaza BART Station. Residents near the El Cerrito Plaza BART Station
provided their opinions about how reducing the number of BART rider
parking spaces will affect their neighborhood. In general, there is a
moderate level of local support for TOD at this station, but there is
concern about the loss of BART rider parking.

Walking, Rolling, and Biking

e |Improve the Ohlone Greenway near the station area: Widen path,
upgrade lighting, and fortify street crossings, especially at
Fairmount Avenue where Richmond Street and BART parking lot
driveways are found in close to one another.

e Implement and/or upgrade low-stress, east-west bikeways on
Central Avenue, Fairmount Avenue, and Cerrito Creek.

e Implement and/or upgrade low-stress, north-south bikeways on
San Pablo Avenue and Carlson Boulevard.

e |Improve pedestrian, cyclist, and wheelchair user crossings of San
Pablo Avenue, Carlson Street, Fairmount Avenue, and Central
Avenue around the station area.

Safety and Security

e Install pedestrian-scale lighting on neighborhood streets that lead
directly to the station, like Richmond Street and Central Avenue.

e Provide interactive amenities, such as art or bike repair kiosks,
around the station to encourage people to walk and bike to
increase the perception of safety.

Car Parking
e Explore demand-based pricing for parking at BART and on-street.

e |dentify opportunities for shared parking, such as on-site with TOD

residents or near-by at publicly- or privately owned facilities.

e There were mixed reactions to providing BART rider parking spaces

as part of the TOD development:
0 Most riders living further away expressed concern that
distance, terrain, errands, and lack of transit options would

make it too challenging to access BART without a car and want

some parking on-site.

EL CERRITO PLAZA
OUTREACH
SUMMARY

Virtual Community
Meetings

City Council Meeting on
May 4, 2021
Community Meeting on
May 25, 2021
BART Board Meeting on
June 24, 2z0m
Omnline Open House and
Survey Activities
s Fourvirtual office hours,

one hour each on July 12,
Julyi4, Julyig, and July =1

In-person tabling at the El
Cerrito Plaza Farmer's
Market on July17

- ...' S -
("? 8
S o 3
Y G

0 Some riders living nearby expressed the desire to have no on-site parking to minimize traffic in the
neighborhood, thus improving the overall public realm, particularly for walking and biking.

D-14

MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021

Page 256
8



BERKELEY—EL CERRITO

CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN . ‘
& W = 200 [4

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

0 Other riders living nearby indicated concerns that reductions in BART rider parking spaces will lead
to more traffic and less parking availability for residents and businesses in the neighborhood.

0 Some questioned why BART would build rider parking, which is expensive, land-intensive, provides
the most benefit to the highest-income riders, and is contrary to its adopted policies to prioritize
sustainable station access investments.

Transit

e Enhance public transit access to BART for residents who live in Richmond Annex by increasing frequency
and service times of AC Transit’s Route 71.

e Enhance public transit access to BART for residents who live in Berkeley and Kensington by increasing
frequency of AC Transit’s Route 79.

e Provide new public transit access to El Cerrito Plaza BART for residents who live in the hills.

e Provide on-demand transit or shuttle service to connect residents who live in the hills and Richmond
Annex to El Cerrito Plaza BART.

Station Area Design*
e Increase station connectivity to commercial areas to create a more vibrant and accessible destination.
e Include public charging stations for wheelchairs, e-bikes, and electric vehicles.

CEE - -

Download Packet

5/4/2021 Regular City Council Meeting 5/4/2021

T ROLL CALL - CONVENE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

1. TELECONFERENCE AND PUBLIC COMMENT INSTRUCTIONS

2. COUNCIL/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS

3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

-

4. ADOPTION OF THE CONSENT CALENDAR

P 51 ) o000/ 4120

# Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning
and development process for each station.

D-15 Page 257
MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021 9



BERKELEY—EL CERRITO

CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN .

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

QOutreach and Project Timeline

Outreach

Outreach for the Corridor Access Plan is being conducted in three rounds:

e 1%t Round (spring/summer 2021) — Needs: Public input on access needs across the corridor, gathered
through the online open house, project website, in-person events, and virtual meetings.

o 2" Round (fall 2021 through spring 2022) — Initial Access Options: Public feedback on an initial set of
options for area-wide station access and parking.

e 3 Round (summer 2022) — Draft Corridor Access Plan: Public review of the plan, which will summarize
the needs, confirm and prioritize the set of options for station access and parking, and identify funding
opportunities to implement these options.

Project Timeline

The project timeline and its relationship to each outreach phase is shown below:

1.Develop vision and review goals

Spring — Summer 2021 [EEIEREEE
3.Engagementand feedback (1% round)

Define Access Needs [FRRIIYISwR
complete 5.Understand access opportunities

Fall 2021 - Sprlng pJiyp B 1.dentify menu of access options

2.Share the minimum and maximum number
Initial access options of on-site BART rider parking spaces

. . nd
and BART rider parkl ng 3.Engagement and feedback (2" round)
. 4.Confirm access options
on-site

5.Determine funding and financing options

Summer 2022 - Fall 2022 1.Complete Draft Corridor Access Plan
2.Engagement and feedback (3™ round)

Corridor Access Plan 3.Finalize Corridor Access Plan

D-16 Page 258

MILESTONE REPORT #1: APRIL - AUGUST 2021 10



Page 131 of 171

BART
m BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

& B o A |4 G305

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

OUTREACH MILESTONE REPORT #2

September 2021 through May 2022

The Berkeley — El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (The Corridor Access Plan) is focused on existing riders
whose access to BART may be affected by the transit-oriented developments (TODs) that will result in
roughly 2,500 mixed-income homes planned on station parking lots at Ashby, North Berkeley, and El
Cerrito Plaza. Using input from the public, elected officials, boards and commissions, local agencies, and
service providers, the Corridor Access Plan will provide a set of area-wide options for station access and
parking management to be implemented in alignment with each station’s development.

This milestone report summarizes the second of three public outreach phases for the Corridor Access Plan.

Online Open House #2 Other Outreach

4 Virtual Public Meetings

(Community, Council, Board)

1,142 Unique Users

‘ _/i 752 Completed Surveys

51 Station Access Strategies
Ranked by 327 Riders

23+ Interactions at
Four Virtual Office Hours

1,252 Email Recipients

Dy 'R

3 Social Media Posts

Likes/Tweet 57 Website Comments Received
30 Likes/Tweets

Published November 25, 2022
D-17 Page 259



parking lots will lead to more commuters driving directly to their destinations.

CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES CORRIDOR-WIDE

During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and concerns about changes to the way they
get to and from BART. Residents near BART stations provided their opinions about how reducing the number of
BART rider parking spaces will affect their neighborhoods. In general, many support TOD* to help the Bay Area’s
housing crisis in an environmentally sustainable way, but some expressed concern that building on BART’s

Top Six Strategies Identified in the Online Open House Survey

Improved transfers between AC Transit and BART with
scheduling, signage, and real-time information.

Personalized information about trip planning for all modes
(511.0org, Google maps, Citymapper, BART app, etc.).

Better amenities at bus stops within 1.5 miles of BART stations,
including benches, shelters, and real-time information.

More affordable transfers between AC Transit and BART.
Financial incentives for shared or active travel options, such as
Clipper Cash or discounts for purchasing an electric bike.
Having secure parking for large bicycles, such as electric bikes,
cargo bikes, trikes, and adaptive bikes.

It’s important to note that strategies will be analyzed not only by their level
of public support but also by their effectiveness, cost, and feasibility.

Walking, Rolling, and Biking: Nearly all who provided input on these

modes indicated the importance of creating low-stress access to and
from BART by people of all ages and abilities.

Implement bikeway and walkway improvements on select streets
that lead to BART.

Redesign key intersections to prioritize safety and ease of access
for those who walk, roll, or bike to and from BART.

Install secure bike parking in the station areas that can
accommodate a variety of types, such as trikes, electric, cargo,
tandem, recumbent, and adaptive bikes.

Provide cycling amenities, such as bike repair kiosks and charging
stations for individual and shared mobility, like electric bikes,
wheelchairs, and scooters.

Institute a bike lending library that enables BART riders to test out
a variety of types, such as trikes, electric, cargo, tandem,
recumbent, and adaptive bikes.

OUTREACH
SUMMARY

The second online open house
communicated details about
the Corridor Access Plan and
could be translated into
multiple languages. The survey
solicited feedback from the
public from April 20 through
May 18, 2022. There were four
virtual office hours in support
of the online open house.

Free-form comments were
submitted through the
Corridor Access Plan website
(www.bart/beccap.gov).

4 meetings were held with
elected officials, boards,
commissions, and community
groups.

! Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning
and development process for each station.

D-18

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022

Page 260,



BERKELEY-EL CERRITO

CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

e Conduct education about safe bike riding habits.
e |Improve pavement for pedestrians, cyclists, and wheelchair users.

Car Parking:
e There were mixed reactions to providing BART rider parking spaces as part of the TOD development:

0 Most riders living further away expressed concern about distance, terrain, mobility challenges,
errands, and lack of transit options and want some parking on-site.

0 Some riders living nearby expressed the desire to have no on-site parking to minimize traffic in the
neighborhood, thus improving the overall public realm, particularly for walking and biking.

0 Other riders and residents living nearby indicated concerns BART rider parking space reductions
will lead to more traffic and less parking availability for neighborhood residents and businesses.

0 Some said BART should not build parking on-site due to equity concerns and to maximize housing.

e Most agreed, however, that BART rider parking at the stations should:
0 Prioritize riders who have the fewest choices, such as seniors, people with disabilities, and those
who have multiple stops, such as dropping off children at school.
0 Be managed to ensure availability even if it means charging a higher rate.
0 Provide electric vehicle charging spaces.

e On the topic of parking outside the station area, input for all engagement shows:

0 Riders who live more than a half-mile of a station want the option to park on-street to access
BART and are willing to pay to do so.

0 Riders with living or working within a half-mile of a station were more evenly split about allowing
new TOD residents and BART riders to park on-street.

0 Those who don’t ride BART and live or work within a half-mile of a station want to prohibit on-
street parking by BART riders and new TOD residents.

O Riders and residents/business representatives agree that, if BART riders park on-street, their
parking fees should be used to fund neighborhood improvements.

Safety and Security: Concerns about the safety of walking in the neighborhoods and station areas were
common. Many suggested implementing strategies that reduce and calm vehicle traffic around the station
areas and in surrounding neighborhoods. Fears of crime and harassment were another concern.

Universal Access: Most who provided comments about BART riders with mobility issues (due to disability
and/or age) want to ensure that their access needs are prioritized.

Transit: Many want existing transit service enhanced or expanded in addition to new service.

Shared and on-demand mobility: Some want to see services like on-demand transit, bike share, and ride-
hailing options implemented, expanded, and/or subsidized.

Station Area Design: Input included increased connectivity between the stations and the surrounding
neighborhoods for those who walk, bike, roll, and take public transportation to access BART, and maintain
station areas as transit centers.

The following pages summarize more specific public input for each station area in the following order: Ashby,
North Berkeley, and El Cerrito Plaza

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022 D-19 Page 261,



BART
m CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES FOR
ASHBY STATION ASHBY OUTREACH

During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and SU M MARY
concerns about changes to the way they get to and from the Ashby BART
Station. Residents near the Ashby BART Station provided their opinions
about how reducing the number of BART rider parking spaces will affect

Virtual Community

their neighborhood. In general, there is a high level of local support for Meeting
TOD, particularly affordable housing, at this station, but there is concern e Advisory committee and
about displacement of the existing Flea Market due to the development. community meeting
Top Five Strategies Identified in the Online Open House Survey fociseisokistatidorll\lacciss
Better signage and wayfinding for getting to and from the Ashb CLELC y and Nort
* '8nag waytinding for getting Y Berkeley BART station,

station entrance.

) ) March 9, 2022.
e Improvements along Adeline St and at street crossings between

Shattuck Ave and Stanford Ave. Online Open House and
e Improvements at all street crossings across Ashby Ave between Survey Activities
Ellis St and Adeline St. e Virtual office hour focused
e Improvements along MLK Jr Wy and at street crossings between on street parking around
Fairview St and Ashby Ave. the Ashby and North
e Improvements along Russell St and at street crossings between Berkeley BART stations,
San Pablo Ave and Fulton St. April 25, 2022.
It's important to note that strategies will be analyzed not only by their level e Two virtual office hours
of public support but also by their effectiveness, cost, and feasibility. focused on station access

for all the stations in the
study area, May 4 and 5,
2022.

Walking, Rolling, and Biking
e Implement or upgrade bikeways on Adeline St and Ashby Ave.

Safety and Security
e Calm traffic on the streets surrounding the station.

Virtual Public Meeting
e Regular BART Board of

mg . . . . . : Directors meeting included

e Residents are interested in the residential parking permit (RPP) i i e e
program but are concerned about its limitations draft Joint Vision &

e |f RPP expanded or implemented, set up to discourage riders with Priorities for TOD at Ashby
RPPs from driving and parking on-street to access BART. and North Berkeley

Station Area Design? stations, May 26, 2022.

e |ncrease station connectivity to commercial areas to create a more
vibrant and accessible destination and to support small, local businesses.

% Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning
and development process for each station.

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022 b-20 Page 262



BART
m BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

& W = 200 [4

Funded by the Califorma Department of Transportation and the Federal Tranait Admimistration

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES FOR

NORTH BERKELEY STATION NORTH BERKELEY

During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and
concerns about changes to the way they get to and from the North
Berkeley BART Station. Residents near the North Berkeley BART Station
provided their opinions about how reducing the number of BART rider
parking spaces will affect their neighborhood. In general, there is a
moderate level of local support for TOD, particularly affordable housing,
at this station, but there is concern about the loss of BART rider parking.
Top Five Strategies Identified in the Online Open House Survey o
e Improvements along Virginia St and at street crossings between
San Pablo Ave and Oxford St.
e Improvements along Acton St and at street crossings between
Rose St and Addison St.
e AC Transit bus line running more often along Gilman St, Hopkins

OUTREACH
SUMMARY

Virtual Community
Meeting

Advisory committee and
community meeting
focused on station access
at the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART station,
March 9, 2022.

St, and Monterey Ave to and from downtown San Francisco. Online Open House and

e AC Transit bus line running along Gilman St, Hopkins St, Monterey
Ave, and Arlington Ave to and from downtown San Francisco. °

e Improvements along California St and at street crossings between
Hopkins St and Russell St.

It's important to note that strategies will be analyzed not only by their level
of public support but also by their effectiveness, cost, and feasibility.

Walking, Rolling, and Biking

e Improve the Ohlone Greenway near the station area

e Provide a bikeshare station on the Ohlone Greenway between
Gilman St and Curtis St.

Safety and Security
e Concerns by some residents that the TOD will lead to more traffic
on neighborhood streets. °

Car Parking
e Explore demand-based pricing for parking at BART and on-street.

e Support improving the City’s parking management and
enforcement.

Transit
e Enhance public transit access to BART for residents who live in the
hills, such as increased frequency and service times of AC Transit’s routes.

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022 D-21

Survey Activities

Virtual office hour focused
on street parking around
the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART stations,
April 25, 2022.

Two virtual office hours
focused on station access
for all the stations in the
study area, May 4 and 5,
2022.

Virtual Public Meeting

Regular BART Board of
Directors meeting included
an item considering the
draft Joint Vision &
Priorities for TOD at
Ashby and North Berkeley
stations, May 26, 2022.

Page 263



BART

Station Area Design?®

e Include public charging stations for wheelchairs, e-bikes, and electric vehicles.
e Add asecond elevator that can fit two bicycles or multiple wheelchair users.
e Make the elevator waiting areas more open, welcoming and safe.

Figure 1: Announcement for Berkeley Community Meeting

Ashby and North Berkeley Stations

Getting riders to and from BART after development

Advisory Commitiee/Community Meeting for the

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (via ZOOM)
Wednesday, March 9, 2022

6:00-8:00 PM

presentation followed by Q&A

Please scan QR code to the left or visit www.bart.gov/beccap

to register for the meeting

Construction of mixed-income housing is targeted to begin at Ashby and/or North Berkeley
stations in 2025. This meeting is focused on staticn access for existing riders and will include:

* The recommended maximum number of BART rider parking spaces in the developments
* An initial menu of strategies for riders getting to and from BART without parking

+ Other potential options for BART rider parking

To keep current with the transit-oriented development and station access planning processes,
please visit CityofBerkeley.info/BARTplanning or bart.gow/beccap

¥ pou resd specll socommodnton, paass sl berkalsyisa@ban gov oo i fun roon o Mondey. March 7.
¥ you mead bnnpuge emslatsrcs servions, Snss cl [570) S84-ET5T no lafer Shen noos on Moy, Mo T

mREEEsTRSEn, S50A T, B85 2 BBEE 0 aeeera,

S mscmts mrvician S sairiencs nglistics, por tevor el (2706 S84-E720 wtes ded madicain el wrea 7 e

P w e mEngEs = mgasgs bt s e, Barrmeneg g o s (500) AT kg rrasar, biags ng T2 g enghell Lures, Marz 7.
B ol wRh B 7Y RonE, 10 aETIeE ek T T RS wEs Sayn

Wil e ] clin i g B g gt g, i vl g {5701 -7 i T Thal s, mphy 7 Thibng B

BART

L oFTA

3 Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning
and development process for each station.

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022 D-22 Page 264



m ...

'_
\/
t‘“ EE 3 g L R

Oed AT a Dlepart z ortation and u! z u rat

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES FOR ]

- EF CERRITQ PLAZA STATIQN EL CERRITO PLAZA
During this period of outreach, riders shared many suggestions for and

concerns about changes to the way they get to and from the El Cerrito OUTR EACH
Plaza BART Station. Residents near the El Cerrito Plaza BART Station

provided their opinions about how reducing the number of BART rider SU M MARY
parking spaces will affect their neighborhood. In general, there is a
moderate level of local support for TOD at this station, but there is
concern about the loss of BART rider parking.

Virtual Community

Meetings
Top Six Strategies Identified in the Online Open House Survey

e Improvements along Fairmount Ave and at street crossings
between Carlson Blvd and Colusa Ave.

e Improvements along the Ohlone Greenway and at street crossings
in El Cerrito and Albany.

e Improvements along Richmond St and at street crossings between

e (Community meeting
focused on access to the El
Cerrito Plaza station,
October 12, 2021.

Online Open House and

Lincoln Ave and Fairmount Ave. Survey Activities

e Improvements along Central Ave and at street crossings between e Virtual office hour focused
the Bay Trail and Ashbury Ave. on street parking around

e AC Transit buses running more often along Fairmount Ave and the El Cerrito Plaza BART
Colusa Ave to and from El Cerrito Plaza BART. station, April 27, 2022.

e Ashared mobility pilot program for scooters, sit scooters, bikes, Two virtual office hours

and/or electric bikes. focused on station access
for all the stations in the
study area, May 4 and 5,
2022.

It's important to note that strategies will be analyzed not only by their level
of public support but also by their effectiveness, cost, and feasibility.

Walking, Rolling, and Biking

e Improve crossings of San Pablo Ave and Carlson Blvd around the
station area and within the Richmond Annex area. e Regular BART Board of

Safety and Security Directors meeting that

e Improve safety for El Cerrito High School students who take BART inclgded adoption of El
and walk to school. Cerrito Plaza TOD Goals &

] ] Objectives, October 28,

e Some expressed concerns about getting to and from BART without 5031,

a car when attending evening events.

Car Parking
e Explore demand-based pricing for parking at BART and on-street.

e Consider an advance payment/reservation program to minimize
the number of vehicles circling around neighborhood streets.

e |dentify opportunities for shared parking, such as on-site with TOD
residents or nearby at publicly or privately owned facilities.

Virtual Public Meeting

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022 D-23 Page 265



BART

: L] BlW .
i ' T =) -I-J-1-
t"“ .. - [ ] L ] 1
l 1 O . s 1 O mEN Cl l [ [l 1 ]
Transit
e Enhance public transit access to BART for residents who live in Richmond Annex, Kensington, and the
hills.

e Provide on-demand transit, shuttle service, or microtransit to connect residents to the station and
relieve congestion in the station area.

e Ensure that seniors who are unable to drive have other transportation options for accessing BART.

Station Area Design*

e Include public charging stations for wheelchairs, e-bikes, and electric vehicles.

e Consider providing parking space for small vehicles, like electric mopeds.

Figure 2: Announcement for El Cerrito Plaza Community Meeting

El Cerrito Plaza Station
Getting riders to and from BART
after development

Community Meeting (ZOOM)

Tuesday, October 121, 2021

6:00-8:00 PM

presentation followed by Q&A

Please scan QR code to the left or visit www.bart.gov/beccap
to register for the meeting

Construction of mized-income housing is targeted to begin at El Cerrito Plaza station in 2024,
This meeting is focused on station access for existing riders and will include:

+ The proposed maximum number of BART rider parking spaces in the development
- An initial menu of strategies for riders getting to and from BART without parking

+ Other potential options for BART rider parking

To keep current with the project & station access planning, please visit:
bart.gov/about/business/tod/el-cemito-plaza or bart.gov/beccap

Hy il dution, ply sl scpicekgiart gou uf least 71 hasrs price inithe Ssis of the seeal.

H ot o] lwageagm saininscs sarvices, plaass cull (B0 448752 o lhuat 72 hous priad i Sha Sk of the eend

R A, S O WL T I | S10 459 ETE,

S receaiia serdcion pars comaTCane w1 oo idome, ar fevor leme sl {5100 4846752 al merce 72 howa sniss de be fecbe del evenio.

Kuag ec mag Bulong rg Mg aeibieys g wiks, ek Srangen g (505 S54-8 753 finc bl & na T2 0w mge cms bags aag petee vy pargyapai
S A A oAt RS W e e wHE TIAT I ELE 46 ST T Fa.

Hill ) i et i VB rgmng, B vl B st 88 (400) 4548752 1 ot B T Miing g Bt ngity cim dip 4 chie.

T aFTA bo

4 Note: Public input about individual TOD projects received during the Corridor Access Plan outreach will be considered in the planning
and development process for each station.

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022 D-24 Page 266



BERKELEY—EL CERRITO

CORRIDOR ACCESS F‘LA['-J. o
& B 2GR |4

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

QOutreach and Project Timeline

Outreach

Outreach for the Corridor Access Plan is being conducted in three rounds:

e 1%t Round (spring/summer 2021) — Needs: Public input on access needs across the corridor, gathered
through the online open house, project website, in-person events, and virtual meetings.

o 2" Round (fall 2021 through summer 2022) — Initial Access Strategies: Public feedback on an initial set
of strategies for area-wide station access and parking.

e 3™ Round (fall/winter 2022) — Draft Corridor Access Plan: Public review of the plan, which will
summarize the needs, confirm and prioritize the set of strategies for station access and parking, and
identify funding opportunities to implement these options.

Project Timeline
The project timeline and its relationship to each outreach phase is shown in Figure 3 below:
Figure 3: Project Timeline and Outreach Phases

1.Develop vision and review goals

Spring — Summer 2021 2.Collect data

. 3.Engagement and feedback (1* round)
Define Access Needs 4.Define needs

Complete 5.Understand access opportunities

1.ldentify menu of access strategies

51 | B o p 5 AT T Y e Loy B 2 Shiare the maximum number of on-site
o ) BART rider parking spaces

Initial access options and 3.Engagement and feedback (2 round)
BART rider parking on-site R npesss strategies

S 5.Determine funding and financing options

Fall 2022 — Winter 2022/23 1.Complete Draft Corridor Access Plan
2.Engagement and feedback (3™ round)

3.Finalize Corridor Access Plan

Corridor Access Plan

MILESTONE REPORT #2: SEPTEMBER 2021 - MAY 2022 b-25 Page 267



BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

. . BEER
b W o 2 M%a

Funded by the California Department of Transportation and the Federal Transit Administration

OUTREACH MILESTONE REPORT #3

June 2022 through February 2023

The Berkeley — El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan (The Corridor Access Plan) is focused on existing riders
whose access to BART may be affected by the transit-oriented developments (TODs) that will result in
over 2,000 mixed-income homes planned on station parking lots at Ashby, North Berkeley, and El Cerrito
Plaza. Using input from the public, elected officials, boards and commissions, local agencies, and service
providers, the Corridor Access Plan provides a set of area-wide options for station access and parking
management to be implemented in alignment with each station’s development.

This milestone report summarizes the third of three public outreach phases for the Corridor Access Plan.

Online Open House #3 Other Outreach

) 12 Virtual Public Meetings
1,348 Unique Users ':' &
L

(Community, Council, Board)

100+ Interactions at

_/ 429 Completed Surveys

One In-station Event

More than 75% Understood the

Plan's Purpose and Content ~1,300 Email Recipients

2 Social Media Posts with 464
Reactions, Retweets, Likes,

45 Website Comments Received
Comments, and Shares

H D@ N o

Published March 2, 2023

MILESTONE REPORT #3: JUNE 2022 - FEBRUARY 2023 D-26

Page 268



BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

b W = A

WHAT WE HEARD: KEY THEMES

Input received during this period of outreach mirrored the themes that were heard in the first two outreach
periods, as detailed in the previous milestone reports. Therefore, they are not repeated here.

The following summarizes the 429 responses to the online open house #3
survey, which was focused on public reaction to the draft Corridor Access
Plan:

OUTREACH
SUMMARY

e Inresponse to the station of greatest interest:

0 39% selected El Cerrito Plaza

0 35% selected North Berkeley
0 15% selected Ashby ) )
The third online open house
0 9% selected Downtown Berkeley provided the draft Plan for
0 The remaining 2% selected other stations Ll L O 0
house could be translated into
e 80% indicated that they understood the purpose of the draft multiple languages. The survey
Corridor Access Plan. solicited feedback from the
I public from December 16,
e 76% indicated that they understood the content of the draft 2022, through January 8,
Corridor Access Plan. 2023

e 61% provided additional comments.

e 87% indicated that they were BART riders. Of the 370 rider e Yo, (T i e

responses: submitted through the
Corridor Access Plan website

0 31% use BART frequently, at least three days a week while
(www.bart/beccap.gov).

21% use BART one to two days per week.

0 46% indicated that the recommended strategies in the
draft Corridor Access Plan would help them get to BART There were 12 virtual meetings
without driving and parking. with elected officials, boards,

0 Of the 114 who currently drive to and park at BART, 12% ;?i?;ﬁgﬁ?{;ﬂﬁ;lgiuﬁy
indicated that the recommended strategies in the draft station'event was heid at El
Corridor Access Plan would help them get to BART without Cerrito Plaza.
driving and parking.

0 69% plan to get to BART most of the time without driving
and parking once their “home” station is developed.

MILESTONE REPORT #3: JUNE 2022 - FEBRUARY 2023 D-27 ., Page 269



BERKELEY-EL CERRITO
CORRIDOR ACCESS PLAN

& W e 2

Qutreach and Project Timeline

Outreach

Outreach for the Corridor Access Plan was conducted in three rounds:

e 1%t Round (spring/summer 2021) — Needs: Public input on access needs across the corridor, gathered
through the online open house, project website, in-person events, and virtual meetings.

o 2" Round (fall 2021 through summer 2022) — Initial Access Strategies: Public feedback on an initial set
of strategies for area-wide station access and parking.

o 3™ Round (fall/winter 2022) — Draft Corridor Access Plan: Public review of the plan, which summarized
the needs, confirmed and prioritized the set of strategies for station access and parking, and identified
funding opportunities to implement these options.

Project Timeline
The project timeline and its relationship to each outreach phase is shown in Figure 3 below:

Figure 1: Project Timeline and Outreach Phases

1.Develop vision and review goals

Spring — Summer 2021 2.Collect data
. 3.Engagement and feedback (1 round)
Define Access Needs 4.Define needs

Complete 5.Understand access opportunities

1.Identify menu of access strategies

| B Lo P A R 11411415 @740 P22 2 Share the maximum number of on-site
BART rider parking spaces

Initial gccess op-tions an_d 3.Engagementand feedback (2" round)
BART rider parking on-site R Iraieses strategies

Complete 5.Determine funding and financing options

Fall 2022 — Winter 2022/23 1.Complete Draft Corridor Access Plan
2.Engagement and feedback (3" round)

Corridor Access Plan 3.Finalize Corridor Access Plan

Complete

MILESTONE REPORT #3: JUNE 2022 - FEBRUARY 2023 D-28 Page 270



Page 143 of 171

Appendix E — Strategies Underway

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ge 271



Page 144 of 171

Appendix E: Strategies Underway

Some corridor access strategies for which we received public input may be fulfilled, in part, by projects,
programs, and services that are already operating or being planned, studied, designed, funded, or
implemented. These strategy “phases” are described generally in the next section, “Getting from Vision
to Reality”. Table 1 lists the strategies by their names, descriptions, current phase, and BART stations
affected.

Getting from Vision to Reality

Projects, programs, and services go through many phases in the journey from vision to reality. For
publicly funded project, most of these phases involve community input. The graphic below captures a
high-level of summary for each phase. The terms used in the graphic below are used to describe the
current phase for each project in Table 1.

- Conceptualize a project, — Secure money for — Maintain the infrastructure;
service, or program with implementing and operating run a sefvice or program
goals and objectives Sources are grants, bonds, = Collect data and input
Determine feasibility, taxes, impact fees, etc,

performance metrics, and
potential funding sources

228
m

Adopt policies to support a = Create detailed drawings = Build a project
community’s vision

Identify service or program Start a service or program
Name and prioritize specific components
projects or programs

2@®
'.‘ Community Input

Summary of Strategies Underway

Table 1 describes projects, programs, and services that are underway and their current phase (plan,
study, design, fund, implement or operate). More information for each can be found when the name or

description has a weblink.

Page 272



APPENDIX E: STRATEGIES UNDERWAY

Table E-1: Projects, Programs, and Services Underway

Final IDs

Strategy Name

Page 145 of 171

Description

Current Phase

BART Stations

A-11 Ashby BART Transit-Oriented Development [Proposed changes to circulation in the station area and on adjacent streets due to |2 - Study (2023); Ashby
Access Plan the transit-oriented development (TOD). TOD developer will fund
some projects identified
in the plan
A-12 Ashby BART Access Improvements (in and Wayfinding and bus stops: Improvements at six bus stops on streets near the 3 - Design, funded Ashby
around the station) station area. through implementation
Fulton-Wheeler Bikeway: Bike Boulevard and crossing treatments to connect
Fulton St from Dwight Wy to Prince St, then to Wheeler St, then to Woolsey St.
Bikeway through station area: Separated bikeway and crossing treatments from
Prince St-MLK Jr Wy to Woolsey St-Adeline St.
A-13 Ashby Bike Station Self-service bike station with space for 128 bikes and can accommodate larger 5 - Complete / Ashby
bikes, operated by BikeHub at the BART station. Operating
Martin Luther King Jr Way Paving Project The City of Oakland's 3-year pavement plan for MLK Jr Way includes connections to |3 - Design Ashby
other planned bike projects listed in the Bike Plan and provides new protected
A-14 intersections, crosswalks, and bus-bulb outs between 47th St and 61st St.;
https://cao-94612.s3.amazonaws.com/documents/2022.10.26-Draft-2-MLK-Roll-
Dlnt ndf
A-15 Adeline Corridor Roadway Reconfiguration — [Adeline St between Shattuck Ave and MLK Jr Wy-Fairview St: Explore different |2 - Study Ashby
options for this segment.
A-16 Adeline South bikeway (Fairview to Stanford) [One of the projects being advanced is the segment of Adeline St between MLK Jr |3 - Design Ashby
Wy-Fairview St and MLK Jr. Wy-Stanford Ave.
C-15 Addison Bicycle Boulevard Construction Part 1|The Addison Street Bike Blvd project includes striping, signage, traffic circles, 1 - Planning Corridorwide
diverters, and a protected bikeway connector on the jog at San Pablo. The project
area is Addison from Sacramento to Bolivar.
Cc-16 Addison Bicycle Boulevard Construction Part 2(The Addison Bike Blvd project includes striping, signage, traffic circles, diverters - it |1 - Planning Corridorwide
includes a portion from Milvia St to Oxford St.
Cc-17 Addison Street Bicycle Boulevard Project Addison St between Sacramento St and Milvia St: Install bike boulevard, lighting, |4 - Implementing Corridor Wide - North
and intersection crossing treatments. Berkeley, Downtown
Berkeley
c-18 Pivot Point Commuter Hub at 1-80/Buchanan |Cc Hub at I-80 and Buchanan Ave in Albany: Served by AC Transit's L line |5 - Complete / Corridorwide
to downtown San Francisco, it offers 271 parking spaces, 8 bike lockers, 10 bike Operating
racks, 4 electric vehicle charging spaces, and carpool meetups. This commuter hub
only serves line L.
c-19 Alameda County San Pablo Avenue Corridor |San Pablo Ave in Alameda County, Phase 2: Bus bulbs in Berkeley and Albany, 3 - Design Corridor Wide - North
Project bikeways on or parallel to San Pablo Ave. Berkeley, El Cerrito Plaza
C-20 Street Light Comprehensive Plan (Berkeley) [Berkeley is developing this plan to guide the City in developing and implementing |1 - Planning Corridor Wide - Ashby,
street lighting. This will be completed in Summer 2023. Downtown Berkeley,
North Berkeley
c-21 Transit Fare Coordination and Integration The Metropolitan Transportation Commission, Bay Area transit agencies and 4 - Implementing pilot  [Corridorwide
county transportation agencies are researching ways to make the region's transit |projects
network better coordinated and more affordable. Program design
Cc-22 511.org One-stop shop for information on getting around the Bay Area by transit, biking, |5 - Complete / Corridorwide
driving, carpooling, and vanpooling. Operating
C-23 BART Official App Pay for and/or reserve parking at BART stations up to 2 months in advance; Point- |5 - Complete / Corridorwide
to-point trip planning; Advisories and real-time departures Operating
C-24 BART Official Website Point-to-point trip planning; Advisories and real-time departures 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
Operating
C-25 Bay Area Transit Transformation Action Plan |The Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s plan focused on near-term actions |3 - Design, some pilot Corridorwide
(within three years) needed to create a connected, efficient, and customer focused [projects funded
transit network.
C-26 Bike Coaching Bike East Bay offers free bicycle education classes. These classes include: urban 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
cycling, adult lear to ride, and family cycling. Operating
c-27 Citymapper Point-to-point trip planning by driving, transit, biking, walking, ride-hailing, and 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
using bike or scooter share. Operating
C-28 Getaround On-demand, round trip car sharing, currently operating in Berkeley and Albany 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
with plans to expand to El Cerrito. Also operates in Alameda, Oakland, and San Operating (Albany,
Francisco. Berkeley)
C-29 Gig CarShare Point-to-point ("one-way") car share, currently operating in Berkeley and Albany |4 - Implement (El Corridorwide
with plans to expand to El Cerrito. Also operates in Alameda, Oakland, and San Cerrito); 5 - Complete /
Francisco. Operating (Berkeley)
C-30 ParkStash Rent out your extra parking or find a parking space, works like Airbnb. 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
Operating
C-31 Scoop Employer carpool app 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
Operating
C-32 Waze Dynamic carpool app 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
Operating

Page 273



[ZLETRD

Strategy Name

Page 146 of 171

Description

Current Phase

BART Stations

Zipcars On-demand, round trip car sharing, currently operating in Berkeley and Albany 5 - Complete / Corridorwide
with plans to expand to El Cerrito. Also operates in Alameda, Oakland, and San Operating (Albany,
Francisco. Berkeley, El Cerrito,
Richmond)
C-34 Bay Wheels Shared, docked bicycles in Berkeley, as well as Emeryville, Oakland, San Francisco, |5 - Complete / Corridor Wide - Ashby,
and San Jose. No plans to expand to El Cerrito or to add electric bikes to the East  [Operating Downtown Berkeley,
Bay fleet. North Berkeley
C-35 Berkeley Rides for Seniors & the Disabled Berkeley Rides for Seniors & the Disabled (BRSD) assists Berkeley residents with 5 - Complete / Corridor Wide - Ashby,
BRSD disabilities, and those 70 years of age or over by providing four subsidized Operating Downtown Berkeley,
programs that enhance access to different transportation services. North Berkeley
C-36 Shared Electric Micromobility (Berkeley) Berkeley has established a program that allows qualified companies to provide 4 - Implementing Corridor Wide - Ashby,
shared electric micromobilty services in the city Allowable devices include electric Downtown Berkeley,
scooters and electric bicycles (e-Bikes), as well as seated electric scooters and North Berkeley
adaptive electric devices
Cc-37 Request for Blue Zone Parking Residents with disability placards may request Blue Zone curb from the City of 5 - Complete / Corridor Wide - Ashby,
Berkeley. Operating Downtown Berkeley,
North Berkeley
D-03 Center Biking and Walking Improvements Biking and walking improvements, such as intersection safety improvements, traffic (5 - Complete / Downtown Berkeley
calming, and lighting enhancements. Operating
City of Berkeley notes the project is largely completed. The City widened the Center
Street bike lanes between Milvia and Shattuck when it was last repaved, made
crossing safety improvements at the intersections with Milvia and Shattuck through
the Milvia Bikeway and Shattuck Reconfiguration projects, respectively, and is
working with the Shattuck/Center hotel developer on the restoration of bike lanes
on Center between Shattuck and Oxford.
D-04 Milvia Street Bikeway Improvements Milvia St from Hearst Ave to Blake St: Upgraded bikeways, street crossing 5 - Complete / Downtown Berkeley
treatments, vehicle circulation reconfigured. Operating
D-05 Downtown Berkeley Bike Station Staffed bike station in the Center Street Garage with space for 326 bikes, operated |5 - Complete / Downtown Berkeley
by BikeHub. Can accommodate larger bicycles and electric bikes. Also offers bike  [Operating
repairs and a café.
D-06 Allston Way Parking Garage Daily and monthly parking available. 5 - Complete / Downtown Berkeley as an
Operating alternative to North
Berkeley and Ashby
D-07 Center Street Parking Garage 720 space garage, including 18 accessible spaces, vehicle charging, and monthly 5 - Complete / Downtown Berkeley as an
permits. Reserve parking at ParkMobile.io. Operating alternative to North
Berkeley and Ashby
E-17 Contra Costa County San Pablo Corridor San Pablo Ave in Contra Costa County: El Cerrito to San Pablo bus and biking 1- Planning El Cerrito Plaza
Project improvements
E-18 San Pablo Avenue Mid-Town Complete San Pablo Ave between Knott Ave and Potrero Ave to improve safety, comfort and |3 - Design ECP - El Cerrito del Norte
Streets access for all modes in and around the El Cerrito del Norte station by enhancing
crossings, adding priority infrastructure for buses and Class IV bikeways.
E-19 El Cerrito Plaza BART Transit-Oriented Proposed changes to circulation for pedestrians, cyclists, buses, and cars in the 2 - Study (2022); El Cerrito Plaza
Development Access Plan station area and on adjacent streets due to the transit-oriented development
E-20 Carlson Blvd and San Diego Street Pedestrian [Intersection improvements 2 - Study El Cerrito Plaza
Crossing Improvements
E-21 2021 Sidewalk Repair Project on San Pablo |Select locations on San Pablo Ave between Eureka Ave and Potrero Ave. 4 - Implementing El Cerrito Plaza
Avenue
E-22 El Cerrito Lighting Study The City of El Cerrito will kick off a lighting study in 2023 to address lighting needs |1 - Planning El Cerrito Plaza
on key corridors accessing the El Cerrito Plaza Station
E-23 Richmond Moves City's on-demand transportation service. 5 - Complete / El Cerrito del Norte
Operating
N-07 North Berkeley BART Transit-Oriented Proposed changes to circulation for pedestrians, cyclists, buses, and cars in the 2 - Study (2023); North Berkeley
Development Access Plan station area and on adjacent streets due to the transit-oriented development Future TOD developer
(TOD) will fund some projects
identified in the plan
N-08 North Berkeley BART Active Access Ohlone Greenway between Virginia Gardens to Acton St: Improve street 4 - Implementing: North Berkeley
Improvements crossings and widen, landscape and separate biking and walking paths Complete by 2023
Delaware St from Sacramento St to Acton St: Remove on-street parking and add 2-
way separated bikeway on north side, improve street crossings.
Station area: Reconfigure vehicle lanes, add bikeways on most roadways, improve
street crossings, add signage and wayfinding, add lighting, and add 122 bike
lockers including spaces for larger bikes.
Sacramento St from Virginia St to Delaware St: Extend Francisco Street bulb-out,
reduce vehicle lanes, improve casual carpool pick-up area.
N-09 Sacramento Complete Streets Sacramento St between Virginia St and Addison St: Street crossing improvements, |5 - Complete / North Berkeley
bus bulb-out Operating
N-10 Ohlone Greenway Improvements (Berkeley) |Ohlone Greenway from Santa Fe Ave to Virginia Gardens: Widen and repave 3 - Design, North Berkeley and El
path, improve street crossings, add and improve lighting implementation Cerrito Plaza
expected 2023
N-11 Hopkins Corridor Traffic and Placemaking Hopkins St between Gilman St and Sutter St: Circulation and streetscape 2 - Study, North Berkeley
improvement recommendations planned to go to Berkeley City Council in April. implementation
expected 2023

Page 274




Page 147 of 171

= il -
R I 'HIIm‘\m‘ l\‘l‘l\ !
. M”

ENTER

. ) O
[WRONG ‘m Ir,' ‘
WAY — I|‘

\|h

=
'Im ‘"”I\ |

\I\‘ﬂ”‘l\m”“h ‘ lm\
:|[||I|I|\ ‘I“‘l\‘l‘

Appendix F - El Cerrito Plaza Station
Preliminary Parking Management Concept

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ge 275



Page 148 of 171

BART : » o .
m ORRIDOR A Dl A ._. s
- L

Appendix F: El Cerrito Plaza Station:
On-Street Parking Management Strategies Being Considered

What do we mean by on-street parking management?

On-street parking management refers to the rules a city uses to manage parking and other uses of the
curb (such as loading zones) in the public right of way. This may be done with time limits, colored curbs,
and/or fee-based programs like parking permits, meters, and pay machines.

The city and BART have conducted multiple studies over the last decade that point to the need to better
manage on street parking. More information can be found at the below links:

El Cerrito Plaza On-Street Parking Study (2021, ARUP/BART)
On-Street Parking Study Report (2019, Nelson\Nygaard/ City of El Cerrito)
On-Street Parking Study (2011, CHS Consulting Group/City of El Cerrito)

On August 17, 2021, city staff, BART and the consultant team presented the background and
development of an initial on-street parking management concept to El Cerrito’s City Council and
Planning Commission. That presentation can be found here.

How is the on-street parking managed today?

Today, parking near the station is managed primarily through a combination of 4-hour residential permit
parking (RPP) and time-limited parking near businesses, as shown on Figure 1. El Cerrito’s RPP website
provides more information about the RPP program.

Page 1 ftage 276


https://www.bart.gov/sites/default/files/docs/2021-01-15%20ECP%20Parking%20Final%20Report%20.pdf
http://www.el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/11138/Att-1-El-Cerrito-Parking-Studies-Final-Report-19-01-28_for-CC
http://www.el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/15885/2011-CHS-Study
https://elcerritoca.civicclerk.com/Web/Player.aspx?id=360&key=-1&mod=-1&mk=-1&nov=0
https://www.el-cerrito.org/parkingpermits

Page 149 of 171

= 20

H
\

\

=

NI

|
1
e

b

f

R
]

Parking Regulations
== No Parking
School Block
= Unregulated
s 4-hOUIRPP

30-min
s 1-hoUr
s 90-min
— 2-hoOUT

o]

BART TOD Station

10 Min Walk From BART

(Walk Speed of 3 mph)

El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Area
On-Street Parking Study Area
Existing Parking Regulations

Figure 1: Existing City of El Cerrito parking regulations around the El Cerrito Plaza BART station.

Page 2 ftage 277



Page 150 of 171

On-street parking occupancies around the El Cerrito Plaza station

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, based on a snapshot of an average weekday, between 55-60% of the
roughly 3,200 on-street parking spaces within a 10-minute walk of the El Cerrito Plaza station were filled
during an average weekday. These occupancies included BART riders who parked in the neighborhood,
which is estimated to be 11% of all those who used the station on an average weekday.

Figure 2 shows this parking occupancy data block-by-block within a roughly 10-minute walk of the El
Cerrito Plaza station. It uses the target occupancy based on based on current parking management
programs and research discussed in the On-Street Parking Study Report (2019, Nelson\Nygaard) of
having 1 available parking space per block (around 85% occupancy during the busiest hours) to show
which blocks are below the target (green and orange) or over the target (red). About 79% of blocks had
parking occupancies below the target, meaning roughly 1,000 parking spaces that could be used to meet
the target of 1 available parking space per block.

e
2
; £
o i
e
o Z
- w"“}"
. l:"?"w'
e
. '-ﬁ(
& \§

Parking Occupancy
m— B5% or higher
— G5 - B4%

— G4% or lower
we  Parking Prohibited

O BART TCD Station
T 10 Min Walk From BART

=== (Walk Speed of 3 mph)

Figure 1. El Cerrito Plaza BART Station
Weekday Midday Parking Occupancy

Source: Satelite Imagery collection from Februsary 7020 (Fehr & Peers)

Figure 2: Approximate percentage of street parking within a 10-minute walk of the El Cerrito Plaza BART station that is
occupied by parked cars during the midday on weekday before the COVID-19 pandemic. Blocks in green and orange

have the capacity to accommodate additional parked cars.

Page 3 ftage 278


http://www.el-cerrito.org/DocumentCenter/View/11138/Att-1-El-Cerrito-Parking-Studies-Final-Report-19-01-28_for-CC

Page 151 of 171

When do BART riders arrive and leave these stations?

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, most BART riders tended to arrive early in the morning and return from
their trip by late afternoon/early evening, before the peak demand for on-street parking by residents
occurred, as shown in Figure 3. This demonstrates that the time of use for BART parkers and residents
provides an opportunity to share public street space for resident and non-resident parking.

El Cerrito Plaza: Pre-Pandemic Average Weekday BART

Ridership

25%

o

5

£ 20%

ge

> 15%

E

©

% 10%

-

[

S 5%

g \

o

> 0%

S

5 S © © © & ©® & & © © © © © © € € & & &©® ®
3 LSELLLLLL L LSS L LS LSS SS
T 6T 6T A BT T T DT AT HT RGN DT RO ST T

Time of day by starting hour (example 8:00 represents 8:00 to 8:59)

== Percent of daily station entries == Percent of daily station exits

Figure 3: Prior to the pandemic, on a typical weekday, 63% of the daily riders who entered the El Cerrito Plaza BART
station do so by 10AM (31% by 8AM plus 21% 8AM -8:59AM and 11% 9AM-9:59AM). Conversely, 59% of the daily
riders who exited this station did so by 6 PM (27% by 4PM plus 12% 4PM-4:59PM and 19% 5PM-5:59PM).

Why improve parking management around this station?

There is generally a lot of concern from residents, workers, and BART riders about parking on streets
around the El Cerrito Plaza BART station. These initial goals have guided our thinking about how to
potentially manage on-street parking:

e Help address the concerns of nearby residents and businesses and institutions about not being
able to find parking quickly and easily near home or work.

e Provide a parking alternative near the stations since BART rider parking at the stations will be
reduced with future developments.

e Encourage people to walk, bike, or take transit to the station to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and traffic in the neighborhoods around the stations by charging for on-street
parking.

e Earnrevenue to cover the city’s parking management costs and provide community
benefits with possible surplus funds.

Page 4 dfage 279



Page 152 of 171

What are possible on-street parking management strategies to achieve these goals?
To achieve these goals, we have considered the following three strategies, described in detail below:

e Ensure that all on-street parking in the station area is managed by residential parking permits
(RPP) and/or time limits.

e Expand where and when RPPs are used to manage parking around the station.

e Allow non-residents (BART riders) to pay to park in RPP areas using demand-based pricing to
ensure availability for all.

STRATEGY: Ensure that all on-street parking in the station area is managed by residential parking
permits (RPP) and/or time limits.

This would apply to the area within approximately a 10-minute walk to the BART station, as shown in
Figure 4. Having a consistent approach to on-street parking management will make it easier for drivers
to understand the regulations and reduce their search for available parking, reduce collisions,
congestion, and associated emissions. 12

4

e = 5 3
™ % e =R
i % 2 o
g L
e 2
o 25
A
et .
-
T ?fi‘
o g™ &
R - L
o ¥
3
o = wn
¥ g
& o
\ ‘%’wﬁ f
] =
% g 8
e 11 \g B
B -\
o i ¥
a5k o f
[
=
e
THES
Ward Ave
O BART TOD Station El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Area
1 10 Min Walk From BART On-Street Parking Study Area

{Walk Speed of 3 mph]

Parking Study Area

Figure 4: This map illustrates the parking area within a roughly 10-minute walk. Exact boundaries will be
determined as the city advances the on-street parking management work in Spring/Summer 2023.

! Litman, T. (2021) Parking Pricing Implementation Guidelines. November 5, 2021. p. 29 Source:
https://www.vtpi.org/parkpricing.pdf Date Accessed: 2/3/22

2 UK Energy Research Centre Technology and Policy Assessment (n.d.) What Policies are Effective at Reducing
Carbon Emissions from Surface Passenger Transport? Parking evidence table.
https://d2elgxpsswcpgz.cloudfront.net/uploads/2020/03/transport-report-evidence-table-parking.pdf Date
Accessed: 2/3/22

Page 5 &tage 280


https://www.vtpi.org/parkpricing.pdf
https://d2e1qxpsswcpgz.cloudfront.net/uploads/2020/03/transport-report-evidence-table-parking.pdf

Page 153 of 171

STRATEGY: Expand where and when RPPs are used to manage parking around the station.

The city’s Residential Parking Permit (RPP) program has not been updated in many years. These changes
aim to ensure that nearby residents, and their guests, as well as visitors and employees of schools or
nearby businesses can continue to park on-street in this area. Possible changes:

e Expand the size of the current Residential Parking Permit (RPP) zone.

e Make this RPP zone distinct from other RPP zones to prevent commuting in from other zones

e Enforce RPP later into the evening.

e Set atime limit or grace period for people to park without RPP permits that is effective, easy to
enforce, and gives enough time for people to visit area stores, friends, and family.

e Do not allow residents of the new Plaza BART development to get RPPs.

STRATEGY: Allow non-residents (including BART riders) to pay to park in RPP areas using
demand-based pricing to ensure availability for all.

Allowing non-residents to park on blocks do not have RPP — and possibly on blocks that do have RPP —
but charging them to do so would be a way for the city to pay for parking management and potential
community benefits. It would also make it easier for people from outside the neighborhood to park on-
street to get to BART who may not have another option. How it could work:

e Have two price zones, as shown on Figure 5 — parking further from the station would be priced
lower than parking closer to the station.

e Use time of day pricing to find the lowest price possible that would ensure that it is easy for
anyone (whether resident or non-resident) to quickly find a parking space. This means varying
rates by time of day (and possibly weekdays vs. weekends) so prices can be lower during off-
peak times and higher when demand is highest.

e 2-hour grace period -- potentially allow the first two hours to parking to be free for non-
residents when visiting area stores, offices, friends, family, and possibly a library if it is built in
this location.

e Charge non-residents hourly rates for parking after the 2-hour grace period during RPP
enforcement hours.

e The city would periodically collect parking occupancy data and then adjust hourly parking fees
up or down, as needed, to ensure 1 parking space is available for every block at the busiest
times.

e Time-of-day pricing to find the lowest price possible that would ensure that it is easy for anyone
(whether resident or non-resident) to quickly find a parking space. This means varying rates by
time of day (and possibly weekdays vs. weekends) so prices can be lower during off-peak times
and higher when demand is highest. Time-of-day pricing requires more detailed analysis and
community feedback.

e Use app-based pay-by-phone as the primary payment method. Pay stations, not parking meters,
would be located at the BART station and potentially key neighborhood locations.

e The revenue generated would be used for the city to run the parking management program and
provide other possible neighborhood and community benefits. BART will not receive revenue
from the on-street parking.

Page 6 Hfage 281



Page 154 of 171

) WS

10 HEE

g BN

ELCERRITO.
PLAZA

Brighion Ave
[] Parking Rate Zone 1 (o]

BART TOD Station
[] Parking Rate Zone 2

El Cerrito Plaza BART Station Area
| 10 Min Walk From BART On-Street Parking Study Area
ik Specd of Jmph) DRAFT Proposed Parking Rate Zones

Figure 5: This map shows the potential zones. Exact boundaries and price ranges will be determined as the city
advances the on-street parking management work in Spring/Summer 2023.

What’s next for parking management near El Cerrito Plaza station?

The on-street parking management concept presented here is just a starting point. BART has taken some
initial steps to collect data and input, but more analysis and input from residents, workers, and BART
riders must happen before settling on a specific proposal. In Spring/Summer 2023, the City of El Cerrito
plans to lead an outreach process to get more detailed input and feedback. BART and the City of El
Cerrito are pursuing funding to further develop an on-street parking management approach and then
implement before the first phase of development construction begins (anticipated in 2024).

Page 7 Hfage 282



Page 155 of 171

_——
===

Appendix G — North Berkeley and Ashby
Station Preliminary Parking Management
Concept

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | mge 283



Page 156 of 171

b BERKELEY - EL CERRITO .
CORRIDORACCESSPLAN  x¢ (D oo a0

Appendix G: Ashby and North Berkeley Stations:
On-Street ParkingManagement Strategies Being Considered

What do we mean by on-street parking management?

On-street parking management refers to the rules a city uses to manage parking and other uses of the curb
(such as loading zones) in the public right of way. This may be done with time limits, colored curbs, and/or fee-
based programs like parking permits, meters, and pay machines.

How is the on-street parking managed today?
Berkeley’s Parking Information website provides more detail about how the city currently manages parking
throughout the city. In particular, the goBerkeley program is used to manage areas of high parking demand.

GoBerkeley targets having 1 to 2 available parking spaces per block (around 65% to 84% occupancy) during the
busiest hours. It achieves these targets by regularly collecting parking occupancy data and then adjusting parking
fees up or down, as needed. These on-street parking occupancy targets balance competing priorities of having
public space dedicated to parking with having sufficient parking availability.

Today, parking near the BART stations is managed primarily through residential parking permits (RPP) as shown
on Figure 1 and Figure 2. Berkeley’s RPP website provides more information about the RPP program.

Page 1 of 10
Page 284


https://www.cityofberkeley.info/parking/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/parking-meters/#_goBerkeley
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=6272

Page 157 of 171

/

Parking Regulations O BART TOD St

— ———) : e
Existing Parking Regulations

i Vs
ation

=== No Parking m— Metered ©7 7 10 Min Walk From BART
Uneulabsd RED IR b Ashby BART Station
City of Berkeley City of Oakland
wes Timed - less than 30 min - Oakland RPP

Figure 1: Existing City of Berkeley parking regulations around the Ashby BART station.

Parking Regulations O  BART TOD Station Existing Parking Regulations
e No Parking = Metered 77777 10 Min Walk From BART
st e K4 WS o North Berkeley BART Station

=== School loading
s Timed - less than 30 min

Figure 2: Existing City of Berkeley parking regulations around the North Berkeley BART station.

Page 2 of 10
Page 285



Page 158 of 171

On-street parking occupancies around the Ashby station

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, based on a snapshot of an average weekday, between 65-70% of the roughly
4,200 on-street parking spaces in Berkeley within a 10-minute walk of the Ashby station were filled during an
average weekday. These occupancies included BART riders who parked in the neighborhood, which is estimated
to be 5% of all those who used the station on an average weekday.

Figure 3 shows this parking occupancy data block-by-block within a roughly 10-minute walk of the Ashby station
only in the city of Berkeley (Oakland data not available). It uses goBerkeley’s target of having 1 to 2 available
parking spaces per block (around 65% to 84% occupancy during the busiest hours) to show which blocks are
below the target (green), within the target (orange) or over the target (red). About 42% of blocks had parking

occupancies below the target, meaning roughly 500 parking spaces that could be used to meet goBerkeley’s
target of 1 to 2 available parking spaces per block.

P
£
2%
%3
S
Parking Occupancy Figure 3. Ashby BART Station
w—  85% or higher © BART TOD Station City of Oakland Weekday Midday Parking Occupancy
s 65-84% 777110 Min Walk From BART i
s 64% o lower 7= Walk Speed of 3 mph) CRySrBeiky Soutce: Satellite Imagery collection from February 2020 (Feht & Peers)
Pk Pronlied ource: Satellte Imagery ¢ n from February ’

Figure 3: Approximate percentage of street parking within a 10-minute walk of the Ashby BART station that is occupied by
parked cars during the midday on weekday before the COVID-19 pandemic. Blocks in green have the capacity to accommodate
additional parked cars.

On-street parking occupancies around the North Berkeley station

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, based on a snapshot of an average weekday, between 55-60% of the roughly
2,900 parking spaces within a 10-minute walk of the North Berkeley station were filled during an average
weekday. These occupancies included BART riders who parked in the neighborhood, which is estimated to be 4%
of all those who used the station on an average weekday.

Figure 4 shows this parking occupancy data block-by-block within a roughly 10-minute walk of the North
Berkeley station. It uses goBerkeley’s target of having 1 to 2 available parking spaces per block (around 65% to
84% occupancy during the busiest hours) to show which blocks are below the target (green), within the target
(orange) or over the target (red). About 58% of blocks had parking occupancies below the target, meaning

roughly 650 parking spaces that could be used to meet goBerkeley’s target of 1 to 2 available parking spaces per
block.

Page 3 of 10
Page 286



Page 159 of 171

-y

& 5.4
comeie > :’{u INT: g / g C
5/ v o \ B £ g E >
b/ A | \ C e 2 = s
page . 7 st \f 1 Z §
| B 3
) 3; 28 | =) 3
z \8 \& / g AlE \
2 ?},’ Z / 5‘) Sp— <
2\ o\ @ P
® Z ’
£
%
®
3
)
Ze
Z
¥ >
| 7" ] - [’
| s 0.25 Mile (D
Parking Occupancy - -
s 85% o higher O BART TOD Station Figure 2. North Berkeley BART Station
w65 - 84% 77771 10 Min Walk From BART
m— 64% orlower (Walk Speed of 3 mph)

Weekday Midday Parking Occupancy
Parking Prohibited

Soutce: Satellite imagery collection from February 2020 (Fehr & Peers)

Figure 4: Approximate percentage of street parking within a 10-minute walk of the Ashby BART station that is occupied by
parked cars during the midday on weekday before the COVID-19 pandemic. Blocks in green have the capacity to accommodate
additional parked cars.

When do BART riders arrive and leave these stations?

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, most BART riders tended to arrive early in the morning and return from their
trip by late afternoon/early evening, before the peak demand for on-street parking by residents occurred, as
shown in Error! Reference source not found. and Figure 6. This demonstrates that the time of use for BART
parkers and residents provides an opportunity to share public street space for resident and non-resident
parking.

Page 4 of 10
Page 287



Page 160 of 171
Ashby: Pre-Pandemic Average Weekday BART Ridership
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%

0%

Hourly percent of daily ridership

L LS

P S T P P LS S O & &
S PP .
NS N RN

bi“')’b"\“b‘%’r@\'\,\'} ™

O © O & ©
S S S ES
NN v

I S
Time of day by starting hour (example 8:00 represents 8:00 to 8:59)

=== Percent of daily station entries == Percent of daily station exits

Figure 5: Prior to the pandemic, on a typical weekday, 56% of the daily riders who entered the Ashby BART station do so by
10AM (22% by 8AM plus 22% 8AM -8:59AM and 12% 9AM-9:59AM). Conversely, 60% of the daily riders who exited this station
did so by 6 PM (33% by 4PM plus 10% 4PM-4:59PM and 17% 5PM-5:59PM).

North Berkeley: Pre-Pandemic Average Weekday BART
Ridership

25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%

Q Q
Q QO O Q. Q
NN N R S

Time of day by starting hour (example 8:00 represents 8:00 to 8:59)

S P O P S P P O P S & &
PSET LIPS LS L L LSS
LR M NN SR NN N N N

Hourly percent of daily ridership

=== Percent of daily station entries === Percent of daily station exits

Figure 6: Prior to the pandemic, on a typical weekday, 58% of the daily riders who entered the North Berkeley BART station do so
by 10AM (25% by 8AM plus 22% 8AM -8:59AM and 11% 9AM-9:59AM). Conversely, 58% of the daily riders who exited this
station did so by 6 PM (29% by 4PM plus 11% 4PM-4:59PM and 18% 5PM-5:59PM).

Why improve parking management around these stations?
There is generally a lot of concern from residents, workers, and BART riders about parking on streets around
BART stations. These initial goals have guided our thinking about how to manage on-street parking:

e Help address the concerns of nearby residents and businesses and institutions about not being able to
find parking quickly and easily near home or work.

e Provide a parking alternative near the stations since BART rider parking at the stations will be reduced
with future developments.

Page 5 of 10
Page 288



Page 161 of 171

Encourage people to walk, bike, or take transit to the station to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and
traffic in the neighborhoods around the stations by charging for on-street parking.

Earn revenue to cover the city’s costs to expand and improve enforcement of RPP around these
stations.

What are possible on-street parking management strategies to achieve these goals?
To achieve these goals, we have considered the following three strategies (described in more detail below):

e Ensure that all on-street parking in the station area is managed by residential parking permits (RPP)

and/or time limits.
e Expand where and when RPPs are used to manage parking around the station.

Allow non-residents (BART riders) to pay to park in RPP areas using demand-based pricing to ensure
availability for all.

STRATEGY: Ensure that all on-street parking in the station area is managed by residential parking
permits (RPP) and/or time limits.

This would apply to the area within approximately a 10-minute walk to the BART stations, as shown in Figure 7
and Figure 8. Having a consistent approach to on-street parking management will make it easier for drivers to

understand the regulations and reduce their search for available parking, reduce collisions, congestion, and
associated emissions. *2

BAYPIRRUS

panby Ave 2 ’%
=
a
&
g
%—
3
\\\ i W e el SR e U S T 2
BART TOD Station On-Street Parking Study Area
10 Min Walk From BART Ashby BART Station
(Walk Speed of 3 mph)
Parking Study Area City of Berkeley City of Oakland

Figure 7: This map shows the parking area within a roughly 10-minute walk of the Ashby station. Exact boundaries will be
determined as the City of Berkeley advances more detailed outreach and analysis.

! Litman, T. (2021) Parking Pricing Implementation Guidelines. November 5, 2021. p. 29 Source:
https://www.vtpi.org/parkpricing.pdf Date Accessed: 2/3/22

2 UK Energy Research Centre Technology and Policy Assessment (n.d.) What Policies are Effective at Reducing Carbon
Emissions from Surface Passenger Transport? Parking evidence table. https://d2elgxpsswcpgz.cloudfront.net/uploads/
2020/03/transport-report-evidence-table-parking.pdf Date Accessed: 2/3/22

Page 6 of 10
Page 289


https://www.vtpi.org/parkpricing.pdf
https://d2e1qxpsswcpgz.cloudfront.net/uploads/2020/03/transport-report-evidence-table-parking.pdf
https://d2e1qxpsswcpgz.cloudfront.net/uploads/2020/03/transport-report-evidence-table-parking.pdf

Page 162 of 171

=8 I sl
o U

I m\ L Hﬂm

On-Street Parking Study Area

{271 10 Min Walk From BART North Berkeley BART Station
mpl

[0 Parking Study Area

Figure 8: This map shows the parking area within a roughly 10-minute walk of the North Berkeley station. Exact boundaries will
be determined as the City of Berkeley advances more detailed outreach and analysis.

Page 7 of 10
Page 290



Page 163 of 171

STRATEGY: Expand where and when RPPs are used to manage parking around the station.
A goal is to ensure that nearby residents and their guests can continue to easily find on-street parking
throughout the day and evening. How it could work:

e Maintain regulations in the Berkeley Municipal Code that prohibit residents of the new BART
developments from getting RPP permits.

e Expand current RPP zones to include all non-metered blocks within about a 10-minute walk of these
stations, as shown in Figure 9 and Figure 10.

e Continue RPP enforcement days of Monday through Friday.

e Expand RPP enforcement hours until 8PM.

SRS

4

%
g
Parking Regulations O BARTTOD Station Pri d Parking Regulati
e No Parking - Metered (existng/new) 10 Min Walk From BART % T i
we Unregulated == RPP (ewstinginew) = {ValkSpesdef 3 mph) Ashhy BAR]. Station
City of Berkeley City of Oakland
e Tid - 1088 than 30 Min s Timed - less than 2 hours Qakland RPP

Figure 9: This map shows potential parking regulations for streets around the Ashby station. There is opportunity to expand
parking management programs around this station in a way that more equitably balances demand for parking in the public
right of way by residents, employees, and BART riders.

Page 8 of 10
Page 291


https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/14.72

Page 164 of 171

< >
amete S 3 oSt =z g
H 5//s g S\ o g =|E i
/‘i/\.‘vgﬁgy
2§ o \ O R T | . §
page 5 s Z "
z \& & g /\\ \\7 a
R\ S\ g . s
I\ / @ 2 H
® Z / ] 4 P Codar St )
! - 1
LA gi % Lincoln St
g 2 (g 1 ! - : \c‘;q;mﬂ St
\\ =
il = -
S — = ' i [ Delaware St
“ = g 1z | HearstAve —
— <
73 (]
\\ perkeley Way R i
oY - i
S E ! L,/'-/ —
% ______; i ) a—
4 .
- p—
dison St
\ S 0.25 Mile CD
Parkin: R:sul:_alions e O BART TOD Station Proposed Parking Regulations
we No Parking = Metere 10 Min Walk From BART i
- Rem (sG] bhbailentinn North Berkeley BART Station
School loading RPP (new)

wes Timed - less than 30 min === Timed - less than 2 hours

Figure 10: This map shows potential parking regulations for streets around the North Berkeley station. There is opportunity to

expand parking management programs around this station in a way that more equitably balances demand for parking in the
public right of way by residents, employees, and BART riders.

STRATEGY: Allow non-residents (including BART riders) to pay to park in RPP areas using demand-based
pricing to ensure availability for all.

Allowing non-residents to park on blocks with RPP but charging them to do so would be a way for the city to pay
for expanding when and where RPP is enforced. It would also make it easier for people from outside the
neighborhood to park on-street to get to BART who may not have another option. How it could work:

Continue the 2-hour grace period for non-residents when parking on RPP block faces to provide
flexibility for short-term parking and guests.

Charge non-residents hourly rates for parking after the 2-hour grace period during RPP enforcement
hours.

The city would periodically collect parking occupancy data and then adjust hourly parking fees up or
down, as needed, to ensure 1 to 2 parking space availability for every block at the busiest times.
Time-of-day pricing to enable the city to set parking rates when demand from BART riders is highest to
ensure parking availability for every block. For example, rates in an RPP zone could be set at $2 per hour
from 9AM—2PM (when demand from BART is highest) and then $0.50 per hour from 2—8PM. Time-of-
day pricing requires more detailed analysis and community feedback.

Enable pay-for-parking by non-residents by mobile phone apps (currently ParkMobile provides this
option in Berkeley), at pay stations in the neighborhood, and/or at BART stations.

The city could use the revenue generated by non-residents to pay for expanded RPP enforcement. BART
would not receive revenue from the on-street parking.

Page 9 of 10
Page 292



Page 165 of 171

What’s next for parking management near the Ashby and North Berkeley stations?

The on-street parking management concept presented here is just a starting point. BART and the City of
Berkeley will be further collaborating on a parking management proposal. BART has taken some initial steps to
collect data and input, but more analysis and input from residents, workers, and BART riders must happen
before settling on a specific proposal.

Using public input and data, the city will continue more detailed outreach and analysis to determine the
approach to managing parking around the stations. Any changes will need to be approved by City Council prior
to the anticipated construction of the North Berkeley and/or Ashby developments in 2025.

Page 10 of 10
Page 293



Page 166 of 171

Staff Report re: Parking Strategy for the
Two Berkeley Stations

BART

Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor Access Plan | ge 294



Page 167 of 171

Appendix H

[ QITY 9F

>~

2
2
y

AGENDA
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, November 29, 2022
6:00 PM

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — TERRY TAPLIN DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE
PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54953(e) and the state declared emergency, this meeting of the City Council
will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. The COVID-19 state of
emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and presents imminent
risks to the health of attendees. Therefore, no physical meeting location will be available.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet
accessible video stream at http.//berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244.

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82196348694. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise
hand” icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen.

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 (Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 821 9634 8694. If you
wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference.

To submit a written communication for the City Council’s consideration and inclusion in the public record, email
council@cityofberkeley.info.

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any member
of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City
Clerk, (610) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. Meetings will
adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified.

Tuesday, November 29, 2022 AGENDA Page 1
PagPdge 295


http://berkeley.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?publish_id=1244
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82196348694
mailto:council@cityofberkeley.info

PaBadgi68 of 471

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
INFORMATION CALENDAR

November 29, 2022

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Liam Garland, Director, Public Works

Subject: City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations

SUMMARY

This report provides an overview of the parking management programs and policies the
City of Berkeley will use to manage parking demand around the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART stations as new housing is built. In residential areas, the City will
evaluate new resident and/or Council initiated requests to join the Residential
Preferential Parking (RPP) Program. In commercial areas, the City will consider the use
of demand-responsive pricing to generate parking availability for local customers and/or
accommodate some BART parking demand under the goBerkeley program.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

BART’s planned housing at the Ashby and North Berkeley stations is expected to
significantly affect parking conditions around the stations. While BART has been
conducting a planning process for station access needs—the Berkeley-El Cerrito
Corridor Access Plan (BECCAP)' with anticipated completion in Winter 2022/23 —the
City seeks to mitigate future parking demand using existing parking programs, including
the Residential Preferential Parking (RPP) Program in residential areas and goBerkeley
demand-responsive pricing in commercial areas.

Planned Changes to Parking Supply and Demand

As part of the new housing developments, BART will not provide 100% replacement of
existing BART rider parking spaces. After BART presented recommended BART rider
parking maximums for the two stations to the BECCAP Advisory Committee and
Community in March 2022, 2 in June 2022, the BART Board approved a maximum of
85 rider parking spaces (16% of the current 535 spaces) for Ashby and 200 rider
parking spaces (29% of the current 700 spaces, including 80 spaces in the two auxiliary
lots) for North Berkeley).2 Based on the analysis and outreach from the BECCAP, BART
expects that those who historically parked at the two stations will: 1) walk, bike, bus or
rideshare to access BART, 2) work from home, or 3) park at Downtown Berkeley

' BECCAP Project website: http://bit.ly/3ANSm6C1
2 BECCAP Advisory Committee/Community Meeting, March 9, 2022, p. 22: https://bit.ly/3BTdR2W
3 BART Board Meeting, June 9, 2022: https://bit.ly/3DTT8gK

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 98%- 92-'85
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager qﬁg&g ge 296



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.infos
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
http://bit.ly/3NSm6C1
https://bit.ly/3BTdR2W
https://bit.ly/3DTT8gK

PaBadgk6Q of 471

City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations INFORMATION CALENDAR
November 29, 2022

parking garages or other off-street options.* Yet, there may still be spillover parking into
surrounding neighborhoods. Note: BART has not determined the final amount of on-site
rider parking at the two stations. The final parking number will be determined after the
future development teams advance design together with the community, and BART, the
City and the Developer teams have a better understanding of funding opportunities for
access/parking improvements, design considerations, and community benefit tradeoffs.

The amount of on-site parking for residents at the new housing developments is still
under consideration. Regardless, per City policy, residents of the new developments will
not be eligible for RPP permits and could seek parking on nearby residential streets.

Managing Parking in Residential Areas

Residential parking in the immediate vicinity of the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
stations is within the boundaries of the RPP Program, though the number of streets that
have “opted-in” to the Program, i.e., streets that are signed and enforced for RPP time
limit restrictions, vary between the two stations.® The City expects resident-initiated opt-
in requests around Ashby BART and North Berkeley BART to grow over the next
several years, particularly after new housing is built. Residents may choose to petition
for RPP to mitigate demand from residents of the new housing developments as well as
partially displaced BART patrons.

To accommodate these requests, the City will follow existing guidelines for RPP Opt-
Ins, summarized in Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) Section 14.72.050.6 The BMC also
allows for Council to initiate opt-in requests if so desired. Streets that are outside of the
RPP Program boundary are not eligible to opt-in; Council action would be required to
allocate additional funding for Parking Enforcement staff and equipment to expand the
Program.

Managing Parking in Commercial Areas

Parking on Adeline Street across from the Ashby BART station and along University
Avenue south of the North Berkeley BART station is managed under the goBerkeley
parking program. Parking on Ashby Avenue and MLK Jr Way fronting Ashby BART is
either controlled by RPP, time limits, or unregulated. Adeline Street south of Woolsey
Street is time limited, though the City is evaluating whether to install metered parking in
this area as part of a parking benefit district. There is no parking on the periphery of the
North Berkeley BART site, but this could change with future housing development.

Based on outreach with merchants and/or other stakeholders, the City could convert
existing time limited or unregulated parking in commercial areas or on the periphery of
station areas to goBerkeley metered parking. Consistent with on-street parking

4+ BECCAP Advisory Committee/Community Meeting, March 9, 2022, p. 23-24: https:/bit.ly/3BTdR2W
5 City of Berkeley RPP Web Map: https://bit.ly/3LLDpDY

6 Berkeley Municipal Code 14.72.050: “Designation of a residential permit parking area”
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/14.72.050

Page 2 Page R&ge 297


https://bit.ly/3BTdR2W
https://bit.ly/3LLDpDY
https://berkeley.municipal.codes/BMC/14.72.050

PaBadi¥0 of 471

City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations INFORMATION CALENDAR
November 29, 2022

elsewhere in the City, the goals will be to ensure customer parking availability and
turnover by periodically observing parking behavior and adjusting prices for optimum
availability — 65-85% occupied, or 1-2 open spaces. goBerkeley features “Premium”
zones with prices driven by customer demand and shorter time limits that encourage
turnover, and in the vicinity of Ashby and North Berkeley, could exclude BART patrons.
If there is surplus capacity, some areas may be designated as Value zones with longer
time limits that could be used by BART patrons, but priced to maintain adequate
turnover.

goBerkeley allows the City to be flexible in the face of changing conditions. Pending
further discussion, the City could implement an escalating price scale that starts at low
prices for short stays, but scales up to higher prices for all-day parking, potentially
providing parking for local customers while accommodating some BART patrons. In the
vicinity of Ashby BART, this could provide a new source of revenue supporting a Lorin
parking benefit district.

BACKGROUND

In September 2018, Governor Jerry Brown signed Assembly Bill (AB) 2923,7 state
legislation that affects zoning requirements on existing BART-owned property within
one-half mile of stations in Alameda, Contra Costa and San Francisco Counties.

The City of Berkeley has been working closely with BART to develop the zoning and
site planning parameters that meet the requirements of AB 2923, the goals of the City
and the community, and the goals of BART as the property owner. The City and BART
executed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) in March 2020 that established a
framework for development of the Ashby and North Berkeley BART stations, including a
community advisory process and other community engagement; milestones and a
timeline to develop zoning that complies with AB 2923; solicitation of developer(s); and
further studies/planning for the two station areas.?

In June 2022, the City Council adopted zoning at the North Berkeley and Ashby BART
stations that complies with AB 2923. As outlined in the original City-BART Memorandum
of Understanding (MOU) and the new Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), the planning
effort moving forward will build upon separate community engagement efforts that have
been underway for several years relating to the Ashby and North Berkeley BART
stations, and other adopted plans and policies of the City and of BART. The MOA
establishes a timeline for milestones regarding the addressing of potential spillover
impacts to parking around the North Berkeley and Ashby BART stations that includes
this City Council update regarding use of existing tools for on-street parking strategy in
November 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE IMPACTS

7 AB 2923: https://bit.ly/3DYji3m
8 Current City of Berkeley/BART Memorandum of Understanding (MOU): https://bit.ly/3CfJFR8

Page 3 Page RB&ge 298


https://bit.ly/3DYji3m
https://bit.ly/3CfJFR8

PaBaedgi¥4 of 471

City Policies for Managing Parking Around BART Stations INFORMATION CALENDAR
November 29, 2022

Incremental expansion of the RPP Program to include additional blocks may have a
minor beneficial environmental effect, and may make alternative transportation options
more attractive. A modal shift by commuters to walking, bicycling, public transportation,
or carpooling may also lead to a decrease in greenhouse gasses. However, based on
expansion of RPP to other areas, the “two-hour shuffle” (i.e., moving a vehicle every two
hours to avoid a ticket) may also begin to occur in new RPP areas among commuters
who continue to drive. This behavior would have an adverse impact on traffic
congestion, air quality, and excess fuel consumption.

Parking management in commercial areas using demand-responsive pricing under the
goBerkeley parking program should improve parking management and lessen traffic
congestion and vehicle emissions, as drivers are anticipated to spend less time
searching for available parking spaces. Reducing greenhouse gas emissions produced
by vehicular traffic is one of the City’s 2009 Climate Action Plan goals.

POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION

The City will continue to monitor parking demand in the vicinity of the Ashby and North
Berkeley BART stations, processing RPP opt-in requests and/or discussing parking
options in commercial areas with merchants and business groups as warranted.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF POSSIBLE FUTURE ACTION
There are no immediate fiscal impacts. The parking management policies discussed in
this report are baseline programs and the housing projects are still being planned.

Moving forward, each incremental expansion of RPP within the Program’s current
boundaries will incur costs for the procurement and installation of new signage.
Depending on the geographic scope of new opt-in petitions, discussions with the Police
Department’s Parking Enforcement may be needed to verify that existing staffing and
equipment levels are sufficient to absorb the new areas. Expansion beyond the existing
boundaries of the RPP Program will require new staff and equipment.

Fiscal impacts of potential new goBerkeley parking meters in commercial areas near or
fronting the BART stations are difficult to forecast as parking behaviors resulting from
demand-responsive price adjustments may vary. However, as in other areas of the City,
incremental parking revenue should be sufficient to cover expected expenditures of the
program, including the purchase of new meter equipment.

CONTACT PERSON

Farid Javandel, Deputy Director of Transportation, Public Works, (510) 981-7061
Danette Perry, Parking Services Manager, (510) 981-7057

Gordon Hansen, Senior Planner, (510) 981-7064

Page 4 Page 22fge 299



Page 300



	2024-09-16 Revised Special Agenda - Council
	2024-09-16 Special Item 01 Ashby BART Transit Oriented
	2024-09-16 Special Item 02 Presentation Berkeley-El Cerrito Corridor



